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ABOUT FRASERS GROUP

Founded as a single store in 1982, Frasers Group
plc {Frasers Group, the Group, the business or the
Company) is today the UK's largest sporting goods
retailer by revenue,

The Group operates a diversified portiolio of sports, fitness, premium

25

right price. Qur strategy is aligned to this purpose and is based on three

interconnected fFocus pillars - the brands we sell, our digital offering and

our physical stores. Thesae are supported by a set of enablers, focused on our
stems, automation and data,

TO SERVE OUR CONSUMERS
WITH THE WORLD'S BEST SPORTS,
PREMIUM AND LUXURY BRANDS.

WE DO NOT RUN THE BUSINESS FOR THE SHORT-TERM
BUT WQRK TO ENSURE WE DELIVER SHAREHOLDER
VALUE QVER THE MEDIUM TO LONG-TERM, WHILST
ADOPTING ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES THAT ARE
CONSERVATIVE, CONSISTENT AND SIMPLE.

Apprax, £250m paid
in staff share bonuses

25,000

Have a workforce of
approx. 25,000 people
worldwide, approx. 19,000
af which are in the UK

Contributed app
£2100m in VAT and Duty

£600M

buted appros
£600m in UK
Corporation Tax

£180M

Contributed approx
£180m in NI employer
contributions

"It was the Agencies we were after

"We had to get you in order to get to
the agencies”

'TUESDAY 4 OCTOQBER 2016 MR STEVE TURNER
{ASSISTANT GENERAL SECRETARY UNITE UNIONY

nled on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carhon Capturad through the Woodianed Trust, helping to croate new Brlish woodiand across the UK

FRASERS GROUP

QUTLOOK

The Group is continuing to invest in its
physical and digital elevation strategy
and our omni-channel offering is growing

- in strength, Our stores in the UK have

reopened above expectations and our
online channel continues to significantly
outperform pre-Covid-19 periods. None
the less, management remains of the view
that there is a high risk of future Covid-19
pandemic restrictions, likely to be over this
Winter and maybe beyond.

The board of Frasers Group has continued
to consider the probable return of
restrictions during FY22, including within
its accounting judgements ond estimates
for F¥21, As the effects of the Covid-19-
pandemic continue to cause future
uncertainty, including the Delta variant
surge we are currently seeing, the board of
Frasers Group considers it cannot currently
confirm with enough moterial accuracy
what the outcome for F¥22 will look like.

Based an this we will not be giving

o projection to the morket for £Y22
performance. Any projections produced
by third parties such as research onalysts
are not produced on behalf of Frasers
Group plc and Frasers Group plc takes
no responsibility for such projections.

As d result prospective investors and
other market participants should not
treat, and Frasers Group plc does not
intend to treat, the financial projectiens
produced by third parties as indicative

of the market expectations of Frasers
Group plc’s future financial performance.
We specifically note that we are under
ne obligation to correct estimates made
by financial analysts or to inform the
market should we come to believe that our
actual performance will differ from those
estimates,

We will review the current situation

again at the half year and depending on
whether there is more certainty on further
restrictions or not we may be able to give
guidance at thot point.
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GROUP AT
A GLANCE

20.3%

- Total Group Revenus

PREMIUM JyT—
LIFESTYLE 9%

The Group's Premium Lifestyle division offers a broad range of clothing, footwear and accessories
from leading global contemparery and luxury retail brands through our foscias in the UK: Flannels,
Cruise, van mildert, House of Fraser, Sofa.com and Jack Wills along with their related websites.
The majority of these fascias operate as multi-brand premiurm retail destinations and are focused
an providing fashion conscious consumers with high-end and on trend products, The segment is
supported by our Group-wide centralised commercial and support functions, giving the benefits
of scale and operating efficiencies to each fascia. The segment is o significant part of the Group's
new generation retail concept and as such, in certain locations, Premium and Lifestyle stores

ore co-located olongside our Sports retail stores to benefit from increased custamer footfall and
operating synargies.

UK SPORTS

RETAIL EUROPEAN

RETAIL

0% e

B REST OF

£615.2M THE WORLD
RETAIL

(=
.—.—-“ \O Rest of World Ret:

<

Sports fa sa
sia, under th

The total Premium Lifestyle store count is 179 stores and approximately 4.2m sq.ft. of retail space.

54.3%

Totol Group Revanue

4.2%

Tatal Group Revanue

UK Sports Retail includes core
sports retail store operations

in the UK, plus ofl the Group’s
sports retoil anline business
{excluding Boly's Stores, Eastern
Mountain Sports and Sports
Direct Malaysia), the gyms, the
Group's Shirebrook campus
aperations, retail store operations
in Northern Ireland, Evans Cycles
and GAME UK.

's sports retail stores,
gement and operations
in Europe including the Group's

Tetat Greup Revenus

WHOLESALE &
Our store footprint is significant, F—nmzm-zm

with 806 stores across the UK, F¥21, management . The Wholesale & Licensing segment operates our globally renowned heritage Group brands
totelling epproximately 6,5m .u to elevote the Group's {such as Everlast, Lonsdate, Karrimor and Slazenger} and our wholesale, licensing and distribution
sq.ft. of retail space. The majority European stores and work relationships across the world, as weil as our partnerships with third party brands that we

of stores are operated under the to flsjmﬂ taitor the m_.mc license-in to sell certain products. The Group's own brands ore managed both individually and
SPORTS DIRECT, USC, Evans consumer valug propos centrally within this segrment. This unique, integrated approach to brand management leverages
Cycles and GAME fascias. our local markets, the expertise of our people, encourages innovation, and ensures consistency.

4
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

8.4%

Group revenue decreased
by 8.4%
Excluding acquisitions and

on a currency neutral basis,
revenue decreosed by 114%™

Reported profit after
J tax was o loss of
£78.0m down 177.2%
)

177.2% from q profit of

£101.0m

nhers 100%, Reo

Group gross
margin increased to 42.2%
from 42.0%

42.0%

\7

FRASERS GROUP

Group underlying EBITDA®

increased by 29.4% to =
18.5p

compared to £302.1m in the

29.4%, | prior period

Excluding acquisitions and on a
currency neutral basis, underlying
EBITDA increased 16.9%"

hd

Reported basic earnings per
share fell by 189.2% to aloss
of 16.5p, from a profit
of 18.5p
Underlying bosic earnings - per

share decreased by 204.9% to a
lass of 17.0p from a profit of 16.2p

95.1%
£5.8M (16.5p)

Underlying profit before tax'?
decreased by 95.1% to £5.8m
from £117.4m

'
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% £143. £8.5m

HIGHLIGHTS [S———

Reported profit before tax was
£8.5m, down 94.1%
from a profit of £143.5m

FINANCIAL " ewism -

£427.8M

£248.9M

e e - AT ST e

Net debt decreased to £248.9m
(£366.0m at 26 April 2020}

Group reported EBITDA
decreased by 2.6% to
£536.5m compared to
E551.0m in the prior
period.

UNDERLYING FREE CASH
FLOW (PRE-CAPEX)
INCREASED TO £427.8M
COMPARED TO £263.1M N
THE PRIOR PERIOD ®!

FRASERS GRCGUP

11.8%
Tv 3

EUROPEAN RETAIL REVENUE DECREASED BY 11.8%, LARGELY DUE THE
TEMPORARY STORE CLOSURES CAUSED BY THE COVID-1% PANDEMIC

Excluding acquisitions and on a currency neutral basis. tevenue decreased by 20.5%",
largely caused by temporary store closures due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

European Retgit like-for-like grass contribution wos down 15.0%"

Premium Lifestyle revenue

increased by 1.9% largely

d o QO\ due to growth in our online
) o business, and new store

openings

Excluding vequisitions,

revenue increased by 1.4%"

Premium Lifestyle like-far-hle gross
contribution was down 2,89,

UK Sports Retail revenue decreased by 10.7%, largely due the
temporary store closures caused by the Covid-19 pendemic,
offset by growth in our online business and pent up demand on
reopening stores

Excluding acquisitions, revenue decreased by 14.6% 7, largely coused by temporary
store closures caused by the Covid-1% pandarmic

UK Sports Retail fike-for-like gross contribution was down 13.4%

Lor e
arenm el st sty enuals s b urten e e

formva o eas e e bae Leel s e
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STRATEGIC AND
OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Nz
[oier

Will reciove
shares worth:

FEARLESS 1500 S
JEHHME LAUNCHED 30

The scheme exists to roword our top 1000 performers @m@
when our share price reaches £10, for 30 conscrutive

trading days. These top perfarmers will be nominated by M@@

their colleagues for the embodiment of our 3 core values: ﬂ\l/ ~

Il
Think Without Limits, Don't Hesitate, and Own It, HGAL)

vz’ ELEVATION
PROGRAMME S1/4TS

£1,000,000
£500,000
£250,000
£125,000
£50,000

2178 TOTAL APPLICATIONS

44%
MALE

55%
FEMALE

ririted on Steinbeis 100%%

Z:FQJ\

SHARES WERE AT
BEREEAGMINERIS IR
AT YEAR END

BOSS

HUGQC BOSS

SHARES WERE AT
78.5% CUNERSRIP
AT YEAR END

‘ed through the Woodiand Trust. helping Lo cre.le new Brtish wo

FRASERS GROUP

WIGAN]
RETAIL
PARK

207,004 sa @

£41,750,000
PURCHASE PRICE
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FRASERS GROUP

OUR RESPONSE TO COVID-19

Throughout the Covid-19 pandemic, our highest
priority has been to protect the health, safety
and wellbeing of our colleagues. This reflects
both our duty to keep our people safe and

the business imperative: if we are not sofe, we
cannot trade.

Our respense has been based on a number of
key principles, in particular:

+  following Government guidelines and
exceeding them in certain aspects;

+  completing thorough risk assessments and
requfarly updating them; and

*  communicating effectively, sa our people
understand what we are doing and their
part in keeping themselves and their
colleagues sofe.

The standards we have developed have been
shared and followed across the Group, except
where local legislation mandates o different
approach.

The Group's senior management have been
closely involved in our response, ensuring

the safety of our people is put first and that
ient resources and equipment are
available. We have also been supported by an
independent health and safety consultant, who
is helping us to drive continuous improvement,
including in relation to our response to Covid-19.

Our Initial Respense To Covid-19

In last year's report, we detailed the steps we
had token across our warehouse, office and
stores in the first few months of the Covid-19
pandemic. These steps are summarised below.

Virtually all furloughed colleagues received
100% of pay during the first lockdown, in excess
of the 80% guaranteed by the Government,
and we sent home on full pay ali colleagues
over 60, as well cs those categorised as
vulherable ar at risk. Other measures we have
introduced included rondom temperature
checks for colleagues, strict protocols for
sell-isolation after contact with o pos
encouraging regular testing and providing full

8

erf g g

pay for people who test positive, while they are
unable to work.

{n summary, in the early stages of the Covid-19
pandemic we:

Warchouse

+  Invited the local environmental health
officer and our independent consultant to
review our controks and social distancing
meqasures

» Reduced the amount of traffic in and out of
the building and in key areas, for example
by staggering start, finish and breok times,
maving agency staff to four-day weeks and
opening o new entrance to reduce traffic
through reception

» Introduced seven-day health and safety
covercge, to support the warehouse teoms

+  Provided first aiders with advice and PPE
{personal protective equipment), to protect
_them when first aid was needed

» Implemented hygiene stations and created
a new role of “Social Distancing Marshal®

* Introduced 'no contact’ security checks
Office

= Required colleagues to work at home
wherever possible and where they needed
to shietd

+  Communicated restart guidance through
Slack (an internal messaging service
avarloble to all head office colleagues]

= Increased cleaning, provided hygiene
stations throughout and limited capacity in
key areos such as kitchens and lifts

+ |Implemented protocols to ensure there was
no mixing between warehouse and office
staff in common creas such as canteens

+  Allowed only authorised visitors and
encouraged meetings through digital
platforms

e Woodiind st

| throun

Stores

+ Created o retail restart pack for stores

recpening, including signage, PPE, increased

cleaning schedules, lower store occupancy
levels, one-way systems in-store and
training documents for all new procedures

= Reduced traffic in and out of the building
and in key areas by staggering start, finish
and break times

- Revised delivery and processing procedures

to maintain social distancing

+ Added sanitisation stations throughout
stores and encouraged colleagues and
customers to use them

+  Used unannounced visits by the Health &

Safety team to ensure the retail restart pack

had been correctly implemerited

Our approach was well regarded by local
authanties, with positive feedback following
unannounced visits to our stores and
warehouse.

Adapting And Developing Our P d

Throughout this finoncial year we have built
on our initial actions, as we have updated our
risk assessments and adapted to changing
guidance. This has enabled us to introduce
new and stronger measures, in _unn_n:_nq as
the Covid-19 voriant fiest identified in Kent

began to spread. Examples of our key activities

undertaken in the year are set out below.

*  August 2020, We reviewed our warehouse
risk assessment and shared it with the
warehouse and agency teams, We started
weekly onti-viral fogging’ of offices, sorters
and other areas to supplement the regular
cleaning schedule, enhanced workstation
plexi-screens in the office to support social
distancing and introduced maximum
capacities for meeting rooms.

+  September 2020. We reviewed our
warehcuse risk assessment and our first
aid guidance and introduced a screening
questionnaire for all visitors,

+  October 2020, We introduced face shields
an all sorting machines, as an additional
layer of protection.

vt o

- N ber 2020, We revi d and updated
our warehause risk assessment and shared
it with the teams. Face covetings became
mandatory in the warehouse, and were
encouraged in offices {except for medical
and aoperational exemptions), going beyond
Government guidance. We issued guidance
to all agencies and departments about
reporting Covid-1% coses, including follow-
up actions required.

*  December 2020, We reviewed the heod
office risk assessment and shared it with all
departments. To enhance social distancing,
we closed 50% of shared work areas and
the office workstations used by people who
could not work from home, and further
reduced meeting room capacities. We
reviewed and communicated our contacts
guidance and shiglding requirements and
made face coverings mandatory in head
office. All head office colleagues received
a Covid-19 controls review document,
requiring an electronic signature of
acceptance.

« Januory 2021. We reviewed the warehouse
risk assessment and issued o warehouse
working refresh. We produced risk
assessments for security, transport and
training and shared them with the relevant
teams. Training started for all warehouse
management and supervisors, with
the "Covid Captain” role introduced to
menitor work areas. We increased anti-
viral fogging in oll areas, over and above
the manufacturers’ guidelines, and issued
guidance on pre-shift cleaning.

+  Februory 2021. We further enhanced the
fogging procedures and produced a risk
assessment for the Persondlisation team.

We believe our efforts have been highly
effective. For exomple, infection rotes ot our
Shirebrook campus have been consistently
below those in the local community. We

will continue to adapt our approach as
circumstences chonge.

Quitside of the UK we have complied with

all lecal Covid-19 laws and guidance which,

at @ minimum, includes the same store and
warehouse measures as implemented in the UK.
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Environmental, Social & Governonce

We are proud of the successes we have had
with our sustainability ogenda to date. For
instance the majority of our waste from our
Shirebrook delivery centre is recycled and

we are targeting zero waste to landfill from
Shirebroak in the next few years. Exciuding
acquisitions during the year, our steres and
gyms are operating on 100% renewoble power
and we are targeting a reduction of 10% power
usage in our stores aver the next few years.
Sustainability witl continue to play a key role in
our future processes and procedures led by our
Sustainability Steering Group which is executive
spensored by our Chief Financial Officer.

We are proud to invest in local communities
and to support a key facet of British life, the
high street. We provide jobs for over 20,000
people in the UK alone and during the
pandemic we have done our utmost to retain
and support as many celleagues as possible
with very few redundancies.

During the year we have given approximately
£25m in discounts to NHS staff as we reopened
in June 2020 in gratitude to the unbelievable
job they have dane during the Covid-19
pandemic,

Our workers representative Cally Price

is @ shining example of gcod corporate
governance and we thoroughly recornmend
the appointment of such a position across the
boardrooms of corparate Britain. Cally brings
colleague queries and concerns directly to
the boardroom for action by the Board. Cally
tokes a very active part in every Board meeting,
which she attends in full, and her vote counts
for as much in a Board vote as mine or the
executive team, Alongside Cally, the rest of
our Non-executive Directors bring their own
knowledge and experience to their roles in
helping to ensure we da the right thing by our
stakehclders. .

The Board

We recently went through an independent
review of the Board which is o mandatory
obligation once every three years. We are very
happy with the findings and will oct an the
recommendations.
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We will continue to look at the construction of
the Beard ensuring we have the appropriate
blend of skills and experience. We consider
diversity, ond energetic and passionate
individuals to be priorities as we loak to
strengthen tha Board in the future,

Due to the success of the Worker's
Representative Board role we have decided
to extend the tenure of Cally Price for a
further few years and she witl be proposed for
re-glection at the 2021 AGM.

Dividend And Share Buyback

Our share buy back programme has continued
which is a demanstration of our confidence

in the Company and the strotegy for future
growth, Further details can be found in Note 36.

Na final dividend will be payable in relation to
FY21 as we intend to make further investments
in the business to support the elevation
strategy.

Outiook

The Covid-19 pandemic cantinues to create
uncertainty and we must be prepared for
more lockdowns in the future. There must be
concerns about the stability of some retailers
as Government support schemes come to
an end, yet there still seems to be very little
tangibie long-term action being taken by
the Government to save the high street.
Notwithstanding the probable risk of further
lockdowns, which are considered and do
impact our property accounting estimates,
Frasers Group is confident in our long-term
strategy which we believe will help us to get
thraugh this difficult period.

We will continue on the path of elevation and
to invest in our talented ond loyal colleagues.
Our business is built on rock solid feundations
and we beliave we are well set for some
promising times in the future.

David Daly
Non-executive Chair

5 August 2021
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FRASERS GROUP

OUR BUSINESS

Business Model

Founded by Mike Ashley as a single Store in
Maidenhead in 1982, Frasers Group ple today
operates a diversified portfolio of sports, fitness,
premium lifestyle and fuxury store fascias. The
Group's colleagues werk together with our
suppliers and our third-party brand partners

to serve customers in over 20 countries. The
Group aspires to be an international leader in
sports, lifestyle, and luxury retail. The Board

is committad to treating all people with

dignity and respect. We vaiue our people,

our customers and our shareholders and we
strive to adopt good practices in our corporate
dealings. We aim to deliver shareholder value
over the medium to long-term, whiist adopting
accoupting principles that are conservative,
ceonsistent and simple. Qur strategy is set out in
the "Our Strategy - Elevation No Limits™ section
of this report.

Qur business model remains consistent in
providing customers with the world's best
brands. This requires us to have the right
product, in the right place, at the right time
and at the right price. Our vision is to become
the elevated, multi-channel platferm for our
Sports Retail and Premium Lifestyle foscias. To
this end, we ore elevating across all channels to
enhance the customer journey every step of the
way.

The Group's business model is explained in
greater detail below. This includes an outline of
our fascias and retail chonneis, management
of our property portfolio, our people, our
third-party brand partners, our Group brands
and eur centralised support functions.

Businaess Structure

The Greup is structured across five business
segments: UK Sports Retail, Premium Lifestyte,
European Retail, Rest of World Retail and
Wholesale & Licensing.

In UK Sports Retail, we offer a complete range
of sporting apparel, footwear and equipment
through our predominant foscia,

SPORTS DIRECT.

This segment includes our lifestyle fascia

USC. Our current forward-looking view 1s

that the majority of our offering to customers
must include feading third-party brands. The
elevation of our sports retail proposition is

key to ensure we are fully aligned with the
future direction and ambitiens of these brand
partners, UK Sports Retail includes core sports
retail store operations in the UK, plus all the
Group's sports retail online business (excluding
Bob's Stores, Eastern Mountain Sperts and
Sports Direct Malaysia), the gyms, the Group's
Shirebrook campus operatians, retail store
operations in Northern ireland, Evans Cycles
and the GAME UK stores and online business.

in Prermium Lifestyle, we are developing the
Group's premium and luxury offering, which
consists of the Flannels, Frasers, House of
Fraser, Jack Wills and Sofa.com fascias, along
with Cruise and van mildert. We aim to offer
fashion-conscious consumers a luxurious,
multi-brand retail destination with high-end
and on-trend products.

In European Retail, we are evelving our
customer proposition in line with the elevotion
strotegy, while also seeking to increasingly
tailor our proposition to the focal markets in
which we operate. These include the Republic
of Iretand and continental Europe.

In Rest of World Retail, we operate 43 stores
trading as Bob's Stores and Eastern Mountain
Sports and we also have 33 stores trading as
SPORTS DIRECT in Maloysia.

In Wholesale & Licensing, the Group retains
a portfolic of world-famous heritage

brands, which we offer via our fascias, and
dlso wholesale and license to partners
internationally. Our own brands include
Everlast, Lonsdale, Karrimor and Slazenger.,
The Group is also proud to have a number of
sporting and entertainment personalities as
ambassadors, as well as supporting sperting
events and venues.
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FRASERS GROUP

Multi-Channel Elevation Strategy

Qur elevation strategy continues to work
towards improving our offering to customers
across all our channels, including marketing,
social media, product, digital and in-store. This
aims to enable the Company, along with our
third-party brand partners, to connact with
customers via o consistent voice across multiple
platforms, including online, mobile, and on the
high street. This strategy enables our stores and
our online operations to complement

each cther.

The websites for each of our core fascias in
the UK, including SPORTSDIRECT.com, USC.
co.uk, Flannels.com, Housecffraser.co.uk and
GAME.co.uk, hove undergone significant
enhancements to facilitate optimum appeal to
consumers. Our product offering across these
core fascias, both in-store and online, aims to
create a compelling shopping experience in
key categories that include, amongst others,
Football, women's, kids, running,-cycling,
lifestyle, fashion, luxury and gaming.

‘We offer product across o range of price points
including good, better and best. This enables
L§ to offer more premium product, which is
ret-new to the business. This gives consumers ¢
areater range of choices for those who wish to
shop for premium products, whilst still retaining
cur original entry-level and continuity product
cfferings.

"Pragression Of The Elevated Store Model

The etevation of the Group's stores continues
to progress and evolve across fascias and
territories. As reported last year, for Sports
Direct the enhanced concept intraducing

an area not just for USC, but also for Game
with o Belong Gaming arena and Evans
Cycles was delivered at the new Portsmouth
store, These combined efements develop the
destination stetus of our stores catering to

a wider customer base, The Group has alse
pushed boundaries with the epening of the
game changing Sports Direct flagship store on
Lendon’s Oxford Street shortly after financial
year end. The store features world class
design incorporating new activation spaces,

technology and features including a first in kind
bra fitting studio.

Following the success of the Flannels regional
concept, the Group has developed a new
regional flagship concept. This concept
encompasses a much larger footprint and
incerporates new categories for the fascia
including beauty and food & beverage. The
first store to lounch in this new concept is at
Meadowhall Shopping Centre with further sites
due to open in the coming financial year such
as Fosse Park in Leicester and Liverpool

city centre.

A significant milestone for the Group was
delivering the new Frasers concept with the
opening of Frasers Wolverhampton. The store
extends to ¢.34,000 sqft housing beauty,
fashion, lifestyle, kids, home and food &
bevercge. This new store is a live example of
the Group's vision for the fascia focusing on
experience, brands and service.

The Group is highly acquisitive across fuscias
for new stores and with co-operative landlords
can offer a portfolio of new store deals
providing a variety of retail offerings. The Group
is prepared to sign long term leases for those
landiords willing to co-invest in the elevated
store concepts.

Investment in Freehold properties remains an
option to assist the store elevation strategy as
has been the case in previous financial years.

Further details of the property strategies and
current property portfolio are included within
the Chief Executive's Report and Business
Review section of this annual report.

the Woaod
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Gur People

The Group's policy is to treat all our people with
dignity and respect. Frasers Group colleagues
work together across all areas of the business
and we are proud that Frosers Group plc is one
of the first public companies in the UK to make
an elected Workers' Representative a Boord
member. We welcome all new colleagues into
the Group following the acquisitions in the year
and those who joined us through the Frosers
Group Elevation Programme.

Remuneration and Rewards

Our policy is to foster o reward-based culture
that enables cur colleagues to share in the
success of the Group, It is Company policy to
pay abeove the statutory National Minimum
Wage, including rotas that are above the
statutory National Living Wage for those
over 25 years of age in the UK. In addition to
this, in current period the Group paid awards
and incentives of approximately £7.0m, from
which both permanent and casual colleagues
benefited.

We are pleased that the Fearless 1000 share
scheme is now up and running along with

the Fearless Focus performance reviews. One
thousend of our Fearless colleagues, who live
and breathe our values, thinking without limits,
not hesitating and owning it, wilt be eligible to
receive’ share bonuses ranging from £50k right
up to £1m if the share price is at £10 at the
vesting dates.

Workers' Representative

The Frasers Group Workers’ Representative
is Cally Price, a Manager at our Cardiff Bay

store. The Workers' Representative has a unique

insight in to the Groeup and will speak on behaslf
of the Group's workforce at all scheduled
meetings of the Board in order to facilitate a
healthy and constructive dialogue. Due to the
success of the Worker's Representative-Board
role we have decided to extend the tenure of
Cally Price for o further few years and thus she
will be proposed for re-election at the

2021 AGM.

woodland across the UK

Collsague Engugemant

In addition to the Workers Representative,

the Company alse has an ongoing dialogue
with colleagues via an initiative called "Your
Company, Your Yoice,” This is a system whereby
colieagues are able to raise any issues of their
choosing via a number of different routes, both
physical and digital. This feedback is passed

to senior monagement and the Workers'
Representative for review and appropriate
action.

Our Global Third-Purty Brand Pariners

We work with our leading third-party global
brond partners and provide significant
prominence for them with our customers across
all our platforms.

Our third-party and Group brands are
managed by central brand and marketing
teams. This centralised structure significantly
benefits the Group by enabling the individual
brands to participate in Group buying and
sourcing; aggregated supplier refationships
and enhanced supply chain disciplines; Group
inventory monitoring and replenishment;

and more inspired and harmonious visual
merchandising in-store.
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Our Strategy - Elevation No Limits

Our purpose is to serve consumers with the world's best brands. This requires us to have the right
product, in the right place, at the right time and at the right price. Our strategy is aligned to this
purpose and is based on three interconnected focus pillars - the brands we sell, our digital offering
and our physical stores. These are supported by a set of enablers, focused on our people, systemns,
automation and data, By continuing to elevate our performance across all areas of our strategy, we

will achieve our vision: to become the elevated multi-channel platform for sports, premium and luxury.

Strotegy Key n FYa1 Priarities Fou FY22
Brands During F¥21, aur achievements included Buring FY22, our prionties are ta
Qur custamers want to have the chaice of « hurther growng our relotionships with key +  rcontinue Lo build our successful third-party
world's best brands, whether m spartng goods ar brand cwners, such as Nike For Sports Direct, brand purtnerships and Further improve our
the premium and lucury segments Being alle ta Burberry for Flannels, and Huge Bass for access to thew best praducts, and
otfar thesa brands s essenticl for qur success We House of Fraser, gwing s improved aecessta + wnvest In evolving aur own brands, ta easure
theratore facus on bulding excallent ralgtionshps the products our cusk they remain relavant ko consumars by
and truly ntegrated teoms with key thwd-party . INCteasing our strategic n Hugo to changing styhrs and Lr
brand cwners, Bass AG, reflecting aur grawlng relotinnshep, and continue tu Lomplement the key U
This powarful brand offenng s suppartad by out our confidence i its future and the potential party brands we of
- complementary range of own brands, whess we for synesgies bietwuen our businesses: and

@im ta offer unrivalled choice and volue, ond . increqsing our strategic wwastmant in fuxury
dnve growth through influencer partierships ond handhag retailer Mulberry
brond collaborotians We wil continue 1o conmider T ReferencetoPr
strategic ecauisiions that bring attractive brands © . seepome
intothe Group A
Digital During FY21, our ociugwvernents inCluged. Dunng EY22, our prionties ore (o
Bath customers ond bronds want access to digital * cantly mproving the customer - burther invest m our enline retal copabilities,
channels that affer an excellent expenenca enca, custamer service ond the partcutorly on the lukury side of the business,
Through our digital elevatian strategy we undarlying platiorm for our digital business, including our website, tustorner service nnd
are investing mare than F100m to elevate rellecting the enhicol importance of o strong payment pictferms, and
Qur proposition Oernss our retarl channels, web presence dunng Covid-19 reloted - continue to invest n digital morketing and
Thrs mvestment wll build on o core digitok Jockdowns, and use of soewal media, to bath drive sales and
faundations, 1o suppart future growth ond egility It = ntroducing o t digital mathating provide insights mta customer behaviour
includes contnuing ta imprava the anfine customer programme, to support Sranding und salas
exparence and coretully targeted investment grawth.
in platforme that support customer service. Reterence to Prncipal Risks,
=ngegement and data We are also investing n see page 11
chgrtal marketing fo drve sales growth.
Physkeal Duning F¥2), our ochieverments included During FY22, our prronties are to
The eontinuel elevation of our prysical stare estate + conbinuing to open new concapt stores, + 1ol puk new sleveted steres, inclucing new
is o fundementol port of our strategy to moke including a flagship mult: faseia offerng cancapts such s fand and beveroge and
them destinglions customers want to come to ond Portsmouth and u new Frosers stare in beauty for Mannets,
where brand owners wont their preducts to be ‘Wolverhampton «  develop the latest kerations of our elevated
sean We dothis by rolling out elevated stores and  + signWienntly invasting in our flagshup Sparts staie concepts,
by elevaiing existing stores To drive cies Direct store on Oxford Street, London which  » progress the gnooing glevation of our existing
in runnlng bur store estats, we will contnue to opened to grent accloim In June 2097 and store po o; ond
clevelap cur eperuting model and introduce new  # gcquinng the trode and ossets of OW Sports, = selechively open elevated stores in Eurcpre,
store technolagy ‘We will also consider stiategic | tomplementing aur mashing gym and fitness with @ locus on the Sports Drect and USC
ocauisitions that odd ottroctve localions ta the club pornticlio fascios
store astot

Refercnce to Principal Risks.

see poge 31
Enablsr Bunng FY21-our achievements inehuded During Y32 our prionties ore to.
Woe naed La have tolented people who »  making sgmhcant progress with how we + rolf cut our new performonce reviews ocross
enable us ta succssd, supported by traiming that attract, engoge ond devalap talent, mcluding the busingss, go live with the LMS, and receat
empowers thern 1o ochieve. Ta aftvact new talent. definipg our core values, welcaming 27 tha naxt intoke tor the Elevation Programme,
we will eontinue to davalop pur employer brand, new peaple In our cammercial department . continue 10 NLease oUtGMOEION, 16 SLPPOrT
while further improving intarnal commumcotion to through the Frasars Group Elavation fulfilment i our digitel business and
dnve with exiting intraducing the Feorless testecking our physical stores as quickly ond
38dg ypll qls o coOnbinue Fn nHBRE B St s angd 1000 bonus sehame and Frartess Foous efiectively as bossibla:
uutomanion [a ¢thanee efficncy. and in cur data performance reviews, and developingansw  * continue onboording praducts ot EDI, und
copabilities, 5 we can make dota-dnven decisiens |earning manomement system [LMS), + capture customer dota ond nsights thraugh
wherevar passible, . in automation, In particulor grow w digitol businass, digital

ent for our digital business, marketing and the roll-out of cur loyolty

progremime,
. anhancing dota shanng with suppliers
through alectromie dula ntecchange {EDI), Raferance to Pancipat Risks,
rmpreving managemant of stock ang ses page 31
straamlining supplier paymant procegses
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Key Performance Indicators

The Board manages the Group's performance by reviewing a number of key performance indicators
[KPls). The KPIs are discussed in this Chief Executive's Report and Business Review, the Financial
Review, the Environment section and the "Our People” section. The table below summa
Group's KPis.

52 woaks wnddad 52 weeks endad

25 Aprll 2009 38 April 2030 20 April 2019
Group revenue £34625 Im F23574im £3.7016m
Underlypng EBTOA £390 B £3021m £2678m
Group gross imargm 21% 420% 28%
Underlying béssic satrigs per share- (170¢] 163p 176
Undsrlying free rosh fow £427 Bim E2631m £2/3%m
Net debt’ £2489m 3660m £ 378 5m
HON-FINANCIAL KPi$
Nurnber of retail stores® 1547 1534 968
Workforrs tumover - 789% 186% 210
Pockaging recycling 1164 tonnes 12,358 tonnes 12,807 tonnes

Tha imethod for caleutoting undedying ERITIA 15 set out in Note 4 and the Glossary
The methed lor cal ting underying basic etunings per share 1s set out In Note 15
Lindsrlying Irue Lash fiow 15 defned as operahing cosh Bow alter warking capital and ore IFRS 16, made up of underlying EBITDA
foraign uxe hange gains and losses, less covpoeahion tox pad Further detad on this cokculabon can be kound in the Financiul Review

realised

1£1 The methad for colculuting Nat debt s set out inthe Finoncial Review
151 Exciuding associates and stores i the Baluc states thot trade under foscios othe SPORTLAND or SPORTSDIRECTcam and ather tiche
taseias. Includes GAME and bola com concessions
[6}  Curdboard and plostic recyching
The Directors believe that underlying EBITDA, Management has taken this decision for the
underlying basic EPS and underlying free cash following reasens:

flow prowide further useful information for
shareholders on the underlying performance

of the business in addition to the reported
numbers and are consistent with how business
performance has been measured internally.
They are not recognised profit measures under
IFRS and may neot be directly comparable with
"adjusted” performance measures used by other

- With the centinued significant investment
in and roll out of our elevotion strategy
on both the physical and digital fronts,
the importance of depreciation and
amortisation to both the Board and
our stakeholders in terms of assessing
performance has grown.

companies. See Glossary for further information - Qur understanding from & number of
an the Groug's Alternative Performance financial sectors, inciuding the banking
Measures. sector, is that IFRS16 is becoming an

increasingly important consideration.

Management from FY22, change our

main reporting KPI from underlying EBITDA to ~  With this new measure, we are trying
adjusted profit before tax [PBT). From FY22, to align with the Financial Reporting

the Group will therefore no longer report Council's thematic standpoint' with regard
underlying EBITDA. Adjusted PBT is reported to ‘alternative performance measuras’ as
profit before tax less the effects of exceptionol far as possible, whilst retaining o degree
iterns, unhedged foreign exchange {FX), gains of interpretation given that factors

and losses on strategic investments and share outside of our control, such as FX and
scheme chorges. strategic investments movements which

are exceptionally difficult to forecast,
particulorly months in advance.
Adiusted PBT for the 52 weeks ended 25 April
2021 was ¢ loss of £53.7m. See Glossary for
recenciliation to reported PBT.
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Group revenue

The Board considers that this measurement is ¢
key indicator of the Group's- growth.

Underlying EBITDA .

Underlyirg EBITDA shows how well the Group is
ranaging its trading ond operational efficiency
cnd therefore the overall trading performance
cf the Group.

Group gross margin

The Board considers that this measurement is o
key indicator of the Group's trading prefitability.

Underlying basic earmnings per share [EPS}

Underlying basic EPS is a measure of adjusted
total shareholder return and ultimately an
indicator to our shareholders of the success of
our elevation strategy.

Underlying free cash flow

‘Underlying free cash flow is considered an
impertant indicator for the Business of the
cash available for investment in the elevation
strategy.

Net debt

Net debt is an indicator of both the Group's
investment in the elevation strategy and its
covenant headroom which is o key component
of the Group's going concern considerctions.

Number of retail stores

The Board considers that this measure is an
indicator of the Group's growth. The Group's
etevation strategy is replacing older stores and
often this can result in the closure of two or
three stores to be replaced by one larger new
generation store.

Workforce turnover

The Board considers that this measure is a key
indicator of the contentment of our people. For
more details refer to the retention section of the
"Our People” section of this report.

Packaging recycling

The Board considers that this measurement is
a key indicator of our impact and commitment
to the best environmental practices. For more
detoils refer to the environment section of

this report.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT AND

BUSINESS REVIEW

Performance Overviaw

Group revenue decreased by 8.4% to £3,625.3m
in the year. UK Sports Retail decreased by
10.7% to £1,968.5m, Premium L ifestyle revenue
increased by 19% and European Retail
decreased by 11.8% to £615.2m. Rest of World
Retail revenue was £152.7m, down 12.3% and
revenue in the Wholesale & Licensing division
decreased by 4.3%.

Group gross margin in the year was consistent
with the prior year with a small increase of

20 basis points from 42.0% to 42.2%. UK
Sports Retail margin increased 110 basis points
to 42.1% (FY20: 41.0%)} largely due to the
continually improvirng product mix. Premium
Lifestyle’s gross margin decreosed by 340 basis
points from 48.3% to 44.9% lorgely due to a
reductien in concession sales within House of
Fraser as a percentage of total sales which
have a higher gross margin. European Retail
gross margin increased 60 basis points from
38.4% to 39.0% largely due to the continually
improving product mix. Rest of World Retail
margin decreased 250 basis points from 44.4%
to 41.5%, [argely due to the lower margin rate
in the US business which makes up a larger
propottion of the segment in FY21. Wholesole
& Licensing gress margin increased 310 basis
points to 44.0% (FY20: 40.9%), largely due to
UK wholesale.

Group operating costs decreased by 15.7% to
£4140.0m [FY20: £1,353.0m), largely driven by
savings in store costs during the lockdowns as
a result of the Covid-19 pendemic, Government
support schemes such as CJRS (Coronavirus
Job Retention Scheme) ond business rates relief
particularly in House of Fraser, The amount
received by the Group in the period in regard
to the CJRS [or equivelent where received

in non-UK territories) was approx. £80m,

The amount of business rates relief received

by the Group in the period {or equivalent
where received in non-UK territories) was
approx, £97.5m. See the Financial Review

for a reconciliation of Group operating costs
to selling, distribution and acdministrative
expenses,

As g result, Group underlying EBITDA for the
year was up 29.4% to £390.8m [FY20; £3021m),
Excluding acquisitions and on o currency ’
neutral basis, underlying EBITDA increased
16.9%. UK Sports Retail underlying EBITDA

was £279.2m up from £227.4m in FY20, while
Premium Lifestyle underlying EBITDA was
£53.9m, up from £4.5m in FY20. Europecn
Retail underlying EBITDA was £4.1m, down from
E£51.8m in FY20. Rest of World Retail underlying
EBITDA was £25.6m, up from a loss of £6.8m

in FY2C and Wholesale & Licensing underlying
EBITDA increased to £28.0m from £25,2m.

There were property related impairments in
the period totalling £317.0m (FY20: £122.6m),
including £168.2m in relation to right of use
assets (FY20: £97.8m}, £84.4m in relation to
freehold land and buildings (FY20: £nil), £63.8m
of cther property, plant and equipment (FY20:
£24.8m) and EQ.6m of investment properties
{FY20: £nil). Property related impairments have
been recognised following a re-assessment of
future expected cash flows largely driven by
anticipated future lockdowns as a'result of the
Covid-19 pandemic, the change in consumer
behaviour in moving from physical to online
shopping, the impact of Direct-To-Consumer
and increasing costs as a result of Brexit,
Further details including sensitivity analysis is
included within Note 2, :

Depreciation end amortisation charges have
increcsed by 11.3% to £307.5m (FY20: £276.3m)
largely due to an increase in freehold land and
buildings depreciation, following the change in
useful economic life estimate in the period. See
accounting policies for further details.

|
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Group underlying profit before tax © decreased
to £5.8m (FY20: £117.4m), largely due to the
effects of the Covid-19 pandemic including

the closure of retail stores, the associated
provisioning and impairment and depreciation
and amortisation charges. Underlying busic EPS
for the year decreased by 204.9% to a loss of
17.0p (FY20: profit of 16.2p].

Within other comprehensive income, the Group's
hedging contracts decreased by £16.5m (FY20:
decreased by £18.7m) as a result of the fair value
movements in the period. With regard to the
Group's long-term financial assets, fair value
movements have resulted in ¢ gain of £77.3m
(FY20: loss of £19.7m) in the period.

The Group generated free cash flow during
the year of £427.8m, up from £263.1m in the
prior period. Net debt decreased by £117.1m to
£248.9m at period end, Spend on acquisitions
and capex, including Wigan Robin Retail Park
and warehouse automation, was offset by
continued strong cash generation in the core
business. Net debt currently stands at 0.5 times
reported EBITDA (FY20: 0.7 times).

1% Undeitng prafit before taxation exchudes the effects of IFRS 16,

rahsed Foeeign exchoPge goms 4 10sses 1n sehing and

administralien costs, exceptianal iterns, and the proft £ Iogs on
disposal of subsidiories, strategic svestments and properiies

ed throwh e Woodtand T

FRASERS GROUP

REVIEW BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

UK Sports Retail

The UK Sports Retail segment includes cll of the Group's sports retail and USC store operations in the
UK (including Northern Ireland), ¢l of the Group's sports online businesses [excluding Bob's Stores,
Eastern Mountain Sports, Baltics and Malaysia), the Group’s gyms, Evans Cycles, GAME UK stores and
online operations and the Group’s Shirebrook campus operations. UK Sports Retoll is the main driver
of the Group and accounts for 54.3% (FY20: 55.7%) of Group revenue

S1weshs spded 32 weaks spded

¥ Aprid 2021 26 Agnll 2020

em} {em)

UK Sparts Retail Revenue 159685 22033
Cost of Soles 111393 3o
Gross Pra'it 8793 3032
Gross Maigin % ant a0

Revenhue decreased 10.7% to £1968,5m. Excluding acquisitions, revenue fell 14.6%. This wos lorgely
due to the temporary store closures in the UK caused by the Covid-19 pandemic, partially offset by
growth in our online business and pent up demand on store reapening.

UK Sports Retail gross margin increased to 42.1% (FY20: 41.0%), largely due to the continually
improving product mix. Excluding acquisitions gross margin increased to 45.0% (FY20: 43,5%).

Operating expenses decreased by 16.8% to £54B.7m largely driven by savings in store costs during
the store closure periods gs a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. Excluding acquisitions, operating
expenses decreased by 20.2% largely driven by savings in store costs and Government support
schemes during lockdowns as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Underlying EBITDA for UK Sports Retail was £279.2m (FY20: £227.4m), an increase of 22 8% for the
year, largely due to the strong reopening of stores after lockdawns, growth in our online business and
improved operating efficiencies.

UK Sports Retail Store Portfolio™

23 Aprlaony 28 Aprll 2030
Engl 394 357
Scotls §L) 3
Wilns Ell 2|
Northern Iraland i1 it
Isle of Man. i 1
usc kel 7
Evans Cyclag 48 50
GAME LIK 247 242
TOTAL aos 78
Opsned ] y3 25
Clovect 158| 153]
Arqured 42 256
Ao {saft) apprax 6 5m approx & Im

Table excludes the Group's standalone Gyms
The GAME UK stare numbets nclude 11 concessr

FY20 3| operatieg within Sports Direct foscio staras ond doas aot include BELONG arenus

[ARTINEEEN:
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Premium Lifostyle

Premium Lifestyle consists of Flannels, Cruise, van mildert, House of Fraser, Jack Wills and Sofa com
fascia stores and corresponding web sales.

52 weeki upded 52 wasks sndad

15 April 2021 4 Apri 2020

fem) Iem)

‘Giiss Transochon Valye (GTY] 788.1 9031
Framium Lifestyle Revenue 7356 - 7220
Cast of solas 1405 3] 3734]
Gioss Profit 3303 14846
Gross Margn % 449 483

] GTV beng gross sniles net of VAT, discounts and re

1s and gross sales where the Group octs us ngent

Premium Lifestyle sales increased by 1.9% to £735.6m {FY20; £722.0m), mostly due to new Flannels
stores and increased wab sales. Excluding acquisitions, sales increased 1.4%. The Premium Lifestyle
grass margin for the year decreased by 340 bos s points to 44.9% {FY20: 48.3%) largely due a
reduction in concession sales within House of Fraser as a percentage of totol sales which have a

higher gross margin.

Premium Lifestyle operating costs decreased by 20.1% to £275.1m (FY20: £344.1m) largely driven
by savings in store costs during the store closure periods as a result of the Covid-1% pandemic and

Government support schemes such as bu

ess ‘ates relief particularly in House of Fraser. As a result,

undertying EBITDA improved from £4.5m in FY20 to £53.9m in the year, largely due to Flannels store
openings, growth in our online business, continusd operating efficiencies and business rates retief

particularly in House of Fraser.

Promiumn Lifestyle Store Portiolio

25 Aprit 2021

26 April 2020

Flopagls

41

3

€ ruise

5

5

won rnildert

i

1

Jack Wills

a0

i

F-ause of Froser / Frasers

a3

48

Solacom "

18Montrase

Cormant Quarter

Psychs

m

Cpened

10

Acquired

n

Closed

un

(42)

Arec isqft |

upprox_49m

approx 4 Sm

[} Sofa.com stora numbers miclude 17 concessions (FY20

15

12 concos ons) oparipg withny House af Froser fascia stores

European Retail

The European Retail division includes the Group's sports retail store management and operations
in Europe, including the Group's European distribution centres in Belgium and Austria, stores and
corresponding web business in the Baltic regions and GAME Spain stores and corresponding web
business.

32 wasks snded 52 weaks endad
25 April 2021 2% April 2020
1m) tem)
Eurcpean Retoll Revenue LAl 6077
Cost of Soles (375 5] (429 8)
239 %79
390 384
Revenue decreased 11.8% to £615.2m. On o currency neutral basis and excluding acquisitions,

European Retail revenue decreased by 20.5% largely due to the temporary store closures caused by
the Covid-19 pandemic.

European Retail gross margin increased to 39.0% (FY20: 38.4%) largely due to the continually
irmproving product mix. Excluding acquisitions and on a currency neutral basis, margin is up 100 basis
points to 46.3%,

Operating expenses increased by 10.2% to £238.1m (FY20: £216.1m). Excluding acquisitions and on a
currency neutral basis operating costs increased by 9.3% largely due to property related provisions

including prior year releases as a result of disposals. As a resutt, underlying EBITDA decreased 92.1%
to E4.m.

All of the following stores are operated by compaonies wholly owned by the Group, except Estonia,
Latvia and Lithuanic where the Group owns 60.0%,

Punled on Stenbeis 10006 Recycled and Carbon Captred through the Woodland Trust, helpmag o creats now Butish woodland across the UK
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European Retail Store Portfolio "

25 Apeil 208 26 April 2020
GAME Spaim 236 261
Repubhc of Irzlond - k) 5
Belgurn 31 35
Estonia 2t 25
Austiia 20 b
Portugel 0 #
Lotvia® 1) i
Lithugrat | i 18
Peland . 1 "
Shoveno 1 12
Czech Republic . 7 12
Hungory E 8
Cyprus [} s
Hallund 3 5
Slovakin 5 5
Fronee 2 4
Germany 2 z
Luxembourg ? 7
Span 5 1
Iceland ] \
TOTAL ate 51
Opened 1
Closed 138]
Acquired
Area (salt] approx_3m opprox 4 0m

- +
0 includes only stores with SPORTSDIRECT com and SPORTLAND fascias
{2l Excluding Heatons foscio stores
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Rest Of World Retail

Rest of World Retail includes sports stores in Malaysia trading under the SPORTS DIRECT fascia,
retail storesin the US trading under Bob's Stares and Eastern Mountain Sports and their onfine
businesses. In Malaysia the Group has 33 stores which are 51.0% owned by the Group.

52 waneks endud 51 waeks anded
25 Apil 2021
]
Rest of World Revenue 1527
Cast of sales 188.7)
Gross Proht 610
Gross Margin % a4y

Rest of World Retail sales were £152.7m for the year. Grass margin was 41.9%, down from 44.4%

in the prior yeay, largely due to the lawer margin rate in the US business which maokes up a larger
proportion of the segment in FY21. Underlying EBITDA wos £25.6m, from  loss of £6.8m in FY20. This
was largely due to aperating efficiencies in the US business.

Rest of World Retail Store Portfolio

18 April 1021 16 April 2020

Maloyen 33 3t
Bab's $toras ~ 27 24
Custern Mountaw Sports 2 an
] ™

Aretisn M) approx 1 3m apurex 13m

Whelesale & Licensing

The portfolie of Group brands includes a wide variety of world-famous sport and Jifestyle brands.
The Group's Sports Retail division sells products under these bronds in its stores, and the Wholesale
& Licensing division sells the brands through its wholesale and licensing activities. The Wholesale
& Licensing division continues to sponsor a variety of prestigious events ond retains o variety of
globally recognised celebrities and sporting professionals as brand ambassodors,

52 wawhn andad 52 wasks anded
18 April20 26 Aprit 2020

IEm} lem)

Whaiasate 5 1344
Licansing ‘neg Fer)
Tota! Whelssale & Licencing Revenus 1313 160.2
Cost of Soles (8581 1947
Grass Profit 415 655
Grass Margin % 41 209

Wholesale & Licensing total revenue decreased by 4.3% to £153.3m (FY20: £160.2m).

Wholesaole revenues were down 2.2% to £131.5m {FY20: £134.4m), due to reductions in UK wholesale
activity offset by an increase in the US, Total gross margin increased by 320 baosis points to 44.1%
(FY20: 46.9%). Wholesale gross margins increased 430 basis points to 33.6% (FY20: 29.5%), largely
due to UK wholesale.

Licensing revenues in the year were down 15.5% to £21.8m (FY20: £25.8m].

Operating costs decreased by 2.2% to £39.4m [FY20: £40.3m). As a result, underlying EBITDA
increcsed by M1:1% to £28.0m {FY20: £25.2m)|.
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PROPERTY REVIEW

The store elevation pregram remains a key
focus point for the Group across all fascias and
territories. For Sports Direct, the new stores
continue to push boundaries as demonstrated
by the opening of the new Pertsmouth Sports
Direct store incorporating a USC, Evans and
Game, as well as a Belong gaming crena.
Further to this, shortly after financial year end
the newly refurbished London, Oxford Street
fiagship opened featuring world class design

of retail offerings. The Group 1s prepared to sign
long term leases for those landlords willing to
co+hvest in the efevated store concepts.

With leasehold activity across the Group
expected to increase over the coming year, the
same is likely to apply with freehold acquisitions
as we capitalise on favourable market conditions
coupled with the Group's growing requirement
for retcil space.

incorporating new activation spaces, technology

and features including « first in kind bra fitting
studio, In Europe, the portfolio of six Toys R Us
properties acquired during FY20 in Spain have
now been developed launching as elevated
Sports Direct stores in the same format as the
UK.

A significant milestone for the Group was
celivering the new Frasers concept with the
opening of Frasers Wolverhampton, another
example of the continued store elevation
programme. The epening of such stores
demonstrates the Group's commitment to

physical retail and ability te create genuine retail

destinations.

Flannels remains an impostant fascia for the

CGroup. The key focus has been the development

of the Regional Flagship concept introducing
naw categories for the foscia such s beauty,
food & beverage and active. Terms have

bzen agreed to lounch this new concept at
Meadowhall Shopping Centre which is set to
open in the coming financiat year. Further sites
for this concept are alse due to open at Fosse
Park in Leicester and Liverpool city centre.

Another notable event in FY21 was the
acquisition of 42 DW Stores. The acquisition
enhaonced the Group's gym and UK Sports Reta

estate. A refurbishment and rebranding exercise

commenced shortly after acquisition and will
continue into the coming financial year.

The primary objective for the estate continues
tc be the transition to turnover based rents.
The Group is highly acquisitive across fascios
and with co-operative landlords can offer a
portfalio of new store deals providing a variety

17

UK RETAIL STORE PORTFOLIO

Sports Stores in the UK (including
Northern Ireland}:

+  The Group is currently operating from 384
stores in England, 39 in $catland, 31in Wales
and 21in Northern lrefand. There were 14
openings and 20 closures for Sports Direct
fascia stores over the period. 42 stores were
acguired as part of the acquisition of DW
Sports comprising a number of ‘combined’

. sites with retail and leisure. Six of the store
closures were sites acquired as part of this
acquisition where agreements coufd not
be reached with landlords resuting in 33
‘combined’ and 3 stand-alone Sponts Direct
stores as additions in the period. 13 of the
remaining 14 closures occurred due to
relocations into elevated multi-fascia stores.

*  Noteworthy openings include Portsmauth,
Birmingham Fort, Scunthorpe and Wrexham
where existing Sports Direct stores were
closed to relocate into an elevated multi-
format store.

~ Al new store openings include a USC lifestyle

offering as part of the elevated store model

across alf formats. As mentioned previously,
il both o GAME and Evans Cycles concept has
been developed to form part of the elevated
Sports Direct format in selected lecations.
Over the coming financial period there will
be a push towards more multi-fascia store
openings incorporating each of these fascias.

. Evans Cycles

« There are currently 48 Evans Cycle stores
operating, a reduction of two stores over
the peried. During FY21the Evans Cycles
concept was first introduced as a store-in-
store area in cur latest Portsmouth multi-
fascia store alongside Sports Direct, USC,
Game & Belong. This concept will continue
to be developed to roll out into selected
future store openings.

GAME UK

- Over the period, the relocation programme
moving Game into selected Sports Direct
stores was accelerated. Coupled with the
new Sports Direct store openings featuring
an area for Game, the overail number of
stores for the UK estate increased to 247
having closed 67 and epening 72 [net
increase of 5 stores),

»  The Bedong gaming arenas are building
their presence across the UK featuring ina
number of the new Sports Direct openings
such as Portsmouth.

PREMIUM LIFESTYLE STORE
PORTFOLIO

Flannels, Cruise and Van Mildert

*  Across Flannels, Cruise and van mildert
during FY21 there were 6 openings and 2
closures, resulting in ¢ net increase of 4
stores. Combining these fascias, the total
estate amounts to 47 stores.

*  Key openings for Flannels include Rushden
Lakes, Kingston Upon Thames and
Wolverhompton. The Glasgow Cruise
store was also extensively refurbished and
expanded.

* A major area of development has been
the Flannels Regional Flagship concept,
incorporating new categories such as
beauty, feod & beverage and active, The
first regional flagship to open will be
Flannels Meadowhall which will extend
to approximately 55,000 sqft with further
locations to follow over the coming financial
year including Fosse Park in Leicester and
Liverpool city centre,

Frinled on Steinbeis 100™% Rocycled and Carbon &
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House of Fraser

+ At the end of FY21 there were 43 House of
Fraser stores trading, a net decrease of 5
stores after 6 closures and 1 opening.

+ A key highlight was the delivery of the new
‘Frasers’ store concept at Woiverhampton.
This new store showcases the elevated
foermat and what can be provided upon
oyreeing cppropriate new long term lease
deals.

+  Much of the estate continues to remain
o short term flexible leases. Whilst
negotiations are ongoing to transition stores
to long term leases it is anticipated that
there will be further closures, particularky
as business rates come back into effect in
FY22.

* However following the demise of major
high street retcil chains we envisage new
lecation cpportunities to come to fruition
over the coming financial period, albeit
again punitive business rates at many of
these locations put the viability of deing
these lease deals in doubt.

Jack Wills

+ Over FY21there were 7 store closures and no
openings reducing the estate to 60 stores,
We continue to negotiate with landlords to
move to long term leases.

+ A new store concept is under development
with the ambition to open in new key
markets across the UK. The new concept is
intended to be finatised over FY22.

Forecast Openings UK FY22

~ Qrves T2, despite the chalerges foced
relating to the Covid-19 pandemic the
Group continued the elevated store roll
out programme, For the coming financial
year the Group's ambiticon is to increcse
the new store activity across fascias, with
a particular focus on Sports Direct and
Flannels. Key new stores include the new
Flannels Regional Flagships aleng with new
Sports Direct flugships such as Birmingham
city centre. However, it should be noted that
program risk remains relating to foctors
linked to the Covid-19 pandemic.
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EUROPEAN RETAIL -
STORE PORTFOLIO
Republic of Ireland {ROT}

»  Qver FY21the remaining Heatons store
conversions to include Sports Direct were
completed.

»  There was one opening in the year, with 39
stores at the period end. Shortly after the
year end a new store in Galwoy opened, a
first for the Group in that market,

= The intention for the coming financial year
is to increase the store estate across RO,
this hos been bolstered by the increasing
number of new lecation oppertunities now
being presented. In certain locations other
Group foscias not currently trading in the
RO: are being considered.

Continentol Europe

»  The Group continues to operots sports
stores in 18 countries in continental Europe.

+ 271 Sports retail stores in Europe, excluding
Republic of Ireland {plus 26 non-core,
speciality and outlets).

+  Total 5q.ft. of opproximately 2.7m of
all sports fuscias in Europe (including
Sportland, Lillywhites, Sportsworld etc).

+ Closed 25 GAME stares in Spain during the
period as part of ratienalising the estate
and removing duplication finishing the
period on 236 stores.

*  Twelve openings in four different countries,
three of which were relocotions.

+ 10 closures in seven different countries with
a mixture of closing non-performing stores
and closures linked te relocations. The 1
Austrian store closure was due to o saie of
our freehold property in Salzburg.

+  During the period B Sports Direct stores
incorporating a USC were opened during
the period totalling 117,165 sq ft of retail
space. 5 of these were freeholds purchased
in FY20 that have been refurbished ond
openad as elevated Sports Direct stores.

A further freehold store opened in Malaga
_shortly after FY21.

18

Stonbeis 100% Reuyciod and Carbon Capiurad throunh |

As is the case in the U¥, the Group is firmly
committed to the rollout of elevated stores
acrass Europe. Due to the accelerated shift
to online experienced across Europe due to
the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic ond a
number of retaiters reducing their portfolio
size. The Group believes it can capitalise
on these market conditions to efficiently
expand our physical estate, focusing on
capital city and fligship opportunities.

REST OF WORLD RETAIL
STORE PORTFOLIO

33 stores in Malaysia with three openings
and one closure in FY21. The closure was a
Tesco based store legving us with three as
we cantinue to relocate our stores to higher
performance locations.

The Malaysian elevation and expansion
drive continues, with 2 new elevated stores
opened in the period. We now have a total
of seven elevated steres in the region in line
with UK standards and four stores with a
USC retait area.

As a major milestone our flogship ASEAN
HQ opened in FY21in the Sunway Pyramid
shopping centre with the adjoining retail
store opening shortly,

43 stares in the USA, following twe closures
and one opening in FY21.

WOt

Freehold / Long L hold Property P

< Over FY21 o total of 14 properties were
ocquired across the UK totalliing £84.3m.
The most significant purchase was Robin
Retail Park in Wigan for £41.8m. No
properties were acquired in Europe or RoW.

»  Disposal of property assets continues to be
standard practice for the Group, During the
period 4 disposals completed in the UK and
3 disposals completed in the EU.

+  For the upcoming financial peried it is
anticipated that there wil be an increase
in ocquisition activity as we capitalise on
favourable market conditions ¢oupled with
the groups growing requirement for retail
space. Disposals will continue os hos been
the case in previous financial years.

Mike Ashley
Chiefl Executive
5 August 2021
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Financial Statements for the Group for the 32 weeks ended 25 April 2021 are presented in
accordance with International Financial Report ng Standards {IFRS).

Summary Of Results
52 weaks endsd 53 waeke anded
5 April 2021 8 Apri 2020
. item) {em)
Revanus 36251 19574
Reported EBITDA 5365 5510
Underlying EBITDA N 3908 021
Repaorted profit belome tox 85 1435
Undeilying profit before tax 58 74

Lormngs per share (EPS) Penca per shat Pence per share

beported basic EPS 3|

Underlyng busc EPS 170]

EBITDA is earnings before investment income and investment costs, finance income and finance
costs, tax, depreciation, amortisation and impairment. It includes the Group's share of losses from
associated undertakings and joint ventures. Underlying EBITDA is calculated as EBITDA before the
effects of IFRS 16, realised foreign exchange gains / losses in selling and administration costs, profit /
loss on disposal of subsidiaries, strategic investrients and properties.

Group Operoting Costs
52 waeks snded 52 wasks snded
2% April 1021 24 April 2020
] L]
Lroup cpemting cosls 11400 13530
Depreciation and umsisatian 2254 1453
Intengible snpanment 5%
IFRS 1A depra; i B2 1272 h
{FRS 16 disposol and mod hoauon/remecsurement of leuse lobintus {214 {971
IFRS 16 ravarscil of rant axpunse ’ 1273} azs]
IFRS 16 saversol of oneraus lease provision 136 6} 135 5]
Realised FX lossfigan) %3 34 5]
Cperating Incoine - 168 3%
SELLING, DISTRIBUTION AND ADMINISTRATION COSTS 13180 14417

Group operating costs for the purposes of mancgement reporting:

i. Excludes depreciation, amortisation ond impairments of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and reclised FX gains and :osses; and

ii. Includes other operating income.
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Foreign Exchange And Treasury

The Group reports its results in GBP but trades
internaticnally and is therefore exposed to
currency fluctuations on currency cash flows
in various ways. These inctude purchasing
inventory from overseas suppliers, making
sales in currencies other then GBP and halding
overseas assets in other currencies. The Board
mitigate the cash flow risks associated with
these fluctuations with the careful use of
currency hedging using forward contracts and
other derivative financial instruments.

The Group uses forward contracts that qualify
for hedge accounting in two main ways - to
hedge highly probable EUR sales income and

USD inventory purchases. This introduces a
level of certainty into the Group's pianning and
forecasting process. Mancgement has reviewed
detiiled forecasts and the growth assumptions
within them and is satisfied that the forecasts
meet the criteria as being highly probable
forecast transactions.

As at 25 April 2021 and as detailed in note 29¢
the Group had the following forward contracts
that qualified for hedge accounting under

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, meaning that
fluctuations in the value of the contracts before
maturity are recognised in the Hedging Reserve
through Gther Comprehensive ncome. After
maturity, the sales and purchases are then
valued ot the hedge rate.

Currency Hudging spainut Curreney vailue Timing Rater
UsD { GBP USD wwentory puichoses LSD 720 FY2Z - F¥23 136 -141
LSO/ FuR USD inventory purchases 150 120m FY22, FY74 121-13
FUR /GRP Lo sales EUR 240m FY23 .99

The Group also uses currency options, swaps dand spots for more flexibility against cash flows
that are Jess than highly probable and therefore do not qualify for hedge accounting under IFRS9
Financial Instruments. The fair value movements before maturity are recognised in the Income

Statement,

The Group has the following currency options and unhedged forwards:

Currency Expoctad uie

Curreney valus Thing Retay

EUR/ GBR Eura safes

EUR 380m Fy13 093

The Group is prouctive in managing its currency
reguirements. The Treasury teom works closely
with senior management to understand the
Group's plans and forecasts, and discusses and
understands appropriate financial products
with various financial institutions, including
those within the Group Revolving Credit

Facility {RCF). This information is then used to
implement suitable currency products to align
with the Group's strategy.

Regular reviews of the hedging performance
are performed by the Treasury team alongside
senior management to ensure the continued
appropriateness of the currency hedging in
place, and where suitable, either implementing
additional strategies and / or restructure
existing approaches in conjunction with cur
financial institution partners.

1 ko create new Bntesh woodiand across the UK

Given the potential impact of commodity prices
on raw material costs, the Group may hedge
certain input costs, including cotton, crude oil
and electricity.
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Taxation

The effective tax rate on profit before tax in FY21was 1017.6% (FY20: 29.6%). This reflects the impact
of the increase in property impairments and disallowable depreciation,

Earnings
32 wewka anded 52weaks ended
25 April 3021 26 Aprll 2020 Chonge (|
Reported £PS [Beel 116 5t s 1692)
Underlying EPS {Basich 170} %32 1204 9]
‘Weighted average number of shores [actun)) 501955281 505,826,890 )
Basic eamings per share {EPS) is calculated by Strategic Investments

dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary
shareholders by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the
finoncial period. Shares held in Treasury and
the Employee Benefit Trust are excluded from
this figure.
The widsthpng basic EPS teflects the underlying performarice

of the business compared with the prior period and 15 colculabed

using the weighted average rumber of shares # 1s not a recogmised

profit measure undec IFRS and may nat be directly comparable with

“adjusted” performance measuies used by other companies Further
details con be found m the Glassary.

Dividends

The Board has decided not to pay o final
dividend in relation to FY21 {FY20 £nil}.

The Board remains of the opinion thot it is

in the best interests of the Group and its
shareholders to preserve financial flexibitity and
facilitate future investments and other growth
opportunities. The payment of dividends
rerains under review.

Capital Expenditure

During the period, gross capital expenditure
{excluding IFRS 16} amounted to £219.4m (FY20:
£323.5m), which inciuded £84.3m on freehold
properties (FY20: £177.2m) and £48.5m on
warehouse automation (FY20; £31.m).

20

The Group continues to hold various strategic
investments os detailed in Note 20, In addition
the Group dlso helds indirect strategic
investments within contracts for difference and
aptions.

The fair values of the contracts for difference
and options are recognised in Derivative
Financial Assets or Liabilities on the Group
Balonce Sheet, with the movement in fair value
recorded in the Income Statement.
Acquisitions

On 22 August 2020, the Group acquired

the trade and assets of DW Sperts for cash
consideration of £37.0m which is deemed to
be the fair value of the consideration. The
acquisition complements the Group's existing
gym and fitness club portfolio and is consistent
with the Group's elevation strategy. Goodwill
reprasents the premium associated with
advantageous site locations, potential growth
opportunities offered by economies of scale,
and the assembled workforce. The fair value
adjustrment to property, plant and equiprnent
relates to the management’s assessment of the
price that would be paid for the acquired assets
in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the acquisition date. The leases
were ocquired under short-term licences and
therefore no right-of-use asset or lease liability
has been recognised on acquisition.

During the year the Group acquired the entire
share capital of Psyche Holdings Limited,

the entire share copital of GRMNT Limited,
and the trade and assets of 18 Montrose for
consideration of £2.7m. These acquisitions
will provide incrensed praduct offerings in

the Premium Lifestyle division. The fair value
adjustment to property, plant and equipment
ralates to the recognition of right-of-use assets
and [ease lia

Related Parties

MM Prop Consultancy Limited, a company
owned and controlled by Michael Murray, who
is a member of key management personnel
as per |AS 24, continues to provide property
consultancy services to the Group. MM Prop
Consultancy Limited is primarily tasked with
finding and negotiating the cequisition of new
sites in the UK, Europe and Rest of the World
for both our larger format stores and our

. combined retaif and gym units. It also provides

advice to the Company's in-house property
team in relation to existing sites in the UK, *
Europe and Rest of the World.

In the year ail properties are assessed. Those
that are considered by the Group's independent
Non-executive Directors to have completed
development and be eligible for review at the
year-end are assessed and if required valued by
an independent valuer who confirms the value
creatad by MM Prop Consultancy Limited. The
Group's independent Non-executive Directors
then review and agree the value created and
have full discretion to approve a payment to
MM Prop Consultancy Limited of up to 25% of
the value created. There is ¢ current pipeline of

properties that may be eligible to be assessed
both positively and negatively by the Group's
Non-executive Directors in future years.

in the current year £2.5m has been accrued
based on 25% of the value created on two
properties where the gain has crystallised
through contract exchonge or completion

of sale (FY20C - Enil provided and Enil paid,
MM Prop Consultancy Limited was last paid
in relation to FY19). This is payable to MM
Prop Consuitancy Limited and agreed by the
independent Non-Executive Directors.

During the period the Group entered inte an
oagreement with M.P.M Elevation Limited, a
company owned and controlled by Michaet
Murray in relstion to elevation strategy services.
M_PM Elevation Limited will be paid an annual
fee of E0.1m in relation to the provision of the
elevation strategy services.

Other related parties are disclosed in note 34.
Cash Flow And Net Debt

Net debt decreased by £112.1m from £366.0m
at 26 April 2020 to £248.9m at 25 April

2021. Interest on bank loans and overdrafts
decreosed to £11.2m (FY20: £17.8m) largely due
to recluced usage of the RCF in the period.

The analysis of net debt at 25 April 2021 and at 26 April 2020 wos as follows:

25 April X021 % Aprfl 1220

iEmi £m}

Cash ond crsh equivalents ) 1570 5140
Borrowings (1359) 150001
NET CEAT 1243 3) 1354.0)

The Group's Working Capital Focility is £313.5m (FY20: £913.5m). It is available untit November
2021 and is not secured against any of the Group's assets. £847.5m of the facility is due to expire in

November 2022,

The Group continues to operate well within its banking covenants and the Board remains
comfortable with the Group's availabte headreom. Note: due to the timing of payroll and supplier
payments, net debt at calendar period end 30 April 2021 was appreximately £350.0m (FY20:

approximately £408.0m).
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CASH FLOW
Total mavement is as follows:
$2weaks andud 52 weehs wndwd
29 Apddl 2021 26 April 2010
temi i wmy
Underlying EBITDA 3508 021
Reohsed FX [loss) / gon {26 3) 348
Taxes poud [FEE] ;48 5)
Movement n inventory . w3 . 1120 8}
Working copital and other 213 955
UNDERU CASH PLEW ARTER v Az 2631
INVESTED IN:
Purchase of own shares 43 1439
Grodend paid to non-controlling mierast 09
Purchase of subsidianus, net at rash acquired 135 4] (L
Purchase of listed niz (24 8}
Putchase of intangibles no]
Puzchase of nssociatas 5%
Procaets on disposal of lhwestiments and dernvotwves L1 a4
Proceeds an disposal ol intanghles 75
et capital expenditure {1u8 H] oy
Lxchange movamant on cush balunces 153 50
Investmant incoine recaived as o5
Finance incarme receivad less inonce costs paid (10 A) 4 5)
DECREASEINNET DERT 174 128
i This tuble excludas the impart of IFRS16
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Sigréficant balance sheet items are shown below:
25 April 2021 26 April 020
iem) im
Property, plont and equiprnent X Y157 10419
Raght of use ossets 2497 3057
Long-term hnancal nssets 633 818
Inventary R A e
Trade and ather recervables 546 5 414 2
Provisians 136121 (136 0)
Trade and othes payables (64 31 1602 5)
Lensa lioblibies ' 17220 162467

The majority of the decrease in property, plant and equipment relates to the impairments of freehold
land and buitding and ptant and equipment due to the Covid-19 pandemic and factors such as
changes in consumer behaviour,

IFRS 16 right of use assets have decreased largelv due to impairments. Lease liabilities have
increased largely due to remeasurements during the period.

Long-term financial assets have increased during the period due to the additions of Hugo Boss AG
and Mulberry Group ple.

Inventory has decreased largely due to o reduction in inventories iheld within the Rest of World
segment.
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Receivables includes a £118.3m reimbursement asset in relation ta the Group's angaing non-UK
tax enquiries (FY20: £118.3m} and £131.0m relating to deposits in respect of derivative financiol
instruments (FY20: £71.3m] with the increase mainly relating to Hugo Boss.

Provisions have increased mainly due to an increase in property provisions as a result of the Covid-19
pandemic.

Payables have increased largely due to rent payments under negotiation as a result of the Covid-19
pandemic. '

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
Significant balence sheet iterns are shown befow:
25 Apeil 2021 16 ApHl 2030
{Em)  dkm)
vestments 14549 1235A8
Debtors 1566 B6 8
Craditars ampunts falling due within oha yaur {604 D) {9015)

Investments relotes to investments in subsidiories and long-term financial assets. The majority of the
increase relates to additions due to d reorganisation of our US businesses and purchases of physical
shares in Mulberry Group plc end Hugo Bass AG.

The majority of the movement in debtors relates to an increose in colloteral to cover margin
requirements for derivative transactions held with counterparties. .

Creditors relates to omounts owed to Group undertakings, the decrease relates to subsidiary
dividends declared during the period.

Chris Wootten
Chief Financial Officer
5 August 2021

Reeycled and Ganbon Gaptured thraugh the Woodkind Tiust, heiping o create news Brtishy woodlant across the UK
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NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The table below sets out where the information required by sections 4i4CA and 4148 of the

Companies Act 2006 can be found in this Annual Report.

Lecation

Ervironmentol Motters ENYIRONMENY — pages 36 to 37

Environmentul pohcy

HUMAN RESOURCES - page 23

Stgif Humdbook Emplopes Datn
Povgey Stutement

Employess STAFF INVOLVEMENT - page 62 ALceptable Use Pohcy
Sccial Marters* COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT - pogs 26
Hurwan Rights SUPPLY CHAIN - page 25 Anti-Slavery ond Hurmun Trofficking

MODERN SLAVERY ACT 2015 - page 25

Palicy

ANTIBRIBERY & CORRUPTION - poge 2%

Any-Brinary & Cormuption policy WHISTLEBLOWING — noge 28

Staff Handbook Anti-Snbery &
Carruption patcy
Whistieblawing Policy

Code af Conduct / Supply Palicy

Busmess Madel RUSINESS MODEL - poge 10

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING 10 THE
USINESS = poges 3G to 36
T STATEMENT - puge 36

Princapal Risks and Butiness Activity

Anshs Register and Principol Risks
Prafile Custormer Data Prvacy P
Datn Retentien Pobicy

Non-Finoncial Key Perfsrmaonce Indicotars KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS - poge 12

* W cuatinually work ta ensura that we improve m thes sector Gur pohey 18 net formoliced although evidence of what
10

Further information is provided within the Groug's ESG Report on page 23.
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we do can be loroted on pages 13 to

WORKERS' REPRESENTATIVE REPORT

{ have mow been the Workers' Representotive-
and Non-executive Director for over two
years. The role has been challenging given the
pressures af the Covid-19 pandemic. However,
it is immensely rewarding and | remain proud
to be representing my colleagues at Frasers
Group.

With the continuous lockdowns and the
uncertainty the Covid-19 pandemic has brought
during the past year to the Group, protecting
our colleague’s wellbeing and maintaining
consistent, transparent communication have
been vital. | continue to have full control and
ownership of a confidential whistleblowing
hotline for retail colleagues, as well as the staff
welfare portal, where every colleague has the
opportunity to anonymously roise any concerns
or queries that they may have. | operate with
complete transparency and any findings from
these platforms are shared with the rest of
Soard.

As part of my role as the Workers
Representative, | have collaborated with our
Training team and the Retail Trust to safeguard
the wellbeing of eur colfeagues. Using the
most frequently asked questions from the
staff portal, the Retail Trust's psychologists
and counsellors have used their expertise to
answer our colleogue queries. We have run
regular webinars and discussed financial
support, emotional support and coping
mechanisms for all Frasers colleagues during
the Covid-19 pandemic. Each webinar was
recorded and made available across all of our
communication platforms.

Furthermore, | am pleased to confirm that
despite the evident challenges that the
Covid-19 pandemic has brought, we are
currently implementing pay reviews for our
retail teams, demonstrating the value and

faith we place in our people. In addition to this,
we have lounched our Fearless 1000° bonus
scherme where some of our colleagues have

the potential to be rewarded with iife-changing
bonuses. | am proud to represent my colleagues
and a business thot rewards its people so highly

il ross the UK

HIRES [

and places its people at the forefront of any *
successes,

This year, despite the shift to working virtually,

I remain fully involved in all Board and strategy
meetings, giving fresh insights and perspectives
on decision making, and my refationship with
the other Board members has gone from
strength to strength. | continue to be involved
in all decisions and correspondence regarding
safe systems of work to maintsin good Covid-19
practices at our warehause, offices ond stores.

Whilst we navigate the year aheud and the
challenges it will undoubtedly bring, { hope |
can continue to make a positive difference at
Board leved to ensure thot our peopie continue
to be at the heart of all business decisions, and
to help drive our Elevation Ne Limits strategy
forward.

FRASERS GROUP
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ESG REPORT

Qur People

\We employ more than 25,000 people vcross
tne Group. Despite the challenges raised by the
Covid-19 pandemic, during FYZ1 we continued
to enhance many aspects of how we manage
cur people, to ensure thot those who wark

Fard and want to be challenged can excel and
quickly progress within Frasers Group.

Culture And Vulues

Having the right culture is ¢riticat to sustainable
business success. We want our colleagues to
fzel valued and engaged, and to have a culture
tat helps us to attract, retain and develop
talent to create our future leaders.

This year, we worked with a speciclist
consultancy to develop an employer value
proposition for the Group. As part of this we
Iaoked to understand how our people perceive
cur culture, including our unique strengths

and where we can improve. Interviews with
reople ot all kevels of the business showed

tnat we have g culture of acting fast and
without hesitation, and where people rise to the
challenge and are valued for their contribution.
\Ve see strength in difference, offer the
potential to progress and develop strong loyalty
cmang our pecple.

Lreas for improvement included the need for
Eetter communication, more focus on work-life
kalance and clear objectives. We have already
Eegun to address these matters, including
establishing an internal communications team.
Our Your Company, Your Voice' portal also
supports engagement and communication,
cllowing our peeple to raise guestions and

concerns with the Workers Representative, with

t1e responses then published. Other initiatives
tAis year include our new performance
rmanagement process (see below) which
includes objective setting. Following a return to
t1e office under Covid-19 quidelines, we have
clso introduced ‘Frasers Fridays', so head office
colleagues can request to work from home on
Fridays.

) D_u@oﬁca nid Carbon Caplured thiouah the Woodland Trust, he

Drawing on our people's responses, we have
defined the core values that underpin how we
work. These ore;

+  Ownitand back yourself
» Don't hesitate and act with purpose

«  Think without limits and tcke the team
with you

We hove communicated these values across
the Group and use them in our recruitment,
performance management and reward
schemes {see below). We will continue to
embed them going forwards.

The project also enabled us to define our
employer value proposition. For our existing
talent, this is about being trusted to perform.
For future talent, Frasers Group 1s for the
fearless’.

Retention

We gim to hire the most talented and capable
individuals across our sector, and to retain their
valuable knowledge and experience within the
Group. During FY21, 29% of our UK salaried
colleagues left the Group which is consistent
with FY20.

Store Manager stability within Sports Direct

is eurrently sitting at 84%, this is o decrease

of 1% compared to FY20. Assistant Manoger
stability currently sits at 87%, an increase of
2% compared to FY20, Footwear Manager
stability currently sits at 94%, an increase of 6%
compared to FY20.

A significant proportion of our people have
baen furloughed at various times in FY21, in
particular when store closures have been
mandated. Use of the furlough scheme has
enabled us to retain people within the business,
while accessing Government support when our
stores have not been able to trade.

Diversity And Inclusion

We believe diversity plays an importont role
in a successful business. We strive to ensure
that our people reflect the diverse cultures ond

values of our customer base. We endeavour te
provide equal spportunities, recruit those with
the best skills and capabilities for the role and
to ensure that training, career developrment and
promotion opportunities are available to a
‘We will not tolerate discrimination on grounds
of gender identity, sexual orientation, race,
nationality, religion, age, disability or any other
grounds.

We endeavour to meet our responsibilities to
train and employ disabled people. Applications

for employment by people with any disabitity
are given full and fair consideration for all
vacancies and are assessed in accordance with
their skills and abilities. People who have a first
language other than English are important to
our business. We provide free English language
lessons, to help them paiticipate and be
successful in our workplace and more broadly
as citizens. Since their introduction in January
2017, 245 colleagues have attended these
classes.

The table below shows the gender diversity of our workforce at the year end. Approximately 53% of
our workforce is female, including 35% of our senior management (FY20: 32% UK workforce). We aim
to ensure that both male and female candidates are provided with equal opportunities to apply for

and work in all positions across the Group.

Femals Male
Drartors 25% 75%
Other semor nianugers 35% 86%
Other umpluyees 53% A%

Gender Pay Gap

Our gender pay gap report fer 2020 was
published in August 2021, We are pleased to
report thot we have maintained o 0% average
gender pay gap acrass the Groug over the
past three years compared to 6.3% in 2017,
We attribute this change to a centinued focus
on reviewing ond applying our pay structures
consistently across the business. We recognise
there is a difference in total eormings between
female and male colleagues. We are therefore
continuing to explore and implement methods
that will establish enhanced processes and
training too!s for our employees ond engaged
workers to achieve maximum earning potential
through our various bonus and commission
schemes.

Talent And Copability Develépment

We invest without jimit in people who show the
potential to be future managers and leaders,
and who can drive the elevation strategy.
Home-grown talent is key to us and many of
eur managemaent and senior positions are filled
through internal promotions.

To inspire our home-grown talent, we offer
existing colleagues the chance to take
apprenticeships, including abtaining relevant

e agross the UK

external qualifications. Over 100 colleagues
have started apprenticeships since May 2020,
learning about topics such as customer service,
HR, finance, IT, warehouse management and
various levels of retail management. We have
also recruited new people into apprentice
positions within IT ond are looking ot extending
this to other areas of the business.

We ran our first early careers programme for
graduates this year, with 27 people joining

our commercical function through the Frasers
Group Elevation Programme. This two-year
nqom.:o:._q:m wiil create the future leaders for
that part of the organisation and enable the
highest performing participants to earn up to
EBO,000 in their second year or to enter other
areas across the commercial team, The trainee
commercial managers (TCMs) started with an
intensive three-week orientation, covering the
Group's purpose, strategy and culture as well

as all aspects of the commercial division and
the essentiol skills required. The TCMs alsa took
part in a three~-day business simulation, to learn
how their decisions affect other areas of the
business.

The 2020 intake also has a dedicated Early
Careers Manager who is responsible for their
learning and development, running frequent
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professionat coaching and mentoring sessions
to ensure they are getting the most out of the
programme and supporting them in all areas
of the role. The Early Careers Manager also
supports the entire commercial team to ensure
the programme runs effectively. The Frasers
Team has been on hand to shift the structure
and scope of the progromme to fit in with the
business's strategy throughout the Covid-19
pandemic and make sure all the relevant
leairning needs are accounted for. A second
cohort of people will join us in September 2021
and we look to recruit for other parts of
the Group in future. We also continue to run
placement years for undergraduates, primarity
within IT.

Managing performance is essential for
identifying key talent and helping our
colleagues to schieve their growth potential.
We have therefore introduced our Fearless
Facus performance reviews which went live
for head office colleagues in March 2021 and
will be rolled out acress the business. We have
identified competencies against which to judge
performance and will alse assess behaviours
against the vaiues described above. Each
function’s objectives will filter down to the
objectives for individuals and provide clear
expectations about performance. We will also
generate development plons, so colleagues
con improve in their current roles or fulfil their
aspirations to progress, in conjunction with our
succession planning.

L ing And Devel t

Ensuring our teams have the knowledge
they need to perform ct the highest level is
paramount to the continued success of the
businass. While we have had to adapt our
appreach to learmina and development during
the Covid-19 pandemic, we are iooking forward
to resuming regular in-person training when
passible, as part of a blended appreach. Our
Shirebrook training centre is state of the art and
is supported by our brand partners Nike, Puma
and Adidas who have their own environments
in the ¢ampus. The facilities offer an unsivalled
. training environment, which alongside the
Shirebrock store, give colleagues the perfact
mix of classroom and on-the-job training.
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We offer a varied portfolio of training options
for our teams. The training and development
portfolio continues to grow and includes brand
and product knowledge, customer service,
management training and induction, os well
as our apprenticeship courses and free English
lessons.

In FYZ21, we started to develop o new learning
management syster (LMS) on Netex’s Learning
Cloud platform. This went live to selective
groups in early 2021 with the aim to rofl out to”
all UK employees by the end of the calendar
year. Learning Cloud is industry leading in size
and scope, showing the importance we place
on the continued learnings of our colleagues.

It contains a blend of interactive e-learning
modules, videos and documents on specific
skills and capabilities, as well as allowing us

to create bespoke content and digital events.
The system will give manogers the option to
recommend further training to their teams

and to report on engagement, which w
allow us to understand the uptake of training
and to monitor campletion of any mandatory
courses. Learning Cloud is easily accessible

and is compatible with PC's, laptops, tablets
dand maobile phones, giving every employee the
option of how they wish to absarb their training.

While the Covid-19 pandemic has reduced
the opportunity for face-to-face training, we
have stepped up the use of online platforms,
This has in¢luded aur Fearless Fortnights,
where we record o webinar every two weeks
an a specific topic, Examples include webinars
an performance reviews and on improving
communication skills.

R ation And R d

We faster a reward-based culture that enables
our colleagues to share in the Group's success.
In the UK, our policy is to pay above the
National Minimum Wage, including rates that
are above the Mational Living Wage for people
aged over 25. We offer bonus schemes and
incentives depending on the role and the fascia,
and colleagues receive discounts across alk
fascias.

The Fearless 1000 incentive scheme aligns the
interests of our people and our shareholders.
Colleagues can be awarded points for

their performance by leaders across the
organisation, including for living our values, The
scherme runs for four years and if a £10 share
price target is reached for 30 consecutive days,
it will result in an award of shares or a cash
equivalent for the top 1,000 people, with the top
ten receiving an award equivalent to £im ot g
share price of £10 on vesting. The scheme also
includes a cash reward for all other colleagues
outside of the top 1,000 people based on their
length of service with the Group.

We have also introduced the Frasers
Champions recognition scheme, which allows
people to nominate colleagues for an award
for demonstrating our values. The strongest
norminations each month are championed
across the business and receive an additional
month's pay. As at April 2021, 72 people had
received an oward.

In addition, the introduction of the Fearless
Focus performance reviews described above
will support the move to a more structured and
robust performance-related pay review process.

Casual Workers

We strive to ensure our arrangements for casual
staff are fair and equitable. All casual warkers
are paid the same rates as full-time employees
in the same role. We promote stability in
working hours, while our casual workers also
benefit from the flexibitity to decline shifts at
any time. This flexibility also benefits the Group,
enabling us to adjust staffing levels to cope with
peak times and quieter periods.

Casual workers are also included in the Fearless
4,000 bonus scheme.

Health And Safety

As the Group grows, we have continued to
increase our focus on consistently implementing
health and safety measures and evaluating our
safety performance. We implement our palices,
in cenjunction with legal standards, to protect
our colfeagues and customers.

During the year, the Group introduced a
new improvement team, responsible for
enhancing the efficiency and effectiveness
of our operations at Shirebrook. This team
is reviewing all processes across the site and
pulling together contributiens from different
teamns, including health and safety. This has
the potential to further improve our safety
performance at Shirebrook.

In FY20 we implemented a new accident

and incident reporting system, replacing
poper-based reporting with an online system
accessikle from all cur stores and businesses.
We are now reviewing the potential to
implement a more integrated system, which
will link to claims and capture the information
required by our insurers.

Appropricte health and safety training is vital
and we have focused this year on training the
store management teams. This training covers
all aspects of in-store safety, from testing

fire alarms o carrying out evacuations and
reporting incidents. The Covid-19 pandemic has
limited the number of people who have been
able to take this training in FY21 and we are
locking to introduce < digital format ta speed
up the roll-out and make the training more

engaging.

The majority of in-store health and safety
incidents relate to customer trips ond falls. The
elevation programme is helping to reduce this,
by providing more space in store aisles and an
elevated shopping experience.

Health And Salety Performance

Ail RIDDOR incidents are recorded and are
reportable to the local autharity. The health
and safety team meet the Derbyshire local
authority with responsibility for Shirehrook on
a quarterly basis and work ¢losely with other
authorities when required. All accidents and
incidents are investigated in a timely manner
and warehouse RIDDOR incidents are reviewed
during these meetings.

During FY21 there were no firg, local authority
or envircnmental enforcement actions or
prosecutions and no work related fatalities
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Wellbeing

Colleague wellbeing is always a focus for

us and has become even more important
during the Covid-19 pandemic. We continue
to partner with Retail Trust, which provides

all Frasers Group colleagues with access

to free and confidential wellbeing support.
Retail Trust offers advice, financial assistance,
face-to-face and telephone counselling,
cognitive behavioural therapy, non-repayable
grants, career development support, legal
guidance and on-site critical incident support.
The helpline is available 24 hours o day, seven
days o week.

To ensure our people know what support is
available through Retail Trust, we have elevated
our communications during the Covid-19
pandemic. This has included webinars and
education sessions for managers, so they are
aware of what is available, as well as social
media messaging and other communications
for calleagues. This has resulted in a noticeoble
uplift in use of the Retail Trust service.

Human Rights And Modem Slavery

We are committed to respect and equat
treatment for afl people.

We recognise that medern slavery is an
ongoing challenge for organisations, especially
those dealing in consumer goods, and we
remain committed to addressing this risk.
Ultimately, we strive to ensure that no slavery
or humnan trafficking takes place within our
business or supply chain. We have policies in
place aimed at proactively identifying and
mitigating these risks. These policies aim to
send a clear message that we do not tolerate
these practices.

We have a range of tools in place including
videos and literature to educate cofleagues
about their rights and a number of
communication channels, including an internal
telephone hotline and comments boxes on site,
for reporting any feedback or concerns. Anyone
making o report can remain anonymous if they
choose. We also continue to review and develop
our colleague training, monitoring processes
and evatuation of outcomes, and work with

our employment agencies and other relevant
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bodies, including the Gangrmasters and Labour
Abuse Authority and the police, to support cur
training and knowledge.

I we find, or suspect, that any organisations or
individuals are participating in medern slovery
we will take immediate action. Accordingly,

we have a policy of reporting any suspicious
uactivity to the police, which has histarically
assisted in successful convictions. Our s54
Modern Slavery Act statement can be found on
our website www.frasers.group.

Developing Our HR Function And People
Policies

We are investing in the structure and capability
of our HR functicn, to enable it to effectively
support the Group as it continues to grow.

As part of this, we are reviewing our people
policies and the way that they govern our
people’s behaviours, as well as the appropriate
mechanisms we need to have in place to
ensure compliance. This wilk allow us to take

a more preventative approach to instances of
nen-compliance.

QOur main focus for policies under review
includes attendonce management, maternity/
paternity/parental leave, performance
capability and redundancy. A significant and
positive change will be the maternity policy
for our casual workers where they will remain
engaged with us throughout their maternity
leave period. -

Community And Charity

We are committed to engaging with the local
and wider communities around our stores and
our offices in London and Shirebrook, and we
aim to minimise any detrimental impact on
them.

Our Sports Directory subsidiary has been a
specialist supplier of sports equipment to the
education sector for over 25 years, ond part of
the Frasers Group since 2016. Sports Directory
plays a key role in giving back to schools in
the UK and helping to keep our young people
fit and healthy, often giving children their

first experience of team sports. Through its
‘My Schoaol scheme, schools purchase sports
equipment from the business and Sports

Directory gives them the opportunity to claim
a voucher worth 25% of every purchase. To
dote, Sports Directory has issued over 42,000
vouchers to UK schools, which equates to
more then £3.2 million worth of free sports
equipment. Sports Directory has also, via the
Professional Footballer's Association, donated
free equipment to 72 football league ¢lubs.

In addition to Sports Directory, we support the
development of grass roots talent in tennis via
Slazenger. We have donated over £350,000 of
tennis equipment to schools and tennis clubs
via the Slazenger Academy. The Academy is
supported by Tim Henman, as well as the All
England Tennis Club,

Closer to the Shirebrook campus, we denated
winter clothing to Nottinghamshire YMCA,
which wos distributed to homeless people in
the locak community. Store managers also
contribute to their local communities. An
example of this is in Aberdeen, where the store
has in previous years worked alongside o focal
hospital to denate presents to the staff. Due to
the Covid-19 pandemic, this was not possible
this year, so instead the store donated to a local
food bank.

Frasers has also worked on a numbeér of
initiatives to empower women in sport. The
highlights of this include working with Women
in Sport to supply kit for their “Daughters and
Dads” programme, which encourages girls to
play more sport. The Group also sponsored
the “Driving Force” series on Sky Sports that
highlights the challenges faced by elite
sportswomen.

As discussed in the Chair's statement, on 15
June 2020, in England, we offered a 50%
discount to all NHS staff in our Sports Direct
stores as a gesture of goodwill to these
fantastic individuals as our stores re-openad; it
was an overwhelming success with gross sales
of approximately £50m before discount and
approximately £25m after discount.

Anti-Bribery And Corruption

The Group has an Anti-Bribery and Corruption
Policy in place, which was originally created
following the introduction of the UK Bribery
Act. As a result of the Act, all policies and
procedures were reviewed to ensure complionce
measures were put in place to mitigate staff
being offered and / or aceepting bribes, We
have a zero-tolerance approach to bribery and
corruption at Frasers Group, and we encourage
our people to speak-up if they have concerns
that bribery or froud is taking place. No
instances of bribery, corruption or fraud have
been reported during FY21.

Due to the number of acquisitions into the
Group since 2018, the Group is reviewing policy
to ensure that the policy remains effective,
The revised paoticy will be subject to Audit
Committee oversight.

Whistleblowing

The Group has an approved whistleblowing
policy and a number of processes operate
which support our policy including Your
Company Your Voice, our Retail Support Unit
Asset Protection hotline as well as a dedicated

. whistleblowing e-mcil address.

A policy review and ravision process is engoing.
The updated whistleblowing policy and related
processes will be subject to Audit Committee
reporting, approval and oversight on an
ongoing basis.

|
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ENVIRONMENT

We recognise that supporting and pratecting
the environment is important to our
stakeholders and to the future success of our
business. We therefore look to be proactive
in making a positive contribution to the
environment, including through reducing
our energy use and greenhouse gas {GHG}

+ emissions, minimising waste, maximising
recycling and considering how we can make our
products more sustainable.

Frasers Group welcomes the introduction of
the Taskforce for Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD}. We understand this is

an impertant step in tackling global climate
chuange and we look forward to sharing our first
full disclosure in next year's Annual Report. As
part of this process we have engaged external
advisers to carry out a gap analysis to ensure
we are in a strong position to meet these
requirements. There is more to do and we have
already begun identifying opportunities and
risks around climate change and are using
these findings to inform future strategy.

Embedding Sustainubility

During FY21, we formalised aur approach

to sustainakility in @ number of ways. This
included creating a dedicated sustainability
function, which has been seeking out and
implementing projects thot are beneficial to the
Group and the environment.

Towards the end of the 2020 calendar year, we
formed g network of Susteinability Champions
under the sponsorship of the CFO. This
reflected our belief that the best way to embed
sustainability across the Group is to take
everyone on the journey with us, All colleagues
were given the opportunity to take part and we
received a significant number of applications
from around the business, demonstrating our
colleagues' interest in envirenmental issues.

The Sustainability Champions work within their
own departments, using their unique knowledge
of their day-to-day roles to heip make all

areas of the business more sustainable. They
feed back to the newly formed Steering

Group. which has representatives from senior
management and key departments, including

26

|

Printod on Stembess 100%5 Recyoled and Cahon Caph

experts in retail, procurement, design, legal,

HR and finance. The Steering Group set the
Group's sustainability strategy and monitor our
progress, as'part of our wider ESG approach.
This will enable us to take a more strategic
approach to environmental matters in the years
ahead.

Treining for our Sustoinability Champians has
been delayed due to the Covid-19 pandemic
but will take place as soon as practicable.
We intend to run workshops, bring in external
speakers and provide an opportunity for our
Champiens to share good practice and learn
from each other.

Enhancing Energy Efficiency

The sustainability team's primary focus in the
year was on reducing energy use and GHG
emissians, primarily through behavioural
changes and best practice, The vest majority of
our sites have smart meters, giving us five and
accurate data which is fed into @ monitering
and alerts system. This aliows us to take action
when usage issues are identified.

We continue to comply with the UK
Government's Streamlined Energy and Carbon
Reporting {SECR) and hove identified key areas
where we can make further energy reductions,
in particular energy usage in aur stores and
efficient transport and logistics.

[mproving the environmental performance

of our store portfolio is o significant focus for
us and presents the greatest opportunity for
associated costs savings. For example, LED
light replocements resulted in a 52% energy
reduction and rapid payback on their upfront
cost. All new light fittings are now LED and we
are rolling out a pregramme of LED lighting
upgrades at a rate of two stores o week, We
heve also upgraded the external lighting at
Shirebrook to LED.

We have trinlled reptacing overhead door
heaters in stores with infrared heaters, which
are much more energy efficient. In our
Mansfield store trial, for example, we replaced
three 12kw blow heaters with a single 3kw
infrared heater. However, store closures due to
the Covid-19 pandemic halted these trials and
we are awaiting more data and feedback from

FRASERS GROUP

store colleagues on the heaters' effectiveness,
before planning a full roll out.

In addition, we carried out desktop studies of
the feasibility of reptacing air conditioning units
in our stores with more efficient units. Whila
these studies showed that retrofitting stores

is not cost effective, particularly for leasehold
premises, we are using mave efficient units

in new stores. We will continue to review the
practicality of replacing existing units, at least
annuaily.

In support of the transition to o low-carbon
economy, we have installed 18 electric vehicle
chargers at several points around our head
office which are provided at cost to colleagues.

Excluding acquisitions during the year the
electricity supplied to all of our stores and
gyms is from 100% renewable sources. Qur
Shirebrook distribution centre electricity is from
a locai independent power supplier, which
supports the grid during the transitionto o
green network and a zero-carbon economy.

Transport

The Group's truck fleet all meet the Euro

6 stondard and we use an engine fuel

additive to further reduce emissions. By using
container optimisation, which moximises the
amount we can get into a container, we save
approximately 0.6315 tonnes of carbon per
forty foot container. Therefore, since 2013, we
have cut our transport impact by approximately
26,473 tannes of carbon. That is equivalent to
31,478,002 kilometres of lorry travel or 787 times
around the world.

We work with our factories and third-party
brands to optimise our container space and
reduce the number of containers shipped, to
ovoid fuel waste caused by 'shipping qir'. Our
freight forwarders continue to work hard to
condense shipping and to compare the impact
of different transpert modes, such as rail or
road.

All parcels we send to customers via DPD are
carbon neutral and we receive a certificate
each quarter settin--g out the GHG emission
savings as a result, During the year we sent
56,572 parcels via DPD, suving 24,275kg of CO2,
the equivalent to planting 93 trees.

‘;1
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Waste And Recycling

Reducing waste and maximising recycling is
another important area of focus for us and we
have a target to send zere waste to landfill from
our UK operations by 2025. We are planning to
look at targets for the rest of the world once our
UK waste streams are managed as efficiently as
possible.

Our approach to managing each of our waste
streams is set out below.

Cardbeard

Sorting our recyciing into different streams at
our Shirebrook warehouse allows us to facilitate
the recycling of approximately 95% of our
cardboard.

We ore a AAA producer of cardboard waste,
which means that we produce clean, high
density bales of a consistent quality. This
attracts a high buy-back price ond ensures we
are a preferred supplier when demond is low.
90% of aur cardboard is reprocessed in mills in
the UK by our recycling partner who we work
closely with to constantly improve recycling
rates. On average, we recycle around 900
tonnes of cardboord each month.

Papet

All office paper is mede from Steinbeis recycled
paper in partnership with the Woadland

Trust ond recycled gfter use. From January to
December 2021, the partnership has created
3,363.36m¢ of new native woodland in the UK to
remove 130,494kg of carbon dioxide.

Plastic

We have o separate baling operation

for plastic, which eliminates end-of-bale
contamination, The plastic we produce on

site is high grade, making it very suitcble for
recycling, Office plastics are also separated at
scurce and recycled.

We oim to reduce single-use plastic within

the business as far as possible, such as tags,
pallet straps and packaging bags. We are
working hard to identify the ‘hotspots’ we need
to address first and actively procure mere:
sustainable alternatives.
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Electricol Woste

IT waste is disposed of by a specialist
contractor who alse cleans any hard drives of
sensitive information where required.

The majerity of electrical woste we generate
is light bulbs and tubes which are loadead into
waste containers provided by Electrical Waste
Ltd and exchanged as required.

Fridges and freezers are collected by the
supplier, as required.

Occasional appliance waste is put in the scrap
metal bins for recycling.

Metal ' .

We recycle scrap metal from Shirebrook and
our stores through o partnership with two tocal
companies, We are now sorting different grades
where possible, to facilitate a faster and more
efficient process.

. General Waste

Every month, around 105 tonnes of dry

mixed recycling {non-sorted recyclabies /
general waste) are baled from our Shirebrook
distribution centre, Once baled, the waste is
sent to a third party for recycling at cost to us.
This has reduced by approximately 45 tonnes
per month from last year, partly due to the
Covid-19 pandemic and portly due to better
separation of waste which ensures we can sell
mare of our own recycling:

Recycling Initiatives In FY21

‘We continue to work on reducing waste and
imcrensing recyching, Daving e yeor, we hove
communicated to all colleagues that our
expectation is for waste to be recycled. We
have supported this by replacing individual
bins at desks with recycling bins in offices to
sort waste at source. Food waste is also now
recycled. We are trialling woste segregation in
stare, to further increase our recycling rates,

_
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Recycling Performance

In FY21, we recycled 86% of the waste we
generated at our Shirebrook distribution centre
(FY20: 88%]. This included:

* 6,418 tonnes of cardboard (FY20: 12,358
tonnes)

+ 30 tonnes of waste paper [FY¥20: 27 tonnes)
+ 285 tonnes of plastic {FY20: 623 tonnes)
*  771tonnes of metal (FY20: 778 tonnes)

+ 3,227 units of electrical equipment (FY20:
5,051 units)

In FY21, wg separated and directly recycled
7.558 tonnes (86%) of matericls. A further 1,241
tonnes {14%) of mixed waste was collected by
specialised recyclers.

This compares to FY20 where we separated
and directly recyeled 10,260 tonnes {§8%!] of
materials and sent away o further 1,517 tonnes
[12%) of mixed waste to specialised recyclers.

The recycling rate has stayed broadly
consistent year on year but the absolute
quantity of waste preduced and recycled this
year is down significantly due to store closures
because of the Covid-19 pandemic. There was
therefore much less stock coming into the
warehouse and no waste coming back from
stores during the country-wide lockdowns.

Product Design And Sourcing

We continue to explore ways to enhance the
sustainability of our products. Corrying out a
‘sustainability check' is now part of the design
e protuternend, process for ol new products
to ensure we use the most sustainable materials
and processes for each line. We review
continuity preducts annually ond refresh them
with a more sustainable material or process, if a
viable aption exists.

For FY22, our biggest sustainability project w

e to improve the sustainability of the products

we offer, looking at water use, chemicals,
carbon emissions and raw material production.

As part of this, we are a founding signatory
of WRAP's (Waste and Resources Action
Programme} Textiles 2030 injtiative, which

is desigred to accelerate the fashion and
textiles industry’s shift towards circularity and
system change. Signatories will collaborate on
carbon, water and circular textile targets, and
contribute to natienal policy discussions. To
help move our product improvements forward
WRAP provides a scenario planning tool which

calculates environmental impacts such as water

and energy saving benefits from swapping
materials or processes, We continue to look
for more recycled content in our products and
request o recycled content or reduced impact
option with every proposal from suppliers.

Improving Our Packaging

We continue to work to reduce the volume of
packaging for our products and to increase
the recycled content of the packoging that
remains. For exomple, we use an auto-boxing
machine that cuts boxes to the exact size
required, substantially reducing the quantity
of card used. We continue to use 100%
recycled card for all our own-brand shoeboxes
and all our card for packaging ar labeliing

is non-laminated, for easier recycling and
plastic reduction. This required substantial
research and development to get the desired
quaiity and appearance, while minimising the
environmental impact.

The Group has joined the On-Pack Recycling
Label {OPRL) scheme, which ensures UK-wide
adoption of a simple recycling symbol system,
to help increase recycling rates. All the
packaging we have produced since Aprii 2020
has an OPRL symbol assigned and printed on it,
to help consumers dispose of it at home within
i TOTIRCY 'WOSLE SLIRGTN.

Our new Sports Direct bag for life which is
coming in Summer 2021 will have 85% recycled
content, up from 70% recycled content in FY20.
We are also introducing standard Sperts Direct
carrier bags made from 100% recycled material
{80% post-consumer waste and 20% factory
waste] later in the year and ali fascias with a
plastic carrier will have at least 30% recicled
content. Qur plans to roll out these recycled
in-store bags have been delayed, os we use up
old stock due to store closures because of the
Covid-19 pandemic.

g o creale new Babsh woodiand across the UK

Frasers stores will have an F5C certified
recycled grass paper bag.

Our in-store hangers are now made from more
than 80% recycled polypropylene, replacing the
virgin ptastic hangers we previously used.

Reducing Water Use

Reducing water usage in our estate is a focus
for us. We have begun installing water-saving
Hippo blocks in toilets in our stores and at

- the Shirebrook distribution centre. These save

around three litres of water per flush. The
installation in stores is taking place in line with
the annual maintendnce rota, meaning all
stores will be covered within 12 months.

Other Environmental Initiatives

The Group is involved in a number of other
environmental initiatives,

Group subsidiary Gul Watersports has teamed
up with the Big Blue Ocean Cleanup {BBOC)
to be its official partner for the next 3 years.
The BBOC mission is to drive positive change
towards cfean oceans that support all marine
wildlife and sustainable living.

The Eco boat operated by BBOC will be
cenducting one of the biggest microplastic
surveys in the world by collecting vital
microplastic data using manta nets. The
open-source data collected will be available to
Gevernments and groups across the world to
use for policy change. The team will also rescue
marine animals that have become trapped in
pollution.

Another huge part of BBOC's work is beach and
river cleon ups. It provides equipment to help
volunteers clear beaches and rivers around the
world.

For Earth Day 2021, we partnered with Trees for
Cities to support its work planting trees in urban
communities and promote the health benefits
of spending time outdoors.

Frasers’ donation allewed it to plant 3,500 trees
on our behalf and supported work to improve
air quality in school playgrounds, as well as
teaching children to grow vegetables whilst
learning about where their food comes from.
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GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS AND
ENERGY CONSUMPTION

REPORTING PERICE: 1 Moy 2000 10 30 Apr L3001
EASELINE YEAR” FY20
CONSBLIDATION
ki Financidl cantrol
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I are gad ta abgn ta hnoncil yenrs, ta aid vand ¢ of watn
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

yuor of Frasers Graup Th difference in emissions of these dite ranges Is expetied to be aeghgrle
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ond predominately te closure of “non-essential retail', rermeving previous estimates.

The Group has engaged a third-party provider
to assess emissions and energy coensumption for
the pericds reported in these results. .

Scope 1GHG emissions comprise the emissions
associated with the combustion of fuels and
aperation of any facility by the Group. Scope

2 GHG emissions comprise the emissions
associated with electricity consumption by

the Group, os well os emissions from any
generated electricity. The non-UK emissicn
factors are those published by IEA and specific
to each country. Scope 3 GHG emissions are
caloulated based on the purchased quantities

of commercial fuels, using published emission
factors for the Well to Tank {WTT} impact

and od nally from metered electricity
consymption and published emission factors for
the Transmission & Distributian {T&D} aspect of
the delivered utilities.

CO? equivalent factors are used, which ensures
we hove reported on oll of the emission sources
required under the Companies Act 2006
Regulations. Con--sumption considers all
Group companies and no adjustments have
been made to comparatives for prior periods
for subsidiaries newly acquired in the period.

The Group’s CO2 emissions ond supporting metrics are detailed in the following table:

Yaur Fra1 s
Seope 1002 ermits w19~ 20,997
Srope 2 CO2 smissions (market posed) [tonmes] 24260 65,162
Scope 3 COZ emissions Jtonnes) 6,359 7550
Totgl Scape 1,2 ond 3 emissions tonnes| 49,198 96539
L.07 ermissioas [tannes) / Em turnover s 14
C G2 emissions ve Turnaver indexs 2020 = 100 561 100

65.4% of Scope 1and 2 emissions relate to the UK and UK offshore arecs.

The table below shows the Group's energy consumption. Scope 1 consumpticn relates to the
consumption of fuel and consumption from facilities operated by the Group.
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This excludes consumption from refrigerants
due to the cost of data collection, although
this is expected to be negligible in comparison
to the Group's total consumption. Scope 2

consumption is based on the amounts of
elactricity purchased through the period, as wel!
os heet ond steam the Group generates for its
own use.

Year Fral FY20
Scope 11 ey 95479574 100337857
Scope 2 consurmption kwht 205,650,446 276,618,584
Total Scope 1and 2 consumpticns KW 301120020 371956881

The Covid-19 pandemic has brought about significant emission reductions.

The table below shows energy consumptien for the UK and UK offshore areas only:

Year Fra1 FY20
Scape 1 consurnption [WWh 79,342 61 BOSALIT
Scope 7 consurmption (kWi 141,502,624 145,475,533
1atol Seope 1.and 2 consumptcns MW h] 220.845.725 276,141,250

Frosers Group is committed to responsible
energy management and sustainability, which it
practises throughout the crganisation where it
is cost effective to do so.

During the reporting year the Group has
implemented the following energy and carbon
efficiencies across the organisation to ensure
that energy consumption and associated
emissions are reduced:

- Egch Retail site in the UK hos been seta
weekly target for consumption. The actual
consumption versus the Target has been
reported on a weekly basis using the half
hourly data from the previous week, in
a league table format. Any Retoil sites
consuming more than target have been
contacted and given guidance on actions to
take to bring consumption down. This has
been part of a wider project to influence
behaviour, by communicating the process
of controlling Retail consumption, on a
daily basis. When Frasers Group returns to
“business as usual®, there is on indication
and expectation that consumption will have
reduced by 10% due to the actions token
during the previous 12 months versus the

- FY20 boseline;

- We continue to upgrade fluorescent lighting
to LED. For the Retail sites all opportunities
to replace lighting during a refit were taken
and the resulting consumptioen has reduced
by c. 52% for those sites that have had a full

refit of lighting to the latest LED technology.

- The nurmber of face-to-face meetings with
colleagues and suppliers has reduced
through the increased avaitability of video
conferencing thereby reducing the amount
of travel and further reducing Frasers Group
carbon footprint.

- Woe are Implementing mini Building
Management Systems that are highly
flexible based on common industry
standards and provide excellent energy
savings;

- We are using additionol submetering within
sites and properties to improve real time
energy consumption and promote granular
in-depth review of facility energy data;

- Heating and Ventilations systems are
undergoing trials that include retrofits to
improve energy efficiency; and

- We are implementing voltage optimisation
projects that provide cost effective solutions ,
and deliver optimised supply voltage.

A number of other energy efficiency measures
are under consideration for implementation
during the next reporting year.
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Environmental Policy

During FY21, we defined an environmenta|
policy for the Group. This sets out our
commitments to:

* haove robust and transparent reporting and
governance of environmental issues

* minimise our carbon dioxide emissions

= reduce waste, so we meet our target of zero
waste to landfill by 2025

+  consider the envirenmental impoct of our
supply chain, and

*  work with partners to enhance
environmental perfermance.

The policy will be shared with suppliers along
with our regular terms and provided to new
colieagues upon induction.

Cur newly formed Steering Group will ensure
the policy is implemented as part of business
as usual, This will be supported through regular
tracking and reporting of targets and with

the engagement of a third party energy.and
carbon reduction specialist.

T e policy is further supported by our
commitment to initiatives such as WRAP's
"Textiles 2030’ which obliges us to measure and
report our progress annually.

SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The Directors confirm that, during FY21 they
consider they have acted in goed faith, and in
the way that would be most likely to promote
the success of the Group for the benefit of

its members as a whole having regard to the
stakeholders and matters set out in s172{1){a}-{f)
of the Companies Act 2006.

This statement sets out the matters considered
under each subsection of $172(1) (a)-{F) and
provides cross references to where further
infarmation can be found in the Annual Report.
Details of some key decisions taken have slso
been provided.

The Likely Consequences Of Any Decision In
The Long Term

The Directors are mindful that any decisions
they make now can, have possible long-
term consequences. The Directors take into
consideration the strategy, purpose, values
and culture when making decisions. During
the year the Directors hove made decisions
based on Board papers, presentations from
senior executives, information documents,
and discussions with external advisors.

Principal Decision/Steps: During the yeor
the Board commissioned o report on the
culture of the Group. The outcome from
this was three key principles, set out below,
which will enhance the Group's journey

in enabling colleagues to implement the
elevation strategy long term.

=  Ownit and back yourself,

- Don't hesitate and act with purpose.

= Think without limits and take the team
with you;

c. The Interests Of The Company's Employees
Details of initiatives and engagement with

our colleagues is set out in the Our people
report and the Directors’ Report.

Principal Decision/Steps: D:._._sm the year
the Group introduced the Fearless 1000

Stembers 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust, heling 19 create now Brtsit woodland across the LK

Bonus scheme which was approved by
shareholders at the 2020 AGM and the
Frasers Group Elevation Programme to
attract the best talent to the Group.

d. The Need To Foster The Company's Business
Relationships With Suppliers, Customers
And Others

Detoils of the Company's business
refationships with suppliers, customers,
regulators and lenders are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report.

Principal Decision/Steps: The Directors have
worked closely with suppliers ond banks
during the Covid-19 pandemic to ensure
that the Group remains in the best possible
financial situation. The Elevaticn Ne Limits
strategy targets stronger relationships with
key brand partners, and this continues to
be a priority. Enhancements were made

to the retgil websites to enhance customer
experience, due to the higher demand

for enline purchases during the Covid-19
pandemic.

e. The Impact Of The Company’s Operations
On The Community And The Environment

The ESG report details of the initiatives we
have undertaken in sustainability and the
community.

Principal Decision/Steps: During the year
discounts worth approximately £25 milli
were offered to NHS staff working in our
local communities to recegnise their
contribution in the Covid-19 pandemic. A
network of sustainability champions has
been set up across the business together
with a steering group which sets the ESG
strategy and monitars progress. The Board:
has also adopted an Environmental Policy
" during the year.
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f.  The Desirability Of The Company g. The Need To Act Fairly As Between Members
Maintaining A Reputation For High Of The Company
Stondards OF Business Conduct

All members of the Company hold ordinary
shares which attach the same rights and
benefits. Shareholders are able to raise

any queries through the Investors Relations
email address. All investor presentations are
made available on the Group website for
shareholders to access. The AGM allows an
epportunity for ail shareholders to attend
and ask questions of the Board. Following
the lifting of Covid-19 restrictions we intend
to revert ko an in-persan AGM this year. This
will allow shareholders to meet face-to-face
with Directors.

At il times we endeavour tc odhere to
strict corporate governance standards,

An external Board evaluation was carried
out during the yeor covering oll ospects

of Board and committee performance.
Recommenddtions will be reviewed and
appropriate action plans put in place. The
Non-executive Workforce Director is another
method by which we are implementing
good corporate governance. Cally Price
brings colleague queries and concerns
directly to the boardroom for action by the
Board. Further details can be found within
the Workers Representative Report.

Principal Decision/Steps: The re-
commencement of the share buyback
programme has benefited all shareholders
by increasing the percentage ownership
held by each investor by reducing the total
number of outstanding shares.

Principal Decision/Steps: Although an

external review is only required once every
three years, the Board has decided to
undertake yearly external reviews. External
advisors have been appointed to review the
Group's policies and ensure they reflect best
practice. Further details can be found within -~ .
the External Board Review.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our Risk Managemant Framework

The Board has overall responsibility for the effectiveness of the Group's systems of risk management
and internal control. These systems are intended to manage, rother thon eliminate, the risk of failing
to achieve business objectives, and they provide reasencble but not absolute assurance against the
risk of material misstatement or financial loss.

The Audit Committee supperts the Board with discharging its responsibilities, under a defegated
authority. The Chief Executive Officer has overall accountability for managing risks in the business,
and his direct reports are accountabie to him for effectively managing those risks within their remits,

The Group's risk management framework comprises a top-down and bottom-up approach to risk
identification, evaluation and mitigation. Principal risks are discussed and agreed by executive
management through the Compliance & Risk Group and by the Audit Committee on behalf of the
Board. The Board and/or its sub-committees discuss each principal risk at least annually and receive’
presentations and detailed risk reporting from risk owners on a cyclical basis. Risk owners re-evaluate
principal risks in advance of each Compliance & Risk Group discussion. Any changes are reported to
the Audit Committee, as part of our Group Risks Profile reporting.

The Complience & Risk Group provides connectivity between executive management’s
responsihilities for risk management and internal controls and the oversight roles of the Audit
Committee and the Board. It facilitates cross-functional discussion and collaboration across principal
risk areas and matters of internal control. It also facilitotes herizon scanning and emerging risk
discussions, challenges the appropriateness of internal centrols and progresses their effectiveness.
The Compliance & Risk Group's activities are reported formally to the Audit Committee. Qur Steering
Groups will also report formally to the Compliance & Risk Group, completing our governance
structure,

sandlknd across t
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Our approach to risk management:

RISK MANASEMENT FRAMEWORK

Board | Audit Comimittee | Sub-carmrmittess
Compliznce & Risk Group

Sty

ng Groups

THREELINES MODIL

Fiest llna

Third bne

Monagsmant

Internal Audit

CONTRO LS ASSURANCE

RISK
GOVERNANCE

*Inctudns structure,
aopetite & svaluotion

MONITORING &
ASSURANCE

COMMUNICATION
& TRAIHING

PROCEDURES,
STANDARDS
R GUIDANCE

Principal risks are cascoded to operational
teams and central functions for discussion and
action on risk mitigations, as part of operational
risk management activity. Operational risk
management facilitates the elevation of risks
to the Complionce & Risk Group, for onward
reporting to the Audit Committee. We continue
to elevate our operational risk activity as part
o our risk management roadmap for FY22 and
we have put plans in place to focus on this in
the next period.
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During the period, the Audit Cammittee, on
behalf of the Board, has:

« undertaken a fuil review of the Group risk
register;

+ received reports on the continued
development of the risk management
framework, including risk appetite
parameters and internal controls definitions;
and

= received risk owner presentations, detailed
risk reporting and summary update
reporting on the Group's principal risks
profile, for further discussion and challenge.

The key elements of the Group's internal control
framework are monitored throughout the yecr
in this way.

Board Review

The work of the Audit Committee and the
internal Audit & Risk team has been presented
to the Board for discussion. The Board is
satisfied that the Group's systems of risk
management and internal control {including
financial, operational and compliance controls)
have operated effectively during the financial
period, up to and including the date of this
report, and no significant failings of internal
control were identified during the period.

The Group ts committed to continuously
improving its risk management framework and
methodology, in line with requlatory standards
and the Group's elevation strategy.

rough the Woodland Trusl. help,

FRASERS GROUP

Assessment OF Principal Risks

We have carried out a robust assessment of
our principal and emerging risks in the period
and our principal risks profile remained largely
unchanged through the periad.

‘We have continued to respond well to

the challenges presented by the Covid-19
pandemic. The effects of the pandemic on
economies and society at large have been more
prominent than expected. Whilst mondated
restrictions are currently eas g, travel is
opening up and the vaccination pregramme

in the UK continues at pace, new varignts
continue to emerge, Uncertainty therefore
remains over the period of time needed to bring
the Covid-19 pandemic under control. As a
result, this risk remains a key focus for us.

During the pericd, we have continued to
respond to the pandemic by:

« prioritising the sofety of our people and
customers;

* re-aligning our strategic response, to ensure
we are able to serve our customers;

» evaluating the strength of our business on
all levels; and

= optimising opportunities for growth and
investment, to ensure we are well placed for
the period of economic recovery.

As a result, our operating performance has
remained robust. This risk has therefore been
evaluated through the normat course of
reporting and in our viahility statement, rather
than through separate risk disclosure in this
period.

Brexit has presented some challenges to the
Group in respect of administration, planning
and logistics, but we do not currently consider
these to be material. Accordingly, our
evaluation of Brexit risk has reduced since

the prior period, though this remains part of
our ongoing menitoring of broader global
macroeconomic cenditions, events or _uo__.:nn_
factors. We continue to monitor the full
effect of implementing the UK-EU Trade and
Co-operation Agreement and the development
of the trading relctionship with the EU.

NG to create new Brtish woodland across the UK

Environmental, social and gavernance

1ESG) issues feature more prominently in

our disclosures. Climate and sustainability
risks have remained an integral part of

our commitrment to ESG and our business
operations, but have previously been
incorperated intg our broader disclosuses

on corporate and social responsibility. With
increasing regulation and in recognition of the
potential significance of this emerging risk to
the Group in the future, we have enhanced our
reporting and have included this as a separate
principal risk for greater transparency.

The following risks and mitigations are an
extroct from our principal risks profite and are
not presented in any order of priority. Principal
risks are those which we consider pose a threat
to our business model, future performance,
prospects or reputation.

Reference To Strategy

Building excellent
relationships with the world's
best brands

Elevation in our digital
offering

Elevation of our physical
stores

Enablers : nmou_.m_ Training,
Brand, Communication,
Systems, Automation, Data

Risk Trends

* Increasing

<= Unchanged

« Decreasing
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FRASERS GROUP

PRINCIPAL RISKS

Strategy

1
“Htel

The Group continues to deliver its elevation strategy, which focuses on the brands we sell, our di
affering and our physical stores, Our vision is to become the elevated multi-channel platform for
sports, premium and luxury brands.

We continue to deliver well against all aspects of our strategy, during a challenging operating period

RISK CONTRGLE AND MITIGATIGHS

- The Bowd ond s
annuai reviews

1+ managemnent set and agree the Group strotegy and undertake both regular and detailed

- Qur Group s dwerss In lanms of geagraphy and product and executive MaNagement s able 1o raspond Lo stralegic
Wa fod to dalver our opportusities and challenges with agility, to maximise achievement of our strategic omiations
strategy =(ficiently, - Wa continye ta evoluote strotegic brand acquistions, ta provide product and cChoics inkne with vur brand strotegy
effectvely and on o timely and attractve locotons (o the store estate
basis, of we adopt the
weong stroreqy, which
imparts our leng-term
grawth, patformance and - Duwrsh noncial conteol
armbitson Haw ard tupport efficiant

- Eftective Monogement of our property partfelio supperts our elevated directian
- Wamonitor our perlarin:

o, markets and eompetitian an an egoing hass

reprrtmg and analyss help 1o optimise resource ollocauens, maximise profits and cash
o eflactive strotegie d

~ W perform ongaing

&arTh for isights It cansurmer trands

Ongoing iternal und exterinl communication of cur strategr: dvection supparts understanding. engagement and
affactive delivery
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Third-party Broand Reloti ps, Key Supp And Supply Chain In:nm.a:.o:n

Key brands, brand suppliers and major manufacturers are central to our business and efevation
strategy. Our strategic acquisitions and business mode] aim to bring attractive brands into the
Group, to support customer demand and choice.

Our supply chal international and is subject to stringent management of supply chain logistics
and working capital, to ensure the flow of product in line with our strategic ambition.

We have continued to strengthen our brand and supplier relationships during the pandemic,
demonstrating the strength of our business mode! and strategic performance. This also supports new
product availability, in line with eur elevation ambitians.

MK CONTROLS

- The Group has o paticy of farging clase long-term cammerc ol relatianships wiveh ore wndenpunad by cur
commitment to product, elevation and customer excellence

We fa Lo manage and
lewarage our suppher - Dedwated elabionship partners and procurement ang cammercial taams suppor trdy integroted supplier
and brand pontner engagermant

reiationstngs succassiuly,
te secore the nght
praducts for ur busness
<t the hght pree and

The elévation strategy targats 10rging stranger ralotionshins with key brand parteers and this 1s an ongesig anacty

- The Group utilises bwa ieoding SUBply cham enpUves 43 pracune much of s awn-biranid products A Group-owne:
supply eham entity further diversilies risk -

- Ourstark levels supported aur obility to trade through the Covid 13 panderme ond we have cantinued Lo secure
ongaing supplies, dus Lo the depth ond breadth of aur commercial restinnstups

exceetl our customers’ - Suppliars sign-Up to the Group's Suppher Manual, which enables us to mantar and banchmork supplier perisrmance
expectoians Fallure 1o ) o )

s o ke gt Strong serur ¢ level egreements are i place, which help to support an effectuve suppiy chain netwark

\mipaick aur alevation - Our ownbrand investment targets consummer trends and complements thrd-purty bands, supporhing consymer
wargets, performonce ond choce

oy tarmm growth - Influencer pudaershios and brand colabarations pronde apparsuniies for swn-brand growth

- Electronic Doto interfuce [£D1] capatiiity wmoreves Gur process efhiziency through the Lammerc
suppher engogement threugh o dadicated supphier parkal

yele ond enhances
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Brexit or Global Macro-economic Conditions, Events {Pondemic) Or Politicol Factors

The global pandemic and Brexit are core aspects of this risk in the period under review. We also
menitor global and national political change on an ongoing basis, for impacts on our strategy and
supplier networks. These cre external events and we respond well to those factors we can control.
“he strength of our business and our performance enables us to absorb the broader indirect
economic impacts associated with this risk, as we have a proven track record of responding with
agility te prioritise trade and performance and maximise opportunity.

We are committed to escalating our elevation v_deS.,.:m ord building on opportunities that
suppert product and brand availability through our digital offering and physical stores,

“aihure to anticipata,
svaluate ar appropriately
‘wspund to external events
such as Breait, or broadar
3lobal/mocroscononue
yvehts

or political

pandam
actors, may risk the
achievement of our

ormance targets,
mpact aur shralegie
Arection or longertenm
Aobility, or result n lost
appartunibies ler growth

Papdupmic:

We have inplemented etfuctive resp 1nse procedures, with Boord eversight ond priontisetion
Dur mondated sole working and opsrating stundards ariorilise collengue and customer wellheing

We deployed new softy requirement s quickly, wath extemol validation and angoing evutuation, ryiaw ond
ManEonng.

We rnude un ogile swilch to focus on @ commerce delivary, 8s @ result of hduted penads of lnckdown

Invesiment & capanility and customer senvce dehvary Support aur acesterated gro

peConens

Effactiva suppher and supply cf
caminercial relotionsheps

rrunagement optimises working copital and leverages ond strengthens our
Eftec bwve management of cush flows and committed facilivwes supparts our iquicity, long-term viabihty and trading
partner suppart

We conduct ongoing scenano coalys s, with timely reparling to management

We leverage oppariunities lor investrient, through strong management cvarsight

Frenit:

We carey out on ongaing evolugtion of Brext risk impacts with repor

We monitar UK-EU trada rlationstuy. developinents and the implen
Agrasinant

to the Bourd

ation of the Trade and Co-operation

Our facus on transpai [ogishics, new docurmenlation raquirements and tha flow of goods supborts praduct
avaihabilty

Iering of lc ond poiitical ch

We ensure ongoing Finonce and Coromercial eveluction af eeancmic ond palkical changs, with seror manogemant
eversight und Baurd reporting.

The exscutive-led Camphonce & Hisk Group holds emeraing risks discussions, wi

oversight reporting to te Audit
Committaa

FRASERS GROUP

Trecsury, Liquidity And Credit Risks

Short, medium and long-term funding arrangements support our business operations and our ability
te meet our financial obfigations and deliver our strategic ambitions,

Funding availability remains a principal risk but the overall risk level trended downwards towards the
end of the period, based on our trading performance and strategic deiivery through the height of
the pandemic. Whilst revenue hos been impacted by the Covid-19 pendemic and prolonged periods
of mandated store closures, we have increased our e-commerce trade, supporting our liquidity
position. We are also prioritising renewal of our working capital facility which matures in November
2022, through strong funder dialogue and engagement, supported by the Group's robust business
performance,

Interest rate risks arise on net borrowings. Foreign exchange risk arises from international trading,
future sales and purchases in fareign currency, loans to non-UK subsidiaries and unhedged options
te buy or sell foreign currency. Credit risk arises primarily through our Wheolesale and Licensing
customers and there is some level of counter-party risk exposure, although we do not consider this to
he material.

RISK CONTROLE AND MITIGATIONS

- Out Bourd reporting on debil. Lovenants, funding and cash Mow positans includss stress testing and extansive
business nsk suenune aalysis, including Brexit, Covid-1%, mendoled store closures and related costs
- The Greup Traasury lunttion manages hquidi

Fadute to appropritaly terest rata ond foreign exchangs risks

manage our funding ond - Tha Group trausury policy, with Bourd oversight,

s delegated authorties kar aperation, monitaring and

a3

liquidity poskions ond
secure access to lunding
matkets might impoct
awr plans for growth, tha
ability ta mannge aur

trudhng requirernents,
tnaet fonger-tarm

wability ot dur business

teporting
We hava o working copital Ia
fundars for renewal

ity available untd Navambrar 2022, with angoing sorly dislague and engagament wih

Ongaing monitonneg and reparbing af going concern and wability ate part of cur standard sute of mternal and
external raparting

Our hadging strotegy ts reviewed and approved sniually us part of our treusury governance, with hedying actwaty
reported ta Board

- *Investments of surplus cash, bartowings und dervative mvestrments ore made under pre-oppraved mvestrmant criteria

We use forward foreign currency conteacts to hadge ogamst fghly probalie feragn tur

y tro
Wa have a credit policy In place, with reqular monmitonng et custutmer and caunter-porty credit sk,

transacuons

See Note 3 to the Financial Statements for further detail on financial risk management.

Fonted on Stembers 100% Recycled and Carbon Caplured throunb the Wondland Trust, hedpang to oreate new Batsh woodland actoss
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. FRASERS GROUP

Customer

Customer engagement and retention is vital to our Group, whether through our physical stores or
online. Harnessing customer value and loyalty across the Group is multi~faceted but underpinned by
our product offerings, price and service.

We have enhanced our e-commerce offering and significantly improved our customer experience
through our efevation strategy. as well as our customer service and the underlying platform for our
digital business.

We continue to strengthen cur elevation thraugh our new concept stores and flagship multi-fascia
offerings.

RISK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

. Ongoing menitoring of customer insights and feedback, and competitor ond market trands, gnubles us to meupond
Failure ta anticipote ond und drve our custormer-led strategy
respand (o customer
needs ar changes in
consumer trends and
spending, or to drive
and deliver customer - Wacontinue to davelop ond invest in our ©
service excelience, may capotulities and payment platforms, er an
Impact our growth, value, - Targeted socigl medio and <
reputotion and stroteaic
ombiban

- Continued nvesiment in our custemer service offenng, systems and c. engbles us to ancd
improve aur customer axperience, both onhne and through the developiment of our store opemting mudel, supported
by new in-store Lechnolagy

effaring. copacity ond copability, ineludng sut autemetion
nprovad custormer experience

| morkating programmes suppert aur customer yroups und branding
Lencer engogement to rise brand ant product awaraners.

- Wause

- Cngoing enhancemant of gur ESG agendas supports our strategy, In Iine with gur custart

Legal And Regulatory Compliance

H

The legal and regulatory landscape in which we operate is constantly changing. Our commitment to
delivering rabustly on our obligations is central to our culture and volues.

We have increased our ossessmaent of this risk in the period, based on factors which continue
to impact the legal and regulatory londscape in which we operate. We are conservative in our
assessments and are confident in our ability to manage these risks effectively. The trend we
are reporting recognises anticipoted changes through ourhorizon scanning and emerging risks
evaluations, until we have implemented our response plans.

RISK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

- ©ur expenenced ond qualbed m-heLse legal team provides care semvices and advice as well ut everaight of new and
emarging legisiative ond regulatary rquirements.

- External adwsers provide additonal sefvices ond traming in speciolist areas. os required by the by
An achon or mcident team
moy eccur winch results -
i a legal o regulotary
breoch and which
impacts our business
ty. commercially

vess and legal

Key legislative und reguintary compliance risk oreas are priontsed and include ol Government-mondaoted
requiremarits in respanse ta the Cowd 19 pandermic, the Group's intellectunl praperty nghts, the Eishing Rules, doto
protection and heglth and safety -

Our Code of Conduet supports our athics, behaviours and culture, and owr regulntory pohties include, lor exomple,
Ant-Bobery & Cormuption, Corporote Gifts & Haspitality and Confhcts of Interest,

- Wereview the approach dnd cantent of mandatory Induckion. policies ond ongomg traming across relavant areos. for
all colleagues

- Asewviewof our h

vework for ongoing g of ¢ " pragress
- e Logal S6aT S o ey Critbutar amd aiser b fhe Sampbenee § Rusk Gisup
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Technology Capability And Infrastructure Renewal

P
We operate in a competitive and challenging customer-focused market. Our systems need to be
at the forefront-of customer service excellence and support our @nd-to-end supply chain logistics.

Available technology is constantly evolving ond managing changes and transformation in this
environment is a key focus.

We have invested heavily in this period in cur automation, platforms and delivery capabilities, which
suppart ¢n enhanced online and in-store customer experience, and our business resilience.

Our roadmap includes improved technology and information security capabilities, aligned to our
uity and IT disaster recovery review, which continues to strengthen our controls.

RISK CONTROLS AND MI

- We have u Group technology siroategy in plore, ahigned 1o the business strategy

- Qur forward progiamme of
ablity to compete

astructure fenewal enables us Lo ousrate gur b

esses eilicanty and suppans ous

Felura 1o maxmise
the use of our exsting + Our streumilining and decommssioning progreinime supports aequi
technolagy or Lo renew
our infrastruc ture in o
nimely ond eftecte woy
may affert aur ohikty ta

o

tegration activity B

Investments 1n our onime trading capatilities, warsHouSe MGIAYEMENT systems ond in-stare technatogy £hlioncs the
end-to-end custmer wkgenance ond Improve product ovatabihty and fulliment

—  Growth of our expenunced In-house Technofogy tearn, in

e, suppartea by angoing skills tr

eep up with the puce of halps us 1o kuep vbreast of emerging technologies and cusioemer -lag sights
nge on ver our - Y¥e have an ongomg cycle of kmining programmes ta suppon elfective use of existmg technologaes und naw
trotegic ambition technologies ocross our busimesses. os they ore intioduced

- Strengtheming our mlormation securdy capabilty has
technology delivery and the robustness af our secon

hanced our tansiormation pragromme, our strategy
Iitve crvaersaght

uss the UK
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FRASERS GROUP

Cyber Risks, Data Loss And Data Privacy

I
Attempts to attack or gain unauthorised access to systems and dota are becoming increasingly

sophisticated, Qur systems are criticol to our operations and trading. We have legal and commercial
obligations to protect the security and privacy of the data we hold and process. ’

‘e combine the continued investment in our d gital offering, dutomation and technological change
with the strengthening of our people and in-hoase capabilities, to deliver on our risk mitigations.

RISK CONTROLS AND MITLGATIONS

- Wehave strategies and poliies in i 3ce to support our (1 secunty

- Weeel
capuli

borate clasely with our indu kry leading service partners, who provide Lore secvices beyond our n-house
s Capobility delivary, sscunty and savings ore core drvers Our pariners includa Microsoft, os wall as other
strategic portnerships for content de-viery network support lor our website and cybar rmtigohions

& eyber-attack may rasult Pratecti D ,
 hata loss onddor demal — Protetion tools, including srorvphiar , and detecting tools are s plae to suppart effectvs momtanng and reportiog,
of service, impac ond ara reviewed requiarly

- We have snhoncad ow information saturty copabites ahd strengthened our second-hne monitonng

- We conduct un annual external raview of our <ybar posture aid peiwtiation lesting ocross Group

well as our reputobon and < Yengthening our data prot wndote, enhancing our pelicies and procedures and ongoing intamal tra
ur oty U6 operata felp to mitigate duta protection and prvacy nsks and support dekwery of our change and traist
Fallurs to adeguataly - We hove on ongoing programime of secanty and privacy monitanng ocross our Gr
pratect the data we hold
v process may result in
leyal or regulatary bre:
{oss of trust and hnana
toss -~ We routinely action ond retain Dutu Protectisn Impart Assessmants

iae of lost trade. os

]
tation pregraimme:

axtended enterprise

"
- Cur inchouse Legalteain supports se-o

2 o and regorting of lagislative compliancs:

- W make ongoing mvestrents w datn protaction trai
aur gverseas aperations)

ng and cummunications fond lacol legislative equivalents in

- Qur policy framework 15 subjsct to omgong review und revision, with external support ond 0 ling with our governance
agandn

. Benchmark stondards lonm part of oLt cantrals improverneat actwity

t And Incident R

Our Head Office and Distribution Centre at Shirebrook and our e-commerce activity are criticat to
our business operations. There is an ongeing and increasing reliance on the availability of technology
across our Group. We need the ability to respond to incidents effectively and on o timely basis, to
ensure continuity of operations and trade.

RISK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

~ GurBusiness Conty
suppart

¥ Gnd IT Drsastst Rucovury pl

are undergoing review. revision and tasting with external
Fanlura to respaod

Fizctvely or an a timely
brasis to aperotional or

- Ourgovernance structure supports aghs neident s panse, wi

lor foles, resporsif

ses and reparting lines

idents or events - Annual extesnal review and challenge of our processes SUPPETES Gur COMIMIIMANE 10 continUOUS Impravermant
- Dngoing traming supports gand pract ce and knowladge tharing lor connnuity
- Internai Gag exte:

lest revenue or have
o reputahiengl impact - Recovdry piion
based o our capabihity
01 camniunications

communications marketing and PR capatiities are integral ka aur incrdeal response plans

af IT sysiems o 14 processes forms part of our business wnouet onalysis review

- © Wehava recavery time targats for Lot entical and norr

service lunctions

- Critral recovery copobilities align to cur Insurance cover, uppatite and controds.
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Group Entities And Extended Enterprise

Our Group is complex and extensive and includes oversight of our third-party and extended
enterprise partners and suppliers. We are committed to ensuring we have the right levels of
transparency, consistency and monitoring across our Group, to enable effective oversight in line with

our values and culture.

We have an appetite for acquisitions as part of our strategic growth agenda. Our integration
strategy is being formalised and captures lessons learned to support ongoing efficient and effective
acquisition engoegement and menagement.

INTROLS AND M(

Faiure to eftectively
RORIO! BetiviTies GCross
our Group entibes,
partmers ond supphers,
who Form part of our
extendad enterprse
may resu o,
reputational or legal
complance issues.

Tromsparency across aur Group ond extended entarpnse and its changes s un angoing prianty 1t 15 subjeet to regular
raview and discussion and forms part of cur nsk management framawork and repo:

Ovarsight roles ond respansi

tias across our Group strueture support nvk-brsed funct

nal monitoring and

 our supply char

anagement and supplier and purtner rulat

contrals reporting Geoss the Group 1s subjact b Cantiluaus improvernent,
pracessus for canlinotion of camplionce with key policies, controle and othar Group ruguremants.

Governunca and momtonng are in place for new iwestinants, ucquisitians and spportu

The Group Internal Audit team is develapng third-line mantonng to support tha hreader infernal o
aerass the Group

als framewaork

People, Talent M

T

s

t And § i

Our business benefits from strength and depth of knowledge, talent and experience, which has
long been pivotal te its success. Retaining and protecting this talent, providing for succession and
an ongoing pregramme of attracting and developing new talent is core to our people plans and

objectives.

We have made .m.m_._m_no_._ﬂ progress in the period in this area and when new initiatives have time to
embed, we expect to see this risk trend decrease.

CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

Fanlure to attract, retain or
devalop talent ueross our
business ond implement
eflechve succeswon
planming might impact
our obihty to acluswe
buswwss ond strategic
ohjertives ond the
afficiancy of our growth
transfarmation

Conbnued develaprnant of strong trainee g and hups g
pipelne
We recrut externally to Tl ropol

supports our future talent

¥ 9Ips nacessary for our growth and transtermation
W priaritise intarnol develapment and promotion whersver possible and uctwely encoutage cross-functionol
experlence

A new appraisal systern hos baen introduced with rlaar expactohions for performance, opportunities tar development
and braader succession planning

A sixpillor People Framewark suppacting perlannance ond talent recognition 1s now n place across the Graup
An internal recrutmant mondate operates, with improvernents in onbaarding and applic

tracking

We have creatied care pri les and n colieague value proposibion that shere the Group's values and ambitions for
wur puople, with un elevaled and re-ansrgised website ta uttract talent

A new recognition and BonLs structure has been lounched, recogmsing und rewarding peopls Who dre fedrless Gid
adcpt our core prnciples

The Warkers' Regresentative 15 0 Board Directol wha supsorts commumgalion rhannels ond Gves ou peopls o voce
4l the highest level In our businass

We have q strong strotegy for diversity and

1 divd people support

d across the UK
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Viability has been assessed by performing
sen ity analysis and stress testing of the
Group's FY22 budget and forecast for the
viability period prepared by management.
This comprised a recent review by the Board
of a number of scenarios in which the Group's
income statement, balance sheet and cash
flow forecasts were stress tested to determine
how rmuch the Group's tracle would need to
be affected in order to breach the Group's
coyenants [being interest cover and net debt to
EBITDA ratios). These scenarios included:

» a further decrease in sales of 10%, margin
rernaining consistent with original budget
and direct costs falling in line with sales;

+  a further decrease in sales and margin of
10%, with no change in direct overheads;

= maximum breakpoint, being breach of
covenants per the Group's RCF {Sales
would need to reduce by a further 20%
than forecast, with no change in direct
overheads)

The Group's working capital facility is at
£913.5m {FY20: £913.5m) available until
November 2021 and is not secured against any
of the Group's assets. The Group enacted an

extension option for a further year to November

2022 for £847.5m.

The Group has consistently created a strong
free cash flow from underlying treding and
has an appropriate hedging strategy to meat
currency risks. There have been no post
baolance sheet changes to liquidity.

The impact on the projected cash flow as o
result of the conservative model has been
reviewed, if required management have a
number of mitigating actions which could be
taken such s putting on hold discretionary

spend, liquidating certain assets on the balance

shizet, reduction in labour and marketing costs,
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Based on its assessment, the Board has a
reasonable expectation that the Group will

be able to continue operating ond be able to
meet its liabilities as they fall due for & period
of approximately three and a half years, to the
end of the expected minimum maturity of new
Group finance arrangements and Facilities (the
period of the assessment}.

The Viability Statement wos opproved by the
Board on 5 August 2021, and signed on its
behalf by:

Chris Wootton

Chief Financial Officer

5 August 2021

vihe Woodkand Trust, helpng to o

THE BOARD

DAVID DALY

Non-Executive Chair, Chair of the Nomination
Committee

Appointed: 2 October 2017

Committess: Nomination and Remuneration
Committees

Previous roles:

David held a number of positions during

o 30-year international career with Nike,
where his primary focus was the business of
football. He started in a sales role in 1986, later
becoming sales director for Nike UK / Ireland.
He retired in 2015 as a Senior Director for
Nike's Club and Federation business, where he
was responsible for the global merchandising
business for all of Nike's leading football clubs.

Present roles:

David is a Non-executive Director

of Fulham Football Club.

Key skills, experi and tribution:
David's career at Nike gove him significént
first-hand knowledge of the sporting goods
indlustry. He has worked in senior roles in
sales,-marketing, product development and
general monagement, giving him a thorough
understanding of consumer trends and
behaviour. He spent 18 years working outside
the UK and this international experience has
proven crucial to the Board. David joined the
Board in October 2017, allowing him to gain a
sound understanding of the business hefore
being appointed as Chair in October 2018, His
focus has been on improving best practices,
corporate governance, promoting diversity
and driving the elevation strategy. He ensures
the Beard functions effectively by facilitating
an open and productive debate and providing
constructive challenge.

w Bntish woodland across the UK

MIKE ASHLEY

Chief Executive
Appointed: 1982 (founder)

Previous roles:

Mike established the business of the Group
on leaving school in 1982 and was the sole
owner until the Group's listing in March 2007.
He was Executive Deputy Chair prior to being
appointed Chief Executive in September 2016,

Key skills, experi and contributi

Mike was the founder of the Group and has *
the necessary skills for formulating the vision
and commercial strategy of the Group. With
over 40 years in the sports retail business with
Sports Direct he is inveluable to the Group.
Mike's knowledge and experience in all areas
of retailing, buying, warehousing and logistics
ensures that he is crucial te the effective anct
efficient running of operations. During the
continuing Covid-19 pandemic his decisive
leadership has meant the Group has managed
to come out of this crisis in good health and
will be able to take advantage of future
opportunities.
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CHRIS WOOTTON
Chief Financial Officer

Appointed: 12 September 2019

Previous roles:

Chris worked in the assurance practice at PwC
for much of his accounting career, including
working on large corporates and listed entities.

Key skills, experience and contribution:

Chris is a Chartered Accountant. After joining
the Group, he quickly understood the business
and progressed rapidly within the Finance
team, He has helped the Group on its elevation
path and significantly improved the Finance
team’s skills, experience and capabilities.

- Chris is a key driver of the Group's accounting

principles, namely being conservative,
consistent and simple.

Cheis has had to play c key rale as part of the
Leadership team in the Group's response to
the Covid-19 pandemic, including stokeholder
management, and cashflow management and
forecasting.
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CALLY PRICE

Non-Executive Workforce Director and Warkers'
Representative -

Appointed: 1 January 2019

Previous roles:

Cally began her coreer with Frasers Group as
a casual sales assistont in our Sports Direct
Aberdare store in 2007,

Present roles:
the Company's Workers' Representative and

"Manager of the Cordiff $t David's Sperts Direct

store,

Key skills, experi and contributi

With over 12 years' expetience with Frasers
Group, starting on the shop floor working under
a zero hours contract, Cally is ideally placed
to ensure that the voice of the workforce is at
the forefront of the Board's discussions and
decision-making. She has current knowledge
of every aspect of the day-to-day running

of a retail outlet and applies this to her
directorship. Cally is committed to ensuring
full trensparency across the Group and hos
control of the workforce company app and
confidential hotline, taking on the responsibility
of answering every colleague personally,

Cally reports to the Board with worker issues
raised and consistently chollenges them

from her unique perspective. Alongside our
colleague development team, Cally has been
committed to ensuring that the wellbeing of
alk Frasers Group colleagues is paramaount
during these unprecedented times. Through
our relationshig with the Retail Trust, Calty has
presented company-wide webinars with trained
mental health advisors, to offer support and
guidance to our colleagues, When restrictions
have permitted her to do s¢, Cally also sits
with Senicr Management at our Shirebrook
Head Office twice weekly, ensuring that she is
continucusly invelved in the running of Frasers
Group. Cally has become both the voice and
face of our people, reprasenting oll of our
colleagues and providing a collective vaice
for alt.

RICHARD BOTTOMLEY OBE DAVID BRAYSHAW
Senior Independent Non-executive Di : Independent Non tive Di Chair of
Chair of the Audit Committee the R tion € jith

Appointed: 1 October 2018

Committees: Audit and Nomination
Committees

Previous roles:

Richard has over 25 years’ experience working
with listed companies during his time as a
senior partner at KPMG, and he remains a
member of the Audit Committee Institute.

Prior to joining the Board, Richard was a -
Non-executive Director of Newcastle Building
Saciety, where he chaired the Audit Committee.

Present roles:

Richard is Chair of Trustees of the Greggs plc
1978 Retirement and Death Benefits Scheme.
He is also o Non-executijve Disector of MSL
Property Care Services Ltd, Marsden Packaging
Limited and Jessgrove Limited.

Key skills, exp and
Richard has strong experience in corporate
governance, corporate finance and strategy.
His experience in the audit secter has proven
beneficial. Richard has been influentiaf in
the recruitment of a Head of Internat Audit,
ensuring that risks are properly assessed and
mitigated.

P

Appointed: 8 December 2016

Committees: Audit, Nomination and
Remuneration Committees

Pravious roles: :

David is a very experienced seniar investment
and commereial banker. He has over 3Q years'
experience with erganisatiens such as Barclays
Capital, HSBC, Citigroup and Pilkington plc.
Key skills, experi and ibuti

David graduated from Oxford in 1975 with a
Masters of Arts in Chemistry, He has spent

a tong career in corporate financing for a
number of major financiol institutions, ond

was the Group Treasurer of Pilkington pic.
David spent 15 years at Barclays Capital,
advising FTSE 350 companies on all aspects
of corporate, syndicated, and capital markets
funding, together with interest rate, foreign
exchange and balance sheet hedging. He has
funded countless public company acq
and remains involved in on advisory role with
several corporates and banks in a private
capacity. He has a proven track record in the
finance and acquisitions sector, providing
sound advice in line with the Group's elevation
strategy.
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NICOLA FRAMPTON

Ind: dant N. tive Director

Ly

Appointed: 1 October 2018

Committees: Audit and Remuneration
Committees

Previous roles:

Prior to joining Domino's Pizza Group, Nicola
was at William Hill from April 2010. She was
Managing Director of its UK Retail division,
working closely with the Board, Exco and
operational management. During her time at
Wiltiam Hill, Nicola led a number of successful
maor innovation and transformation projects.
Before switching to an executive management
career, Nicola spent the previous ten years
waorking in the professional services industry,
most recently as a Director at Deloitte.

Present roles:

N cola has spent most of her recent career in
senior executive management roles and has
recently been appointed to a new position

w th Domina's Pizza Group, where she is Chief
Operations Officer.

Key skills, experience and contribution:

Nicola has extensive experience in risk
managemsent, assurance and corporate
governance across a wide range of industries,
having specialised in these areas of corporate
activity at both William Hill and prior to that
whilst at Deloitte. The Board benefits from
Nicola's current retail experience as the serving
Muanaging Directer of a barge non-competing
retaif business. Nicola serves as a Trustee
Board member on a number of charities and
brings an informed perspective on corporate
responsibility to the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Chair's Introduction

As Chair, | am responsible for leading the Board
to make decisions that will benefit the Group
and ultimately its stakeholders. My role is to
ensure that we adhere to high standards of
corporate governance and allow the Group

to thrive during these particularly challenging
times. From the downturn of the high street

to the current Covid-19 pandemic, we have
remained resilient and robust in our approach
to corporate governance.

Qur Non-executive Directors have o great depth
of experience, remain independent throughout
all discussions and are rigorous in challenging
the Executives in the best interests of the Group.
Our Executive Directors understand the Group's
values and behaviours, They work tirelessly to
retain and grow shareholder value, engage our
workforce and promote the Group's strategy.

The Beard and the Audit Committee held
more meetings than usual during the year, to
ensure that matters arising from the Covid-19
pandemic were dealt with effectively and
promptly. | would like to thank Board members
for their additional time and commitment
throughout this period.

With increasing stakehaolder focus and incoming
regulation, we have increased our work on
improving our environmental impact and
sustainability. During the year, the Sustaincbility
Steering Group was formed under the CFO's
leadership. Further detaits are included in our
ESG report.

Further information regarding cur compliance
with the Code can be found in our Corporate
Governance Statement.

David Caly

Non-sxecutive Chair

5 August 2021

ek across the UK
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CORPORATE GOVERN

This Corporate Governance Repartt and
Sraterment sets out how the Compony has
applied the _uw_:nimm in the 2018 ¥ Corpofate
Governonce Code dunng its firancial year
ended 25 April 2021, A <opy of the Cade is

availoble at wraris frc 0rg UK.

Disclosuares in relotion to pIR 726 (share
capital) and DTR 728 E.Em..m:ﬂ are sek out in

fraviion Ragquirernant

L Resunerafiet schames shovd
cagn shorattolding®
gctors thilt Juppert
term shoraholder
geanked fo7

chus, purpase ¢
Jor sale on B phase

The Regunesanon Comrmttee
sauid develap @ for et B oy for
post-arppioymery YL Y
requireInants angomprssing bt
rwasted und vestd sHOUET

BOARD LEADERSHIP AND COMPANY
PURPOSE
The Board

Thaye were NC Board changes duting the
year. The Roard's stability has enabled the
Company 10 confidently meet the chatlenges
of, and navigete successfulty fhrough, thess
cnﬂ-mnwmm?n tHines.

The Board decided to renew the cvﬁo.:._ﬁ:m:.n
of our workforce Director, Colly price, for o
further faw yeors: subject to AGM election

until Qctolver 2074, Colly has had o huge
jmpoct on the Board and successfully acts 05
canduit between the workforce and Directars.
She brings new insights and perspective to

the Board and ploys a key role in helping
colleagues understand the challenges and
apportunities facing the business. She has
continued to work tirelessty in priefing the
workforce on developments guring the Covid-1®
pondernic. | amn ols0 u_mnmma o be continuing
in oy wole of Chyair for @ further term of three
yeaws, following its renewal by tne Board in July
2020.

su!-..-u:_!..n!.l-.!n-

Tha Groug 4o
are scheme
rectors s s el e
o the AGe  respct of

ANCE STATEMENT

vhe Ditectors Report and inthe HNominotion

Comritieg Sioternsnt.

The Board considers that it complied with the

majerity of the principles and provisions of the
2018 UK Corporote Governance Code for the
period ended 29 Aprit 202 The tollowing wable
sets out the provisians which have nat nean

fully camplied with during [l

Raxaktion

& Exgculnee

phareholde

Chrig Wootken

Businass Model

The Group's Tusiness moce! Termains

ot have of R s oted in the Divectars’
Remunaroiion Regppr. 0N e uUnYE

potto

consistent

in providing CustoMmers with the world's best
bronds. This requires 18 10 have the fght
product, in the right ploce, at the right Bme and
at the right price. in ensuting the sustainabifity
of this we have applied the Bcﬁ-oro:nm_
elevabion strategy N alevating not arwy our
sroves and brands, but glse the customer
axperiance. Further information &n the Group
pusiness model and strategy <an be found in
the Strategic Report. Governance plays @ key
role in the business model and the delivery of

strategy Os the Board gefines expect

ations and

yerifies performdnce towards the delivery of

strategic airms and objectives

Cujiture

During the y2an the Board received an
independent report on the employee value
proposition. including the cutture of the Group
which is discussed further in the Our People and
Extarnal Roard Review section of this Ariruch
Reportt. Our culture is embedied in o strong
work ethic, creativity and rigk, c:amﬁ.sama vy
three key E..Sn..v_wm to guide our people inan
nmﬁ._am_o:nr o instructive WOV

Owm it and back <o:;m§

_ pon'thesitate and act with purpose.

_ Thinkwithout limits and take the tearm with
you,

Further information on the Groug's culture

is contained within the Criture and Velues”

saction of this raport.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group hos @ sumber of stakehaliders to
consider ond we uga o variety of methods 10
ensure that we capture thair views and use
thern ta shape our decisions. stakeholder
engagement is important to our performonce
and we take on board both commendation and
constructive criticism. Howevel whilst we are
rringtul of each stakeholder group, wé hve 1o
polance their views ogainst other competing
factors and recognise that the cesult moy not
be positive for all stakeholder graups- During
the year, the Board has mode decisions bosed
on Board papers, Emmm:no.go:m from senior
executives and disgussions with and reports
from externa! consultants.

Employees

please see the Directors’ Report for details of
colieague engagement.

ﬂ_v.?wmﬂ,w GROUPF

PR

Shoreholders

Our AGM provides on opportunity for ab
shareholders £ engage with the Board

and subrnit questions. Dueto the Covid-1®
pondemic, the 2020 AGM was & closed
meeting. Howevef, shorehalders were invited

o submit questions pror the meeting. Al
resolutions were passed at the mesting and ne
resolution$ received an ggainst” yote of 209 f
mose.

The views of major shareholders are shared
arnongst the Board when received and we
espond 95 pecessary. e Roasd ensures that
i is availdble tor questions ot the halt yaar
and full year results ﬂ_.mmm:nn.n._n_nm. o which
majer snareholders or¢ irited. m__..nam.:oim-m_
opinions are closely monitored through analyst
and broker reparting and ol corraspondence
received from major investors is pirculoted o
he Televart cornmitiee chir of the Bourd a3

avﬂaoﬂnnﬁm‘
Customers

We strive (& continuolly irprove custorner
engagemnent ond mo»._u*anao?._..fm Customer
Sarvice function has continued with its
elavation phose, t0 support custorners by
offering innovative: pasy fo use technology

and creating ¢ culture of highly angoged
collepgues. A New contact ranagement
solution has been deployed acress all foseias
within the Group. improving customer
communication channels, allowing customers to
self-service and improving the level and speed
of response _u—osama by the Customer Rervice
tearns. This work continues, 05 we offer more
contact channels 10 enable custorners 1o rench
gut to one of pur custerer care team. helping
o 1es0ive enuities faster than sver pefore.

We are committed to jistening ko our custormers
ond have recently engaged o independent
externol portner i© help us understand and et
upon customers teedback, We have imnproved
our reporting, esulting process chonges

and helping us ncrease eur external Customer
gatisfaction {CSAT) score. The Board ou_uacma
measures for store reopening tollowing the
Covid-19 va:amin o encure the safety of
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customers and colleagues. The Board also
approved a 50% discount for customers
employed by the NHS in recognition of their
work during the pandemic.

Through our digital elevation strategy we

are investing more than £100m to elevate

our propesitien across our retail channels.

This investment will build on our core digital
foundations ond includes i tives to improve
the online customer experience by carefully
targeted investment in platforms that support
customer service, engagement and data. We
are also investing in digital marketing to drive
sales growth.

Suppliers

We aim to forge strong and transparent
relationships with all of cur suppliers, to enable
us to provide customers with excellent products
and to meet the standards that our brand
partners set for their products. The Elevation No
Lirnits strategy targets stronger relationships
with key brand partners {including our Strategic
Investments) and this continues to be ¢ priority.
Having worked with Nike for over 30 years, the
Chair is instrumental in engaging and helping
to maintain our relotionship with one of our key
brand partners, Nike. ’

Dedicated relationship and procurement and
commercial teams support truly integrated
supplier engugement. Electronic Data Interface
(EDI} copability also improves our process
efficiency through the commerciol cycle and
enhances supplier engagement, through a
dedicated supplier portal. ‘

We have Jong-standing relationships with two
key gateway suppliers, which we use to source
Group own-branded products.

Further details in relation to environmental and
ethical considerations can be found within the
Environment Report.
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Ragulators

The Group makes every endeavour to comply
with its legal and regulatory obligations. We
regularly liaise with HMRC, the FRC and the
FCA in an open and transparent manner. The
Finance team and the Board have established
regular communications with tax authorities
internationally.

During the Covid-19 pandemic, Board members
ligised with the Government on a number of
occasions, to clarify the Group's position, for
example, regarding store tfosures.

Lenders

Alongside attending all Board meetings, the
CFO is always available to inform the Board
of any updates in relation to financial lenders.
With the assistance of the Finance team, the
CFQ ensures that the Group complies with
the terms and cond ini i
ogreements. The CFO regutarly liaises with the
Chair of the Remuneration Committee and the
Chair of the Audit Committee, to discuss the
Group's financial performance.

During the Covid-19 pandemic, the Board
discussed cash flow forecasts and the

ty of headroom in the RCF. This
uncertain time also led to Beard discussions
regarding other financing methods, including
the Covid Commercial Finance Facility.

Our Finance team has engaged with our
lenders during the year. There was o particular
focus during the early period of the Covid-19
pandemic in the UK, as management held
regular conference calls with lenders to say
engaged and infermed.

LIERTARR SN

0o B

Community

Details of our engagement with the community
can be found in our ESG report.

Workforce Concerns

Warkforce concerns regarding the business
and its operations are tcken seriously and we
provide a number of ways that colleagues con
voice their issues. When issues aorise, colleagues
are encouraged to speak to their line managers,
or they can seek advice from the Retail Trust.

If colleagues want-to express their cancerns
confidentially or anonymously, they can use the
whistleblowing hotline or “Your Company, Your
Vioice'. Cally Price works with colleagues oacross
the business to resolve issues and she reports
issues to the Board during scheduled meetings.
The Company Secretary is made aware of

ali whistle blowing reports and has access to
independent advice as appropriate.

Director Concarns *

During the year, no concerns were raised by the
Board regarding the operation of the Board or
the management of the Group.

Conflicts of Intarest

Detcils of procedures regarding Directors’
conflicts of interest, including the Relationship
Agreement with Mike Ashley as the controlling
shareholder, can be found in the Directors’
Report.

Corporate Governance Policy Review

During the year, external advisors were
appeinted te review the Group's governance
policies and ensure they are documented and
reflect best practice. A review of these findings
will take place in FY22 once the external review
is completed.

cafand across tha K
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DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Chair

The Chair leads the Board, ensuring
constructive communications between 8oard
members and that all Directors are able to play
a full part in the Board's activities. The Chair
sets Board agendas and ensures that Board
meetings are effective and that all Directors
receive accurate, timely and clear information.

The Chair communicates with shareholders
effectively and ensures that the Board
understands the views of major investors. The
Chair also provides advice and support to

bath the Executive and Non-executive Board
members. Upon his appointment, the Chair met
the independence criterig set out in provision 10
of the Corporate Governance Cede.

The Chief Executive

The Chief Executive has & pivotal role in
formulating and implementing the Group's
strategy. He is responsible for the day-to-day
running of the business, equipping himself with
a team of executives to ensure that the Board's
decisions are implemented. The Chief Executive
is the main point of communication between
the senior executives and the Non-execitive
Directors, and regularly updates the Baard on
the Group's trading position.

The Senicr Independent Director

Richard Bottomley, OBE, is the Senior
Independent Non-executive Director. He
supports the Chair and Non-executive Directors
and is available to assist shareholders if they
have concerns.

42
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Role Of The Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors have broad
experience from a wide range of sectors.

Their role is to understand the Group in

its entirety, to constructively challenge

strategy and management performance,

set executive remuneration and ensure
appropricte succession plonning is in place.
The Non-executive Directors must also ensure
they are satisfied with the accuracy of financial
information and that effective risk management
and internal contyol processes ore in place.

Independence

There are currently three independent
Non-executive Directors, as well asa
Non-executive Chair, o'Non-executive
Workforce Director ond Warkers’
Representative, and two Executive Directors.

All Non-executive Directors, other than the
Non-executive Workforce Director and Workers'
Representative, were considered independent
upen appointment, The Nor-executive
Workforce Director and Workers' Representative
is not considered to be independent os she is
employed by the Group.

Delegation of Responsil

The Board has three sub-committees, namely
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Committees
are governed by Terms of Referance, which
provide detoils of matters delegated to

thermn. The Terms of Reference ore available
on the Group's website at frasers.group/
financials/corporate-governonce. The roles
of the Chairman, Chief Executive and Senior
Independent Director are clearly defined

and set out in writing. The role profites were
reviewed and updated during the year.

REMUNERATION KEY BOARD
COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES
Appraving budgets

..Remuneration

palicy Setting the Group’s values and stondards

Apptoving strategic aims and objectives.

Remuneration Approving acquisitions and disposcls

schemes Approving the appointment or removal of
Board members
Service Approving foreign exchange and

commodities transactions abave

contracts for d
a material level

senior executives

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Composition of the Beard

Suceession planning

Matters Reserved For The Board

AUDIT
COMMITTEE

External
audit
Financial
reporting

Intermnal
audit

Risk
management

,no_.:_u__n:nm
aind fraud

There is a formal sehedule of matters that require Board approval, as they could have significant
strategic, financial or reputational impact on the Group. These matters were reviewed and updated

by the Board during the year.
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Board Performance

On an annual basis the Non-executive
Directors, led by Richard Bottomley, review the
performance of the Chair, taking into account
the views of the Executive Directors. The
outcome of the review is relayed to the Chair,
with constructive comments to improve future
perfermance. During the period, the Chair
reviewed the performance of all Non-executive
Directors, to ensure their performance remains
effective and that they are committed to and
capable of performing the role. The Chair has
discussed with each Nen-executive Director
how they can improve their knowledge,
behaviour and skills, in order to be better
equipped for the role. The pesformance of the
Executive Directors was also reviewed by the
Chair and the Non-executive Directors and
performance objectives set.

An external review by Belinda Hudson Limited
was also carried out during the year and this is
discussed within the Board Review report.

A number of informal meetings also took
place throughout the year between various
Non-executive Directors and the Chair without
‘the Executive Directors present.

Director Commitment

Prior to accepting Board positions, prospective
Directors are infarmed that following induction,
they are required to dedicate between 15

and 20 days per annum to fulfil the role of a
Non-executive Director. Non-executive Directors
are aware that scheduled and unscheduted
meatings may take place, as well as other
events including site visits, sharebolder
meetings and strategy meetings. The time
commitment specified in Non-executive
Directors’ letters of appointment is regularly
reviewed by the Nomination Committee and
was recently deemed to be appropriate.
Regular training is offered to all Directors

and this is further considered during Director
evaluations.

The Directors are expected to attend ali
scheduled Board meetings and are asked to
use best endeavours to attend unscheduled
meetings. To assist with managing their
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commitments, the Non-executive Directors are
given prospective annual Boord calendars early
in the second half of the preceding year. During
the year, there were five scheduled and seven
unscheduled Board meetings.

Appoint D atfon

Details of Executive Directors’ service contracts,
ond of the Chair's and the Non-executive
Directors' appointment ietters, are contained
within the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Copies of service contracts and appointment
letters are available for inspection at the
Company's registered office during normal
business hours and at the Annua! General
Meeting. Neither of the Executive Directors hold
a directorship of another FTSE 350 company.

Meeting Documentation

A detailed agenda is established for each
scheduled meeting and appropriate
docurmentation is provided to Directors in
advance. Regular Board meeting agenda
items include reports from the Chief Financial
Officer, reports on the performance of the
business and current trading, and specific
proposals where the Board's approval is
sought. The Board menitors and questions
performance ond reviews anticipated results.
The Board also receives reports from the
Non-executive Workforce Director and
Workers' Representative, whe attends all Board
meetings.

During Board meetings, presentations are
made on business or strategic fssues where
appropriate, and the Board considers the
Group's strategy at least ennually. Minutes of
Committee meetings are circulated to.all Board
members for agreement. Copies of analysts'
reports and brokers' notes are also provided

to Directors. Guest attendees cre invited to
present at Board meetings.
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Bourd Meeting Attendunce

The Board has a formal schedule of regular meetings, where it approves major decisions and uses its
expertise to advise and influence the business. The Board will meet on other occasions as and when
required. .

The Directors' attendance at Board and Conmwnittee meetings during the year, and the total number
of meetings that they could have attended, are set out in the table below. Attendance was high for
all Directors, who attended all meetings unless prevented frem doing sa by a prier commitment.
There was a high number of unscheduled meetings during the year, to discuss the Group’s response
to the Covid-19 pandemic and its impact on our colleagues and stores. A number of additional Audit
Committee meetings also took place. A strategy day was held in October,

Beard Soard Audit  Remuneration  Heminstion
Maotings:  Moatings: s Committ
Schaduisd Unscheduled  Muatings Mustings  Maatings
Mike Ashizy 46 w7
Richard Boltormley s/6 877 a8 3/1
David Brayshaw 6/6 T 8 373 342
Davied Duty &/6 W 34 3/
Picolu Frumptan &/ ¥ a/8 3/3 33
Woott 8/6 n
Cally Price 676 7

n Richard was unabile 12 nttand one Hoard meeting which was schadulad ol short notice, dus to bewng on hohday

Nate & number of Audit Committee, Rernunaration Committee and Morminalion Cammittee ngs ware attended by Board members who ware
members of the Committess The Board mambers concernad attendad thesa maetings the Camruttes Chous Board members attended
these muetings for intgrmatian rather than infuence, and may not have attended for the tull dumbon of the meetings

oo soross th




Fruited on Steinbeis 1007 M

FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

Company Secretarial Support

All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary, and may
take independent prefessional advice ot the
Company's expense, subject to prior notification
to the other Non-executive Directors and the
Company Secretary. The company secretarial
team has been strengthened during the year,
to support the Group's expansion and ensure
compliance with increased regulation.

The Company Secretary ensures that the
Company maintains appropriate insurance
cover in respect of its Directors and Officers.
He also advisés the Board on corporate
governance matters. During FY21, external
training wos provided to the Board on the
Market Abuse Regulation,

The Groug's Position And Prospects

The Board take responsibility for the
preparaticn of the Annual Report and
Accounts for FY21, and is in agreement that
taken as a whole, they are fair, batanced ond
understandabte. We are cenfident thot the
Annual Report and Accounts provide sufficient
detail and that our shareholders have been
provided with the necessary information on
the Group's position, performance, business
madel and strategy, further details of which
can be found in the Strategic Report. Detailed
information on the Group's financial pesition
ond performance con olso be located in the
Group Financial Stotements.

The Covid-19 pandemic and the resulting
closure of non-essential retail stores for much
of the yeor, has had significant impact on
high-street retailers, including the Group. During
this pericd the Board has met on a number of
occasions to discuss the impact of the Covid-19
pandemic on trading and the Group's long-term
future. The Covid-19 pandemic is deemed to

be a highly significant issue far the Group. The
Buward is confident that the Group has adequate
resource to remain in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and has continued to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements. As o result
of its findings, the Board has adopted a going
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concern statement for FY21, and full details of
this can be found in the Directors’ Repart. The
Directors have also assessed the prospects

aof the Group over 3.5 years, the Viability
Statement can be found at pages 36 to 37.

k' Management

The Board's responsil es and procedures

for managing risk and the supporting systems
of internal control are set out in the Principal
Risks and Uncertainties section of the Strategic
Report and further information is included in
the Audit Committee Report.

Controls in respect of financial reporting and
the production of the consolidated financial
statements are well established. Group
accounting policies are consistently applied
and review and reconciliation controls operate
effectively. Standard reporting packages are
used by all Group entities to ensure consistent
and standard information is available for

the preduction of the consolidated financial
statements. The Group Accounting Manual is
under a cycle of ongoing review and forms part
of our internal contrals continuous improvement
activity during FY22.

The Board has carried out a rabust assessment
of the Groups' emerging and principal risks in
the period ond further detail can be found in
the Strategic Report as noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shorehotder

| am pleased to present the report of the Audit
Comunittee [the Committee} for the 52-week
period ended 25 April 2021, The report sets out
the Committee’s work and areas of focus during
this unprecedented year, which has seen the
global spread of Covid-19 and Goverrment-
mandeted lockdowns impocting all
geographies across our Group. The Committee
has therefore focused on and discussed the
Group's performance, and the impacts of and
response to these external factors.

We monitored the Group's ongeing viability
and going concern positions, incorporating
the impacts of the pandemic and including
the review of key accounting judgements and
estimates. We have kept the Group risk profile
and emerging risks under continued review
and hod clear oversight of the activities of
the executive Compliance & Risk Group. We
have alse monitored the Group's response to
cpportunities and acquisitions, to ensure we
come through the period stronger and on track
to meet our strategic targets on the return to
broader economic recovery.

On behalf of the Board, the Committee
monitors the Group's financial reporting
processes and the integrity of its financial
statements and ensures high stondards of
quality and effectiveness in the external audit
process. The Committee also reviews and
monitors the effectiveness of the Group's
systems of risk management and internal
control, governance and compliance.

We have built a strong and productive working
relationship with RSM since their appointment
in 2019 gs our External Auditor ond we value
the integrity, strength and depth of their audit
and approach.

The Committee has supported manogement
with the Group's RCF renewal with potential
new and existing lenders and is comfortable
with the strength of engagement and financia}
support for the business and its strategic intent.

Caonedined ooross the UK

We have made strong progress against our
continuous improvement assurance agenda
across governance, risk and contrel and this
was noted in the Group's external Board
evoluation which is discussed in more detail
within the External Board Review report We
also continue to strengthen relationships with
our Big 4 and Top 10 co-source portners. We
have closely monitored the Government's audit
and governance reform agenda and considered
our approach to readiness as part of our FY21
and F¥22 agendas.

The Committee values the ongoing work of the
Group's Retail Support Unit and Digital Risk
teams and continues to seek assurance that
their work remains a strength in our Group. Qur
performance ds a business has remained strong
in these extremely chollenging circumstances.

it has been impressive to see the continued
strength and depth of experience across

all our business teams and their ability to
withstand ond manage the significant risks that
materialised.

Taking its responsibilities as a whole, the
Committee is satisfied that the going cencern
basis of accounting is appropriate (see further
detail at page 64} ond that the Group is viable
over its assessment period (see page 36).

| would like to oke the opportunity to thank ol
our colleagues for their valuable commitment,
contributions und support towards our Group
performance.
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Membership

Curing the year, the Audit Committee
comprised three Nor-executive Directors, David
Brayshaw, Nicola Frampton and myself as
Chair. Biographies of each Committee member
are set out in the Directors’ profiles on pages 37
to 39 of this Annual Report.

As Chair of the Audit Committee and Senior
Independent Non-executive Director, { am
satisfied that the Committee’s membership
includes Directors with recent and relevant
financial experience and competence in
accounting, risk management and governance,
and that the Committee as a whole has
competence relevant to the retail sector in
which the Group operates.

Meetings

The Committee met eight times during the
yzar as we have extended our agenda to
accommodate our dssurance requirements. v
hon-Committee members of the Board and
the executive management team ottended
Committee meetings at my invitation to
ensure the Committee is kept informed of
important developments in the business and
the risk and control environment. Attendance
by members of the executive management
team alse helps to reinforce a strong culture

of risk management within the business.
Non-Committee members do not participate in
Audit Committee decision making.

Cur External Auditor attended all Committee
raeetings during the year. The Committee
meets privately with the External Auditor at
least annually. in my copacity as Chair, | have
regular meetings with the External Auditor
prior to each Committee meeting during

the audit planning process and as the audit
progresses, to address issues early and to avoid
any surprises. | am also in continuous contact
with the Board Chairman, Chief Executive,
Chief Financial Officer, External Audit Lead
Partner and our Head of Internal Audit &

Risk Monagement, who has an independent
reporting line to me.
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The Muin Responsil
Committee

The Committee’s main responsibilities, as
delegated by the Board, remained unchanged
during the year and are set out in the
Committee's Terms of Reference. These include
oversight, assessment and review of;

Financial Statements And Reporting:

= The integrity of the Group's financial
reporting as a whole and any formal
announcements relating to the Group's
finoncial performance, including any
significant judgements contained in them;
and

+  The Group's assessment of its going concern
and longer-term prospects and viability.

.m.aoq:n_ Auditor

+  The effectiveness of the external audit
praciss taking into consideration
relevant UK professional and regulatory
requirements; and

+ Developing and implementing policy on the
supply of non-audit services by the External
Auditor and approving any such work.

Risk Management And Internal Controls

+  The effectiveness of the Group's internal
financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems, including the
activities of the internal Audit Function,
and driving an agenda of continuous
improvement;

= ldentifying ond assessing principal and
emerging risks and risk exposures; and

»  The effectiveness of whistleblowing
arrangements.

n addition, the Committee:

= Supports the Board in discharging its
responsibilities for Corporate Governcnce,
Code compliance;

*  Advises the Board on the cutcome of the
external audit and whether it considers
the Annual Repert and Accounts, when
taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and
understandable and provide information
necessary to shareholders to assess the
Group's position and performarice, business
model and strategy;

»  Makes recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, reoppointment or removal
of the External Auditor;

= Approves the External Auditor's fees and
terms of engagement;

* Maintains streng relationships with the
Board, executive management, the External
Auditor and Internal Audit, in the execution
of their respective responsi es; and

+ Reports to the Board on how the Committee
has discharged its respansibilities during the
year.

During The Period

The Committee focused on @ number of
significant areas of internal control (including
financial, operational and compliance controls).
During the period, the Committee:

« Monitored the business response, internal
controis and impact on the Group's financial
performance ond reperting as the Covid-19
pandemic risk materialised;

» Reviewed the Group's financial statements
and assessed whether suitable accounting
policies hove been adopted and whether
monagement has made appropriate
estimotes and judgements;

* Reviewed the detailed scenarios and

assumptions behind the going concern basis

of accounting and longer-term viability;

« Assessed the effectiveness of the externcl
audit process and considered the
reappointment of R5M as the External
Auditor for FY22;

1o cieab: new Botish woodland across the LK

FRASERS GROUP

Monitored the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control
systems and received deteiled reports
and presentations on principal risks
management;

Continued to support the Finance
leadership and eveluated the strength and
depth of the Finance team;

Reviewed its Terms of Reference; and

Together with the Board, ¢onsidered the
Committee's own effectiveness.
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Risk Management And Internal Controls

Informetion on our approach to risk
management and internal control is set out
in the risk section of the Strategic Report and
concluding of our review of these systems is
set out on page 30. Our plans for continuous
improvement of our risk management and
internal controt systems remained in place
during the year and establishing a Group
Internal Audit & Risk Management function has
reinforced our progress. The work of our Retail
Support Unit is central to the Group's system
of internal control. The Unit provides internal
assurance on the efficacy of controls over our
retail operational procedures and systems.

In the year, the Committee focused on a
number of significant areas of internal contrel,
including:

*  Solvency and liquidity;

= Business continuity, IT disaster recovery and
incident response;

*  Key legislative and regulatory obligations,
including dota protection, pandemic-related
regulation and oversight of Government
plans for audit and governance reform
- strengthening controls over financial
reporting;

«  Cyber risk and data loss prevention,
including strengthening of our information
security capability;

+  Prograss egainst business and finance
systems transformation; -

+ Updates on the governance policies review
and reporting;

*  Reviewing significant accounting

judgements and estimates;

* The valuction of assets and stock and the
calculation of associated provisions;

+ The effectiveness of hedge accounting
and the management of foreign currency
expasures;

+ Property and the systems in place to ensure
impairments are recognised on a timely
basis;
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+ Climate risk and our environmental, social
and governance agenda, supporting
Taskforce for Climate-related Financial
Disclosures reporting; and

+ The Group's banking arrangements.

See further at page 39 for the Board's
statement an Corporate Governance.

Audit Quality

The Caommittee received comprehensive
updates from RSM and the business in response
to outlined reform proposals in the current
Government consultation: restaring trust in
audit and corporate governance.

Building on the three significont reviews in

the last couple of years -the Competition and
Markets Authority (CMA) Market Study, the
Kingman Review and the Brydan Review - the
UK audit sector, the audit profession, audit
reguiation, and the quality of the audit product,
have never been under greater scrutiny,

The Committee will continue to oversee the
development of plans for compliance readiness
in response to the current consultation.

Extemal Auditor

The Committee was pieased to recommend the
reappointment of RSM as Exterrial Auditor for
FY21 following a robust external cudit review of
F¥20. The iangth of tenure of RSM as external
auditors is 2 years.

RSM has reported to the Cormmittee that, in its
professional judgment, it is independent within
the meaning of regulotory ohd professiono
requirements and the objectivity of the audit
engagement partner and audit staff is not
impaired. The Audit Committee has assessed
the independence if the auditor, and concurs
with this statement.

The Committee evaluates the effectiveness of
the external audit process on an ongoing basis
and makes recommendations annually to the
Board on the £xternal Auditor's reappointment.
The External Auditor is then propesed for
reappointment {as opplicable) each year ot the
AGM.

e Vo

In making its recommendations to the Board,

the Committee considers a number of factors

relating to the level of service provided by the
External Auditor, the quality of its work and its
independence. These include:

» The quality and scope of the planning of
the externat cudit, including the External
Auditor's assessment of risks and how it
intends to evolve the audit plan te respond
to changes in the business;

+  The quality and timeliness of the External
Auditor's reports to the Committee and the
Board during the year;

= The level of understanding that the External
Auditor has demonstrated in relatien to the
Groug's businesses and the retail sector;

= The objectivity of the External Auditor's view
on any deficiencies in internal control which
came ta its attention during the course of its
audit work, and the robustness of challenge
and its findings on areas which require
management judgement;

+ The contents of any external reports or
requlatory statements published in respect
of the External Auditor; and

»  The nature ond scope of non-audit services
pravided by the External Auditor and the
level of feas charged for these services.

We have a stringent policy and approvai
process in place in respect of non-audit
services and our view is to keep this type of
engagement minimal unless in exceptional
but reasonable circurnstances, and in line with
Group policy. ‘

Opinion On The Annual Report And Accounts

The Board has asked the Committee to advise
it on whether the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, are fair, balonced and
understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the
Group's pesition, performance, business mode!
and strategy.

PIK

The Committee has reviewed the process
for preparing this Annual Report in arder to
assess whether other information contained
s consistent with the Group's financial
statements for the 52 weeks ended 25 April
2021. This process has included the fellowing
key elements:

= Reviewing new regulations and reporting
requirements with external advisers
to identify additional information and
disclosures that may be appropriate;

+  Preparing a detailed timetable and
dllecation of drafting responsibility to
relevant internal teams with review by an
appropriate senicr manager;

*  Providing an explonation of the requirement
for the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as @ whole, to be fair, bolanced and
understandable, to those with drafting
responsibility;

+  Monitoring the integrity of the financial
statements and other information provided
to shareholders to ensure they represent
a clear and accurate assessment of the
Group's financiol position and performance;

¢+ Reviewing significant financial reporting
issues and judgements contained in the
financial stotements;

s Review of all sections of the Annual Report
by relevant external advisers;

¢+ Review by the senior manager working
group responsible for the Annual Report
process; and

+  Overall review of the contents of the Annual
Report and Financial Statements for the
period under review,

The Committee has advised the Board that

it considers the Annual Report and Financiol
Staternents for the yeor ended 25 April 2021,
when token as a whole, ta be fair, balanced
and understandabie and that they provide the
necessary information to assess the Group's
position, performance, business model and
strategy. .
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Significant Finuncial Reporting lssues

The Committee has considered the following areas of significance during the period and held

discussions with management and the External Auditor in reviewing these matters. The Committee is

satisfied with how each of these matters hos been discussed and addressed.

Going concern ond viabihty

The Audht Commuttee has held sxtensive tolks with managemant on going concern and viability, and
the Committas us a whole has reviewad ond cho ed munogament analysis and assumptians usac
both thesw assessants This includes reviuwing cash flow larecgsts, sansihwity analysss, finance
lacilies and tutute [urding plons We cunsidered arews ot engoing uncertamty in respect of the
pondermae, Brexit and the broader aconormic downtur

whilst the Group's RCF axpires In Neveinber 2022, management ond the Committae are conhident new
dars, replacing the curtent facility by The
basss, the Committae 15 satished thot the going concern basis of gecounting s

Hhe Viablity Staternert and the Director's Report

brvantory

The Cammuttee has censidered tha wark peiformad on imventory valuation und provie
reviewed managesnert's mathodology The Committae is satshied tha appraach is consrstent wath the
prior perniod and hes epprapnarely considered the impart of the Cowd 1% pondarmic on the Group's

Inventory pasitio

IFRS t6 accousting for lenses

The Comiruttae has considened all aspects of IFRS16 oecounting for leases including manageim
y. peigem ants and and the prasantation it the Fsoncial Stataments The

tew 15 satished thot inanpgement's spprooch «s reasunable

Ca

wf-use assets, prop
& aquiamant, frauhold proparty and ra!
property provisians

The Committes reviewsd and challenged monagerment's wment testing 1
assumplions and methodologies used The projseted cash Hows, discount rates ong
valugtions usad In the were ppropnote within the context of the Covid-13
pandemsc, changes in consumar behawicur und aconeme uncertoinlies

Forward cuttency contiacts The Carmmittee reviewed and dhscussed with garmant the valuotion used ond
ocgeunting treatmant applied to danvobve contracts Tha Commillee also review delegated outhonties
pluce for the ekecuhon of such transactions and is sabsfiad thass are opprOpnute
Accountmg fos s and ments: the Committes cansidersd s weark oh o iah and sk, m

respect of Investmant sharsholdings In excess af 20% This work
whather ar net tie Group has slgnt
with manugement and rewiewed thew repressnt

olves rmanagement udgement on

Assoriates the Comm tiee also considered manoganient's work on presentation ond classifie
In relation to assopiates The Commiltes hos smiorly discussed with management and reviewed s
repPrasentations in dateed g whether the Group has control over its nssocigtes

‘The Comimittes 15 sohshed thut inunagement judgements are oapropiate, thot the investmant 1
Mutberty in the period has been treated and disclased oppropriately and ther s ol harwise no material
change from the prior yeor position impacting s conchusion .

Reloted parties

The Committae has evalusted the oppropnoteness of related-pary drsclosures thiough discussians
anc review of popers outlinng the valugten of the loan to Four Holongs Lirmitud
and approach o prowisaning in respect of MM #rop Cansultancy Limited The
disclosures, pavment and approach to provisioning ara appropriate

Goyernment suppart (turlough)

The Group has recewe:l Gevernment support in the period in the lorm of tha Coronavirus Job Retention
Scheme bosed on mardated stora closures and the nead to preserva jobs The complexties of the

Legal und sther pravisions ond aceruals

The Committee has reviawed and discussed with s judg und w
respeet of legal pravisi 3mng and acciual for tox-related matters ot the panad snd Geen

45 aresull, the Commi tea 15 satishked the classihieation and prasentation of legol and ather prowisians
are appropriote
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CMA Order 2014 Statement Of Compliance

Frasers Group confirms that it was in compliance with the provisions of The Statutory Audit Services
for Large Companies Market Investigation [Mandatory Use of Comgpetitive Tender Processes and
Audit Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014 during the financial peried ended 25 April 2021, The
Committee has discussed all the items above in detail with the External Auditor,

Raview Of The € ittee's Effecti

The annual review of the Committee's effectiveness was included in the externclly facilitated Board
evaluation during the period. The Committee is pleased to see the positive outcome of that report, as
well as its observations and recommendations.

The Committee has improved its governance and annual planning cycle in the year and will continue
to build on this in FY22. | monitor and assess the effectiveness of the Committee regularly as Chair
and invite input from the External Auditor on this.

Key Objectives For FY22
The Committee’s key objectives for FY22 are:

= Continye to moniter the impacts of the pandemic on our business, its performance, its response
and its financicl position;

+ Oversee the development of plans in respense to the Government's reform proposals: restoring
trust in audit and cerporate governance;

= Monitor continuous improvernent of the Group's systems of risk management and internal control;

= Maintain a strong relationship with our External Auditor and engagement on the delivery of a
robust, efficient and effective external audit; and .

= Strengthen assurance activity across the Group based on the three lines model, (accountability,
actions, assurance].
Richard Bottomley

Chair of the Audit Committes and
Senior Independent Non-executive Director

5 August 2021

UL .
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder

" To meet the Group's needs, the Namination
Committee must ensure thot the Board
remains competent, diversé, wel| balanced and
equipped to deal with any present or future
issues which may arise. lt is also important
that the Nomination Committee both supports
and challenges the decisions of the Executive
Drirectors, which includes reviewing the Groug's
leadership and making recommendations
regording the appointment of new Directors
and extending the term of office of existing
Directors.

Biographical details of each Committee
member are shown in the Board of Directors’
profiles on pages 37 to 39.

The Nomination Committee usually meets
formatly twice a year, although additional
meetings take place when appropriate. The
Committee formally met three times during
FY21, with all meetings being held virtually due
to the Covid-19 pandemic. The Committee
members also had a number of informal
discussions during the year. All members of
the Nomination Committee are Non-executive
Directors and, with the exception of the Chair,
are considered to be independent.

The Responsibilities Of The Nemination
Committee Include;

»  Reviewing the leadership needs of the
Groug, focking at both Directors and senior
management;

+ Reviewing the compasition, structure and
size of the Board, and recommending
adjustments to the Boord, having regard to
diversity, skills, knowledge and experience;

*  Reviewing the time the Non-executive
Directors are required to spend discharging
their duties;

+ Identifying and nominating, for the approval

of the Board, candidates to fill Board
vacancies as and when they arise;

+  Considering succession planning for
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Directors and senior management,

taking into account the challenges and
opportunities facing the Group and the
skills and expertise therefore needed on the
Board:

*  Formally documenting the oppeintment
and re-appeintment of Directors;

» ldentifying potential candidates for semior
posts, and making recommendations to the
Board; and

= Considering the recornmendations to
sharehoiders for re-electing the Directors,
under the annual re-election provisions of
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code,

A full list of the Committee's responsibilities
are set out in its Terms of Reference which are
available on the Group Website: www.frasers.
group.

What Has The Committee Done During
The Year?

Board Nominations

«  The Committee considered and
recommended to the Board the
reappointment of Caily Price as Non-
executive Workforce Director. In making
this recommendation, the Committee
recognjsed the enormous value and
contribution that Cally brings to the Board.
She prevides great insight and perspective
on all important issues that affect the
performance of the workforce across the
organisation.

= The Committee considered and
recommengled the election or re-election
of all Directors at the AGM, following
consideration of their effectiveness and
commitment.

Y
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Compasition of the Board

The Committee has reviewed the Board's
compaosition and we continue to lock to add
tolented people to the Board, who will bring
the appropriate skills and experience. The
restrictions as a conseguence of Covid-19
lockdowns have slowed the process but we
rermain committed to strengthening our
Board. We have again spoken to Audeliss
recruitment which speciclises in recruiting
diverse talent and we have also had
discussions with a number of candidates
with strong experience and a background in
HR. Audeliss has no other connection with
the Company or any of its Directors.

In considering new appointments to

the Board, the Committee will identify
suitable candidotes to fulfil the skill-sets
required, by taking into account succession
planning and diversity cbjectives. Members
of the Committee ond the executive
management team will then meet with the
candidate befora the Committee considers
recommending the appointment to the
Board.

Bourd Evaluation

Belinda Hudson Ltd was engaged

to conduct the FY20 externol Board
evotuation. Due to restrictions caused by
the Covid-1% pandemic this was delayed
unti! F¥21. Neither the Company nor any of
its Directors has any other connection with
Belinda Hudson Ltd. The evaluation was
conducted via one-to-one interviews with
individual Directors and key members of
senior management. This is discussed within
the Board Review report.

Per PP

All 8Board members, both Executive and
Non-Executive, went through an annual
performance review during FY21 and each
Director engaged fully in the process. This

included setting objectives for each ir

wal. |

led these appraisals, as Chair of the Board and
the Nomination Committee. This process will be
repeated annually, Richard Bottomley, Chair of
the Audit Committee and Senior Independent
Nan-executive Director, led my performance
appraisal and goal setting.

The Directors will take into account any

development needs identified in their approisals

and wilt be chatlenged on how they have taken
action against these goals during their next
annual appraisal.

Diversity and Inclusion

The Board reviewed vanous diversity and
inciusion policies from other companies, to
enable us to benchmark curselves against
industry standards. As a consequence we have
now updated our Board Diversity policy, which
can be found on our website at
https://frasers.group/

The Board has two female Directors,
representing 28% of the Board. There is

currently no representation from ethnic minority

backgrounds on the Board. However, we note
the contents of the Hampton Alexander Report

and the Parker Review for FTSE 250 .companies

and we are continually seeking to increase
diversity at Board level, as reflected in our
cbjectives below

The Group's objectives in relation to Board
diversity ond inclusion are:

¢ To ensure that the Boord has on appropriate

mix of skills, experience and knowledge,
to ensure a variety of perspectives are
represented on the Board and enable the

Board to effectively oversee and support the

Group's growth and management;

= To maintain Board representation from
the workforce, which brings the voice of
colleagues into the bocrdroom, supports
our strategy of investing in our people and
enakxles the Board to effectively oversee
and support the Group's growth and
management.

+  To increase female representation on the
Board to 33%, in line with the Hamptan
Alexander target; and

* To strive to appoint at least one Director
of colour to the Board by 2024, as
recommended by the Parker Review.

The Group achieved its Diversity policy
objective in respect of gender and age, by
having a strong gender balance in senior
management and their direct reports (see
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cender diversity table of page 23, and a varied
representation of ages in middle and senior
management, When reviewing candidates
who may become potential Board members,
the Committee has regard to factors including
professional experience, skills, education,

" gender, ethnicity and background to ensure

a variety of perspectives are represented at
Board level. As discussed above, we have been
warking with a recruitment agent specialising in
diverse candidates, The Board is conscious that
to successfully deliver the strategic goals of

the business our people, including the Board of
Directors must reflect the diverse cultures and
values of our customer base.

The Committee recognises the advantages

of having a diverse team and has therefore
reviewad the composition of the senior
management team, including their direct
reports. A number of senior management

roles were held by women at period end,
including the Heod of Internal Audit and Risk
Management and UK Financial Controller. Our
senior ieadership team is 27% female, whilst
the overall UK workforce is approximately 52%
female,

We were pleased thot our most recent Gender
Pay Gap Report showed a reduction in the
median gender pay gap within our lorgest
relevant subsidiary (SPORTSDIRECT.com Retail
Limited) to 0%. However, we will continue to
explore ways to address other gender pay gup
differences within our business,

Further details on diversity and inclusion are se:
out in the Our People Report.

Frasers Group Elevation Programme

During FY21, we worked with We are Wiser to
launch the Group's new Elevation Programme.
"his has resulted in the recruitment of a diverse
mix of talent, with the potential to become the
future leaders of the Group.

Bavid Dcly

Chair of the Nomination Committee

5 August 21

49

ted an Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woo

d Trast, helping to create new Bovsh waodl

EXTERNAL BOARD REVIEW

We recognise that some of the main driving
forces behind the success of Frasers Group

are our Board, Committees ond management
teams. To ensure we are getting the best from
our Board, we undertook on independent review
of cur Board and Committee effectiveness. We
hoped that this review would provide insight
and clarity into how our leadership team is
performing, especially when benchmarked
against other listed companies, as well as
highlight areas of improvement that would
add vaolue to the Group and ensure we become
market leaders in governance and best
practice.

In January 2020, the Board agreed to engage
Belinda Hudsen Limited to undertake a review
of our Board and Committee effectiveness.
Belinda is o recognised expert in enhancing
board effectiveness and has over 15 years’
experience working with Boards, Committees
and directors of FTSE 350 companies. Belinda
Hudson Limited has no other connection with
the Group or any of its Directors.

The Board review was originally due to be
completed prior te the April 2020 financial

year end. However, it was deferred when the
first lockdown was initiated as there was
strong preference for conducting face to face
interviews, As it became clear that face to foce
meetings would not be an option for some

time, it was decided to proceed with remote
meetings early in 2021 to ensure that evaluation
of the Board's performance could be conducted
by the end of the April 2021 financial year:

Mathodology

Belinda undertock cenfidential one-ta-one
discussions with members of the Board end

a selection of senior management who hove
regular interaction with, and support the Board
ond Committees. She attended the February
2021 Board meeting for observational purposes.
Belinde was given unfettered access to the
previous 12 months' Board and Committee
papers and minutes and governance
docurnents to inform her review.

d across the UK

She compiled a comprehensive report which
covered all aspects of board and committee
performance. It was broken down into the
following categories:

- Board compesition and dynamics
- The Board's role

~  The Beard at work

- Committees

The report was presented to and discussed with
the Board at the April 2021 Board meeting,

Outcomes

The report highlighted the many strengths of
the Board and Committees and centained
several recommendations for further
development. The Board accepts the
recommendctions and where necessary, is
taking steps to implement them.

Belinda's findings in each section were as
follows:

Board Camposition and Dy i

The report found that “the Boord at Frasers
Group hos enjoyed a good period of stability
since the CFO was appointed in September
2019. The Board has strengthened and is
becoming increasingly effective under the
leadership of the current Chair with strong
support from the Senior Independent Director
and others.”

The Board composition benefits significantly
from the inclusion of a full-time employee

as the Non-executive Workforce Director

ond Workers' Representative. It provides the
Board with *fult transparency and visibility on
the perspective of the workforce witheut any
filters” and very strong insights inte workforce
engagement.

Despite some previous investor opposition to
the Chair, the review presented a positive view
of the Chair. He brings many relevant and
useful strengths and is growing into the role
well. Board members and Senior Management
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

Dear Shareholder,

As the Chair of the Remuneration Committee
{the "Committee”) | am pleased to present
cur Directors’ Remuneration Repoert for the
yeor ended 25 April 2021. This report is split
into three parts: this Annual Statement, the
Folicy Report and the Annual Report on
kernuneration.

Actions Token In F¥21 And Impacts On Pay

A key context for decisions token by the
Committee in 2020 was the impact of Covid-19
on our business. Following the onset of the
Covid-19 pandemic in late Q1 2020, the
Committee supported the actions taken by our
Board in relation to pay and wider colleague
welfare. These actions were considered
appropriate to align to the experience and
perspective of our shareholders and other
stokeholders, including our colleagues.

The actiens taken included the following:

»  from May 2020 due ta the impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic, our CFO, together
with the Chief Commercial Officer and
the Non-executive Directors agreed, in
order to assist the Company, to make the
personal saerifice of reducing their salary, or
respective fees, to £40,000 per annum. This
treatment applied until Cctober 2020, at
which time withheld amounts were paid;

+ colleague welfare was prioritised:

+  from March 2020, we sent home all
colleagues over the age of 60 or those
with underlying health issues which was
over and above Government guidance
whilst continuing to pay them in full;

= in the UK we paid virtually all of our
contracted colleagues (including “casual
waorkers” ) in full during March, April, May
and June 2020 even though our stores
were closed for the vast majority of that
time; and

Prnted on Stembeis 100%% Rocyaled ond Carbon Caplinod throuch the Woodiand |

« although the business has accessed
Government business-support initiatives,
including furlough and business rates
relief, we used these programmes in the
way in which we understood these to
be applied, and the consequence has
been that there have been no major
redundancy rounds within our business
despite extended lockdown periods.

= the wider societal contribution of the
business was supported:

= we offered our fleet of vehicles to the
NHS for transporting vital equipment te
where it was most needed; and

= we also offered NHS staff discounts on
bikes and sporting goods equipment in
aur Evans and Sports Direct stores. On
15 June 2020, in England, we offered
a 50% discount to all NHS staff in our
Sports Direct stores as a gesture of
goodwill to these fontastic individuals
as our stores re-opened, It was an
overwhelming success with gross sales

"of appraximately £50m before discount

and approximately £25m after discount.

Against this background, we were very pleased
to be able to launch the new incentive plan

for our colleagues which we are calling the
Fearless 1000 and which was approved by over
99.9% of our shareholders veting at the 2020
AGM, The Fearless 1000 could pay cut £100m
in shores if our share price reaches £10 at any .
time during the performance period. The share
price must stay above £10 for 30 consecutive
trading doys to trigger the vesting of shares at
the end of the vesting period which could see
10 colleagues receiving shores worth £1m if the
share price is at £10 at the vesting dates. One
thousand of our Fearless colleagues, who live
and breathe our values, thinking without limits,
rot hesitating and owning it, will be eligible te
receive share bonuses ranging from £50k right
up to £1m if the share price is at £10 at the
vesting dates,

Bl ping te

Following the successful launch of the Feariess
1000 plan in October 2020, the UK entered into
lockdown in December 2020 and a significant
portion of our stores were temporarily closed.
This has the potential to limit our ability to

hit the share price targets that opply to the
plan. We have therefore decided te extend

the performance period for the Fearless 1000
plan, which will now end in October 2025
{being ¢ total performance period of five years).
As a result of this change, the performance
period for the Fearless 1000 and the proposed
Executive Share Scheme {explained further
below) will be aligned.

In terms of senior executive remuneration in
Fy2%

+  Mike Ashley has not received any
remuneration from the Company since
before the Public Cffering in 2007 and
continues to decline any remuneration in his
role of Chief Executive;

» as noted above, our CFO's salary was
reduced to the equivalent of £40,000 p.a.
from May 2020 until October 2020; and

= no LTIP award operated for senior
executives in FY21, and the CFQ and other
selected senior executives were specifically
excluded from participation in the Feartess
1.000 plan.

Against the background of our overall modest
positioning on executive pay and considering
the CFO's exceptional efforts in leading the
company through a period of unprecedented
challenge to produce the resilient performance
that is detailed elsewhere in this report, the
Committee has decided that it is appropriate
to award our CFO a bonus of £100,000 for FY
2020/2021(67% of base salary). in awarding
this bonus, the Committee considered a range
of performance factors, including Group
financial performance, progress on strategic
initiatives and personal performance. This
award was paid as a cash sum. -

The Committee exercised what it regards as
normal commercioal judgement in respect of
Directors’ remuneration throughout the year
{and in all £ases in line with the Company's
Director’s remuneration policy).

LIS, reas thia LIK
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There were no other exercises of judgement or
discretion by the Committee save as detailed in
this report.

Revised Remuneration Policy And Operation Gf
Pay In FY21

At the 2021 Annuai General Meeting (AGM') we
are asking shareholders to renew our 3-year
Director's remuneration policy ["policy*) which
was last approved at our AGM in 2018 [98.8%
approval),

Where any changes have been made to the
2018 policy, these are highlighted in the policy
report section. In particular, we are making
three changes in the operation of Executive
Director pay.

CFO's Salary

»  Chris Wootton's salary has been increased
te £250,000 p.a. from 1st May 2021 [FY21:
£150,000 p,a.).

+  Chris joined the Baard of Directors in
September 2019, with this being his first
main Board CFOC role ot a listed PLC. Since
that time Chris has grown and developed in
the role of CFO and his strong performaonce,
leadership and contribution to developing
the strategic direction of the business is
considered to merit an appropriate review
of his satary level at this time, now that he
has been in post for approximately
18 months,

*  As a Committee we are content that even
with this increase the salary level for our
CFO remains amongst the lowest in the
FTSE 250. )
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Board Succession

As a Remuneration Committee we fully support the prospective changes within our Board and senior
team more fully described in the announcement dated 5th August 2021, Although some of these
changes will not become effective until later in the three-year period in which our new policy
operate, we already know some of the detail around how we want pay arrangements for our new
senior executive team to be aligned to, and support, the growth and elevation strategy which our
Board succession changes will seek to accelerate and deliver.

Accordingly, where we are able to do so, in the new policy we haove set out details of propesed
incentive arrangements for our Executive Directors {both current and prospective) and particularly
our new Executive Share Schere, as described below. Any further details of pay arrangements for
new Executive Director appointments will be disclosed at the appropricta time when they join the
Board.

New LTIP Te Align To Principles Of Fearless 1000

At our 2021 AGM, we will be seeking shareholders' approval for a new share plan {the “Executive
Shure Scheme™) which seeks to apply many of the principles of the Fearless 1000 to an LTIP. Three
awards, each subject to a £12 share price target, will be initiclly made to Chris Wootton (CFO), Sean
Nevitt (Chief Commercial Officer) and David Al-Mudallal (COO). An award, subject to a £15 share
price target, is also proposed to be made to Michael Murray when, s anticipated, he joins the Board.
The key terms, and how these compare to the key terms of the Fearless 1000, are summarised below:

EXECUTIVE SHARE SCHEME FEARLESS 1404 PLAN

AWARD LEVELS Theee kol awords are expacted 10 mithon shesr: wtal
to be made to the CFQ, Chiet 10,00 shares raoximurm pet person
Cammerciol Officer ond COO ever 18 for top 10 performers fworth *mithion
mllion shates in total (600000 shores each for those indrdunls at £10 per
meximum per persan)

A single owod 15 expected ta be
made 16 Michoal Murray, on his
gppointment te the Soard, over
6,749,409 shores i total, beng o
number of shores wh
prica of £15 per share [iey:
per share-nommnal walue
shares] will b wolth £100Tmifiicn
The volue of awards can be reducen
by the vatue of salares paid in the
penod ta vesting

TIMING OF AWARDS. Awards bo CFO, Chief Cammerciat Award penod begon fallowing 2020
Ofhcar and COO to be mode o5 suan AGM an ¥ Octaber 2020

a5 possible after 2021 AGM

Award ta Michasl Murray to he made
o yining the Baard

TARGET SHARE PRICE FOR VESTING Either £12 per share (for awards wo £ per share
CFO. Chief Commercil Officer tind
COO) o €15 per share (propasen

oward to Michael Muriay

PERFORMANCE PERIOD Ui 1 4 yeurs from AGM 201 Upta§ yeurs fram AGM 2020
[extentied by Tyear due 1o wnpact of

tha Covid-19 par

)

FOTENTIAL VESTING DATES #f the shere phca target 15 ochieverd If £10 torget uctweved by October
by October 2025 owords wastin two 2025 awerds vest
equol tranches, 50% initally and kranchas, 5% nit
50% 1 year loter The Comemittae moy 1 year later The Committae may
allow all awards to vest early Fthe — allow all ewards to vest early f the
E£35 share prce target 15 achieved £75 share price target 15 nchieved
Howaver, shates would normally be  Hewsver, shares wauld norm
daliverad in two fronches delivarad in two trant hes

52
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The extension of the performance period

for the Fearless 1000 plan is seen ta benefit
participants as it provides an additional period
to achieve the £10 share price target given that
the difficulties associated with the Covid-19
pandemic have impacted the business in the
first year of the Fearless 1,000 plan.

As o Committee, we consider it very important
to align Executive Directors and senior
executives to the aspiration of the Fearless
1000, albeit at an enhanced performance
target of £12 or £15 as appropriate.

Chair And Non-executive Director Fees

Although not a matter for the Remuneration
Committee (being a matter reserved for the
Board), the Boord has delegated respensibility
for setting the remuneration of the Chair to the
Remuneration Committee which has carried
out o review of the Chair's fees and of the
Non-executive Directors’ fees. As a result of that
review the Board hes decided to increase fee
levels for the Chair and Non-executive Directors
as detailed on page 58. This is the first increase
in fees to the Chair and Non-executive Directors
since the IPQ in 2007

Format Of The Report And Matters To Be
Approved At Qur 2021 AGM

At the 2021 AGM, shareholders will be asked to
approve three resolutions related to Directors’
remuneration matters. These resclutions are:

« to approve the Directors’ Remuneration
Policy;

+  to approve the Directors’ Remuneration
Report; and

+  tointroduce the new Executive Share
Scheme described above.

The vote to approve the Directors'
Remuneratran Report is the normal annual
advisory vote on such matters.

If approved by our shareholdets, the Directors'
Remuneration Policy apply for a maximum
of three years from the 2021 AGM and wilt
replace the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
previously approved at the 2018 AGM,

For completeness, a resolution will alse be
proposed at the 2021 AGM to amend the

Feartess 1000 plan for consistency with the
Executive Share Scheme with regards to
potential acceleration of the vesting and
release of shares if the £15 share price target for
the award to Michael Murray is achieved.

| hope thot our shareholders remain supportive
of our approach to executive pay at Frasers
and vote in favour of the resolutions on
remuneration matters to be tabled at the 2021
AGM.

David 8rayshaw
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

5 August 2021

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
POLICY

This report contains the material required

te be set out as the Directors’ Remuneration
Repert for the purposes of Part 4 of The

Large and Medium-sized Companies and
Groups [Accounts and Reports) [Amendment}
Regulations 2013, which amended The Large
and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
[Accounts and Reports} Regulations 2008 ('the
DRR Regulations’), .

This part of the report sets out the Company's
proposed Directors’ Remuneration Policy
which, subject to shareholder approval, shall
take binding effect from the date of the 2021
AGM and remain valid until the 2024 AGM.
The propesed Policy is determined by the
Committee, ond key proposed changes to
elements of the current Directors’ Remuneration
Policy, which was approved by shareholders
at the 2018 AGM and expires at the 2021 AGM
have been highlighted for ease. As explained
in the statement from the, Chair of the
Remuneration Committee, the Remuneration
Committee has decided to introduce a new
executive share scheme that appropriately
aligns Executive Directors’ interests with

the interests of shareholders by focusing on
absolute shareholder vaiue, and intends to
seek shareholder approval for the Executive
Share Scheme at the 2021 AGM. Consequential
changes have been made as to refiect the
changes to the Remuneration Policy.
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FUTURE POLICY TABLE

The table below describes each of the elements of the remuneration package for the

Executive Directors,

ELEMENT OF
HEMUNERATION

PURPOIE / LINK TO STRATEGY

OPERATION

MAXEMUM

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

CHAHGES TG POLICY TO BE APPROVED AT
THE 3071 AGM

BASE SALARY

Fixed element of the renuneraticn pockage, whers the
Lelance of fixed ond variable remuneration ik aligned 1o
the conmercial strategy of lang- wim prolilable growth
and refheets the Company remunaration philasophy of
geonng raward ta parformancs with o shoring of nsk
botwaan Fxecutive Directors ond sharehclders

Base salones s nonmolly revieweed annually

Mike Ashley docs not cusrentty receve o salary lor his
ol

Although solanies for Executive Diectors fother thon

Mike Ashley, who does nat currently recewa a salary] are

set ot tevels balow the amaunts typcally paid by similor
suzetd Lompunies, the Committas retawns discreton to
set sulanas ot levels considered appropnate for the
Lusingss, considenng its size und complesty

Not apphroble

Nochange

BEAEF|TS

With the exception of o 2049 collrague discount on
praducts purchased lram the Greup's retall stores, which
15 availoble to Exacutive Directars other than Mike
#shley, no addihonal banehts are generally avarlable

to Exacutive Directors, The some eval of discount s
available to oll eolkagues

The current Execubive Directors do not receve uny
benehts other thon the colleogue discount, which 1s nat
availgble for Mike Ashley

Banehits inay bie provided in kne with morkat practics
to receutt a new Exacutive Direttor toking inta arcount
newidual arcumstances Suck

benehts moy nchde rloration expenses [more fully
datallad in ‘Approach ts Retiutment Reruneration’
below)

Although ths Remuneratian Commitiee has not set un
ebsalule mourmum level of benehts Executve Directus
may receve, tha Company retains discrehion to set
benefits af a level which the Remuneration Cammittes
considers appraprale agamst The narkat and to
support the on-gong sirategy af the Compony

Hot applicable

No change

RETTREMENT
RENEFITS

Provide post-employmant banelits to recrut and retoin
intividuals of the cabbre regured for the busness

The Executive Directors ore entitied te purtcipate m o
siakeholder pension scheme on tha same Hosis os uther
wmplayzes

O request this henglt moy be pad as u salary
supplernent in liou of pendion contrbution s aecessery

The current moximum emglover contribution Lo the
stoheholder pension scherme 15 3%

The Committes moy incraose amployer contnbution
rutes o reflect changes in the aule enrplment employer
centrbution rates

Not applicable

Na change

AHNUAL RONUS

Rewards the Executive Director for performance which
supperts the Group's strategy one perfarmance i role

Executive Directors, atlver than Mike Ashley, may earn
ahonus Any bonus sarmed m axcess of 100% of salary
would be deterrad intg shores tor o penod of two years,
unfuss the omount ta be deferred omeunt would ba less
than £10.000 Tha Commiltes also retains o discration
not to operple daferrgl n an exceptonal cass ond
whare salary paid w the year was E250,000 or less

Any banus paid would ba subjact to clowbock far o
penod of 3 years lollowing 115 deterrmmatian n the
evant of gross misconduct, imaterol misstatemant of the
Company's hnancial statements ar corporate tailure

I'he maximum bonus thot an Executive Diret tar moy
warn shull be 200% of solary 1n respect of any financiol
yeur

Any Sonus oppartunity shall ba assessed agarmst one or
more matncs detertntiad by the Committee and linked

tathe Campany's strategy und/or the performance
ol the Exacutive Director 1n role, with the weightg
between tha matrics determinad by the Cainnuttue

if ralvant Benuses will be determined betwaen 0%
and 100% of the muxmum opporturty based on the
Committer's gssessrment of the upplicable metnes

The annual Bonus plan s a discretionory areangemant
aiwd the Corunittes fetains a standnore) power (o apply
A5 juigement to adjust the oulcome of the annual bonus

glun for any performance measure [from zeeo ta any
capl shauld 1t considar What to be approphiats

Ne change,

LOMG TERM INCENTIVES

lomotivate und incentvise delive ¥

of sustainad parformeance aver the lang tenm, and
to promota ahgiment with shorehslders’ mterests,
the Company intends ta apernte cn Executive Share
Schewe

Exacutive Diructors, other than Mike Ashiey, moy receive
awards under the Executive Shure Scheme Awards
may be granted us aommal cost Bptens or condihional
share awards which vest (o thy extent tie performance
conthbions ore sotished over a penod of four years

The Committee shall haye discretion Lo reduce tha
mumber of Shares subject to on award granted undet
1he Executive Share Scheme by an amount equal Lo tha
oggregate grass salary reseved by o participant dunng
the performance penad

Cluwback and mulus provisions opply (o awards gr
wnuar the Executive Shure Scheme Aoy amounts
tacevad undus the Exacutive Share Scheme may be
subjact to clowbock for @ pencd of 3 yeats lollowing
the end of tha perfermance pencd m the event of gross.
nusconduct, matanal migstotsment of Lhe Company's
financral statemants, corporata falura of reputational
durage

As 15 normal, the Committes ratuns pawer ta setfle
owaris in cash in excaptonal coses only

For awards with a £15 shara prics targst, the maxmurm
appotunity for on Exacutive Diracter will bz an uward
aver up to 6,111,409 shores

For gwards with a 12 shore prce target, the mmamum
apportunity bor an Exscutive Directer will be un award
over up to K00,000 shares

Aweecls wal vast subject to on absolure share price

turgut ol either [12 or £15 The shore prce must be over

Imroduction of the Executwe $hare Schams, which & aur
AW 161G term icuative plan thut will reward our senior

the target for any penod of 30 consecubve daalng days  executives for achieving sustained performance over the

duning the lour-yeor performance period

The Coinmittee may set addiuonal petlonnance
conditions on owards under tha Exacukive Share
Scheme, as it considers approprate

tang tenn
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The table below sets out an overview of the approach to remuneration fof the Chair and
. Non-executive Directors.

PURPOSE / LIHK TO STRATESY ARBROACH OF THE EOMPANY

b et Nonexecutye Directer fews e Committee's Remuneratian policy m respect of the Non-executive Diretors ss b poy annual fees
©hich reflect the responsiiibies and Y tves pkiced upan tham, wih'e ol raving regerd ta murket

Frrovide an Appropriate rawoTg o AL O proelice

el DITREADTY of the coliie cequired bor the

fusiness Nof-esecutiva Birectars recere & txed annual tee.

\yorreaminiive Duectare fother than tha Nan-executive Workforee Owacton) do ot und are not ntitied
1m morticpote in gy hanus of shoe vehames The Nonrexecutive Workloree Piractor is gniatled 10
rocipote m smplayes ponus and share schemes for 2mplapees InC \udling any all-ampiayes schemEs

Non-EETlve DIrenen g e aligioks ot Iyepefis such as e use af secrmtanol support. travel costs
- or ather banglits that may be 8pF puate

The aggregate ees and any enetis of the rpareseuting Dt laclusheg the Mansexer e
Wkt e Direciett ol v, mmcaed ke e fun tume Lo tna sat aut in the Company's Articles of
Assocration for such tees. This s currently £500,000 p 0 7 Qggregate. Aresol will pe put to
‘harsholders to ncrease this imtic 1040000 p & aggregane T ® fermnot com ARt doRs et
cehact any torm of aspiration

{n additian ta the share price performance
rneasure, it is intended that awards under the
Executive Share Scheme will be granted subject
to two underpins requiring:

Explunation OF perfoymunce Meatures Chasan

Ary bonus apportunity would be subject
to performance metrics determined by the
Comniittee and linked to the Company'’s
strategy and/or the performance of the i.
_Executive Directer in role. The metrics and
_umlo_ﬁ.ﬁ:nm.omo,:mn them would be disclosed
in the Directors’ Remmunerdtion Report in which
payment of the bonus was disclosed, or if
later when they were na longer considered
commercially sensitive. ATy performance
mecsure oy be vaned of substituted by the
Committee if an event occurs which causes

satisfoctory peiformance ratings for each
pusticipant ard

i, anticipated delivery of our elevation
strateqy.

The purpose of the underpins is fo ensure thot
a miniraum \evel of performance is achieved
before an award may vest {in addition to
ochievement of the share price performance

the Committea ko determine that it would be target), Details of the perormance mMeasures
and underpins that apply to each oword
granted under the Executive Shore Scheme to
an Executive Director will be disciosed In the
approptiote Directors' Remuneration Report
{subject ta@ considerations of commercial
sensitivity): ,

approgriate to do so. The rotienale far any such
variation of substitution would be given in the
next Directors’ Rernuneration Report.

The proposed Executive Share Scheme will be
subject to & performance meqsure determined
py refersnce YO the Company share price a3
well as personal performance. This metric has
peen chosen as it aligns the interest of the
Executive Director with those of spatehotders.
The target share price required for vesting

is considered stretching (being either £2 a1

£5 ahove the target for the Feartess 1000
plan} and will therefare reward sustained
performance over the long-term.
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Exg Of biffe In Lh..
Policy Fer Other Goflengues '

The Campany has a lorge numper of colleogues
with different responsibilities and differing tevels
of seniority. Reward policies for colleagues
othves than Executive Directors are determined
by reference 1o grade, role, performance and
other relevant factors. The Committee engages
with the wider workforce on the rernunerction
policy through the Non-executive Workforce
Director, whose feadback and views are sought
tyy the Committee

The Committee hos reviewad the salaries cther
remuneration and othet employment canditians
of senior and riddie managers throughout

the Group, and has token them into gccount N
considering Executive Directory salaries and the
creation of new incentive schermes in order to
create a sense of common purpose and sharing
of success.

In respanse to those cansiderctions, the Frasers
All-Employee Omnibus Plan (known as “Fearless
10007 weas launched following approval by
shareholders ot the 2020 AGM. The Fearless
1000 plenis intended ta provide @ significant
ane-off reward for eligible and quaolifying
colleagues if stretching share price growth
target is achieved within a five year period

from the 2020 AGM ). There are two related but
distinct pots © the Fearless 1000 as follows:

. cashbonuses to eligible and qualifying
collecgues in the Company's group, to
seward them for their loyalty and hard wark:
and

. share awards to thase 1,000 eligible and
qualifying colleagues in the business who
most demanstrate outstanding service and
performante consistent with the Company's
values.

Further details regarding the Fearless 100G

are provided in the Our People section of this

Annual Report.

e ———

e ———

lHustrations Of Application of
Remuneration Policy

The chart below sets out an illustrotion of the
policy for FY22 in line with the future policy
table obove. The chart provides an illustration
of the totol remuneration apportunity that
could arise under four different levels of
performance. No chart is included for Mike
Ashiey, who does hot receive amy remmuneration
from the Company. f Michael Murray joins
the Board as anti ated, an updated version
of this disclosure will be provided in the next
Disectors’ Remuneration Report following his
a nuo__:_.,am:r

FRASERS GROUP
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Chris Wootton, Chief Financial Officer

Approach To Recruitment Remuneration

When agreeing a remuneration package for the oppointment of a new Executive Director, the
Committee will apply the following principles:

6,000
+ the package wili be sufficient to attract the calibre of Director required to deliver the Company’s
strategy;
soon = the Committee will seek to ensure that no mere is paid than is necessary; and
* in the next Annual Report on remuneration, the Committee will explain to shareholders the
b rationale for the arrangements implemented.
al . " . . . . N .
R . The Committee will ordinarily seek to implement the remuneration pockage in accordance with the
; elements referred to in the policy table on pages 53 to 54. Consistent with the DRR Regulations, the
Cormmittee retains discretion to make appropriate remuneration decisions outside that policy to
1000 meet the individual circumstances of the recruitment, subject to the limits and parameters of this
recruitment remuneration section of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy.
KLEMENT APPROACH
2000
Base salary and benefits Typically aligned with the policy set oul In the pohicy table on puge 53 In Ine with the DRR Regulations,
thare 15 no flormal cop on salares inralotien to o recrutment
Retizatent benefits Abgned with the policy sef put in the policy toble on puge 53, pension benefits muy be provded at
. tates ohgned to smplayas lavels, although the Committae may prowide for such omount ta be pord to
1069

1%

: [ »e ]

(13 Minymum

Perlormumie

. Fined Pay . Pension . Boras Y L0

Perfurmanci o L
With Fupecta iany

Moxmum
Performance

Shaie Price Growth

For the purpases of the chart, the following assurptions have been made.

SCENARID

FIXED PAY

BONUS

Muxnum Ramunaration
itk 50% Share

“nce tncreasy

(K¢

M1 umum rernuneration

Pe fanmance in hine with
expuctations

Marmum ramuneration

Mamamurm ramusneration with 50%
shere prica incracse

Base salary of £250.000

An inplayer pension rontribution o
3% of salaty, copped at first £50,000
af salary

No benefits s no benefits ara
currently proposed 1o he prowded tc
tiwe Executive Directors in FY2Z ot
Hen the coiloague discount, whnl
n the opiman of the Coimmil tue,
cannot be reflectad wase charts
as 4ts valde depends ugon the volue
of the Exetutive Mhreclor's purchase)

NG bonus sumed

No vesting of share owards

No honus eamed becausa in the
apinion of the Committas, the
performance m
such thal eny b
require the arhievernent of stratch
performance

hare owards bucause
of Ihe Committee,
wards will only vest as o
rasult of stretch perlormance

A bonus of 200% of salary 15 eamed,

Calrulated based on the walue of
4DO.000 shares [moximum potartial
vesting for an oward to the CFO
undar [he new Exacutive Shore
Scherne| ot the end of FY21 lusing o
3 month average]

A bonus of 200% of salary 15 somed

Celculctat based ot the value of
600.000 shares ot tha end of FY1
(using a 3 menth averoge} plus S0%
shore price incraose
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pension anangernant of poid a5 § SUPFRMANT to buse soldry

uetap

on orrangement

‘Wonoble remuneration

Any varabie remuneration granterd ta  newly oppointed Executwe Director would be subject ta the
same maximum [avels that generally opply under tie Directors’ Remuneratian Palicy

Tha value of any buy-out arrangements jdescnbed below] doss ol caunt tawards those maxmu
he Committes may vety the applicabion of deferyl to oy unnunt bonus oppaitunity to reflect
siances of the recruitment

Corm {o¢ forleited arrang

ng an external condidate o buy-out the e
on leaving a previous employer In deing 50, tiie Committes

shures| ond the timelrame of such orangements

Wile such owards are sicluded from the maximurm level of vanl
& Comanttan's intantion s thut the volue awdrded would be no
torfeted arrongements

e rermuneration referred to above,
her than the expected volue of the

Buy-aut uwards will b subecl to forteiture or cinwhback on sarly departurs, with 100% heing subjact to
lacfature if the Executive Buector deports within 12 months of joining, and a sliding scole down to 50%
if tha dapurture accurs within 12 and 24 months of jining, ut the Comrittes's discrelion

Relocation costs

he yew of appointment and for o
considers appropriate Tha Committen wil seek te ensure that na mate

Any share awards referred to in this section will be granted as far as possible under the Cormpany’s
existing share schemes, If necessary and subject, where relevant, to the limits referred to above,
awards may be granted outside existing share plans as permitted under the Listing Rules, which
allow for the grant of awards to facilitate, in unusual circumstances, the recruitment of an Executive

Director.

Where a position is filled internally, any on-going remuneration obligations or outstanding variable
pay elements shall be allowed to continue according to their subsisting terms or be adjusted to
reflect the new appointment as appropriate.

The remuneration package for a newly appointed Nen-executive Director would normally be in line
with the policy set out in the future policy table above for Non-executive Directors.

vl oo
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Service Contracts And Policy On Payments For Loss Of Office

The Campany's policy is for Executive Directors to be employed on the terms of service contracts
which ray be terminated by either the Compuany or the Executive Director on the giving of not more
than 12 months’ notice. All Directors are subject to annual re-election.

Executive Directors

Details of each current service cantract are set out below:

u D TERM
CONTRACT DATE -.ﬂxu..a.unnm PERI uh GOVERNING LAW
Mike Ashley 1t/02/2007 12 months* England & Wales
Chris Woctlan D6/03£2017 & months Englnnd § Wales

*The Compeny moy terminale My Ashley's serce contruct by gving 6 manths’ aclice if e 1s unablé to paror his dubes for over 120 days = any
consecutive 12 monkhs

The principles on which the determination of payments for loss of office will be approached are
summarised below:

Fayment in fiev of natice The Company muy terrninote an Executve Dirertor's enplayment with wminediote effecy Liy moking o
noyment in aew of notica consisting of basc sglary fhut excluding any bonus, commission, beanelits or

hahday entitizment| during the notice perned

Yhe Compony may either [ pay the payment in bau of notice sn g |
the omeunt in equal monthly nstalments during the nobice penod,
b reduced in the event that the Executive Director obtains allernctw

p sum o [i] an its dhiscretion, poy
suct ingtalmant poyments to
o e nolice penod

Mike Ashley does not ecaive ony salary or contractuol bensdits, and his service controct daes net
provide tor a payment in beu of notice

Annual banus Whether ta aword 4 banus in full or 1n part in the event of a ter
& discretion of the Committee an
inchuding the circumstances of the Exerutive Director's deporture ond his contribubion 1o the businass
dunng the benus perog n question Typrcally bonus amauats would only be paid to “guod leavers” aned
be pro-roted for tima in service ta tefMinahion ond dépendent on pe
t ear of termuination or preceding yeas wiich would otherwise be defarred into shores may be poid
v 1n cash ot the elaction of the Committee

tion of emptoyment woutd be

Any deterrad bonus would typeally continue s tie avent of term dsmissal tar
¢ause] and be releused to the Executve Director ot the @nd of the ongnally antiupated delerul penas,
Gftfiouwgh Ee ComMmittee s GISCIBHUON to reidose tRE TG scORer ot GRATopRHEITY © it WASHER oy

Exacutive Shore Schame It on Executive Dircctor ce0ses emplayimant of resigns durmg the perkonmance perod, RIS Woyested

‘good taaver' then awards wre (etoned and may vast n the
condrions Awargs will normally be pro-tated by reference to
period for which the purtipant remainsd employed {or. it 2orlier, unti the dote of esignotion] The
Committee has « stundord ablity te vary time pro-rating Vested but unexercised awards may rurmolly
be retoned by o porticipant, except 10 Cases of misconduct,

Other payments The Remunerctian Committes reserves the nght ta moke addianal exit payments where such
payments are mude in good faith in diecharge of an exsting legal obligaton (or by way of damages tar
breach of such on ar by way of seltl ot tloim ansng o connec bion
with the termination of o Dsrector’s offize or eiployMment In apprapnore G umstandes, poyMEnts
noy olsa by made In respect of legat fees ond outplacement serices Were the Compuny te mage
an award on recratment of an Executive Drector 1o buy out remunerntion atiangements lo
tetrang 6 pravious employer then the leaver orovisions for that eword wou'd be detarmibes
af grant A payment may ako be made in respact of accrued b ke halday Far
doubt, the peliry does nat include an expiicit cap on the cost of termination poyments
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Non-Executive Ditectors

The Non-executive Directors enter into an agreement with the Group for a peried of three years,
other than the Chair whose agreement continues until terminated in accordance with its terms, The
appointments of the Non-executive Directors may be terminated by either party on one month's
written notice and in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. Termination would
be immediate in certain circumstances {including the bankruptcy of the Non-executive Director).

Non-executive Directors {other than the Non-executive Workforce Director) do nat ¢nd are not
entitled to participate in any banus or share scheme. The Non-executive Workforce Director is
entitled to participate in employee bonus and share schemes for employees, including all-employee
schemes. i

The approach to determining Non-executive Directors pay is to benchmark ourselves against
other companies/retailers within the FTSE 250. Eoch yeor the remuneration of all Directors is put
for shareholder approval at the AGM. Last year, 99.81% of shareholders voted in fovour of the
remuneration report,

Non-executive Directors are subject to confidentiality undertakings without limitation in time.
Non-executive Directors are not entitled to receive any compensation on the termination of their
appeintment.

Details of the Non-executive Directors’ letters of appointment are set out below:

MND DATE OF

Dute of lafter of APPOINTMENT [tublust

wppaintiient  te anwial re-slectian dt

the AGM)

David Daly Non-arscutive Charr 16 July 2020 1st Getgiver 7003
Daoviid Brayshow . Non-executive Duertor 23 Apnl 3070 Zth Decemnber 2037
Nueolg Frompton Non-exatubive Director + October 018 3Uth September 2041
Riciord Bottomley 1 October 2018 30th Septemter 2021
Culy Price & Octaber 200 Stn Clotobes 2022

Copies of the service contracts of Executive Directors ond of the appointment letters of the Chair
and Non-Executive Directors are available for inspection at the Company's registered office during
normal business hours and at the AGM.

Payments Outside The Policy In This Report

The Committee retains discretion to make any remuneration payment or payment for loss of office
outside the palicy in this repert:

«  where the terms of the payment were agreed before the policy came into effect;

= where the terms of the payment were agreed at a time when the relevant individual was not
a Director of the Compariy and, in the opinion of the Committee, the payment was not in
consideration of the individual becoming a Director of the Company; or

+  to satisfy contractual commitments made under legacy remuneration arrangements.

For these purposes. "payments” includes the satisfaction of awards of varioble remuneration and,
in relation to an award over shares, the terms of the payment are "agreed” at the time the award is
granted.
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Ei t With Sharehold
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The Committee consults major shareholders
and representative groups where appropriate
concerning remuneration matters,

General reprasentations have been received
from investors regarding overatl FTSE
remuneration. The Committee has due regard
to the investment Association principles, and
is always happy to receive feedback from
shareholders. There have been no changes
to the Remuneration Policy as a resuit of
-shareholder engagement,

Colleague Reward

It is worth reminding shareholders that our UK
colleagues {excluding the Executive Directors)
who have participated in cur share schemes
have received, subsequent to any IPO bonus
payments, a total value of £250m of awards
since their introduction.

In addition to share schemes, the Company
operates other bonus and incentive awards for
its workforce. By way of recent example, in FY21
colleagues in our UK retail operations received
a total of £5.4m in bonus and incentive awards.
A significant proportion of these other bonus
and incentive awards were paid to our casual
retail workers.

During FY21, the Company lounched the
Frasers All-Employee Omnibus Plan {known

as "Fearless 1000") following approval by
shareholders at the 2020 AGM. The Fearless
1000 plan is available to all eligible and
qualifying Fraser Group employees {except for
the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Commercial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer and is intended to provide a significant
one-off reward for employees if a stretching
share price growth target is achieved within a
five year period.

There are two related but distinct parts to the
Fearless 1000 plan as follows:

+  Share awards to those 1,000 eligible and
qualifying employees in the business who
most demonstrate cutstanding service and
petformance consistent with the Company's
volues; and
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+  Cash bonuses te eligible and qualifying
employees in the Company’s group, to
reward them for their loyalty and hard work.

A similar incentive plan is also available for our
non-employee Group workers.

As explained in the Committee Chair's letter,
we took the decision to extend the original four
year performance peried for the Fearless 1000
plan te up to five vears due to continuing UK
tockdowns in FY21. As a result, the perfesmance
periads for the Fearless 1000 plan and the
proposed Executive Share Scheme will each
end in October 2025,

The Remuneration Committee remains
committed to transparent and simple
remuneration for Executive Directors based ~
upen reward for significant financial and
personal performance only. The Committee
also remains committed to appropriately
rewarding cur large and loyal workforce.

Our Worldforce nominated Director, Cally Price
engages with colleagues through regular and
multi-channel communication mechanisms.
This enables colleagues te understand the
strategy of the Company, the vital role cll
colleagues play in contributing to the overall
success of the Group and how this is rewarded
and to raise any questions directly with a Board
meamber. Cally has been directly inveolved in

the review of retail colleague pay during FY21.
The Committee has reviewed the salaries, other
remuneration and other employment conditions
of senior and middie managers throughout

the Grodp, and has taken them into account in
considering Directors’ salaries. The Committee
has considered pay and employment conditions

- of colleagues {other than the Directors) and has

aligned pension contributions and colleague
discounts of the Directers with employees.

Whilst the Company has not directly consulted
with employees on Directors’ remuneration, the
views of colleagues can be expressed by the
Workforce Director.

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

This part of the Directors' Remuneration
Report sets out the actual payments made by
the Company to its Directors with respect to
the period ended 25 April 2021 and how our
Directors' Remuneration Policy be applied
in the year commencing 26 April 2021,

Implementaution of our Remuneration poelicy
for FY22

The members of the Committee have no
personal financial interest, other than as
shareholders, in the matters to be decided, no
octual or potential conflicts of interest arising
from other Directorships and no day-to-day
operational responsibility within the Compony.

Base Salary And Fees

Chris Wootton's salary has increased to
£250,000 per annum, with effect from 1 Moy
2021 (from £150,00C). Whilst the Committee is
aware of sensitivities towards salary increases
for executive directors generally, the proposed
salary increase for Chris is considered
appropriate due to his very strong performance
in his role since appointment in September
2019,

Despite this increase, Chris’ base salary wi
remain at a level well below the lower quartile
for a CFQ in a business of the size and
complexity of the Group.

Mike Ashley does not receive a salary for his
role.

Fees for the Chair and Non-executive
Directors are normally reviewed annually,

In respect of fees for FY22, David Daly will
receive an increased annual fee of £150,000
(from £100,000} for his role as Chair. Richard
Bottomley, David Brayshaw and Nicola
Frampton wilt each receive a fee of £65,000
{from £50,000} for their roles as Non-executive
Directors. Cally Price will receive a fee

of £20,000 (from £15,000) for her role as
Non-executive Workforce Director.

Prnled on Steinbers 1009 Recyclod and Carbon Captuied through the Woodland Trust. hetping to croate new Bonsh wouadland across tha UK

Pension (Audited)

The contribution rate for Chris Wootton will be
3% of salary, capped at first £50,000 of salary,
being the maximum employer contribution
rate available under the Company stakeholder
pension scheme. No Director participated in o
defined benefit scheme.

Mike Ashley is not eligible to receive employer
contributions under the Company stakeholder
pension scheme,

Annual Bonus Scheme

Chris YWaotton will be eligible to earn a bonus
in respect of FY22. Any amount earned shall

be determined by reference to one or more
performance metrics determined by the
Committee and linked to the Company's
strategy and/or Chris Wootton's performance

in role. The Committee will provide appropriate
and relevant levels of retrospective disclosure of
the assessed criteria opplied to the FY22 bonus.
Any such benus shall be of up to 200% of
salary, and any bonus earned in excess of 100%
of salary may be subject to deferral.

Mike Ashley shall not be
bonus in respact of FY22.

ible to earn o

Long Term Incentives

Chris Wootton wilt be eligible to participote
in the new Executive Share Scheme {subject
to shareholder opproval of at the 2021 AGM].
He will receive an award of 600,000 shares.
The award may vest four years after grant,
subject to a stretching absclute share price
performance target.

Mike Ashley is not eligible to be gronted awards
under the Executive Share Scheme.
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Single Figure Table {Audited)

The aggregate remuneration provided to individuals who have served as Directors in the period
ended 25 April 2021 is set out below, aleng with the aggregate remuneration provided to individuals
who have served as Directers during the grior finoncial year.

F..Hf.!
Salaring and Othar Total foced  Totul variable
Diracter o Bonus  incsntive  Pansienid) Tetal o anaration rammunerstion

.
banafits .

FY21 FY20 FY21 FY20 FY21° FY2aD FY2! FY20  FYn FY20 FYz FYag FY2l  #£Y20 FYH FY20

£000 {000 000 400 FODD FOCD £0GO EUGC (000 £ON0 {000 fO00 £ODO 000 000  £060

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mika Ashlay - - - . - - - B B B B R . . -

Chns Woriton® 50 B8 . - wa - - - 1 1wy st 8 100 -

Jon Ketnpstar NAA 63 N/ - NfA L) S NfA 1 N/ 62 N/A &4 N/A

NOW-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dawd Doly 100 104 - - - - - - 1 0 W1 100 01

David Brayshaw 50 50 - - - - - - - 150 51 50 5 -

Micola Frampton 50 50 - - - - - - 1 1 s s 51

Rwchard Bottomlay 50 5Q - - - - N - 1 £ St 50 a1

Cally Pree 5 0 - - - - - . . R 0

TOTAL a5 an - - Wb - - ~ P A ) -
Ei] Chris Wootton's remunaration for FY20 05 set gut in the table 1 s rermunaration for the umrun frorm th dote mant on 12 Sepremper

2019

2] Jon Kempster's sevuneration for FY30 0s set out m the above toble 15 hs remuneration lor the penad fram 29 Apnl 2019 until 12 September 204%

when he censnd to e an Executive Director No payment wos made to Jon fallowing his resignation

(31 Further deloils of tha banus autturn for Chns Wostton far FY2% can be found on page S5

(4] Pensians are previded wa o defined cantribution to the Corapony stakeholder pension scheme (see puge 57)

Further Information On The FY21 Annual Botus
Chris Woctton received a benus of £100,000 in respect of FY21,

In gwarding this bonus, the Committee considered Chris' strong leadership of the Group through a
very challenging period. While no formal criteria were set at the beginning of the year due ta the
uncertainties of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Committee considered the impact of Chris’ contribution
to the financial results detailed in the Financiol Review and his personal leadership of the Group's
response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Paymaents For Loss Of Office And Payments To Former Directors {Audited)

No payments for loss of office or payments to former Directors were made in FY21,
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- m»ﬂ-n:ﬂf» Of Directors’ Shareholding And Share Interests {Audited)

The beneficia! interests of the Directors who served during the year and of their connected persons
in beth coses at the beginning of the financial year, or at the date of appointment if |ater, and at the
end of the financial year, or at the date of resignation if eartier, in the share capital of the Company
are shown below:

Ordinory Shaves held 7t 21 Ordinary Shores hald at 35
Aprl 2029 08 it earliec tha  Apeil 2020 ak it saciler the

date of reslgnation dats of resl
DIRECTORS AS AT 23 APRIL 3011
Mike Ashley 130.000.004 3BO0000
Chins Woatton -
David Daly. 24,305 21007
Nicola frampton - . $732
Qavid Brayshaw .61 34
Richard Bottamley 10000 10,000
Cally Prce -

There has been no change to the interests reported above between 25 April 2021 and 5 August 2021,
Other than noted on page 62 the Company did not receive any notifications under DTR S between
25 April 2021 and 5 August 2021, :

As at 5 August 2021, neither Chris Wootton nor Mike Ashley participate in any Company share
scheme arrangement. Therefore, there are no autstanding share scheme interests held by any
Director of the Company.
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Performance Graph And Table

The following graph shows the Company's performance measured by the Total Shareholder Return
compared with the performance of the FTSE 100 and FTSE 250 Index {excluding investment trusts).

—®—  Frosers Group plc ©a. FTSE100  —=—— FTSE 250 x Investmanl Trusts

450
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£o ' aen i ' 2012 2013 2na ms 2076 . Fior 2018 9 2020 ' 2021
Yaurn L
“he Committee considered these as appropriate indices against which to compare the Company’s
performance. They are widely accepted as notisnal measures and include the companies that
investors are likely to consider alternative investments.
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Total Cao Remuneration And Performance-Related Pay

The table below shows details of the total remuneration and performance-related pay for the
Company's Chief Executive over the last ten financial years.

Executive Share Sthafive
Totol remunaration at & % of poximam
epgertunity
FY21 - Mike Ashiey il NA
FY20 - Mike Ashley N/A
FY19 - Mike Ashley N/
FY18 - Mike Ashley NiA
FY17 - Mike Ashley N/&
Y17 - Duve Forsey £62,500 A&
FY16 - Duve Forsey £150,000 NZA
FY15 - Dave Forsey £150,000 0%
FY4 - Dave forsey F150,000 N/
F113 - Dove Fursey 150000 N/A
FY12 - Bava Forsey £450,000 - NiA
3] Mike Ashley was apponted as Chiel Exacutive with effect from 22 mnu&i.“:: 2016
[#]] Bave Forsey resigned with affact fram 22 2016, His tatol 5 fs eurned n the perod from 25 Apei 2016 unhl
the dote his rasignulion took etfect
(3t The hgures far FY1S reflect Dave Forsey's decision on & June 016 to toregn on oward gver 1 million shares which would atherwise have been due to
vest on 6 Seprembar 201/
Chief Executive To Employee Poy Ratio )

In line with reporting requirernents, the Company is required to disclose ratios which compare

the total remuneration of the Chief Executive, to the remuneration of the 25th, 50th and 75th
percentile of the Group's UK employees. The Company has not disclosed these ratios and ossociated
supporting information on the basis that Mike Ashley is not remunerated by the Company.

ted on Steinbeis 100% Recycled anxd Carbon Captuired through the Woodland Trast, helping to create new Botish woodland acioss the UK
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Relative Importance Of Spend On Pay .

The table below sets out the Group's distributions to shareholders by way of dividends and share
buybacks, investment {calculated as set out below) and total Group-wide expenditure ¢n pay for all
colleagues {as reported in the audited financial statements for FY21 and FY20) and the Company's

share price {calculated as at the close of business on the last day of FY21 and FY20).

P P PERCENTACH
Distnbutions to shareholders by way of dividend ond share buyback £a3.80(,000 O0K%
Invastment® £231.300,000 302,600,000 26 3%
Gioup-wile gxpendituc® Bn poyia ol employaas EAFE0000 Ea52B00.000 123 5%
Shore poce {pencel”t E155 he 127 5%

“Comprses af merauses i working capital, and copreal n the year (ses C:
inflow from operaning octivitigsh as the Boord bekeves tnese to be the most relevant measures of the Groups investment in tuture growth

Cash Flow stotement and note 37 Cash

++For these purposes, the share arice for FY27 and the share price far FY20 15 coloylated of the close of busmess on 23 Apnl 2071 aad 24 Apnl 2020

respecuvely, 'Baing Yhe st working days pror 11he year s

Remuneration Committee

During FY21, the Remunerotion Commitiee consisted of David Brayshaw ond Micola Frampton who
ore considered independent and the Chair of the Board, David Daly. The purpose of the Committee,
as previausly outlined, is te assist the Board te ensure that Executive Directors and senior executives

receive appropriate ievels of pay and benefits.

Attendance ot the meetings held during the year is detailed on page 43.

The memibers of the Committee have no persenol financial interest, other than os shareholders, in
the matters to be decided, no actual or potential conflicts of interest arising trom other Directorshies

and no day-te-day operationa responsibility within the Company.
Advisers To The Committes

Mike Ashey, the Chief Executive, ond Chiris Woctton, the Chief Financich Officer, have advised or
materially assisted the Committes throughout FY21 when requested. Executive Directors are not
present during, nor do they take part in, discussions in respect of matters relating dectly to thew

owh remuneration,

During the year, FIT femuneration Consuttonts LLP {"FIT*) were opptinted as cdviser to the

Committee. FIT are a founder member of the Remuneration Consultants’ Group and adhere to its
code of conduct: Fees totalling £127,184 plus VAT have been paid for its services during the year for
the provision of advice to the Committee on various aspects of remuneration including advice on
the retruneration palicy and the drafting of the cules of the Fearless 1,000 scheme. The Cammittee
has reviewed the quality of the advice provided and whether it properly addressed the issues
under consideration and is satisfied that the advice received during the year was objective and

independent. FIT has no personal connection to the Company or its Directors.
Totol Remuneration

The Committee considers that the current remuneration arrangements promote the long-term
success of the Company within an appropriate risk framewaork and are suitably aligned to the
Company's objective of delivering long term sustainable growth in Total Shareholder Returns given

hanuses are discretionary.
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Remuneration Principles

A key priority is to ensure that our
Remuneration Pelicy is aligned with strategy

to achieve the long-term success of the Group.
The Committee ensures that it complies with
the requirements of regulatory and governance
bodies including, but not limited to, the UK
Corporate Governance Code " the Code"),
whilst meeting stakeholder, shareholder and
workforce expectotions.

The Remuneration Committee and Board
remain committed to a fully transparent and
simple Remuneration Palicy that is aligned
with the interests of all its shareholders. In the
operations of the Remuneration Committee we
reiterate our commitment to the following key
principles:

+ Clarity: We provide open and transparent
disclosures regarding our executive
remuneration.

- Simplicity: Our Remuneration Palicy for
our Executive Directors is straightforward
and understoad by both Directors and
shareholders.

+  Predictability: Most components of Director
remuneration are either fixed or subject to
individual caps set by reference to base
salary. Through the use of a share price
measure under the Executive Share Scheme,
performance outcomes are predictable
and highly aligned to the experience of aur
shareholders.

+  Proportionality: Cur Executive Director
salaries ore amongst the lowast in the FTSE
250, Variable pay awards are ‘at-risk’ and
linked ta delivery of our strategy end long-
term performance, to ensure that poor
performance is not rewarded.

+  Rigks and behaviours: We ensure that
in aur operations we identify and
mitigate reputational risks arising from
our remuneration arrangements and
behavioural nisks related to incentive
targets.

+  Alignment to culture: Increases to pay
and bonuses are only owerded where the
Executive Director demonstrates high level
behaviours and perfermance consistent

with Company purpose, votues and strategy.

FRASERS GROUP

es Of The Committee

Responsibi

+ Determining the Company's pelicy on
Executive Director's remuneration, including
the design of borus schemes and targets,
share schemes when appropriate, together
with payments under them;

+  Determining the levet of remuneration of the
Chair and each of the Executive Directors;

+ Setting the remuneration for the first layer

of management below the Board tevel,
including the Company Secretary;

+  Monitoring the remuneration of
senior management and making
recommendations in that respect;

- Agreeing any compensation far loss of
office of any Executive Director; and

+  Ensuring that the Compony's Rernunerction
Policy remains fit for purpose and tokes
note of any new regulatory requirements.

What Has The Committee Done During The
Yeur?

. Reviewed and approved amendments to the
Company's Remuneration Palicy;

. Reviewed ond approved the Directors
Remunerction Report for FY2T;

. Reviewed Executive Directors’ and senior
executives' pay lincluding actions taken
in response to the impoct of the Covid-9
pandemic);

. Considered shareholder feedback regarding
remuneration policy and implementation;

« Considered and approved the appointment
of independent remuneration consultants;

«  Agteed the introduction of the Fearless
1,000 scheme;

. Reviewed gender pay gap reporting; and

+  Menitored developments in governance
and reporting requirements, relating to
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee meats severol

times a year, with 3 formal meetings and

number of ad hoc meetings held in FY21.
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Shareholder Yoting

The following table sets out actual voting in respect of the resolution to approve the Directors’
Remuneration Report for the year ended 26 Apri 2020 at the 2020 AGM and the resolution to
approve the Directors’ Remuneration Policy at the 2018 AGM.

Wotes Total vates Veins
Vates for % for agaimgt % Spin row withhatd
Diectars’ Remuneration Repart for the yeat anded 26 Apnl 7620 163,415,430 998 74,865 019 464312796 1,057
Di-ecters’ Ramunaration Polly
vt approns a 2018 AGH) 142947085 B4l 213400 159 £50.081107 aja3
D exlors’ Remnuneration Palicy
{vota b amend at 2030 AGM s respact of Fucrless 1,000) ~64243582 9959 s761 001 48431139 .95
David Brayshaw
Chair of the R ation C ittee on Behalf of the Board
5 August 2021
6%

Frirdott on Stemnbets 100% Recyeled and Carbon Captuied through the Woodiand Trost, helping (o croate now RBibish woad

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors of Frasers Group plc present their
Annual Report and Accounts for the period
ended 25 Aprif 2021 The Group's Corporate
Governance Statement forms part of the
Directors' Report.

_..i.._nm_.un_ Activities And Business Review

The Chief Executive's Report and Business
Review provides a detailed review of the
Group's current activities and potential future
developments together with matters likely to
affect future development, performance and
conditions. Principal risks and uncertainties
likely to affect the Group are set out within the
Principal Risks and Uncertainties section. The
financial position of the Group, its cash flow,
liquidity pesition and borrowing facilities are
described in the Financial Review. The Strategic
Report covers environmental matters, including
the impact of the Group's businesses on the
environment, the Group's workforce, customers,
suppliers and en community engagement.

The principal activities of the Group during the
period were:

« retailing of sports and leisure ¢lothing,
footwear and equipment, lifestyle and
luxury apparel;

+  retailing through department stores, shops
and onling;

» wholesale distribution ond sale of sports
and leisure clothing, footwear and
equipment, lifestyle ond luxury apporel
under Group-owned or licensed brands; and

« licensing of Group brands,

Frasers Group ple, through various subsi
has established branches in @ number of
different countries in which the business
operates.

Further information on the Groug's principal
activities is set out at the front of this decument
and in the Chief Executive's Report ond
Business Review.

W aurens o UK

Results For The Period And

Ravenue for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 20
was £3,625.3m and profit before tax was £8.5m
compared with £3,957.4m revenue and £143.5m
profit before tax in the prior period. The trading
results for the period and the Group's financial
position as at the end of the year are shown

in the cttached financial statements and
discussed further in the Chief Executive’s Report
and Business Review und in the Financial
Review on pages 19 to 21,

ends

The Board has decided not te propose & finol
dividend in relation to F¥21 [FY20: nil}. The
Board remains of the opinion that it is in the
best interests of the Group and its shareholders
to preserve financial flexibility, facilitating future
investments and other growth opportunities.
The current situgtion in relation to the Covid-19
pandemic has resulted in a number of retailers
finding themselves in extreme financial
difficulties. We therefore currently feel that
paying a final dividend at this uncertain time
would be inappropriate when facing such an
unkncwn future. The payment of dividends
remains under review.

Share Copital And Control

As at 5 August 2021, there are 640,602,369
ordinary shares of 10p in issue and fully paid,
of which 127,180,137 were held in treasury. As ot
the period end there were 121,260,175 ordinary
shares held in treasury.

Further information regarding the Group's
issued share copital can be found in note 24.
Detcils of our share schemes are also set out in
note 24.

There are no specific restrictions on the transfer
of shares, which are governed both by the
general provisions of the Articles of Association
and prevailing legislation, The Directors are

not aware of any agreements between holders
of the Company's shares that may result in
restrictions on the transfer of securities or on
voting rights.
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Authority To Issue Shares

The Directors were authorised to allot shares
in the capital of the Group up to an aggregate
naminal amount of £17,311,406 (being
approximately. one third of the then issued
share capital) for the period expiring at the 2021
AGM.

In line with guidonce frem the Association of
British Insurers, the Company was olso granted
authority to issue a further third of the issued
share capital to a totat nominal amount of
£34,622 812 in connection with & rights issue.

An authority to allot shares up to a

maximum nominal value of £2,596,711 (being
approximateiy 5% of the then issued share
capital} as if statutory pre-emption rights did
not apply, was also approved. In addition, the
Directors were granted o further authority

to allot up to o maximum nominal value of
£2,596,711 {being approximately 5% of the then
issued capital) as if statutory pre-emption rights
did not apply when such allotment was for the
purposes of financing (or refinancing, if the
power is ysed within six months of the original
transaction} a transaction which the Board
determined to be an acquisition or other capital
investment of a kind contemplated by the
Pre-emption Group's Statement of Principles on
disapplying pre-emption rights.

The Group was authorised to make market
purchase of ordinary shares of 10p each in

the Company of up to & maximum aggregate
number of 77,849,395 representing 14.99% of
the Company's issued ordinary share capital at
the 2020 AGM. The above authority expires at
the close of the next AGM of the Company.

The autherities expire at the close of the

next AGM of the Company, but a contract to
allot shares under these authorities may be
made prior to the expiry of the authority and
concluded in whole or part after the AGM, and
at that meeting other authorities wilt be sought
from shareholders. :

Shore Buyback

During the period to 25 April 2021 the Company
did not purchase any shares under the
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Share buyback programme. The Company
recommenced its Share buyback programme
on 4 May 2021 and on 21st June 2021 and since
4 May 2021 has purchased 5,919,962 odditional
ordinary shares. No shores have been disposed
of by the Company to this date.

Sharcholders

Neo sharehelder enjoys ony speciol control
rights, and, except as set out below, thete are
no restrictions in the transfer of shares or of
voting rights,

As a controlling shareholder Mike Ashley has
entered inta a written and legally binding
Relationship Agreement with the Company.
This agreement ensures that the controlling
shareholder complies with the independence
provisions set out in Listing Rule 6.5.4. Under
the terms of the Agreement Mike Ashley
undertook that, for so long as he is entitled to
exercise, ot to contral the exercise of, 15% or
mare of the rights to vote at general meetings
of the Company, he will;

« conduct all transactions and relationships
with any member of the Group on arm’s
length terms and on a normal commercial
basis;

.+ exercise his voting rights or other rights in

support of the Compaony being monaged in
accordance with the Listing Rules and the
principles of good governance set out in the
2018 UK Corperate Goverpance Code and
not exercise any of his voting or other rights
and powers to procure any amendment to
the Articles of Association of the Company;
and

+ other than through his interest in the
Company, not have any interest in any
business which sells sports appare! and
equipment, subject to certain rights, after
notification to the Company, to acguire
any such interest of less than 20% of the
business concerned, and certain other
timited exceptions, without receiving
the prior approval of the Non-executive
Directors; and not solicit for employment
or employ any seniar employee of the
Company.

The Company has complied with this Agreement’s independence provisions during the period and,
as far as the Company is aware, the contrelling shareholder and his associates have also complied

with them.

As at 25 April 2021, the Company had been advised that the following parties had an interest in 3%
or more of the issued shore capital of the Company pursuant to Rule 5 of the Disclosure Guidance

and Transparency Rules ["DTR");

PERCENTAGE OF
Nummg oF  1SSUED DRDINARY NATURE OF
SHARKS HELD WITHVOEING HOLOING
RIGHTS HILD
Mike Ashley 330,006,000 $354% tdireck
Phoenx Asset Manogement Partners [imuted - 38972052 7 48% [hrecl

0F Mg Ashley hol
shares (58 £4% of
the Campanyl respectively.

(2t These hqures ore as at 1 Aprl 2021 bemg the lost date or

1e shares thegugh bws companies, nomsty MASH Betg Limited and MASH Hgl,
he 155Led ardwiory shore copita? of the Company) ond 26,452,530 ordinary shares {510% of the 1ssued orcdinary share copital o

\ the Company was notthed of

ngs Limmted, which hald 303507460 ordinary

€ In the percantoge of shares

Between 25 April 2021 and 5 August 2021 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of
this Report) there have been no changes in the interest held by the above parties.

ADR Programmes

We are aware of unsponsered Americen
Depository Receipt (ADR) programmes
established from time to time in respect of our
shares. We have not sponsored or authorised
their creation and any questions should be
directed to the relevant depository.

Frasers Group has not and does not intend

to offer or sell its ordinary shares or other
securities (in the form of ADR or otherwise) to
the general public in the United States nor has
it listed or intend te list its Ordinary Shares

or other securities on any national securities
exchange in the United States or to encourage
the trading of its Ordinary Shares on any over

the counter market located in the United States.

The Group does not make arrangements to
permit the voting of ordinary shares held in the
form of ADRs and its publication of periodic
financial and other information is not intended
to facilitate the aperation of any urspoensored
ADR programme under Rule 1293-2(b) of U.S.
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended or
otherwise.

Articles Of Association

The Company's Articles of Association may only

be amended by specic! resolution at a general
meeting of sharehalders, Subject to applicable
taws and the Company's Articles of Assaciation,
the Directors may exercise all powers of the
Company.

Takeovers

The Directors do not believe that there are any
significant contracts that may change in the
avent of a successful tokeover of the Company.

Share Schemas

Details of the Executive share scheme are set
out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Colleague Involvement

The Group currently bas more thon 25,000
colleagues in its stores, offices and warehouses.

The workforce is notified of announcements
ond magjor changes in the business via
Company emails, Slack, socia!l media and

owr intranet, as well as information being
communicated through line managers,

The Company has elected a Workers'
Representative, Cally Price, who attends alt
Board meetings and provides feedback from
colleagues to the Board and is a trusted
advocate for colleagues. The Company alse has
the "Your Company, Your Voice” scheme which
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enables colleagues to raise issues of concern
via suggestion boxes. The contributions are
read by senior management and the Workers'
Representative wha provides the Board with
an overview and replies to colleagues os
cppropriate. A selection of questions received,
cnd answers given by management are
displayed in communal areas for colleagues.
Cally has been key in representing colleague’s
views in the Board room and has a dedicated
time slot at every scheduled Board meeting.
Much focus this year has been on the impect
of the Covid-19 pandemic on our employees
and Cally has been involved in Board de
a1d communication to staff regarding new

safe systems of work approved by the Board

te maintain good Covid-19 practices ot our
warehouse, offices and stores and has also
provided feedback to the Board on mental
heaith webinars run in conjunction with the
Retail Trust. Cally mokes weekly visits to Head
office and has worked with management on
initiatives including diversity, pay structures and
staff benefits.

Training programmes and induction courses
provide the workforce with opportunities to
keep up to date with the latest developments
of the Group. Prior to the Covid-19 pandemic
our annual retail conference offered attendees
ar opportunity to celebrate their successes,
receive updates on how the Group's strategy

is progressing, e¢nd for them to judge how

the Grouy is performing via the ‘Confident or
Cencerned’ questionnaire. :

There are various incentives available to our

retail colleagues. These incentives include our 5
Star Commission Scheme, Turnover Bonus, PBT
Bonus, Stocktake Bonus and other commission

schemes. These schemes vary between foscias. -

Retail colleagues (including casual workers) are
clso eligible to participate in the Fearless 1000
bonus scheme.

Further information on engagement with our
pecple can be found in the Our People report.
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Diversity And Equal Opportunities

The Group’s recruitment policy is to match the
capcbilities ond talents of each applicant to
the appropriate job. Factors such as gender,
race, religion or belief, sexual orientation, age,
y or ethnic origin are ignared, and
decisions are made with regard to candidates
irrespective of these factors. Discriménation in
any form is not tolerated within the Group.

Applications for employment by persons
with any disability are given full and fair
consideration for all vacancies and are
assessed in accordance with their particular
<kills and abilities.

The Group endeavours to meet its

responsibilities towards the training and
employment of disabled people, and to
ensure that training, career development and
promotion opportunities are available to all.

The Group makes every effort to provide
continuity of employment if any of our
colleagues become disobled. Attempts

are made in every circumstance to provide
employment, whether this involves adapting
the current job role and remaining in the same
Jeb or meving to @ more appropriote role.

Job retraining and job adaptation are just

twe examples of how the Group works in the
interests of its workforce to promote equal
opportunities in order that an individual's
employment within the Group may continue.
The Group values the knowledge and expertise
that our people have gained throughout their
time with us, ¢nd therefore does not wish to
jose valued colleagues.

Further information on our approach to
diversity can be found in the Our People report

Business Relationships

Details of refationships with our suppliers,
customers and other stakeholders are set out in
the 5.172 staternent within the Strotegic Report
and the Corporate Governance Report.

Reseorch And Development
The Group designs some clothing and footweor

for our in-hause brands for sale in stores.
External bronds are purchased from third-party

1o oredate now Hi

suppliers atthough we do work with them to
agree on the specific pieces which we sell
in-store.

Charitable And Political Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable
donations of £3k {2020: £13k] in the UK. No
political donations were made [2020: nil).
Further information on our charitable denations
and community initictives can be found in the
ESG Report.

Directors

Details of current Directors, dates of
appaintment, their roles, respensib
significant external commitments are set out on
pages 37 to 39. The membership of the Board
of Directors has remained the some throughout
FY21.

Although the Company's Articles of Association
require retirement by rotation of one third of
Directors each year, the Group complies with
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code and
at each AGM all of the Directors will retire and
stand for reappointment.

Information on service contracts ond details of
the interests of the Directors and their persons
closely associated (PCAs) in the share caopital
of the Company at 25 April 2021, and at the
date of this Report, is shown in the Directors’
Remuneration Report.

Copies of the service contracts of Executive
Directors and of the appointment: letters of the
Chair and Non-executive Directors are available
for inspection at the Company’s registered
office during normal business hours and at the
AGM.

Ne Director has a directorship in common or
other significant links with any other Director.

Director appointments are governed by The
Companies Act 2005, the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code and the Group's Articles of
Association,

The Directors confirm that:

+  sofar as each Director is aware, there is
na relevant audit information of which the
Company’s auditers are unaware; and

woodland acroass the HK

= the Directors have taken all steps that they
ought to have taken to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the quditors are awdre of
that information.

Directors’ Conflicts Of Interest

The Beard has formal procedures to deal with
Directors' conflicts of interest. The appeintment
letters of Non-executive Directors state that
they agree to consult with the Chair prior to
accepting any directorships in publicly quoted
companies or any major external appointments,
Also, if any Non-executive Director becomes
qware of any potential conflicts of interest

the Chair and Company Secretary must be
natified as soon as this becomes apparent.
During the period neither the Chair or the
Cempany Secretery were aware of any

further appointments or potential conflicts of
interest. The independence of Non-executive
irectars is reviewed by the Board annually. All
Directors complete an annual questionnaire

to record any potential conflicts of interest .
The questionnaire for FY21 did not disclose any
conflicts of interest

The Company has entered into a Relationship
Agreement with Chief Executive, Mike Ashley,
whose wholly-owned companies, MASH
Holdings Limited and MASH Bete Limited,
currently held approximately 5.10% and 58 .44%
respectively of the issued share capital of the
Coempany (excluding treasury shares). This
agreement is described in the Directors’ Report.
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Directors’ Indeminities

The Group has quatifying third-party indemnity provisions for the Directors within the 3&:3@. given
to the term by 5234 and 5235 of the Companies Act 2006, This is in respect of any potential exposure
of liability in their capacity as o Director of the Company and of any Company within the Group.

Such indemnities were in force throughout the financial period and will remain in force.

Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust

We note that the Trustees of the Spocts Direct Employee Benefit Trust have waived their right to
. receive dividends on the ordinary shares comprised in the trust fund. No dividends were paid by the

Compony for the period ended 25 April 2021 (FY20: £ril).
Disclosures Required Under Uk Listing Rule 9.8.4
The information required by Listing Rule 9.8.4 is set out in the table below:

APPLICABLE SUR-FARAGRAPH WITHINLR 9.8.4

nterast coptalised by the Group

DISCLOSURE PROVIDED

[2) Puhlication of unaudited hinang

NA
A

{3} Reguurernent delsted from the Listing Rules

|41 Datals of long-tenm incentive schernes oaly
Involving @ Diractor

N7

{5) Wawer of emoluments by o Diactor

A

16} Waiver of futurs ameluments by a Director N/
7) Non pre-roto ollotmems for cash lissuer} NiA
18] Non pro-rata allctrments for cash imajor N/
subsidanes

(4] Parant participatian ih o plocihg by « fisted N/&
subsidiny

[10] Contracts of signifcance NA
] Provision of terwces by a contraling poge 56
sharehalder

(12) Shareholder waevers o dvidends Bage 61
113] Sharehalder waivars af future Grudends i
(12] Agreements with cantroliing sharehaids s poge 62

Green House Gas Emmissons And Energy Consumption

See The Environment report
Annuu) Genarol Meeting

Further details on the date, time and format of proceedings will follow shortly after the finalisation
of these Annual Report and Accounts, taking into account Government guidance surrounding the

Covid-19 pandemic.
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Going Concern

The Group's business activities, together

with the factors likely to affect its future
development, performance and position are set
out in the Chief Executive’'s Report and Business
Review.,

The financial position of the Group, its cash
flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities
are described in the Financial Review. in
oddition, the financial statements include the
Group's objectives, policies and progesses

for manoging its capstal, its financial risk
monagement objectives, details of its financial
instruments and hedging activities, and its
exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group still trades profitably, is highly cash
generative and has considerable financial
resources. The Group is able to operate within
its banking facilities and covenants, which

runs until November 2022, and is well ploced

to take advantage of strategic opportunities

as they arise. As a consequence, tha Directors
believe that the Group is able to manage its
business risks successfully despite the continued
uncertain economic outlook.

Management has assessed the level of trading
to date since the impacts of the Covid-19
pandermic and has forecast and prajected a
conservative base caose and also o number

of even more conservative scenarios taking
into account a potential further wave and
assoctated lockdowns over winter, Government
support, foreign exchange exposure and

cost saving initiatives, These forecasts and
projections show that the Group will be able

to operate within the level of the current
facility ond its covenant requirements (being
interest cover and net debt to EBITDA ratios).
Management also hos o pumber of mitigating
actions which could be taken if required such as
putting on hold discretionary spend, liquidating
certain assets on the balance sheet and paying
down the Revolving Credit Facility. See the
Viability Statement for further details.

Hoving thosoughly reviewed the Group's
performance and having made suitable
enquiries, the Directors are confident that the
Group has adequdate resources te remain in

BESEE

FRASERS GROUP

operational existence for the at least 12 months
from the date of these financial statements.
Trading would need to fall significantly below
levels observed during the pandemic to require
mitigating actions o a relaxation of covenants.
QOn this basis, the Directars continue to cdopt
the going concern basis for the preparation of
the Annual Repart and Financial Statements
which is a period of at jeast twelve months
from the date of approval of these finonciol
staternents.

Accountability And Audit

A stotement by the External Auditor con
be found on page 66 detailing its reporting
respansibilities. The Directors fulfil their
responsibilities, and these are set out in the
Diractors’ Responsibilities Staterment.

Auditor

RSM UK Audit LLP will be proposed for
reagpointment at the AGM. In accordance with
5489{4) of the Companies Act 2006, resoiutions

to determine remuneration are to be agreed ot
the AGM.

Post Balance Sheet Events
See note 36 of the Annual Accounts.
Future Developments

Future developments are discussed throughout
the Strategic Report.
Fi ial Rit

M. +

Financial risk management is discussed in note
3 of the financial statements,

By Order of the Beard,

Tom Fiper
Company Secretary
5 August 2021
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the
Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report, the
Directors’ Remuneration Report, the separate
Carporate Governance Statement and the
financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations,

Company law requires the directors to prepare

-group and company financial statements for

each financical year. The directors have elected
urider company law to prepare group financial
statements in accordance with international
accounting stondards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
are additionally required under the Listing Rules
of the Financial Conduct Autherity to prepare
the group financial staterments in accordance

with infernational financiat reporting standards -

adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No
1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union.
The directors have elected under company jow
to prepare the company financial statements

in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom
Accounting Stondards and applicable law).

The group financiol statements are required

by law and international accounting standards
in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and international
financial reporting standards adopted pursuant
te Regulation [EC) No 1606/2002 as it app
in the Eurepean Union to present fairly the
financial position and performance of the
group; the Companies Act 2006 provides in
relation te such finoncial statements that
references in the relevant part of thot Act to
financial statements giving a true ond fair
view are references to their achieving a fair
presentation.

Under company law the directors must not
apprave the financial statements unless they .
are satisfied thet they give a true and Fair view
of te state of affairs of the group and the
company dnd of the profit or loss of the group
for that period.
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In preparing each of the group and company
financial statements, the directors are required
to:

a. select suitoble accounting pelicies and then
apply them consistently;

b. make judgements and accounting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent;

¢. for the group financial statements, state

whether they have been prepared in
accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006
and international financial reporting

-standards adopted pursuant to Regulations
{EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the
European Union;

d. for the company financial statements,
state whether applicable UK accounting
standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the company financial
statements;

e. prepare the financial staterments on
the going concern bosis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the group
and the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explain the group's and the
company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the group and the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial
statements and the Directors’ Remuneration
Report comply with the Companies Act 2006
and, as regards the group financial statements,

"Article 4 of the IAS Regulotion. They are also

responsible for safeguarding the assets of

the group and the company and hence for
teking reasonabte steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irreqularities.

W creale new B

Directors'S t P To The Discl
and Transparency Rules

Each of the directors, whose names and
functions are listed on pages 37 to 39 confirm
thot, to the best of each person's knowledge:

a. the financial statements, prepared in
accordance with the applicable set of
accounting standards, give a true and
fair view of the assets, liobilities, financial
pasition and profit of the company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole; and

b. the Strotegic Report contained in the
Annual Report includes a fair review of
the develepment and performance of the
business and the position of the company
and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, together
with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face,

The directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial information included on the
Company's website.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

Chris Wootton
Chief Finunciol Officer
5 August 2021
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included in calculating the net realisable value
of inventory.

Due to the foctors explained obove, we have
identified the valuation of inventory us a key
audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in the audit

In t of inventory valuation we:

P

« Assessed the appropriateness of
management's inventory provision
calculations, including testing the accuracy
und completeness of the data used and the
mathematical accuracy of the provisioning
modetl

*  Critically challenged the assumptions made
in the inventory provision model in respect
of the expected level of discounting and the
expected costs of sale, including:

- The basis on which expected discounts
were calculated and whether calculated
discounts were realistic based on
historical experience and the current
trading environment

- The assumptions regarding the
‘expected volume and allocated costs of
redistributing {tunnelling) and repricing
product

- Whether different assumptions and
estimates should be applied for different
fascias given the differentiated product
mix '

»  Considered management's strategic options
for addressing demand in the uncertain
retail economic environment present as a
result of the Covid 19 pandemic, inciuding
discounting levels and further development
of on-line retail channels.

As a resuit of our findings from challenging
management's model, we independently
developed an alternative model that applied
historic inventory loss experience to calculote
a provision against current out of season and
clearance inventery and inventory that would
be expected to remain unsold and fall into
those cakegories in future periods. In addition,
we recalculoted the expected future tunnelling
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and repricing costs to take account of our

» assessment of the likely future costs of these
activities in relation to products that would
have a net realisable value which was below
cost.

We then formed an assessment, based on
discussions with management and available
market dato, to reflect the impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic. This included consideration
of forecast future sales performance, expected
margin decline, the increased risk of inventory
becoming out of season and adjustments
considered relevant for specific fascias,

where the risk of inventory obselesence was
considered to be higher. Cur alternative model
allewed us to develop an estimate of the level
of provision we considered appropriate and
supportable against which we were able to
assess management’s estimates,

Key observations

Our audit work on inventory valuation, and
in particular the development of our own
alternative provision rodel, did not identify
any material misstaternent in the inventory
provisions.

. helping e creale

Impairment of property related assets
Key oudit matter description

As g result of the Covid 19 pandemic and
changing patterns of retail consumer behaviour,
particulorly in rélation to physical stores, the
Group identified thot there were indications

of impairment in relation to freehold property
interests, right of use assets and related PPE
["property related assets”). As required by

IAS 36 {impairment of Assets) the Group has
performed an impairment review of all such
assets.

As a result of this review, impairments in
relation to freehold and long leasehold property
{£88.4m), right of use assets {£168.2m) and
related PPE {£63 8m) have been made in these
financial statements.

As described in nete 2 to the financial
statements, the impairment review involves
management judgements and estimates in
relation to the value in use of the property
related assets {being the net present value

of the forecast related cashflows) and, in the
case of freehold property, comparison of
calculated value in use to internal and external
property valuations. The values derived are
then compared to the book value of the related
assets to determine whether impairment

is required. In making this assessment
management determined each property or
store to be a cash generating unit {CGU).

The value in use calculations inwalve significant
assumptions regarding future cashflows, the
long term growth rate in like for like sales, an
assessmant of the prapensity for customers

to switch to online purchases, pressure on
margins and determination of an appropriate
discount rate as well as considering the
possibility of future lockdewns, In the case of
freehold property, valuations are dependent
on assumptions regarding the ability to

relet property, the length of void and rent

free periods and future rentals achievable.
Accordingly we determined that the valuation
of property related assets had a high degree of
estimation uncertainty and this is illustrated by
the sensitivity analysis set out in note 2.

Due to the factors explcined above, we have

ross the UK

identified completeness, valuation, presentation
and disclosure of property related assets as o
key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in the audit

We obtacined an understanding of how
management performed their impairment
testing of property related assets and their
approach to valuation.

We critically assessed the methodology
applied by management with reference to

the requirements of IAS 36 and tested the
integrity of the value in use calculations and the
calculated impairments by CGU.

In the cose of freeheld property, in addition

to assessing the value in use calculations,

we evaluated the approach to the valuation
of freehold interests with input from an
independent external retail property valuation
expert and criticaliy challenged the underlying
assumptions.

In particular we challenged the significant
assumptions within management’s models
tihrough:-

+  Evaluating management’s assumptions
through consideration of histerical and
current trading performance and external
data points

+  Sensitised the assumptions in
management's impairment madels and
reviewed the financial statement disclosures
decumenting ossumptions and the impacts
of applied sensitivities

« Tested the reconciliation between
the cashflows used in the value in use
calculations with those used to assess going
concernt and viability to ensure they were
consistent

«  Critically challenging whether it was
appropriate te exclude properties from the
impairment model and assessing whether
the reasons for exclusion were supportable -
for example where specific properties were
under redevelopment

+  Comparing the discount rate used with that
independently calculated by our internal
valuation expert
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We assessed whether the disclosures within the
tinancial statements are consistent with 1AS 36,

Key cbservations

Qur qudit work in respect of the impairment
of property related assets concluded that the
related balances were not matericlly misstated
and the disclosures management have made
are appropriate.

Propenty, Legal and Qther Provisions
Key audit matter description

The Group makes provision for liabilities where
it identifies there is a present obligation as a
result of a past event and where it is probable
that there will be a resultant outflow of
resources that can be refiably measured.

The Group has o significant provision in relation
to legat ond regulatory matters and property
related provisions. As detailed in note 28 te

the financial statements, the Consolidated
Balance Sheet includes provisions of £215.8m
(2020: £225.4rn) relating to legal and regulatory
matters and £144.1m, {2020: 107.9m} relating to
property provisions which principally comprises
provisions for dilapidations on leasehold
properties.

The dilopidation provision requires significant
judgements to be made as to future amounts
payable based on historical experience,
external advice and evolving conditions within
the property sector.

Additionally, the Group faces a number of

legal, tax and other commercial claims and
significont judgement is required in determining
whether a provision should be recorded and for
what amount.

Due to the amounts involved and the
significant judgerments required in quartifying
and assessing provisions we have identified
existence, accuracy, completeness, presentation
and disclosure of property, legal and other
provisions as a key audit matter.
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How the matter was oddressed in the audit
Our audit work included the following: -

« Considering manogement's assessment
in respect of pro ns and assessing
whether the recognition criteria of IAS
37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent assets had been met.

»  Chailenging the assumptions made in the
dilapidation provision model in respect
of the expected level of dilapidaticns on
a store by store basis. As a result of our
findings frem challenging monagement's
mode!, we independently developed an
alternative model that applied historic
dilapidation costs and relevant factors
such as geography and property type as
well as considering the impacts of likely
future changes in the property market. Qur
alternative model allowed us to develop
an estimate of the level of provision we
considered apprapriate and supportable
agatinst which we were able to assess
management's estimates.

»  Challenging provisions and related
assumptions with key management outside
the finance function, including members of
the property and legal teams and obtaining
corroborative evidence from third parties in
refation to material ongoing legal and tax
matters

¢ Auditing the movement in provisions end
checking for completeness through the
review of ongoing claims for ditapidations
and through cireularisation of legal advisors
in relation to other claims,

Key observations

Cur cudit work in respect of Property, legei and
other provisions concluded thot the related
balances were not materially misstated and
the disclosures management have made are
apprepriate.

Classification of investments

Key audit matter description

The Group has a number of investments in
which it helds more than 20% but less than
50% of the voting share capitel of the investee.

1AS 28 - investments in associates and Joint
Ventures — requires that where an investrnent
falls within this range it should be accounted
for as an associate, unless management can
rebut the presumption that significant influence
exists and can clearly demonstrate that this is
the case.

The Group sold its investment in'French
Connection ple during the year but at the year
end has strategic investments in Studio Retail
Group ple (36.9%) and Mulberry Group plc
{26.1%]) and has rebutted the presumption that
significant influence exists. These investments
have been accounted for at fair value through
other comprehensive income as explained in
note 2 to the financial statements.

Since the judgements that the Group has made,
that it does not have significant influence over
Studio Retail Group plc and Mulberry Group
plc, have a significant impact over the financial
staternents we have identified the classification
and disclosure of investments as o key audit
matter.

How the matter wos addressed in the audit
Our audit work included: -

+  Assessing the accounting for the above
investments under |AS 28 ~ Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures and IFRS 9 -
Financial Instruments.

+ Obtaining and critically challenging
management's papers addressing the
accounting for the above investments
against the requirement of the accounting
standards ond the judgements made in
addressing the questions of significant
influence

+  Discussing management's strategy for
holding the investments and challenging
whether this was consistent with the
accounting treatment

+  Assessing the five criteria set out in |AS 28
as suggesting whether significant influence
may.exist by examining both confirming
and disconfirming evidence.

In particular we: -

+  Obtained and examined certain
agreements and correspondence
between the Group and the investees to
corroborate managements assertion that
no significant influence exists

+  Reviewed investee financial statements,
press anncuncements, articles of
association, shareholder agreements and
media reports to assess whether there
was evidence of significant influence

+  Made enquiries of the Group's Head of
Strategic tnvestments to understand
the Group's interaction with those
investments, including in particulor, the
nature and purpose of the observer role
on the board of Studio Retail Group ple

+ Considered whether trgnsactions
between the Group and the investees
were indicative of significant influence

+ Critically chollenging whether the
judgements made are clearly disclosed in
the financial staterents.

Key observations

Our audit work in respect of the classificotion
of investments concluded that management's
judgements that they did not have significant
influence over Studio Retail Group plc and

Mulberry Group pic to be supportabie ond the
related classification and disclosures made in
the financial statements to be appropriate.
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Impact of the Covid 19 pandemic and going
concern

Key audit metter description

The Covid 19 pandemic and the mondated
temporary closure of retail stores at various
times during the year, has had « significant
impact on the group’s revenue and result
before tax. In addition to heightened audit
risks relating to the carrying value of property
related assets and inventory set out in the
key audit maotters above, the pandemic has
implications for;-

+  The Group's censiderations in relation to
going concern and viability

» Accounting for monies received under the
UK Government's Job Retention Scheme
[CJRS)

Significant judgements are always required
around the assumptions underpinning future
cashflow projections. These judgements are
heightened in the current retail environment
given the uncertainties surrounding the longer
term impact of the pandemic and structural
changes to the UK retail sector. Whilst retail
stores have opened post year end, and web
sales have performed well, the longer term
impacts on shopping habits and the risks of
a giobal recession are difficult to accurately
predict,

Taking account of these sensitivities, the
Directors have acknowledged there will be
potentially material variations in forecast
financial performance, but cencluded that
the Group has sufficient resources available
to meet its ies as and when they fa
due and that therefore there are no material
uncertainties that cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

In undertaking their assessment of going
conzeIn, the Directors hoave reviewed forecast
future performance and anticipated cashflows
for the Group. These forecasts have also been
applied in determining the need to impair
property related assets as set out in the key
audit matter above. Their assessment has
considerad cashflow forecasts ond financing
and covenants in place for the period to
November 2022, which is the date at which the

69

currenit Revolving Credit Facility expires.

As part of the ossessment and as disclosed in
the viability statement on page 36, the Directors
have determined appropriate sens ies to the
forecasts, including o reverse stress test of the

. Group's ability to meet its covenants.

We have identified a key oudit matter related
to going concern as a result of the judgement
required in undertaking a going concern
assessment in the current uncertain trading
environment, the adequacy and accuracy of
disclosures and the conelusion that there is not
o material uncertainty related to going concern.

The Group has received furlough {CJRS) income
of approximately £80m in the year and has
recognised this as a reduction in payroll costs in
the income statement. The rules that applied to
furlough claims in the year were complex ond
subject to variation and there cre significant
penalties for non-compliance. Consequently

we identified o potential risk of misstatement
relating to the processing and management of
ciaims. :

How the moatter was addressed in the audit

Qur qudit work in relation to going concern
included:

+  Obtaining an understanding of
management's going concern models,
discussing key assumptions with
managemeant ond assessing whether those
assumptions were consistent with those
applied elsewhere, such as in relation to
inventory valuation and the assessment of
preperty related provisions

+  Checking the mathematical accuracy
of management's cashflow models, and
agreeing opening balances te 25 April 2021
actual figures

1 Chacking managemant’s covenant,
compliance calculations to determine
whether there is a risk of breach and
assessed whether the assumptions in
management's base model appeared
realistic, achievable and consistent with
other internal and external evidence

+  Cemparing ferecast sales with recent
historical information to consider the

accuracy of forecasting

+ Considering post year end sales patterns to
assess whether they were consistent with
those assumed in the hase mode!

- Testing management’s sensitivity analysis
and reverse stress test and performing our
own analysis based on further sensitising of
the modeis to take account of reasonably
possible scenarios that could arise from the
risks identified

+  Chollenging management regarding their
identification of discretionory spend that
could be reduced should mitigating actions
becorne necessary

+ Reviewing agreements and correspondence
relating to the availability of financing
arrangements

»  Evaluating the Group's disclosures on going
concern against the requirements of 1AS 1

In relation to the furlough income received
by the Group under the UK Government's
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme {CJRS) we:

+ Obtained an understanding of how
management communicated and operated
the scheme and the process by which
management calculoted and submitted
their claims

+  Reviewed correspondence between the
Group and HMRC

» Agreed cash received for claims made
during the year to bank staetements

«  Reperformed the calculation of o sample of
claims including agreeing details to payroll
racords

* Reviewed the internal audit work performed
over CJRS claim procedures

Prinfed on Stambeis 1007 Recycled and Carbon Captured throwgh the Woodkind Trust, hedpmeg to create new Brtish woodiang aoross the UK

Key observations

Cur audit work in respect of the Covid 19
pandemic and going concern concluded that
the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate and we did not
identify any material uncertainties relating

to events or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on
the group’s or the parent company's ability
to cantinue as o going concern and that the
associated disclosures are in accordance with
accounting standards.

However, the impact of the Covid 19 pandemic
on future pesformance is difficult to predict with
any certainty and no audit can be relied upon
to identify all possible scenarios that may have
future implications for the Group.

Our work in respect of CJRS claims did not
identify any material misstatemant.
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There are no key oudit matters relating to the parent company.

Our application of materiality

When establishing eur overali sudit strategy, we set certain threshalds which help us to determine
the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. When evaluating whether the effects of
misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements as o whole, could reasonably
influence the economic decisions of the users we toke into account the qualitotive nature and the
size of the misstatements. Bosed on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the

financiol statements as foliows:

Group

Parent Company

QVERALL MATERIALITY

E11imillion [202¢ £43 Iruibon)

£110milign (2020 £1) $rmlhon]

WALE FOR DETERMIMING GVERALL MATERIALITY

2 8% af Undetlyng EBITDA

W of tetol osters [copped of ove
Group matenatty!

RATIONALE FOR BENCHMARK APPLIED

In determining gverall motersality
we gave considerntion to undeilying
EBITDA, ravatue and the average résuit
tofore tox lor the previous thras vears,

Since the Group Gses undeslying EBITDA
in s commumgotons with sharsholgors
we huve determined this ' be the most
apprapriote mater ahty benchmark.

We nppliad o bower level of matee
10 the audit of cormponents and, in
SEOIIANCE With ISA 120, In (efation ta
cenoin closses of ransactions, COCGURT
bolances and diselnsures

ty

derying EBITDA 15 delined ol note
d in the glossary ta the financinl

The Parent Campany dors not tr
ond therafore totel nssats 1s contdered
to be the mott appropr.ote henchmork

FERFORMANCE MATERIALITY

E7 2milhon

We set performonce mate
a leval lawer than overall mute
for the inanciai stutements as a

whola to reduce to o npproprately
Iow tevel the probability that, in
noyregute, undprected ond undetected
musstatements oueed overalk
motarhty

The foctort we eansidered in
determining partormance motenolity
included: our knowledge of the group,
The prassures within the (etail sectar
and the level of misstotemants in prar
perids

EFIrmatlion

oogreyute, uncorrected ond
misstatements exteed ove

BAHS FOR DETERMINING PERFORMANCE MATERIALTY

65% of ovarall mateqotty
(2020, 75% of averall matenahty]

65% of overal motenaliy
(7020 _75% af overoi{ inateriahty]

REPQRTING OF MISSTATEMENTS TO THE AURIT COMMITTER

Msstatements in excess of £0 6m
and misstatements below that threshold
that, 1n aur view, warranted reparbing on
qualitatve graunds

thot, in aur view, wasrantett reporting on

qudlitelive grounds
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An overview of the scope of cur audit

Our oudit approach was based on a thorough
understanding of the Group's business and is
risk based, and in particular inciuded:

= Evoluation of identified components to
assess the significance of each compoenent
and to determine the planned audit
response bosed on a measure of materiaiity.
This included significance as ¢ percentage
of the Group's revenue, total assets and
result before tox;

¢ For those camponents thot were evaluated
as significant, or likely to include significant
risks, either a full-scope or targeted
approach was taken based on their
relative materiality to the Group, ond our
assessment of the audit risk. For significant
components requiring a full-scope
approach, we evaluated controls over the
financial reporting systems identified as
part of our risk assessment and addressed
critical accounting matters. Substantive
testing was performed on significont classes
of transactions and balances, and other
materiat balances, determined during the
Group scoping exercise;

*  Full scope audit procedures have been
performed on the financial statements of
Frasers Group ple, and on the financial
infermation of the main trading companies
within the UK Retail component;
Sportsdirect.com Retail Limited, Wareshop 2
Limited, Sports Direct International Holdings
Limited, House of Fraser Limited, Yhe
Flannels Group Limited, Jack Wills Retail
Limited, Evans Cycles Limited and GAME
Retail Limited;

= In relotion to overseas components we
engaged RSM member firms in Austria,
Ireland and Spain, to perform full scope
companent audits and RSM in the United
States and Belgium to perform targeted
audit procedures, Additionally, RSM

member firms attended inventory counts in
a number of locations;

*  The group engagement team reviewed the
work performed by the component auditors.
We determined the level of involvement
we needed to have in their oudit work
ot these reporting units to be cble to
conclude whether sufficient, appropricte
audit evidence had been obtained as a
basis for our opinion on the Group finencial
statements gs o whole,

+  Further specific audit procedures over the
Group conselidation and areas of significant
iudgement including impairment of property
related assets, leasas, taxation and treasury
were performed by the group engagement
team.

The operations that were subject to full-scope
audit procedures made up 80% of consolidated
revenues, 82% of total ossets and 72% of
absolute profit before tax.

The operations that were subject to targeted
audit procedures, including specific significant
judgement areas noted above, made up 8% of
consolidated revenues, 6% of total assets and
6% of profit before tax; and

The remaining operations of the Group were
subject te analytical procedures aver the
batance sheet and income statements of the
relevant entities with a focus on applicable
risks identified above. This made up 12% of
consolidated revenues, 12% of net assets and
22% of profit before tax.
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T1e coverage achieved by our audit procedures was:

g Fult Scope - . Targeted gudit . Analytical pracedures

Full scope audits were performed for 5§ components {some of which included a number of legal
entities which were combined for group reporting purposes), targeted audit procedures for 4
compenents and analytical procedures at group level for the remaining components,

- nnﬂ-.h“..—-_u Ravenus Totulmisets !.”-:L
FULL SCOPE AUDIT 5 A0% B7%. 77%
TARGETED AUDIT PROCEDURES . 4 A% B% 6%
TOTAL 9 BE% BEF% 8%

The Group team had planned to visit component locations in Austria, Spain and the USA. However,
these visits were prevented by travel restrictions imposed as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and
instead the group team held video conference calls and performed remote file reviews to assess the
audit risk and the work planned and performed in response.

The parent company was subject to a Full scope cudit for the purposes of the Group and Parent
Company financial statements.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other infermation comprises the
information included in the annual report on pages 1to 65 other than the financial stotements

and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion theraon.

In connection with our audit of the financicl statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge oktained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required

to determine whether there is a material misstaterent in the financiol statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. IF based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstaternent of this other informnation, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

7t
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In cur opinion, the part of the directors’
rermuneration report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006,

In cur opinion, based on the work undertaken in
the course of the audit;

¢« the information given in the Strategic
Report and the Directors’ Report for the
financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with
the financial statements and those reports
have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements;

« the information about internal control and
risk management systerms in relation to
financiol reporting processes and about
share capital structures, given in compliance
with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 in the Disclosure
Rules and Transparency Rules socurcebook
made by the Financial Conduct Authority
{the FCA Rules), is consistent with the
financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal
requirements; and

« information about the company's corporate
governance cede and practices and about
its administrative, management and
supervisory bodies and their committees
complies with rules 7.2.2, 723 and 7.2.7 of
the FCA Rules

1 wouodid aeross the LK

Maotters on which we are required to report by
exception

In the light of the knowledge and
understanding of the group and the parent
company and their environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified
material misstatements in:

+  the Strategic Report or the Directors' Report;
or

¢+ the information about internal control and
risk management systems in reltion to
financial reporting processes and about
share capital structures, given in compliance
with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 of the FCA Rules

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matters in relation to which the
Companies Act 2006 requires us S report to
you if, in our opinion:

+ adequote accounting records have not been
kept by the parent company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

+  the parent company financial staterments
and the port of the directors’ remuneration
report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

«  certain disclosures of diregtors’
remuneration specified by law are not
made; or

+ we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit.

c ate g P "
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The Listing Rules require us to review the
directors' statement in relation to going
concern, longer-term viability and that part of
the Corporate Governance Statement relating
to the parent company's compiiance with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Staterment specified for our review.
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Based on the work undertaken as part of

our audit, we have concluded that each of

the following elements of the Corporate
Governance Statement is materially consistent
with the financial staterments or our knowledge
ohtained during the audit:

»  Diractors' statement with regards the
appropriateness of adopting the going
concern basis of accounting and any
material uncertainties identified {set out on
page 64);

+ Directors’ explanation as to its assessment
of the group's prospects, the period this
assessment covers and why this period is
appropriate (set aut an page 36);

= Directors’ statement on fair, balanced and
" understandable [set out on poge 44);

*  Board's confirmation that it has carried out
o robust ossessment of the emerging and
principal risks {set out on page 31);

= The section of the annual report that ‘
describes the review of effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems
[set out on page 44}; and,

*  The section describing the work of the cudit
committee {set out an page 44)

R ibilities of direct

P

As explained more fully in the directors’
responsibilities statement {set out on page
65), the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the
group's and the parent company's ability

to continue as a going concern, disclosing,

as applicable, matters related to going
cencern and using the going concern basis of
accounting urless the directors either intend
to liquidate the group or the parent company
or o ceose operations, or have no realistic
clternative but to do so.
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3 for the audit of the

Auditor's responsi
financial statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material
misstaterment, whether due to froud or error,
and to issue an ouditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs
{UK} will always detect @ moterial misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
froud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonobly be expected to inflience the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

The extent to which the audit was considered
copable of detecting irregulurities, including
frgud

irregularities are instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations, The objectives of
our audit are to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding compliance with
laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the determination of material ameunts
and disclosures in the finenciol statements,

to perform audit procedures to help identify
instances of non-compliance with other laws
and regulations that may have a matenal effect
on the financial statements, and to respond
appyopriately to identified or suspectad
non-compliance with laws and regulations
identified during the audit.

In relation to froud, the objectives of our audit
are to identify ond assess the risk of material
misstatement of the financial statements

due to fraud, to cbtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of
material misstatement due to fraud through
designing and implementing apprapriate
responses and to respond appropriately to
fraud or suspected fraud identified during the
audit.

However, it is the primary responsibility of
management, with the oversight of those
charged with governance, to ensure that
the entity's operations are conducted in
accordance with the provisions of laws
and regulations and for the prevention and
detaction of froud.

In identifying and assessing risks of material
rnisstatement in respect of irregularities,
including fraud, the group oudit engagement
team:

+ obtained an understanding of the nature
of the industry and sector, including the
legal and regulatory frameworks that the
group and parent company operates in and
how the group and parent company are
complying with the legal and regulatory
framewarks;

+ inquired of management, and thase
charged with governance, about their own
identification and assessment of the risks of
irregularities, including any known actudl,
suspected or alieged instances of fraud;

- applied analytical review procedures to
identify unusual or unexpected relationships;

+  discussed matters about non-compliance
with jows and regulations and how fraud
might occur including assessment of how
and where the financial statements may be
susceptible to fraud

As the group is regulated, our assessment of
risks invalved gaining an understanding of
the effectiveness of the control environment
including the controfs established to mitigate
the risks of fraud and the procedures for
complying with regulotory requirements.

All relevant laws and regulations identified at a
Group leve! and areas susceptible to froud that
could have a material effect on the financial
statements were cornmunicated to component
auditors. Any instances of non-complionce

with lows and regulations identified and
commumicated by component auditors were
censidered in our audit approach. We remained
alert to any indications of fraud throughout the
audit.

i
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As a result of these procedures, we considered
the cpportunities and incentives that may
exist within the Group for froud and identified
the greatest potential for fraud in those areas
in which management is required to exercise
significont judgerhent. In commen with all
audits under 15As (UK} we also performed
specific procedures to respond to the risk of
management override ond the risk of fraudulent
revenue recognition. These procedures
included:

+ testing the appropriateness of journat
entries and other adjustments based on risk
criteria and comparing the identified entries
to supporting documentation

+ assessing whether the judgements made
in making accounting estimates were
indicative of potential bias

+  evaluating the business rationale of any
significant transactions that are unusual or
outside the normal course of business

= testing the operating effectiveness of
the manual controls in relation to the
completeness, accuracy, and existence of
cash sales

+ investigating transactions posted to nominal
ledger codes outside of the normal revenue
cycle identified through the use of data
analytics tools.

The Group is subject to laws gnd regulations
which directly affect the material amounts

and disclosures in the finoncial statements,

The most significant laws and requlations were
detertmined to be as follows:-IFRS and FRS

102, the UK Companies Act, Financial Conduct
Authority regulations, inciuding the Listing Rules
and tax legislation.

In addition, the Group is subject to other

laws and regulations which do not have a
direct effect on the financicl statements but
campliance with which may be fundomental
ta the Group's ability to operate or to avoid
material penalties. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an
effect: competition and anti-bribery laws, data
protection, employment, environmental and
health and safety reguiations.
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in respense to the above, audit procedures
performed by the audit engagement team
inctuded:

» reviewing financial statement disclosures
and testing to supporting documentation
to assess complionce with provisions of
relevont laws and regulations described
as hoving a direct effect on the financial
statements

»  enquiring of management, the Audit
Committee and in-house legal counsel
concerning actual and potential litigation
and claims

+ reading minutes of meetings of thase
charged with governance, reviewing internal
audit reports and correspondence with

HMRC

A further description of our responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements is located
on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
htte:fwww fre.org.ukfauditorsresponsibilities.
This description forms part of our cuditor's
report.

Other matters which we are required to address

Following the recommendation of the audit
committee, we were appointed by the Audit
Committee and the Board on 18 November
2019 to audit the financial statements for the
yea- ending 26 April 2020 and subsequent
financial periods.

The period of tota! uninterrupted consecutive
appointments s 2 years covering the years
ending 26 April 2020 to 25 April 2021,

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's
Ethical Standard were not provided to the
group or the parent company and we remain
independent of the group and the parent
company in conducting our audit.

Qur audit opinion is consistent with the
additionel separk b the caudik comnmnities.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's
members, as a bedy, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Componies Act
2006, Qur audit work hos been undertaken so
that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor's report and for nc other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyene other
than the company and the company’s members
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

Mark Harweod
{Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP,
Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
25 Farringdon Street
London

ECaA 4AB

S August 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the 52 weeks ended 25 Aprii 2021

FRASERS GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the 52 weeks ended 25 Aprif 2021

Nets 52 wenks ended 52 waaks endud
2F April 2021 26 Aprit 2020
{Em) im)
REVENUE ] 2,628 39T
Coxt of soles (2094 5| 12294 8)
GROS3 FROFIT 13108 1.662.8
Seltmg, diskripudven ond administrative experses nawo 14t 7)
Other operating incofne 5 EY ) ns
Propesty raloted impoirments 1617 {31/0) 1120 &)
Eaveptional tems ) né) 0an
Profit on sule of properties ? 97 542
QPERATING (LOSSIPROFIT 45 {80} 713
Investment income ) 37 52
< Inwestrmient costy n an CLL]]
Financs mcome 2 30 EF)
Finace cost 13 (3621 1233
5hare of loss of ossociated unde talangs 19 (159
Faut vahue goin on steb acguistion ) w4
PROFIT REFORE s usy
Taxation 14 186 5 1425)
(LOSB/RROFIT FOR THI 2 {1.0) 1018
ATTRIEUTARLE TO:
Equity holders of the Group R34 338
Non-controlling mterasts 50 72
(LOSSI/ROFIT FOR THE PERIGD 4 ra.) 1010
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTARLE TO THE EOUATY DERS
Penca putihare
Bosic eunungs per shars: 15 185
Diluted warmings pet share 15 as
n Property related Impawments of £3170m have baen saporately presentad for the year endad 15 Apnl 2021 The prior yaar comporotve of £122 me

which was previcusly nclyded within Sefling, distribytion and admimstrative expenses m the F¥20 Annual flepart hos been @presentad

to be comparoble

The Consolidated Income Statement has been prepared on the basis that all operations ore
continuing. The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these

financiol statements.
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ot

Hete 5 wanks ended 52wenka etided
15 Apnl 1011 36 April 2020
L] m)
tLossi/prolit for the penod 4 =L e
DTHER COMPREMENSIVE INCOME
ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLATSIFIED TLY TG PROFIT O R LOSS -
Fuir valus movenent pn long-term fnoncol ossars 20 2K 147
ITEMS THAT WILL BE RECLASSIFIED TLY ORLOSS
Exchange rhiferences on tronsiation of forsign sperations 1481 98
Far value mavement on hedged contracts - e ogmised  the penod 529 04 4
Foit volye movemnent an hedged contraets - matiettivenss 2524 uz
Foir vtslue movernent on hedged Contracts - tatlossified wnd reported in ales 7529 128 oz
Fur value movement an iedged cantrarts - reciassified and repartad i cost of sales 2523 Al 137 41
Four valug movamant on hadged conkeacts - tanateh taken to raserves 2529 EL e
OTHEN COMPRENEMIIVE INCOME/ILO$S) FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX 1y
TOTAL 551/ INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (LA 114
AT X Y0:
Eruity halders ul the group N3 %]
Nan-cgntrolling interest 50 72
es.m T4

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

At 25 April 2021 For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
Nots I Aprl 2011 i 26 Apell 2020 Mota 52 waahn wndud 52 weshs anded
\eml (Em) 25 Apeil 2021 16 April 2020
ASSETS - NOM CURBENT ttm) 1eml
Property, plant and equipment 1276 ' CAIHINFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 32 4382
vestment properties B ineome tases pod (485
nongible assers 1234 NET CASH INFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 147
Lang-term finuncial ossets 20 635
Delerrad tox oesats 7 5e Araceeds an disposul of property, plant and agquipment and investment propeny 06 1526
[P Praceads on disposal of intongdiles gsssts 75
ASSETS - CURRENT Procesds on disposal of Lsted wveshinents wnd deevitves 551 4.9
Invantanes ] 10966 11983 Purchase of ossuziates
Trude and ather recervobles ) 5465 4142 Furchase of subsdiares, net ol cash acguied k| 139 4}
Derwative furncal gssats, Eid 554 LY Purchuse ol praperty, plant and eguipmant % 1219 4
Cash ond cosh squivalants 7 4570 5340 earchase of imtangibie assers o ol
11533 L1248 Purchase of listed investments . 1113 3] [24 B)
TOTAL ASSETS ansy . 18622
rowTY Investment income raceved 0§ 0.5
Share copel ™ o e Finance income raceiver 2.0 2.8
Share premiurn 873 6741 - _NETCASM OUTFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES i {200.4) (934
Ireasury sharys raserve EEL] {2987 Lease payments oo 36
Parmansnt cantribution to capital 2 o1 a1 P —— sl s
Capital redamption reserve 25 80 B0
Boerewings difawn down 2 11281 st00
Fotuign currency 1eserve 268 . 779
Reversu combinatian reserve P 49873) (5a71| Botrowngs randd 2 n3nel 14365)
Dwn sharm reseren e 70| Duadends pad ta hen-controlling nferests 103) .
Hedgihg resusrve 25 "s 80 Purchase of own shares 14349
Shara based payment resarve . 13 - NET CASH OUTFLOWS TIVITIES ey
Retamed earings 1554 § 15649 -
ISIUER CAPIVAL AND AT E TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT 119E9 12613 Rt 3K IN CASH AND CASH EQLHVALENTS INCLUDHNG QVERDRAFTS ma a0
Nom-cantrolling terests ot 0 Exchanges movement on cash bolances 1531 50
TOTAL EQUITY 12110 1,140.8 CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS INCLUDING TS AT OF PERIOD 1.0 (1]
LEABILITIES - NON CURRENT CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS INCLUDING GVERDRAETS AT THE PIRIOD ENG 3 4510 5340
7% 5342 452
|RPFNM_._.HH”=”¥ — & am_“ Sn_“ The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these-financial statements.
Deleced tox lighilies 7 270 e
Prowsions 28 3612 360
14302 17233
HLITIES - CURRENT
Decwative finanaial hability 3 52 242
Trade nnd other poyabies 0 646 3 6025
Lugss llobity 26 18RS 419 '
Current o |kl B9y 36
pIIE) [
TOVALLIABILITIES 25MA 25078
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 27881 18832

The accompanying accounting pelicies and notes farm port of these Financial Statements. The
Financial Statements were approved by the Board en 5 August 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

Chris Wootton

Chief Financial Officer
Company number: 06035106
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN EQUITY

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

FRASERS GROUP

* Share copital $hars pramium™ Trecstry shares  $hare scheme resere moif.n:ﬂﬂ._.n-" Owh sham Hderve Retalitad sarhings Other® owners of parsnt Interents Tatal
e} {Eml tm) fm| itm) &m) (Em) I£m) 1Eml {Em) (&Em]
AT 29 AFRIL 2019 [*8] 743 [tk . s [(:X1] 14903 (912.5] 58 1347
Purchase of own shares - {401 - - 02 - [438) las e
Reversest of 112 far valvstion of fhare buyback centractual dhlig - - oo - - o0 - 00
TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS 1M THEIR CAPACITY A8 CWNERS - - [\ ] - - (2] - - LX) - e
Profit for the fineneial pensd - - - - - 38 338 72 016
GTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME.
Cosh llow hedgss - recognised in the period - - - - - 64 164 16 4
Cash flow nedges — inaflectveness - - - 02 037
Cosh flow hedges - reclessified ond reported in snles - (0n A
Gosh flow hedges - rec| ond reparted in cost of sales . - - (37 4) (37 4] - 132.4)
Cosh flow hedges - taxation - - 38 L) a8
Faw valug odjustment in respect of long termn finonciot essets - racogmeed - - - 097 1m0 tsm
Transfatisn ditfersnces - Graug - 98 - - 98 98
TOTAL INCOME FOR THE PERIOD - - - .8 - I 452 T 124
AY 26 APRIL 3010 s 3 7 - ns (sr.0) 15648 {9313 13613 130
ans {note 31} - - - - L)
Shere scheme - 13 a3 47 - @3
Drurdends pad to non-eonteolling inkerests - - - - - oy 0%
TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS IN IHLIR CAPACITY AS OWNERS - - - 13 - 03 wn . e8] [2] n.oy
{Lossi/profit for the financial period - - 1830} - 1930 50 (a0l
OTHER INCOML
Cashflow hedges - recognised in the period - - 04 - 04
Cashllew hedges - raclossified nnd reported m sales - 128 - 2 8f
Cashilow hedges - reciassified and reported in cost of sales - - VAl 1
Cashflaw hedges - taxation - - 3G 10
Fair volue gdjustinent in tespect of lang-ferm hiancwal assels - weogmaed - - 73 73 773
Translation differsnces - Groun - 19 10 - - 491 t49 1)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE JLOSS) FOR THE PERIOD - - e =n 1L 2] n.y 14.3)
AT 28 APRIL 2001 M 21D 12157) 13 .8 lse.1 15548 (a2 123 g Lne
I The share previum occount 15 used to recerd the excess proceuds over nommal volke on the issue of shores
21 Other raserves compmies parmanent contnbubion ta caanal, captal redemption reserve, reverse cambination reserve and the hedaing reserve Al

movements in the penod related to the hedging resarve (nota 25)

The accompanying occounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.
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FRASERS GROUP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Frasers Group plc (Company number: 06035106}
is o company incorporated and domiciled in

the United Kingdom, its shares are listed on the
Lendon Stock Exchange. The registered office

is Unit A, Breok Park East, Shirebrock, NG20
BRY. The principal activities and structure of the
Group can be found in the Directors’ Report and
the ‘Our Business' section.

Busis Of Preparation

The consolidated Financiol Statements have
been prepared in accordance with International
Accounting Standords in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and in
accordance with international financial reporting
stendards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC)
No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European
Union. The consolidated Financial Statements
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified to include fair valuation
of certain financial assets and derivative
financial instruments.

The accounting policies set out below have
been applied consistently to all periods in these
Financial Statements and have been applied
consistently by all Group entities. Certain
subsidiaries have been consolidated based on a
catendar year-end date of 30 April 2021,

The numbers presented in the Financial
Statements have been rounded o the nearest
million.
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The Group's business activities, together with the
factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position are set out in the Chief
Executive's Report and Business Review.

The financial position of the Group, its cash flows,
liquidity position and borrowing fa
described in the Financial Review. In addition,
the Finoncial Statements include the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for managing
its capital, its financial risk management
objectives, details of its financial instruments and
i es, and its exposures to credit risk

The Group still trades profitably, is highly cash
generative and has considerable financial
resources. The Group is able to operate within
its banking facilities and covenants, which run
until November 2022, and is well placed to take
advantage of strategic opportunities as they
arise. As a consequence, the Directors b
that the Group is able to manage its business
risks successfully despite the continued uncertain
ecenomic outlook.

Management have assessed the level of tradirg
to date since the impacts of Covid-19 ond has
forecast and projected a conservative base case
and also a number of even more conservative
scenarios taking into account a potential further
wave and associated lockdowns over winter,
Government support, foreign exchange exposure
and cost saving initiatives, These forecasts and
projections show that the Group will be able to
operate within the level of the current facility and
its covenant requirements (being interest cover
and net debt to EBITDA ratios). Management
also have a number of mitigating actions which
could be taken if required such as putting on
hold discretionary spend, realising certain

assets an the Balance Sheet and paying down
the Revolving Credit Facility. See the Viability
Statement for further details. ‘

Having thoroughly reviewed the Group's
performance and having made suitable
enquiries, the Directors are cenfident that the
Group has adequate resources to remain in

cperational existence for at least 12 menths

from the date of these Financial Statements,
Trading would need to fall significantly below
levels observed during the pandemic to require
mitigating actions or a relaxation of covenants,
On this basis, the Directors continue to adopt the
going voncern basis for the preparation of the
Annual Report and Financial Statements which is
a period of at least twelve months from the date
of approval of these Financial Statements.

Basis Of Consolidation

The consolidated Financial Statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company lits subsidiaries} each year. Control is
achieved when the Company:

+ has the power over the investes;

+ is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

+ has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate thot there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of
the voting rights of an investee, it considers that
it has power over the'investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practicat ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or
not the Company's voting rights in an investee
are sufficient to give it power, including:

»  the size of the Company's holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
heldings of the other vote holders;

+ potential voting rights held by the Company,
other vote holders or ather parties;

= rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

+  any additionat facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Company has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need
to be made, including voting patterns at
previous shareholders’ meetings.

1t create new Bohsh woodiand across tho UK

Consolidation of o subsidiary begins when the
Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss from the date the
Company gains controf until the date when the
Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessory, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
the accounting policies used into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating te
transactions between the members of the Group
are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
identified separately from the Group's equity
therein. Those interests of non-controlling
shareholders that are present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets upon liquidation may initially be
measured at fair value or at the nen-controlling
interests' proportionate share of the fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement is made on an coquisition-
by-ccquisition basis, Other non-controlling
interests are initially measured at fair value.
Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus the
non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent
changes in equity.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to

the owners of the Company and to the
ron-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of the subsidiaries is attributed

to the owners of the Company and ta the
nen-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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For business combinations achieved in stages, in profit of logs in the periad in which the
the Group remeasures its v-m&ocm_z reld squity investment is acauired.

interest in the acauiree at its acquisition date
fgir value and recogrises the resulting gain

At the acquisition date, the identifiable ossets
acquired and the lighiiities assurmed ore
recagrised at theil fair volue ot the acguisition
date, exceplt thot:

the non-controting interests are adjusted to ot loss, if any, the Income Statement as

Chonges in the Group's interests in subsidiaries
that do net result in aloss of controt aré
accounted for as equity transactions. The

carrying amount of the Group's interests and The regquitements of (AS 3G are applied to

determine whether it is necessary ko racognise
any impairment loss with respect to the GIoup's
investment in an associcte. When necessary,
the entire carryind gmount of the investment
fincluding goodwi is tested for impairment

. deferred rax assets of liabilities and ossets
or liabilities related to employee phenefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with JAS 12 and 1A5 19

reflect the changes ia their relative interests appropriate:
in the subsidiaries. Ay difference petween
the amount by which the nen-controlling

interests are adjusted and the fair value of the

Associvtes

An associote is oo enkity over which the Group

consideration paid er received is recognised respectively; e . o in occordance with AS 36 as a single asset by
directly in mn:w.< and attributed to the owners . liabilities or equity nstruments retated ”_amu Mw._wﬁnoﬂﬂ:wuﬂmmmz“u&hﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂ“ﬁ””m comparing s recaverchie arourt {higher of
U A4 ) g voalue in use ond fair value tess costs of digposal)

of the Company. to share-based payment arrangerments
of the acquiree of share-based payrment in the

grrongements of the-Group enterad

ant influence is the power to participate
inancial and gperating P icy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control

with its carrying amount. Any raversc) of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with IAS 36 ta the extent that the recoverable

ehan the Group loses contral af @ subsidiary.
the goin of lass an disposal recognised in profit

Printed an Steinbers 100% Feoycied 41K

orlossis calculoted as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideratiort received and the fair value of any
retained interest and. tit) the previous carrying
amount of the assets fincluding maoas.____.

1ess hobiliies of the subsidiary and any
non-comreiing interests. All amounts praviously

inko to replace share-hosed payment

arrangements of the acquire are ME
in accordance with [FRS 2 at the acquisition

dote {see pelow) and

. assetsior disposal groups) that are

classified as held for saie n accordance
with |FRS 5 are measured in accordance

osufed

over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of
assockikes are incorparated in these financial
staternents using the equity method of
accounting, except when the investment is
classified a8 held for salein which case itis’
accounted forin accordance with IFRS 5.

ampount of the investment subsequently
increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method from the dote when ihe vestment
ceqses to be an associate, When the Group
retains an interest in the former associcte
and the retained interest is a finoncial asset,

recognised in other comprenensive income in with that Standard. finan
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for Under the equity smethod, an investment the Group measures the retained __._n.mqmﬂ
as if the Group had directly disposed of the Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum in an associate is recognised initially in the ot fair vaue ot that date ond the folf

reloted assels of liobilities of the subsidiary
(e reclassified to profit or lass ot transferred -
to another cotegory of equity 0% requited/
nmi._._.amu by applicoble \FRS Standards). The
fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control

is lost is regarded as the fair valug on i al
recognition for subseguent pocounking under
\FRS 9 when apphcable, of the cast on initial
recognition of an investment inan associate O
a joint veriture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition methed. The consideration
transferred in @ business combination is
measured at fair value, which is caoleuloted
as the sum of the cnnim#.,o?n_onm fatie values
of assets transferred to the Group, ligbilities
incurred by the Group to the forme? TS
of the acquiree and the equity interest issued
by the Group in exchange for control of

the acquiree. pnﬂ:,mﬁoﬁ.qm_oﬁn costs are
recagnised it profit of loss as incurred.
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of the consideraticon tronsfesred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the ocquires,

and the Fair value of the acquirer’s previously

held equity interest in the acquiree {if any} over
on-date amoun
identifiable ossets aoguired and the licbilities
assumed. If, ofter ceassessment, the net of
onn_._.m_:o:\mowm amounts of the den
es assume:
n transterred, the

the net of the acqul

assets acquired and lia
the sum of the considerd

amount of any nan-centrelling interests n the
acauiree and the fair value of the acquirer's
i oy,

profit or

_".B<._o:mz held interest in the acguiree
the excess s recognised immediately in

loss as a bargain purchase gain.

gncedlantd Tt e

sty A

ts of the

the
whoble
d exceeds

consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter 1o recognise the
Group's share of the profit or ioss and other
comprehensive income of the associate- When
the Group's share of losses of an associate of
a joint venture avceeds the Group's interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, n substonce, form part of the
Group's net investment in the assaciate), the
Group discontinues recognising 1ts share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group hos incurred
jegal of constructive obligations o¢ made
payments on behalf of the assaciote.

An investrment in an associote is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associgte. On
acquisition ol the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cast of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of

the identifiable ossets and liobilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill which is
included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and linbilities over the cost of the investiment,
after reassessment, 18 recagnised immediately

ot e LK

value is regorded @5 its fair value on jnitial
recognition in accordance with 1FRS 9. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
assaciate ot the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest ond any proceeds from disposing of

a part interest in the associate is included

in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate, N addition, the Group
accounts for oll arnounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive incemne in relation te
that associate en the same basis as would be
required if thot associote hod directly disposed
of the related assets oF liabilities, Therefore, if

a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive Income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposat
of the related assets of liobilities. the Group
reclossifies the gain of loss from eduity te profit
or joss los @ reclassification ou._.._mw_...__m:n._ when
the associote is disposed of.
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When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate but the Group continues to

use the equity method, the Group reclassifies
to profit or loss the proportion of the gain

or loss that had previously been recognised

in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain er loss would be reclassified to profit

or less on the disposal of the related assets

o liabilities. When o group entity transacts
with an asseciate of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associote that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue with customers is measured based on
the five-step model under IFRS 15: 'Revenue
from Contracts with Customers';

1. identify the contract with the customer,;

2. identify the performance cbligations in the
contract;

3. determine the transaction price;

4. allocate the transaction price to separate
performance obligations in the contract;
and -

5. recognise revenues when [or as) each
performance cbligation is satisfied.

Revenue is medsured at the fair value of the
consideration received, or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. Customers have a right of
return within a specified period and this gives
rise to variable consideration under IFRS 15,
The right of return asset is recognised within
inventory, with the refund liability due to
customers on return of their goods recognised
within trade and other payables.

In the case of goods seld through retail stores,
revanue is recagnised when we have satisfied
the performance obligation of transferring the
goods to the customer at the point of sale, less
provision for returns. Accumulated experience is
used to estimate and provide for such returns at
the time of the sale. Retail sales are usually in
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cash, by debit card or by credit card,

In the cose of goods sold on the internet

where the customer has opted for delivery,
revenue is recognised when we have sotisfied
the performance obligation of transferring

the geads to the custermer, which is the point
of delivery to the customer. Transactions

are settled by credit card or payment card.
Provisions are made for internet credit notes
based on the expected level of returns using the
expected volue method, which in turn is based
upon the histarical rate of returns. In the case
of internet click and collect orders which are
collected in store, the performance abligation is
deemed to have been satisfied when the goods
are dispatched from the warehouse,

tn the case of goods sold to other businesses
via wholesale channels, revenue is recognised
when we have satisfied the performance
obligation of transferring the goods to the
customer upon delivery. Payment terms are
generally 30-60 days with no right of return.

In the case of income generated from
trademarks and licences, revenue is recognised
based either on a fixed fee basis or based

on sales with specified minimum guarantee
amounts in accardance with the relevant
agreements. If the sales-based royalty is not
expected to clearly exceed the minimum
guarantesa threshold, revenue is recognised over
the rights period measured on the basis of the
fixed guaranteed consideration. Revenue above
the minimum guarantee threshold is recognised
as earned based on the contractual royalty rate
applied to the sales,

Revenue from Gym membership fees is
recognised on the accruals basis over the
related membership period. :

In the case of revenue from third party
commission on concession sales within the
Heouse of Fraser department stores this

is recognised when goods are sold to the
customer. As we act as the agent this is
stated at the value of the commission that
the Group receives on the transaction rather
than the gross revenue from the sale of the
concessionaires’ goods.

The Group operates loyalty programmes
which allow membaers to accumulate points
on purchases and receive exclusive offers and
benefits. The fair value of the points awarded
to customers is determined relative to the
total transaction price and accounted for as
a separate identifiable compeonent of o sales
transaction. Revenue is deferred to match

the estimate value of earned loyalty points.
Deferred revenue is adjusted for the value of
points that are not expected to be redeemed
by customers based on historical redemption
rates. When the points are redeemed and the
Grouy fulfils its abligations pursuant to the
programimas, the revenue that was deferred is
recognised. In the UK points awarded expire
foliowing a period of 12 manths of inactivity,
in Spain they are valid until the end of the
following calendar yeor.

Revenue from gift cards and vouchers is
recognised when the cards or vouchers are
recdleemed by the custorner, breckage is
recognised when the likelihood of the card
or voucher being redeemed is remote or
has expired. For gift cards monies received
represent deferred revenue prior to the
redemption.

Government Grants

Gavernment grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
thermn and that the grants will be recejved.
Grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in the Income Statement in the
pericd in which they become receivable.

The Group has received Government support

in the period relating to business rates relief
and the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme
{CIRS} as o result of the Covid-19 pandemic.
The amount received by the Group (including
the UK} in the period in regard to the CJRS (or
equivalent where received in non-UK territories)
wuas approx. £80m. The amount of business
rates relief received by the Group in the period
{or equivatent where received in non-UK

territories) was approx. £97.5m. Government
grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised in profit or loss as a
deduction against the related expense over

the periods necessary to match them with

the related costs. The amounts quoted have
been recognised in Selling, distribution and
administrative expenses in the period.

Exceptionol Items

The Group presents exceptional items on

the face of the Income Statement. These are
significant items of income and expense which,
because of their size, nature and infrequency
of the evenis giving rise to them, merit
separate presentation to allow shareholders

to better understand the elements of financial
performance in the year, so as to facilitate
comparison with prior periods and assess
trends in financial performance more readity.

Interest Income

Interest income is reported en an accruals bosis
using the effective interest method.

Taxation

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the Income Statement,
except to the extent it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. The inceme tax expense or
credit for the period is the tax payable on the
current periods taxable income, based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction,
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences
and to unused losses.

Deferred taxation is calculated using the
ligbility method, on tempoerary differences
ng between the tax bases of assets and
s and their carrying amounts in the
consalidated Financial Statements. However,
if the deferred tox arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting
not taxable profit or loss, it is net accounted
for. Deferred tax on temporary differences

Prited an Slenbeis 1004 Recycled o
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associoted with shares in subsidiaries is

ot provided if reversal of these temporary
differences can pe controlled by the Group
and it 1% u:ugc_m that reversal w | not occur n
the foreseecble future. in addition, tax josees
auaitable to be corfied forward 0% welh s other
income tax credits W the Group o€ assessed
for recognition 43 deferred tox pesets. Defatred
fox is detervined using Tax rokes and Yows thot
have beenl enacted forf substantively anocted)
by the patonce chest dute and are expected
vo oppty wheo the related
realised of the deferre

peferred X Yiabilities ore nﬁz.ﬁm& in tull.

B Deferred tox astets are «mncm:ﬁmu to the extent
that tis _uﬂoc_o,u_m that future taxoble profits
will be available against which the ternporary

differences can e utilised: Delferred tax Qssets
ara offset wihere there 89 legalty enforceablée

fght 1o offset current tax assets and liobilities

and where the deferred tax palances relate to

the sume 10X authority.

Chonges in current and deterred tox gusets of
ligbilities Are recognised 08 @ component of
rax expense in the nComE Grotement except

in other ooBvErmsﬁ,_m income or charaed &f
credited diractly o equity in which case the
related defarred tax is alse charged to other
comprehensive incame of cradited directly to
equity. Deferred tax assets and Laobilities are
not discounted.

Goodwill

Goodwill arisind on consclidation is secognised
as an asset and reviewed for irpairment

ot least anmudily oF when a change n
circumsiances of sityation indicotes that the
oaoa_.zE has suffered a0 jpapcirment toss. The
need for ._Bnn._«am:ﬁ 15 tested by comparing the
recaverabhe amouni of the nﬂmr.mmsmqna:@ unit
{CGUL which is the higher of fair value \mgs COSLS
to sell ond wolue in usé to the carrying volue.
Any jpawment is :wnow:wwmm .dB:Jm&..nw&< in
the Income Staterment. impairment |osses of
ac_uas..,s are not reversed Goin® and losses @0
the digposakof o business inglude the amey nt
of goodwili relating to that bustness.

B0
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When the :o:-no_._:o:._:m. interest of o9 existing
subsidiary 18 acquired the corrying vaiue of the
:o:.nc:.:o__._:m_ intevests in the Balance Sheet is
elirninated. ARY gifterence hetween the arnount
1y which the non-controling interest 1% adsted
and the fait value of the consideration paid is
nmnom:.,mma girectly in equity.

Other Intangible Assets

Brands, trademarks ang licences that o€
internatly om:mao«mm are not cecarded on the
Balonce Sheet. pcquired prands. Qnmm_._._nqrm
and licenees aré in ally carried on the
Balance Gheet at cost- The Fair value of brands,
trademarks and licences thot are acquired by
vitue of @ business combination s amwm:a:mm
ot the date of Geauisition and is m:.nmmncgﬂ_.._.
assessed O3 weing-be deemed cost to the
Group.

Expendituse oft advertising and 9932.03__
qcrivites & ecogmised 08 61 eupense 45
incutred.

Amortisation is _ua,..._mmn_ on prands, tradernarks
and licences with a definite \ife on @ stroght
jine basis over their useful aconomic kves

of petween & 1o 15 yedrs and is greounted

For within the selling, distriburion and
oaB.S._mnE«.Em 2YPENSES categony within the
tncome stoternent.

Praperty. Plant And Equipment

properiy. plant and equiprment ot stated

ot historico) cost less depreciatian less a0y
recogrised irpaicment losses. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly c::v:nov_m to

the acquisition or consteuction of these itermns.
Subseauent costs are included in the geset's
carrying amount only when it is nqovo..u_m that
future scanomic penefits associated with the
jtem will flow t© the Group and the costs ¢6N be
ceasured reliably.

Al other costs including repolrs and
maintenance costs and \cloeur costs aT®
charged to e \ncome Staterment in the period
in whigh triey 6re incurred.

oot

omuqmn._on_o_._ is ﬂ.d<.ima on ol propesti.
plant and aquiprnent other than freahold
tand ond 8 cacuioted on @ straight-line bosis,
whichewer 18 deemed by the directors to be

residual value, other than ossets in the course
of construction: over the estimated useful lives,
as follows:

. Eechold puildings - petwaen 1010 15 years
. straight line :

. Lensehold wBﬂqo,,_mam:ﬂw - % yeaus of over
the termn of the lease, whichever s shortest
- chegight tine

. Piantand equiprnertt - petween 350 5 yeors
- straight line

AT This has cesutted in approX. g30m of
additional depreciation being recognised i
the petod. This wos hased on Q@ review of the
freehold property portfolic by managerment
and it Wes deemed avv_.n_u:onm to reduce the
range to better align with the estimate of the
remaining useful lives of the freehold buildings.
This chang® in accounting astimate i expected
o impoct the geprecidtion charge in future
periods ut an esimote of the impoct fas net
heen disclosed due 1o i peing _Bvqan:oa,a_m o
do su given the level of gdditicns and dispesals
that could ve anticipoted pased on historicat
trends.

The assets’ wseful lives and residual volues are
reviewed ond, it on_u-nv:owm. nu_:m«mu ot each
balance sheet doté. The goin of \oss arising N
gdisposal of serapping of N psset is determined
as vhe difference between the cales proceeds:
et of selling costs, and the carrying amaunt

of the osset and is ecagnised In the Income
statement.

property. piant ond aquipment where the
corrying amount 5 (ecavered ﬂ::nﬁn_:.
through @ sales transackion and where @ sale is
considered to be highly wacEm are stated at
the lower of carrying volue and fair value 1ess
costs to sell.

[RORALS
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Jnvestment Prapetties

yrvestrrent propetties, which ate Aefined as
property held for rertal incotne or capital
euﬂamo._azo:. are initioMy Emnm;qma ot cost
being puichose price ond directly attsibutable
expenditurs. whare the intention is 1@ hotd
property o ownes accupied. this is amnom:_mmn_
as property: plant and equipment:

mc__ummncm:.n_a. investenent Eovmﬁﬁmm are hetd
o cost fess o.,o,..cﬂﬁ_.uﬁmn_ depreciation and
iﬂn.:..sm:... lasses. \nvestrent properties are
amﬂ_‘mn._nnma patwesh 10 to 15 yeasrs ctraight
yine, other than the tond element which is nat
amvan,__onmm.

Fair volues of the investment properties are
disciosed.

mpairment OFf Asxets Other Thah Goodwill

At each palance sheet date: the Directors
review the carrying amounts of the Group's
angible and intangible assets, other than
moomi,___, o determiné whethier {here is any
indication thot those agsels hove suffered

on impatsrnent loss, i ony such indication
euists, the recoverable amount of the asset in
its current condition s estirnated N order o
determine the extent of the irmpoirmet Loss, if
any. Where the asset does ot generate cdsh
fows thot ore independent frora othat assets,
the Group astimates the recaverable armount
af the cGUto which the asset pelongs: With
respect to property, plant and nn_:._n_:m:_.._
eoch store is considered ta pe a CGY and
reviewed for impairment whereby changes in
cirgurnstances indicate that the recovercble
arnourt is 1ower than the carfying wctlue.

The recoversble amount is the highat of fair
vatlue loss costs ©© celt and value inuse. In
assessing the value in use the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
yolue vsing 6 pre-tax discount rate that reflects

of meney and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have
not beet adjusted.

1f the recaverable amount of an asset or
CEUlis estimoted to e less than its carying
aenount, The carying arnount of the asset
ceu is reduced to its (ecoverabie araount. An
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Josses, including past events, current conditions.
repsonable and supportable forecasts that
affect the expected collectobiliy of the future
cash flows of the instrument.

n applying this forword-looking opproach, @
distinction 1S made between:

. financial instruments that have not
deterioroted m._m:s._nn:..:_ in credit guolity
since initial recognition of that have low
credit tisk ('5toge 1) and

« finoncio instruments that have geteniorated
u.m_aznoiz in credit quality since initicd
recoghition and whose credit risk not low
{*Stage 27

. “Stoge 3" would cover finoncial ossets where
the credit risk has increased o a point at
which itis considered credit impaired

m2-menth expected credit losses’ are
racognised for the first category while Yifetime
expected cradiit losses are recagnised for the
second category.

Measuremnent of the expected credit losses is
nmﬁm-ﬂ_._.#_md oy ﬂ-og_om_..ﬁ,\-ﬁm._mgma estimate
of credit losses over the expected life of the
financial instrument.

Trade raceivables

The Group makes use of a simpified opproach
ia accounting for trade receivables and records
the loss allowance ds lifatime expected credit
|osses. These are thve expected shadtfalls

in contractual cosh fiows, considering the
_uonm:m_n. for default at arny point during the life
of the financial instrument. In caleulating, the
Group uses its historical experience, external
indicators and tarward-loaking information to
calculate the expected credit losses using @
provision natrix.

Finonciol Liobilities

Cigssification and measurement of financial
liczbilities

The Group's tinancial fiabilities include
porrowings and jease nabilities, trade and other
payables and derivative financiel instruments

d on Steinbels +oney Heeycled

Financial jiabilities are 1 ity measured ot
fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for
transaction costs urtess the Group designated
o financiol liobility at fair vatue through profit
or loss. Gubsequently, financial li es are
measured at arnortised cost using the effective
interest method except for derivatives ond
financial licbilities designated at FVTPL, which
are carried subsequently at fqir value with
gains or losses racognised in profit or loss
{other than derivative financial imstvurnents
that ure designated and effective a8 hedging
instruments).

Al interest-related ¢harges ond. if applicable.
fair volue changes in currency derivative
instrurnents that are reported in profit or loss
are includad within finance costs of finance
income. Fair volue changes in aquity derivative
financiol jnstruments are recagnised it
investment Income or investment costs.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivative financial instrurnerds are sccounted
for at fair value through profit and toss IFVTPL)
except for derivatives designated as hedging
{pstruments in cash flow hedge relationships,
which require d specific accounting treatment.
To quatify for hedge cccounting, the hedging
relationship must meet all of the following
recuirements:

. thereisan economic relationship between
the hedged item and the hedging
instrument

. the effect of credit risk does not dominate
the value changes that result from that
ecaonamic relationship

. the hedge ratic of the hedging relationship
is the same os that rasulting from the
guaontity of the hedged item that the entity
actucily hedges and the quantity of the
hedging instrurnent thot e entity aetuoiy
uses to hedge that quantity ot hedged item

\Writtern aplion contracts do not qualify for
hedge accounting and fair value movements
are recognised dieectly in the Incomé
Staternent.

For the reparting periods under review, the
Group has designated certain forward currncy
controcts as hedging instrumants i cash flow
hedge relationships. These arrongerments hove
been entered into to rnitigate foreign currency
exchange risk arising from certairn highly
probable sales and purchases transactions
denominoted in foreign currencies.

Al derivative financial instruments used for
tedge accounting are secognised initiclly at fair
value ond reported subsequently at fair value in
the Bolance Sheet.

To the extent that the hedge is effective.
changes in the Fair vatue of derivatives
designated @8 hedging instruments in cash flow
hedges aré recognised in other comprehensive
incorne and included within the cash flow
hedge reserve in aquity. Any ineffectveness

in the hedge relationship is recognised
immedictely in profit or loss.

At the hime the hedged item offects profit or
loss, any goin of Joss previously recognised in
other comprehensive (ncome is reclassified
from equity 16 profit of loss and presented

s @ reclossification adjustment within

other comprehensive incorme. However, o
:o:.m:n:n_u_ asset or liability is ﬁmncmammn as
a result of the hedged transaction, the gains
ond losses previousty recognised in other o
comprehensive incame are included in the
initial measurement of the hedged iem.

if o forecost Lransaction s no longar expected
to oceur, any related gain or toss recognised

in other comprehensive income is tronsterred
immediately to profit or loss. If the hedging
relationship censes © maet the effectiveness
canditions, hedge accounting is discontinued
and the related gain of loss is held in the aguity
raserve unkil the forecost yransoaction octHs.

Provisions

A provision s Enom:._wmn. when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation ds
a result of a past event, itis probable that an
outflow of resources will be raguiced to settle
the obligation and a relioble estimate can be
made of the amoutk of the obligotion.

wrosu U
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The Group provides for its tegat respensibility
far dilapidation costs following cdvice frem
chartered surveyers and previous experience
of exit costs. The estimated cost of fulfitling
the leasehold dilopidetions cbligations is
discounted to present value and anatysed
between non-cd pital and capita) components.
The copitcl element is amuagnﬁma over the
life of the osset, The non-capital element is
taken to tha Incormne statement in the first year
of the fease where the cost it representsis af
no lasting benefit to the Group or ks landiord.
~Wear and tear' ¢osts are expensed to e
|ncome Statement Provisions for onerous lease
contracts are recognised when the Group
pelieves the unavoidable costs of meeting the
tegse obligations exceed the economic benefits
expected O be received urder the lease. Legal
provisions {including settlements ahd court
fees) are recognised based on advicé from the
Group's lawyers when it is probable that there
will be an outflow of Tesources and @ reliable
estimate tan be ade.

Other provisions inglude management’s best
estimate of restructuring, smployrent reloted
costs and other claims.

Any reirmbursement that the Group s virtually
certain to collect from a third party with respect
to the obligation is recognised as G separate
asset. However, this asset may not eyceed the
amount of the reloted pravisian.

Ne ligpility is recognised i a0 autftow of
SCONOMMIC TRSOUICES O5 a result of present
obtigations is not probable. Such situations ore
disclosed as contingent liakilities unless the
outflow of resources is remote.

Leases

The Group 0ssesses whether d contract is of
contains ¢ lease, at inception of the contract.
1 ease liabilties are measured at the present
vabwe of the contractual payments due to the
\essar over the lease term, with the discount
rate deterrined by reference to the rate
implicit in the lease unless {as is typically

the cose) this is not veadily determinable, in
which case the Group's incremental borrowing
rate on cofmmencement of the leose 19 used.
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Variable lease payments are only included in
the measurement of the lease ligbility if they
depend on an index or rate. In such cases,

the initial measurement of the lease liability
assumes the variable element will remain
urichanged throughout the lease term. Other
variable lease payments such as reveriue linked
property leases are expensed in the period to
which they relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the
lease liability also includes:

+ amounts expected to be payable under any
residual value guarantee;

= the exercise price of any purchose option
granted in favour of the Group if it is
reasonably certain that the option will be
exercised;

+ any pendlties payable for terminating the
lease, if the term of the lease has been
estimated on the basis of the termination
option being exercised.

The lease liability is presented as a separate
line in the consolidated Belance Sheet.

Subsequent to initial measurement lease
liabilities increase as o resuit of interest charged
at the effective rate on the balance outstanding
and are reduced for lease payments made.

Right of use assets are initiaily measured at

the amount of the lease lighitity, reduced for
any lease incentives (payments made by a
lessor to o lessee associated with a lease, or
the reimbursement or assumption by a lessor of
costs of a Jessee) received or impairment, and
increased for:

+  lease payments made at or before
commencement of the lease;

+ initial direct costs incurred; and

+ the amount of any provision recognised
whera the Group is controctually required
to dismantle, remove or restore the
leased asset, providing it meets the
Groups property, plant and equipment
capitalisation policy.
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When an indication of impairment is identified,
right of use ossets are tested for impairment

in accordance with IAS 36 by comparing the
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal} with its carrying
amount. The right of use assets are presented
within property, plant and equipment in the
consolidated Balance Sheet.

Subsequent to initial meosurement, right-of-use
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the remaining term of the lease or aver the
remaining economic life of the asset if this is
judged to be shorter than the lease term.

When the Group revises its estimate of the
term of any lease (because, for example, it
re-gssesses the probability of a lessee extension
of termination option being exercised), it adjusts
the carrying amount of the lease liability to
reflect the payments to make over the revised
term, which are discounted at a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of lease
liahilities is revised using the original discount
rate when the variable elerment of future lease
payments dependent on a rate or index is
revised. In both cases an equivalent adjustment
is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use
asset, with the revised carrying amount being
armortised over the remaining (revised) lease
term.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual
terms of a lease with the lessor, the accounting
depends on the nature of the modification:

= if the renegotiation results in one or mere
additional ossets being ledsed for an
armount commensurate with the standalone
price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for
as a separate lease in accordonce with the
above policy

+ in all other cases where the renegotiation
increases the scope of the lease (whether
that is an extension to the lease term, or
one or more additional assets being leased,
the lease liability is remeasured using the
discount rate applicable on the modification
date, with the right-of use asset being
adjusted by the some amount

+ if the renegotiation results in a decrease in
the scope of the lease, both the carrying

FRASERS GROUP

amount of the lease liability and right-
of-use asset are reduced by the same
proportion to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or loss. The lease
liability is then further adjusted to ensure

its carrying amount reflects the amount

of the renegotiated payments over the
renegotiated term, with the modified lease
poyments discounted at the rate applicable
on the modification dote. The right-of-use
asset is adjusted by the same amount.

Sole and leaseback

On entering into a sale and leaseback
transaction the Group determines whether
the transfer of the assets qualifies as o sale
{satisfying a perfermance obligation in IFRS
15 ‘Revenue fram Contracts with Customers’).
Where the transfer is a sale and providing
the transaction is on market terms then the
previous carrying amount of the underlying
asset is split between:

+ aright-of-use asset arising from the
leaseback (being the proportion of the
previcus carrying amount of the asset that
refates to the rights retained), and

* the rights in the underlying osset retained
by the buyer-lessor ot the end of the
leaseback.

The Group recognises a portion of the total
gain or loss on the sale. The amount recognised
is caleulated by splitting the total gain or loss
into:

+ anunrecognised amount relating to the
rights retained by the seller-lessee, ond

« arecognised amount relating to the buyer-
lessor's rights in the underlying asset at the
end of the leaseback.

The leaseback itself is then accounted for under
IFRS 16.

Rental income from operating leases where
the Group acts as a lessor is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Treasury Shares

The purchase price of the Group's own shares
that.it acquires is recognised as ‘Treasury
shares’ within equity. When shares are
transferred out of treasury the difference
between the market value and the average
purchase price of shares sold out of treasury is
transferred to retained earnings. :

Employae Benefit Trust

An Empioyee Benefit Trust has been established
for the purposes of satisfying certain
share-based awards. The Group has de-facte’
control over the special purpose entity.

This Trust is fully consolidated within the
accounts. The cost of shares acquired by

the Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust is
recognised within ‘Own Share reserve’ in equity.

Share-Based Payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-hased
payments to certain Directors and employees.
These are measured at fair value at the date of
grant, which is expensed to the consofidated
Income Statement on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with the corresponding
credit going to equity.

Non-market vesting conditions are not taken
into account in datermining grant date fair
value, Instead, they are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments to
vest. At the end of each reporting peried the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
options thot are expected to vest based on the
non market vesting and service conditions. Any
revisions, if any, are recognised in profit and
loss with an adjustment to equity.

|

nited on Stembers 100% Recycled and Carbon Captuied throu

he Woodland Tr e 3 Vwoodland across the UK

st




FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REFORT - 2021

Fair value is calculated using an adiusted form
of the Black-Scholes model which includes o
Monte Carlo simulation model thet takes into
account the exercise price, the term of the
option, the impact of dilution (where materiat},
the shore price at grant date and the expected
price volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend yield, and the risk-free
interest rate for the term of the scheme. The
expected staff numbers used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management's best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions, and behavioural
considerotions,

For cash-settled share-based payment
transactions, the Group measures the services
received and the liability incurred at the fair
value of the lighility, Until the liability is settled,
the Group remeosures the fair value of the
fiability ot the end af each reporting period and
at the date of settlement, with any changes in
fair value recognised in the Income Stotement
for the period.

The credit for the share based payment charge
does not equal the charge per the Income
Statement as it excludes amounts recognised
in the Balonce Sheet in relation to the expected
national insurance contributions for the shares.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liobilities. Equity
instrumnents issued by the Group are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of any direct issue
costs,

Foreign Currencies

The presentational currency of the Group

is sterling. The functional currency of the
Compeny is also sterling. Foreign currency
transactions are tronslated into sterling using
the exchange rotes prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. Exchange differences of
the Company erising on the settlernent of
monetary items, and on the retronslotion of
menetary items, are included in the income
Statement for the period.
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Exchange differences arising on the
retronsiation of non-monetary items carried

at fair value are included in the Income
Statement for the period except for differences
arising on the retransiation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive incorme,
For such non-monetary items, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also
recognised directly in other comprehensive
income. Monetary assets and liobilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rate of exchange ruling ot
the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Non-monetary items that are held at valuation
are translated at the foreign exchange rate at
the date of the valuation.

On consolidation, the ossets ond liabilities of
foreign operations which have a functional
currency other than sterling are tronslated
into sterling at foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date, The revenues and

. expenses of these subsidiary undertakings are
translated ot average rates applicable in the
period. All resulting exchange differences ore
recognised in other comprehensive income
and docurnented in o separate companent of
eguity.

When a foreign operation is sold, the
cumulative exchange differences that have
been recognised as a separate component
of equity are reclassified from equity to the
Income Statement when the disposal is
recognised,

In order to mitigate its exposure te certain
foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into
forward contracts {see Chief Executive's Report
and Business Review and the cash flow hedging
accounting policy).

o ot e

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liahility in

the Group's Financial Statements and as a
deduction frem equity in the period in which
the dividends are declared, Where such
dividends are propesed subject to the approval
of shareholders, the dividends are regarded

as dectared ance shareholder opprovol has
been obtained and they are no longer at the
discretion of the Company.

Materiality

In preparing the Financial Statements, the
Board considers bath quantitative and
qualitative factors in forming its judgements,
and related disclosures, and are mindful of
the need to best serve the interests of its
stakeholders ond to avoid unnecessary clutter
borne of the disclosure of immaterial items.

In making this assessment the Board considers
the nature of each item, as well as its size, in
assessing whether ony disclosure omissions or
misstgtements could influence the decisions of
users of the Finonciol Statements.

New A ting Standeards, Interp
Amendments Adopted By The Group

The Group has not early adopted any other
standard, interpretation or amendment that
hos been issued but is not effective. The Group
applies for the first time the following hew
standards:

+  Definition of Materiaf - Amendments to IAS
Tand (AS 8

« Definition of a Business - Amendments to
IFRS 3

«  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, 1FRS
4 and IFRS 16

+  Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions -
Amendments to IFRS 16

»  Amendments to References te the
Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

By adopting the above, there has been no
matersial impact on the Financial Statements

tations And
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Int ional Fi ial R ing Standards
[“Standards”) In Issue But Not Yet Effective

At the dote of authorisation of these
consolidated Financiol Statements,

there are no standards in issue from the
International Accounting Standards Board
{"tASB") or International Financial Repeorting
Interpretations Committee (FIFRIC") which
are effective for annual accounting periods
beginning on or after 26 April 2021 that will
have a significant impact on these Financial
Statements.
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2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The critical accounting estimates and
judgements made by the Group regarding

the future or other key sources of estimation,
uncertainty and judgement that may have

a significent risk of giving rise to @ material
adjustment to the carrying values of assets and
liabilities within the next financial period are:

Key Judgements
Determining Related Party Relctionships

Management determines whether a related
party relationship exists by assessing the
nature of the relationship by reference to
the requirements of IAS 24, Related Party
Disclosures. This is in order to determine
whether significant influence exists as a
resuit of control, shared directors or parent
companies, or close family relationships. The
level at which one party may be expected
to influence the other is also considered for
transactions involving close family relationships.

Control And Significant Influence Over Certuin
Entities

Under IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures if an entity holds 20% or more of
the voting power of the investee, it is presumed
that the entity has significant influence, unless
it can clearly demonstrate that this is hot the
case. During the period the Group has held
greater than 20% of the voting rights of Studio
Retail Group Ple, French Connection Group Plc
[sold during the period) and Mulberry Group
Plc, whereby management consider that the
Group does not have significant influence over
these entities for combinations of the following
reqsons: .

+  The Group does not have any
representation on the board of directors
of the investee other than a Frasers Group
representative having an observer role
on the board of Studio Retail Group Ple.
Management have reviewed the terms
of the observer arrangement and have
concluded that this does not give them
the right te participate in or influence the
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financial or eperating decisions of Studic
Retail Group Plc. Studio Retail Group Plc
can terminate this arrangement at any
time, and can determine which parts of

the Board meetings the representative can
be present at and what infermction they
are given access to. It should be noted the
Frasers Group representative did not attend
any board meetings in full or part during the
reporting period;

+  Thera is ne participotion in decision
making and strategic processes, including
participation in decisions about dividends
or other distributions;

+  There have been no material transactions
between the entity and these investee
companies;

*  There has been no interchange of
managerial personnel;

+  No non-public essential technical ‘
management information is provided te the
investee.

In assessing the level of control that
management have over certain entities,
management will consider the various ospects
thet allow management to influence decision
making. This includes the level of share
ownership, board membership, the level of
investment and funding and the ability of the
Group ta influence operational and strategic
decisions and effect its returns through the
exercise of such influence. If management

ware to consider that the Group does have
significant influence over these entities then the
equity method of accounting would be used
and the percentage shareholding (disclosed in
note 20) multiplied by the resuits of the investee
in the period [as disclosed in note 34) would be
recagnised in profit or loss.

The Group holds 49% of the share capital of
Four [Holdings) Limited which is accounted
for using the equity methed. The Group does
not have any representation on the board

of directors and no participation in decision
about relevant activities such as establishing
operating and capital decisions, including
budgets, appointing or remunerating key
management personnel or service providers

throuah the Waodlind Trust, help

and terminating their services or employment.
However, in prior periods the Group has
provided Four [(Heldings) Limited with a
significant loan. At the reporting date, the
amount owed by Four {Holdings) Limited for this
[ean totalled £60.0m {£21.6m net of amounts
recognised in respect of loss allowance). The
Group is satisfied that the existence of these
transactions provides evidence that the entity
has significant influence over the investee but in
the absence of any other rights, in isolation it is
insufficient to meet the control criteria of IFRS
10, as the Group does not have power over Four
{Holdings) Limited and therefore Four {Holdings)
Limited is not equity accounted.

Cash Flow Hedging

The Group uses a range of forward and option
contracts that are entered intc at the same
time, they are in contermplation with one
another cnd have the same counterparty.

A judgement is made in determining

whether there is an economic need or
substantive business purpose for structuring
the transactions separately that could not
also have been accomplished in a single
transaction, Management are of the view that
there is a substantive distinct business purpose
for entering into the options and a strategy for
managing the optiens independently of the
forward contracts, The forward and options
contracts are therefore not viewed as one
instrument ond hedge accounting for the

forwards is permitted.

Under IFRS 9.in order to achieve cash flow
hedge accounting, forecast tronsactions
{pnmarily Furo denominated sales and USD
denominated purchases) must be considered
to be highly probable. The hedge must be
expected to be highly effective in achieving
offsetting changes in cash flows attributable
to the hedged'risk. The forecast transaction
that is the subject of the hedge must be highly
prebable and must present an exposure to
vasiations in cash flows that could ultimately
affect profit or loss. Management have
reviewed the detailed forecasts ond growth
assumptions within them, ond are satisfied
that forecasts in which the cash flow hedge
accounting has been based meet the criteria

110 vreate noew Britsh woodland across the UK

per IFRS 9 as being highly probable forecast
transactions. Should the forecast levels not pass
the highly prebable test, any cumulative Fair
value gains and losses in relation to either the
entire or the ineffective portion of the hedged
instrument would be teken to the Income
Statement.

Management considers various factors when
determining whether a forecast transaction is
highly probable. These foctors include detailed
sales forecasts by channel, gecgraphical area
and seasonality, conditions in target markets
and the impact of expansion in new creas.
Management alse consider any change in
alternative customer sales channels that could
impact on the hedged transaction.

If the forecast transactions were determined
to be not highly prebable and all hedge
accounting was discontinued, the Hedging
reserve of £11.5m would be shown in Finance
Income.

Key Estimates

Provision For Obsolete, Slow Moving Or
Defective Inventories

The Directors have applied their knowledge and
experience of the retail industry in determining
the level and rates of provisioning required in
caleulating the appropriate inventory carrying
values. Specific estimates and judgements
cpplied in relation to assessing the level of
inventory provisions required are considered in
relation to the following areas:

a, Continuity inventory

o

Seasonal inventory lines — specifically
seasons that have now finished

Third porty versus own brand inventory
Ageing of inventory

Sports Retail or Premium Lifestyle
Local economic conditions

Divisional specific factors

Fe ™o g0

Increased cost of inventory and lower
margins with the devaluation of the Pound

Over-stock and out of season inventory as
result of Covid-19
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Provision estimates are forward locking and
ate formed using a combingtion of factors
inciuding historical experience, manogement’s
knowledge of the industry, group discounting,
soles pricing protocols and the overall
assessment made by management of the

risks in relation to inventory. Management use
a number of internally generated reports to
monitor and continually re-assess the adequacy
and accusacy of the inventory provision. The
additional cost of repricing inventory and
handling charges in relation to relocating
inventory (tunneiling] are censidered in arriving
at the appropriate percentage provision, The
assessment invalves significant estimation
uncertainty, therefore in order to check

that the assumptions applied remain valid,
management preduces a range of outcomes
and the 'provision is set within this range.

Key assumptions used to create the estimates
are:

¢ Discounting - Based on histerical
experience and management's anticipated
future discounting including the impact of
Covid-19

*  Tunneling - Cost of handling stock far
reworking, repacking and repricing

* Repricing - Labour cost associated with
repricing units of stock

= Shrinkage ~ Stock last through damage ond
theft

Tatal Group inventory provision ot 25 April 2021
i$ 16.6% (FY20: 15.7%). A 1% change in the totol
provision would impact underlying EBITDA by
approx. £13.2m (FY20: £14 2m). Management
da not consider it appropriate to disclose

s for key assumptions in isolction as
in practice changes in one assumption would
lead to an offset in another:

Praperty Reluted Provisions

Property related estimates and judgements
are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience, external advice and other
factors, including expectations of future avents
thot are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances,
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Dilopidations

The Group provides for its legal responsibility
for dilapidation costs following advice from
chartered surveyors and previous experience
of exit costs lincluding strip out costs and
professional fees). Management use a reference
estimate of £100,000 {FY20: £100,000)} for large
leasehold stores, £50,000 [F¥20: £50,000) for
smaller leasehold stores (£25,000 per store

for Game UK and Game Spain stores} ond
$/€50,000 (FY20: $/€50,600) for non-UK stores.
Mancgement do net consider these costs to be
capital in nature and therefore dilapidations
are not capitalised, except for in relation to

the sale and leaseback of Shirebrook in the
prior period in which a material dilapidations
provision wos capitalised.

A 10% increase in ditapidation cost per store
would result in on opprox. £8.0m reduction in
underlying EBITDA.

Other Pravisions

Provisions are made for items where the Group
has identified a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that on outfiow of rescurces will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Legal ond regulatory pravisions relate to
management’s best estimates of provisions
required for lega! and regulatory claims and
ongoing non-UK tax enquiries. Other provisions
relate to management’s best estimates

of provisions required for restructuring,
employment and commercial. Where
applicable these ore inclusive of any estimated
penalties, interest and legal costs. See note 28,

In relation to the non-UK tax enquiries
managemert have mode a judgement to
consider all claims collectively, applying the
following key estimates to the gross amourits
(exciuding re-imbursement assets):

= 10% penalty {FY20: 10%). A 5% increase to
15% would result in approx. £6.5m increase
in the provision (FY2G: approx. E7.0m).

- 3% interest on the liability {FY20: 3%). A
1% increase to 4% would result in approx.
£11.5m increase in the provision (FY20:
approx. £10.0m).

Management are satisfied that the judgement
to consider all claims collectively is the only
reasonable approach because they are ail
dependant on the outcerme of a court ruling on
the interpretation of the non-UK tax enquiries.
Management are sctisfied that with regard to
timing o reasonable range of outcomes are all
greater than one yeor and so are satisfied with
including the provisions as non-current.

Other Regeivabl ts Owed By
Related Parties

And A

Other receivables and amounts owed by
reloted parties are stated net of provision for
any impairment. Management have applied
estimates in assessing the recoverability of
working capital and foan advances made to
investee companies, Matters considered include
the retevant financial strength of the underlying
investee company to repay the loans, the
repayment period and underlying terms of the
monies advanced, forecast performance of the
underlying borrower, and where relevant, the
Group's intentions for the comganies to which
monies have been gdvanced,

lamdd wagun ¢
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IFRS 16

The key areas of judgement in relation to
property leases recognised under IFRS 16
are below: |

IFRS 16 defines the lease term as the non-
cancellable pericd of a lease together

with the aptions to extend or terminate a
lease, if the lessee were reasonaobly certoin
to exercise that option, The Group wili
assess the likelihood of extending lecase
contracts beyond the break date by taking
into account current economic and market
canditions, current trading performaonce,
forecast profitability and the lzvel of capitat
investment in the property.

IFRS 16 states that the lease payments shall
be discounted using the lessee's incremental
borrowing rate where the rate implicit in
the lease cannot be recdily determined.
Accordingly, all Jease poyments have been
discounted using the incremental barrowing
rate {IBR}, The IBR has been determined

by using a synthetic credit rating for the
Group which is used to obtain market data
on debt instruments for companies with the
same credit rating, this is split by currency
to represent each of the gecgraphical areas
the Group operates within and adjusted for
the lease term.

FRASERS GROUP
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The weighted average discount rates based en incremental borrowing rates used throughout the
period across the Group's lease portfolio are shown below. The discount rate for each lease is
dependent on lease start date, term and location.

Leare Torm uK Ruitape Rast of Werid
Uplo 5 yaors 14% - 18% 1% - 0 8% 15% - 1 3%
Greater thon 5 years and up to 10 years 0% - 2% 05% - 12% 25% - 35%

10 years and wp bo ) years 221%-25% Q8% - 1d% 25% - 37%
Greoter than J0 yeors 5% - 28% 1% - 17%, 5% - E%

+  The right of use asset will be reviewed for impoirment at each reporting period in line with 1A5
36 impairment to review whether the carrying omount exceeds its recoverable amount. For
impairment testing purposes the Group has determinad that each store is a separate CGU. The

. recoverable amount is calculated bosed on the Group's latest farecast cash flows which are
then extrapolated to cover the period to the break dote of the iease taking into account historic
performance and knowledge of the current market, together with the Group's views on future
profitability of each CGU. The key assumptions in the calculations are the sales growth rates,
gress margin rates, changes in the operating cost base and the pre-tax discount rate derived
from the Group's weighted average cost of capital using the capital asset-pricing model, the
inputs of which include a risk-free rate, equity risk premium and a risk adjustment {Beta). Given
the number of assumptions used the assessment involves significant estimation uncertainty.
The assumptions used are consistent with thos= disclosed in the Freehold Land and Buildings
and Long-term leasehold section below. Impairments in the period hove been recognised for
the amount of £174.9m, being £168.2m against the right-of-use csset [(E114.1m UK Sports Retail
segment, £20.5m Premium Lifestyle segment, £31.0m European Retail segment, and £2.6m Rest
of the World Retail segment) and £6.7m against plant and equipment (£2.6m UK Sports Retail
segment, £0.5m Premium Lifestyle segment, £3.6m European Retail segment}. The impairments
ware due to the ongeing impact of Covid-19 and the challenges in the retail sector on the
“‘arecast cash flows of the CGU.

The key assumptions, which are equally applicable te each ﬁm_C_ in the cash flow projections used to
support the casmying amount of the right of use asset are consistent with the cashflow projections for
the Freehold land and Buildings impairment assessment.

A sensitivity analysis has been performed in respect of sales and margin as these are considered to
be t1e most sensitive of the key assumptions. With regard to the sales assumption below we have
perfarmed a sensitivity for bath re lockdown in year 1 and a lockdown which lasts four months
compared to two months:

Forasast: impastsfchangain  Impsimentincranse /
{ducrame] Em

15% - improvement 235t

Sales yaar 1 - No lackdown

Sules year 1 - 4 months hackdown

5% - reguction

635

Exetit g Gross Margin yenr 1 » 40

00hps - imprevement

146l

Existe g Gross Margin year 140%

100bps - reduction

53
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Freehold Lond and Buildings and Long-term leasehold

Freehold land and buildings and long-term leasehold assets are assessed ot each reporting period
for whether there is any indication of impairment in line with IAS 36 impairment.

An asset is impaired when the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 1AS 36 defines
recoverable amount as the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs

of disposal and its vaiue in use, the Group has determined that each store is o separate CGU.
Impairments in the period have been recognised in the amount of £117.9m (FY20: £nil} due to the
ongoing impact of Covid-19 and the challenges in the retail sector on the forecast cash flows of

the CGU. This is split £84.4m against freehold land and buildings (E68.7m UK Sports Retail segment
and £15.7m European Retail segment), £3.9m against long-term leasehold {£2.9m UK Sports Retail
segment ond £1.0m Eurcpean Retail segment), £29.0m plant & equipment (£15.1m UK Sports Retail
segment, £8.8m Premium Lifestyle segment, £5.1m Furopean Retail segment), and £0.6m investment
propesty [all UK Sports Retail segment).

Value In Use (VIL)

The value in use is calculated based on five year cash flow projections. These are formulated by
using the Group's forecast cash flows of each individual CGU excluding any Cavid-19 impact, taking
into account historic performance of the CGU, and then cdjusting for the Group's current views on
future profitability of each CGU os a result of Covid-19 and knowledge of the current market. The
key assumptions in the calculations are the sales growth rates, gross margin rates, changes in the
operating cost base and the pre-tax discount rate derived from the Group's weighted average cost
of capital using the capital asset pricing model, the inputs of which include a risk-free rate, equity
risk premium and a risk adjustment {Beta). Given the number of assumptions used the assessment
invelves significant estimation uncertainty.

The key assumptions, which are equally applicable to each CGU, in the cash flow projections used to
suppoit the carrying omount of the freehold land and buildings were as follows:

Koy Yeu 1 Yemr 3 Yeard Yeurs Yoor$
Sales decline 15% 5% A% -3% 2%
Ewsting grass margin » 40% 160bps -150bps -125bps -100bps
Operating costs mcrense per gnnum 3% 3% 3% % i%
Discaunt rate £% 6% &% % 6%

Tarminal growth rate of 2%

A sensitivity analysis has been performed in respect of sales and margin as these are considered to
be the most sensitive of the key assumptions. With regard to the sales assumption below we have
performed a sensitivity for both no lockdown in yeor 1 and a lockdown which fasts four months
compared to two months:

Fareeaut: Impact af: _svn_i_ﬂ."»nl.;_:n»a...
Sates yaor ¥ - No lockdown 15% - improvemnent 1533]
Soles yaor 1 - 4 months lockdown 15% - radhuchion 576
Existing Grass Margn year 1 >40% 100bps - Mmproviment 74
Existing Glass Margm year 1 >40% 100kps - reduchon vi

h woodland across tho UK
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Fair value less costs of disposal

For those CGUs where the value in use is less than the carrying value of the asset, the Eair value less
costs of dispesal hos been determined using both external and internal market voluations. This fair

value is deemed to fall in to Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as per (FRS 13. The property portfolio

consists of vacant, Frasers Group occupied and third party tenanted units, one property can include
afl three types. The following valuation methodology has been adopted for each:

Scoparie.

Valuctian methodslogy

Key assumptions

Vacant units

Esimated Rental Yolue {ERY) and suitalile réverstonary yiel
appled 1o rellact the market to genernte o ngt copuol vakie, A
dleduchion to the Laprei valus generated 15 then made bosed
o tha void penod with oppiiaiie rats paymlile far the wm
ond rent fres ncantive

Vaid penod and rent free band - two bands appled depending
an crcumstonces.

= Tyzorwoud, ] yours rent liee, or
+ 2yeors ved, 3 years rant Tree
“reld bands - ranging from 7% - 15%

Fratars Grous accupied

‘Will s assumed the umit s vacant given theve s no legnlly
Inter-company Gareement in place. T4
| thee st ermount than
deducted kom tha © value generoted by the ERV and
reversianary yield Althaugh we camsider the commercial reglity
15 ehat o valus [ess costs to sall will be higher thon vocant

p this yery 15 10 e with
tath tachnical aecaontng rules and that of sur manugeiment
sxpers

Void penod and rent free band - two bonds oppled depandang
on arcumstonces
+ Tyeor voul. 2 years rent frae, or

- 7 yours void, 3 yetrs ren!
Yield bunds - ranging frem 79% - 15%

Thurd party tensnted

An ERV 15 applied using o percuntage hand on the possmg rent
An oppropnate reversiontty yield 15 appliaa reflecting the sk

of tenant and renewal 1o generate a cupital volus, This will oiso
provids 8 net smiin yald bosed off the current pas

ERV bands applied Lo Bossing rent = rangng from 9% ta -50%
Yield bonds - ranging lam 6 5% 15%

A 10% increase in the market valuation amounts used in the impairment calculations would result in

a decrease in impairment of £7.5m.

The total recoverable amount of the assets that were impaired at the period end was £170.0m, with
£87.0m of this being based on their fair value less costs of disposal and £83,0m being based on their

value in use.

[ ey

Key In Relation To Al tive
Performance Measures

The Directors believe that underlying EBITDA,
underlying Profit before tax and underlying
basic EPS provide further useful information for
shareholders on the underlying performance

of the Business in addition to the reported
numbers and are consistent with how business
performance is measured internally. They are
nat recogaised profit measures under IFRS ond
may not be directly comparable with "adjusted”
profit megsures used by other compenies,

EBITDA is earnings before investment income,
finonce income and finance costs, tax,
depreciation, amertisation and impairment.

tt includes the Group's share of josses from
associated undertakings and joint ventures
Underlying EBITDA excludes the impact of IFRS
16, foreign exchange gains/losses in selling and
administration costs, exceptional costs, and the
profit / loss on disposal of subsidiaries, strategic
investments and properties. Underlying EBITDA
also excludes fair value adjustments on step
aceuisitions.

Management will from FY22 change our main
reporting KP! from Underlying EBITDA to
Adjusted PBT. Thus from FY22 the Group will na
longer report Underlying EBITDA. Adjusted PBT
is Reported Profit Before Tax less the effects of
unhedged FX, exceptional items, and gains and
losses on strategic investments. Management
have taken this decision for the following
reasons:

*  With the continued signficont investment
i and roll out of cur elevation strotegy
on both the physical and digital fronts, |
the importance of depreciation and
amartisation to both the Boord and
our stakeholders in terms of assessing
performance has grown.

- Qurunderstanding from a number of
financial sectors including the benking
sector is that IFRS16 is becoming an
increasingly impertont consideration,
including on covenonts-in many new
financing arrangements.

+  With this new rmeasure being introduced
we are trying to align with the Financial
Reporting Council's thematic standpoint
with regard to ‘alternative perfarmance
measures’ as far as possible whilst retaining
a degree of interpretation given factors
outside of our controk, such as FX and
strategic investments movements which
are exceptionally difficuit to forecast,
particularly months in advance.The
following are further key estimates used
with regard to the alternative performance
measures used by the groug.

Onerous tease provision

Provisions for onerous lease contracts are
recognised when the unavoidable costs of
meeting lease obligations exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received over the term
of the ledse. Where an onerous lease has been
identified, the property, ptant and equipment
associated to that store are diso reviewed for
impairment.

Management use store EBITDA in order to
determine whether an onerous lease exists.
Specific assumptions, which involve the use of
estimates and involve significant estimation
uncertainty, thot ore used to determine the
dppropriate level of provision are consistent
with the cashflow projections for the Freehold
tand and Buildings assessment except for the
following:

+  Discount rate 2% [FY20: 2%) across the
Group

= Opercting costs increase 3% (FY20: 2%}
ccross the Group

*  Store profitability includes 100%
centribution towards central overheads

*  Assumed get out cap of 10 vears (FY20: 10
yeors), being the maximum period for total
unavoidable costs

»  Planned store closures, relocations and re-
brandings

A sensitivity analysis has been performed in respect of soles and margin as these ars considered to
be the meost sensitive of the key assumptions. With regard to the sales assumption below we have
performed a sensitivity for both no lockdown in year 1 and a lockdown which lasts four months

comgpared to two manths:

Pravitlen increass /

FRASERS GROUP

Farocant: Imvpaset of: ecrecmel £m
Stiles year 1- N lorkdown 15% - rmprovenant 1104 4|
Soles year 1 - 4 months lotkdown 1%, - raduchon 1910
Exsting Gross Margin year 1> 40% 100bps - Improverment 0261
Exisling Gross Margin yecir | > 40% 10063 - reduction 75

Further information on the basis of the estimation of provisioning for dilapidations and onerous lease
contracts is detailed in the pro ns accounting policy and note 28,

Impairments of plant and equipment and short-term leasehald improvements of £24.2m hove also
been recagnised os a result of identified onerous lease contracts {£6.4m UK Sports Retail segment,

88 £2.7m Premium Lifestyle segment, £15.1m European Retail segment),

Prated on Stembers 100% Recyclod and Cathon Captured through the Waou
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3. ° FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's current activities result in the
following financial risks and set out below are
management’s responses to those risks in order
to minimise any resulting adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
principally vic:

a. Transactional exposure from the cost of
future purchases of goods for resale, where
those purchases are denominated in o
currency other than the functional currency
of the purchasing company. Transactional
exposures that could significantly impact
the income statement are hedged. These
exposures are hedged via forward foreign
currency contracts which are designated
as cash flow hedges. The notional’and fair
value of these contracts is shown in note 29;

b. Transactional exposure from the sale of
goods, where those sales are denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currency of the selling company.
Transcctional exposures that could
significantly impact the income statement
are hedged. These exposures are hedged
via forward foreign cusrency contracts
which are designated as cash flow hedges.
The noticnal and fair walue of these
contracts is shown in note 2%,

c. Loans to non-UK subsidiaries. These are
hadged via foreign currency transactions
and borrowings in matching currencies,
which are not formaily designated as
hedges, as gains ond losses on hedges and
hedged loans will naturally offset; and

d. The Group uses currency options, swaps
and spats for more flexibility cgainst cash
flows that are less than highly probable
and therefore do not qualify for hedge
accounting under IFRS © Financial
Instruments. Exposures in respect of
written options te sefl Euros or buy USD are
explained in the Financial Review, These
are not hedged and movements in fair
value could significantly impact the Income
Statement in future periods. See note 29,

89

Interest Rote Risk

The Group has net borrowings, which are
principally at floating interest rates linked to
bank base rates or LIBOR. The Group uses
interest rate financial instruments to hedge

its exposure to interest rate movements using
interast rate swaps although hedge accounting
is not applied. The Group regularly manitors
and reacts accordingly to any exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates and the impact on
its monetary assets and jiab

Credit Risk

The Directors have a credit peticy in place
and the exposure to credit risk is monitored
on an ongeing basis, Credit evcluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. The Group does not
require cotlateral in respect of financial assets.

At each balance sheet date, there were no
significant concentrations of credit risk. The
rmaximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset
in the balance sheet, .

Investmaents of cash surpluses, borrowings and
derivative instruments are made through banks
and companies which must fulfil credit rating
and investment criteria approved by the Board.

Liquidity Risk

The Group has sufficient liquid resources to
manage the operating requirements of the
business and it does this through wtilisation

of its revolving credit focilities together with
equity and retained profits thereby achieving
continuity of funding and short-term Fflexibiiity,
while keeping interest to o minimum.

Management regularly review forecasts to
ensure there is adequate headroom on the
facilities and to ensure the Group is operating
within its financial covenants.

Price Risk

The Group is exposed to price risk in respect
of its long term financial assets {in relation to
listed company shares).

The price risk relates to volatility in the market,
and how other comprehensive income and
equity would have been affected by changes
in market risk that were reasonably possible at
the reporting date. If the quoted steck price for
these securities increased or decreased, other
comprehensive income and equity would have
changed. The listed securities are classified as
Long term investments at fair value through
ather comprehensive income so there would be
no effect on profit or loss.

The investments in listed equity securities

{teng-term financial assets} are considered

medium to long-term strategic investments. '
In accordance with the Group's policies, no

specific hedging activities ore undertaken in

relation to these investments.

Capital Manogement

A description of the Group's objectives, policies
and processes formanaging capital are
included in note 29.

led on Stembers 100 Hecycled and Carbon Cagturad through the Woodiand Trast, helping to create new Bubish woodland actoss the UK
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4, SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Management has determined to present

ity segmental disclosures consistently with
the presentation in the 2020 Annual Report.
Management considers operaticnally that
the UK Retoif divisions (UK Sports Retail and
Premium Lifestyle) are run as one business
unit in terms of allocating resources, inventary
management and assessing performance.
Under IFRS 8 we have not at this reporting
dute met the reguired criteria with encugh
certajnty to aggregate these operating
segments. We wiil continually keep this under
review at subsequent reporting dates. We
continue to monitor the impaocts of Covid-19,
Brexit, and the continued uncertointies this
has brought relating to the political and
economic environments, and market and
currency volatifity in the countries we operate

in. European countries have been identified as
operating segments and have been aggregated

into a single operating segment as permitted

under IFRS 8. The decision to aggregate these
segments was based on the fact that they each

have similar economic characteristics, similar

long-term financial performance expectations,

and are sirmilar in each of the following
respects:

*  The nature of the products;

= The type or class of customer for the
products; and

*  The methods used to distribute the
products.

9Q
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Ih accordance with paragraph 12 of IFRS 8
the Group's operating segments have been
aggregated into the fellowing reportable
segments:

1. UK Retail:

i. UK Sports Retail - includes core sports
retail store operations in the UK, plus all
the Group's sports retail online business
{excluding Bob's Stores, Eastern
Mountain Sports, Malaysia and Baltics),
the gyms, the Group's Shirebrook
campus operations, GAME UK stores
and online operations, and retail store
operations in Northern ireland.

Premium Lifestyle - includes the

results of the premium retail businesses
Flannels, Cruise, Van Mildert, Jack Wills,
House of Fraser ond Sofo.com alang
with related websites.

2. European Retail - includes all the Group's
sperts retail stores, management and
operatiens in Europe including the Group's
European Distribution Centres in Belgium
and Austria, as well as GAME Spain stores
and Baltics online.

3. Rest of World Retail - includes the results of
U5 based retail activities, Asia based retail
activities, along with their e-commerce
offerings.

4. Wholesale & Licensing ~ includes the results
of the Group's portfolio of internationally
recognised brands such es Everlast,
Karrimor, Lonsdale and Slazenger.

it is management's current intention to run the
Group as four operating segments being UK
Retail (incfuding UK Sports Retail and Premium
Lifestyle), European Retail, Rest of World Retail
and Wholesale & Licensing. Management is
satisfied that the UK Sports Retail and Premium
Lifestyle will meet the criteria permitted under
IFRS 8 to aggregate as one segment in due
course.

Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended

25 April 2021:

[ Premiwm UKHRetail  Qurpenn e Totul  Whelasale Eliminations Greup
sparta Lifestyle Tetal Rutail Werld Ratoil Retali & Licaming Tatal
Em e Hmi L ) [LL] 1Em tm m|
Sales to exteronl customers 15685 7356 17049 £15.2 1527 24720 1533 16283
Solac 1o other segments - - - - 354 195 4] .
REVENUE 196838 735.4 27044 a2 (D] 14110 usy {954} 34350
Gross proht 8293 3303 1159.6 2397 640 14813 675 1510,
OPERATING PROFIT/
{LOS3) BEFGRE FOREIGN
EXCHANGE, EXCEPTIONAL 7 120 Iy 196 13} LR} s
ATEMS, DISPOSAL OF
PROPRRTIES AND IFRS 16
E sems {44} (15) 5.0 (R - [1A)]
Beoht an disposal of 75 ) 75 ) ) s . .
intongible assets
t on sule of properhes 10 - 1) v ion 37
Foraign exchongs reolisen 120,21 ez 1204} 08 141 gy 5.3 -
IFRS 16 adjustinent Jeakl] 17 0.2} 8z 1354 (65.9) -
OPERATING (LG SSI/PROF] [se.3] 218 (36.4) (334 "e 5.3 s
Invastment income 037
tovestiment Costs on
Fingnce Incoma [
Finance costs 4.y
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION =
Tawotion (sa.51
LOSS FOR THE PERIOD 8.0}
Other segment items included in the Income
Statement for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021:
.
K Framium UK Retadl  Eurepaan Totat  Whelerale Group
Sporta Lifestyln Tetul Retail Retall & Licoming Tetal
1Em) &ml {Em) {Eml (L] lEml {wm)
Digparty, plunt & vawiLmant deprecotron 1538 04 .2 23 218.2 17 164
Property vlanr & rouipment impoitment 956 2o 1w 406 14b2 - el
IFRS 16 ROU depreciatan 515 6 519 ng 11 LY 1t
1FRS 16 ROU imparrment 1441 204 e 30 76 Haa 0.2
Investment proparty depreciahion 19 1% 13 - 18
Invastinest properly impairment ue - as (L] 0.6
T e e 200 i8) 125.8) na o7 L] @
Inrangibte amort - - PE) 05 a6 m
It gabla smoarrment a7 23 &0 1 - 21 - 11
LIk
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Informatien regarding segment assets and liabi
the 52 weeks then ended:

fes as at 26 April 2020 and capital expenditure for

Greup

UK Prmiim  UKRetol  Burepesn  Restof Totdl  Whelssale Group
sporte  Lifastyle Total Betail World Retall Retall & Liconting Tetal
1Em) {Em) iLm) o) (2] lem) 4Em) {Em) (tm}
To al assets 35357 4387 39718 6708 158 & 3447 n3629 R 2]
To al hubllitey 12,157 8) 499 6} (2.557.4) 857G} 1959 {127 5) 13863 % (1,504}
Tangible asset addilions T4 6 e 763 174 30 ey 15 174
Rk of use nssel wdditors bk i hal 2343 24 ma k] 3
Int angible gssets arquirad 37 3 L] - 4.0 10 1.0
Segmental information for the 52 weeks endad 26 April 2020:
UK Premlum  UKRelod  Rurcpsan  RustOf Total  Whelesate Lo Group
Sperts  Lifestybe Total Ratall Wacld Retali Wetall & Licanting b Total
{Lm) (Em) (Em} \£m} iEm| {£Em) (L (Ewl Eml
Sales to external custoinars 27033 720 1,915.3 84972 1747 1797.2 160 2 198T4
Salss to ather segmants - - - - 178 {128}
REVENUE 2,200 o 2383 any 4.2 savia mo .y 198574
Gress profit 903 2 3486 11518 2675 77a 1,597 655 1,681.6
OPERATING PROKIT {
ILO3S| BEFORE FOREIGN
EXCHANGE, EXCEPTIONAL us.s {18.0) me us ns) 1203 i iy
ITEMS AND IFRS 16_-
Exceptional tems 127 1#%1 135t [ nal
rofit on sala of propertes 33.2 183 a4 - M2 LTR]
Foraign exchonga reclissd 155 14 0.9 41 04 pLEY {05) 4.9
IFR3 15 adjustments 23 [CXi] [L2)] [465| 79 [4%.0) {48.0)
QOPERATING FROFIT / ILOSH) 2019 13120 1.y 104} 3 1%1.0 10.9% - ey
Inve strnent incorne 6.2
Inve stinant cosis {4r8)
Finance incomea no
Fin< nce cost fav.3)
Sha'a of loss of ossociated v
undartakings L
Far walue gain on step 204
oo stion
PROFIT REFORE uirs
Toxatian 23)
PROFIY FOR THI PERIOD 1010
Sales to other segments are priced ot cost plus @ “0% mark-up.
Other segment items included in the Income Statement for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020:
UK Premim SCuregecn  RestOf Totwl  Whelutale Greup
Sports  Lifestyle Retall Warld Retail Retail & Licapulng Yatol
£m) IEm] {Em) {Em} Eml 1Ewm] 1émi
Depreciatbion 9B 5 207 394 48 w34 - 14 1640
IFRS 16 ROU deprecinlion/impairment na 161 770 W3 2193 - s
IFRS 16 disposal of leuse liabillties fn w021 "4 102 3 - s
Excestano] Imparment 27 69 % EX] - n1 51
Amatisatan/impamnent 21 0 41 £ 0 174 w4

9N

ﬁ .

ted on Stenbers 100% Recycled and ©

athon Gapturcd throuagh the Woodkind Trust, helpireg Lo creak

(1.9 Premium UK Retail Eurepaan Rast OF Tetol Whelesale Elimi
Sperts  Lifustyle Fatal Ratall World Retail Ratall & Lieoruing ' mineions Yoral
tEm em lEm) tEm tem) tem) tEm )
Totul assets 33249 4747 3790.6 4559 1286 4,304 344 3 (860 2]
Total habilibes 11986 8] (556 1] 12,342 {6270] (1951 {3,263.0) 183 1) 8602
Tangible asset odthtions 2368 254 162.2 487 125 prit - - s
Prght of use nweat addtuons, SO5 119 ThE 55 11 bk - 011
Irtangible assats ac gquired 27 HG 114 31 147 - H.1
Geographic Information
Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021:
(13 Eurepr usa Asin Ellminatiens Total
(L} (Em} 1Em| fEm} (£} em}
Segmentul tavenue from exturnal customers 2317 6546 2 2137 &37 - 14153
Total copibal expanditure 196.5 124 32 23 - 2194
Non-current seament ossets” 10523 e W 48 - 11905
Total segmental ussats 42647 5857 2562 a9 3629 81
*Exciudes delerred tax and tnancial instrumeants.
Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020:
uK Non-UK us Asio Eliminotiens Tatal
et et (L] 1Em) i£m) 1m)
Segmentol revanue from external custamers 295t 0 7223 352 489 - 19514
Totol copital expenditue 2625 568 1% 23 - ms
Neon-current segrmenta| assets® RAEPLY 13 204 138 - 1500y
Totol sugmenial assats kE:Lab] 4733 1845 9L {B&0.2} 30882
*Excludes delerred tax and financial ingtruments
Material non-current segmental assets ~ by @ non-UK country:
USA  Nelgium  Aurbin Edshin leaband $pain
m [l Kl 1eml Iimy tem)
lagil 1237 ELL] 274 - 129 59
Yo 1738 412 30,3 242 529 167
Matericl segmental revenue frem external customers — by o non-UK country;
usA Balglum Austrig Eetonid Ireland Spain
(e ) temd {Em) lew) Tem)
latil 2137 931 421 967 954 2081
FY1D . 2352 955 55,2 1031 1473 841

Note the Group has no individual customer which occounts for mere than 10% of revenus in the current or prior penod

w Bntish woodinnd aeross the UK
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The following table reconciles the reported operating profit to the underlying EBITDA as it has been 5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
one of the main measures used by the Chief Operating Decision Maker when reviewing performance
during th iod: 2 weaks snded 1 weaks sndnd
uring the penica: 125 Apeil 2021 28 Al 2020
_— . . . , t - Em)
Reconciliation of operating {loss)/profit to underlying EBITDA for the 52 week period il L
ended 25 April 2021: Rent recawobly 61 163
v ) Other 207 162
o 18.8 3.8
UK3pons  Pemium  UKRehsl  Eurepssn ool L taial VROl _
Retail Lifestyla Tokad Retell World Retwil S Litansing Other operatg iIncome relotes ta charges for airerat, lease surreadar premims, od hot iNcome and sundry charges 1o third parties
(Em) lEm) (&) {Em} Em) [Em) {Cm} (L)
DPERATING 1LOSS)/ PROFIT ) s 64) t53.4) s asa) s 1803) 6. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
1{FRS 16 dispesal ond madificohon/ -
ratmegsurement of lease lial oo i ay hel oA el 153 531 wesks ended
26 Apri 1010
IFRS %% RCOU depreciotion 515 LE] 5T ny 72 21 - EFA D [
RS ¥ ROU wenpairmant i s 146 EL 25 [} - 1842
Impoirgns i
”wamuamv.vucs,n including investment 1557 204 1761 253 57 ma 12 213 Praht on dispossl of intangible ussets o
erty)
i Han
PPE imprirment including mvestment 962 wo 1042 4G5 N 14sa - Y17
nroperty) The irmpairment in both the current ond priar veas selotes 1o gooduwill, wheraby the discounted present volua of future cnsh lows de net support the full
Intangile amortisation B B . o5 B o8 56 1 value of the assets, The ot an disposal of ntangible assets relates ta the sals of cerain I relating ta the BELONG husmass
REI D& F X 4ua H"Hs us N1 ey 5363
PORTLR Rar w3l 4 7 PROFIT ON SALE OF PROPERTIES
(Proftiioss on sals of properties hol - 1oy 188 o1 L] - on
$2wnnkt anded 52 wavks anded
Exceptionat terns D) 16 ns) n 1. - 16 35 Aprin2021 26 Apiil 020
IFRS 1 adjustments 17611 1235 16351 o4 11619) 1191 [ {£mi
Renlised FX lots / (gmin) 702 0.2 04 [ oL-1] 14 no $3 263 Proht on sohe of svoperties 97 54 7
UNDERLYING EBITOR, a2 s my a1 ®8 20 u0 1908 1 on the sale of properties  th current eriod includes gans on the sale of Evranenn propertiss. The pnor pannd largsly celutes to tha gain an
aseback of the Shirebrook drstrbiution centre funits A, 8, C. D and F Brook Park East, Shirebrock NG20 8RY]
n Relates to the reversal of IFRS 16 rent ond onerous lease prowsions
Reconciliation of operating profit to underlying EBITDA for the 52 week period ended 26 April 2020: 8.. OPERATING ﬁ_-omm-\VDO_u_._. FOR THE PERIOD
UK Premium | UKRéod Bwspean  RestOf Totel  Whelmsal Group Operoting (loss)/profit for the periad is stated after charging/(crediting):
iparts Lifsatyle Tetal Ratail Werkd Retail Ratwil & Licaniing Tatal -
teml {Em] Em ml Hm) kem} IEm) {Em} 52 waaks wnded 52 wesks widad
25 Aprit 2621 18 Aprl 2030
OFT / (Loss) 107.9 22.3) 4y a4} 3.3 181.0 109 m.y
IFRS 16 D1 i of | abilit 27] [E 3. 16 4} 04 tXY 4.8) 1£m) ieml
of I X i e - .|
(oo o pasn Iy Akl ! o ou 8 Foreign exchange loss £ Igoin] 243 (349
IFRS 1§ ROU deprevitian/impairment 1t 161 1253 770 13 m3 - 1.5 ANG " RENT ASSETS:
IFRS 16 PPE impoimment 12 . 33 60 - 12 2 -Deprecict on of property, plunt & enuiprment (incl nght-of-use asset] 2985 258 4
Depraciabion 853 LT 15y 333 48 a2 14 1558 wawment of prepey, plant & squipment incd nighr- se Gsset| 314 226
Amerteation/mpairment Py 70 ar v . o 25 105 Depreciatian of investmertt praerties 19 13
“Impranment of NYCStment proparty 06 -
Share of toss of ossocated undeakings 0591 - (153 - - {15y
-Amortisation of Infangible assets 7 s
REPORYED EAITDA (oY) sz 4083 1018 “A 162 e enpraeet ot magbl avets o1 o
Prafit gn sole of properties. 1332 - .2 210 {54.2) JFRS 16 LEASES:
Exceptisnol itams 27 69 13 35 - ‘m1 Brofit an dispesal and modificat-enfrermeasurement of fease hai {273) {93)
IFRS 16 odjustmants W59 161 n2z2m) (o) Ho s (28 Vanoble lease puyrents 25 158
- Shart termond low wlue lease expenses. né 560
Realised FX [gaind / loss e (15 a0y a2 oA [L1%)] 04
UNDERLYING ESITDA, T4 45 mp e 16.3) mee 22

i} Relarus to the reversal of IFRS 16 reat ond onerous fease provitans

92
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m,m-<_ﬂmm PROVIDED BY THE GROUP'S AUDITOR

The remuneration of the auditors, RSM UK Audit LLP. and associated firms, was as detailed below:

. 53 wanks etidad $1 weshs onded
25 April 2031 24 April 2020
iEm) (Lm

AubIT
Autit of the Group ond company - fecuming 1% 16
Audit of the Group and company - non-fecurnng a1 04
Audit of subsidiary companies - 08 a8
Audit reloted assurance senaces N - 01
14 28

There were no non-audit services provided in either the current or prior period.

9. PAYROLL COSTS

The average monthly number of employees, including Executive Directors, employed by the Group
during the period was:

5 weahs ended 52 wasks snded

25 April 2021 26 April 3020

Retci slares FrAky] 25,508
Dustribution admnistrotion and ather 4374 Ah7a
16494 30,178

The decrease in employees is mainly due to natural ottrition, including in port, the integration of new
acquisitions.

The aggregate payrall costs of the employees, including Executive Directors, net of amounts received
from Governiment gronts, were as follows:

52 waeks snded 32 washs ended
25 April 2020 26 Aptll 2020
Wages and salanas 1422 45h 4
Sorinl secunty cotrs 291 305
Pansion casts 3 S6 59
bdd 4¥1.8

Aggregate emoluments of the Directors of the Company are summarised below:
STwnrhs ended 52 wanks sndnd
2 apHl 2024 16 Apeil 2020
fEmy e}
Aggreyats emaluments 05 v

Further details of Directors’ remuneration are given in the Directors' Remuneration Report. Details of
key management remuneration are given in note 34
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10. INVESTMENT INCOME

53 waaks ended 52 weakis sndnd

23 April 2021 26 April 2010

(Em} . {Em)

Proht on disposal of fnoncid assets ond equity dernvalive financial instruments .2 74
Prermum recevad on darvatve fmanei truments. 06

Fonrr vzlue gam on equity senvotive linancial instruments 55.7 73

Oividend income 05 k]

107 15.2

The profit on disposal of financial assets mainly relates to Hugo Boss contracts for difference. The
fair value gain on equity derivative financial instruments mainly relates to Hugo Boss optiens and
contracts for difference. The premium received on derivative financial instruments mainly relates to
Hugo Bess options.

11. INVESTMENT COSTS

32 wanks snded 52 weekiwndad

2% April 2021 15 ApH 2020

Em) 1Em]

Loss on dispesal of financial ossets and equity denvative o
Foe wveslus Inss on equity denvotive inancial instruments 77 358
15 4

The fair value loss on equity derivatives in the current period mainly relates to movements in
contracts for difference.

The loss on disposal recognised in the prior period mainly relates to the sale of equity derivatives.
The fair value loss on equity darivatives in the prior period mainly relates to Hugo Boss options and
commodities.

12, FINANCE INCOME

$2 weaks anded 52 wanks sndad

25 Apri 1031 16 April 2030

{Em) {em)

Bunk intarest recevahle 15 1h
Other hinance inrorme 55 a1
Fair wolug ndjustrnent to dervative financial mstrurmants - ni
30 Mo

The fair value adjustment te derivative financial instruments relotes to differences between the fair
value of forward foreign currency contracts and written options that were net designated for hedge
accounting from one period end to the next. Other finance income largely relates to premiums
received on ¢ption contracts.

woodtand aoross the UK
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13. FINANCE COSTS

32 waeks ended 52 waaks anded

28 april 2021 26 April 2020

Wi emi

Interest on bank joans and overdratts "t 7y

Othar interest BS 04

terest on refirement banalit cigat ions 01 a1

IFRS 16 laase interest na 109
Fair value adjustment te denvative financio instrumants B 46

16.2 21

The fair value adjustment to derivative financiai instruments relates to differences between the fair
value of forward foreign currepcy contracts and written options that were not designated for hedge
accounting from one period end to the next.

14. TAXATION

nled on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captuad thra

52 weahy anded

24 kprit 2020

(Eml

Current tax 572
Adjuystiment w respect o prioe perlods . i 16 3y
TOTAL CURRENY TAX (2] 611
Defsrred tox 258
Adjustmant n respect of pricr Tienats 104! 72
TOTAL DEFERRED TAX (SZE NOTE X7} 8.3} 110.6)
L2 4rs

Profit sefors taxatian 85 ) 1435
Toxatian at the standard rote of taxm the UK of 199% (2020 1996 te 74
Non-taxable income (391 133 &)
Expenses not deductilile for tax purposes 7o 5o
Other tax adjustments csi 75
Addgustredits 10 respect of prior peniods - cuerent tax 36 iy
Adjustments in respect of prior pennds - deferred tox 02| 72
Changes n delerred tax rote - 1
s 415

Non-taxable incorme largely relates to profits on property disposal due te differences between capital
allowances and depreciation. Expenses not deductible for tax purposes relate to non-qualifying
depreciation, impairments, and fair valuation of investments.
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15. EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM TOTAL AND CONTINUING OPERATIONS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

Basic earnings per share is calcufated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of shares, 501,955,281 (FY20:
505,826,890), is odjusted to ossume conversion of all dilutive patential ordinary shares under the
Group’s share schemes, being 88,605 (FY20: 1,239,075), to give the diluted weighted average number
of shares of 502,043,886 [FY20: 507,065,965). However, as there is a loss for the period ended 25 April
2021, the effect of potentially dilutive ordinary shares is anti-dilutive, and therefore the weighted
average number of shares for the Ciluted EPS calculation has been kept the same as for the Bosic
EPS caleulation for the eurrent period.

Basic And Diluted Earnings Per Share

52 wasks anded
25 April 25 april
20 202
Diluted
Em} [Em) Em)
ILossl/praft for the period 16301 (B3I 938 938
Numbar in theusands Number its theusands.
Warghted average number of shores 501955 5,855 S05.827 507066

Pance pur thers

£ornmgs per shure (1651 1% 5)
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Underlying Earnings Per Share 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The underlying earnings per share reflects the urdertying performance of the business compared Mgt of Longeem SRR
with the prior pericd and is calculated by dividing underlying earnings by the weighted average e cinet Leasshsld _.._h._.._.“ﬁ squipment Total
number of shares for the period. Underlying earnings is used by management as a measure tm m lemi lem) &m)
of profitability within the Group. Underlying earn'ngs is defined as (loss)/profit for the period cost
attributable to equity halders of the parent for each financial period but excluding the post-tax AT 18 APRIL 2078 N Frey PrT w1 pe tea
effect of certain non-trading items. Tax has been calculated with reference to the effective rate of tax Rucogrised an adoption of FRS 16 s i - R i s
fo the Group. . Acquisitians 188 254 o5 - 61 ™
Tk e Directors believe that the underlying earnings before exceptional items and underlying earnings Addrtions o 3 22 154 287 auy
per share measures provide additional useful information for shareholders on the underlying Ehminated on disposals 2091 133 5| LE 1167 1z18| 19.2)
performance of the business and are consistent with how business performance is measured Reclassilications / Remeasurernants® 28 - 330 ity
internally. Underlying earnings is not a recognised profit measure under IFRS and may not be directly Exchang dilterences 03 0.8) 18 ot
ﬂoq:.unﬂnv_m with "adjusted” profit measures used by other companies. AT TS APRIL 2020 s 04 e e 2
. 52 waoky wnded 52 woaks ended Auquistions [see note 31 2 0% - - 290 ne
25 April 28 Al a8 Aprl 4 Apil Addihons 188 843 43 0 1288 n2
-»MH B_.ﬂ-uh -um.un u_.u:u.mu Eliminated on dispasals (481) o 160} 574 amy
[Emp £ml em {Emj Recluts fizations / Rumeosuremants - 64 7.1 0t a7 ”%o
(LOSLHPFROKIT FOR THE FRRIOD (s3.01 183.0) "e 7y Exchange ditferences 45 o 163 129 o3
Poit tax adjustment 1o {lossl/profit lor the period lor the lalfowing terms AT 25 APRIL 2011 Free] 084 1543 114 Ty 1140
Reulised lossflgain] on forward koraigh exchange coatmets 197 w7 1761] 12611 ACCOMULATID DB o ——
Foir volue adjustment to forward taragn exc hange contracts 32 L 60| (6 0]
Fair valus gain on step eeausition N . [0 ) 120 4) AT It APRIL J01¥ - (112.8) 4.3 1y [dads) Tas.s)
Fair vulus odjustment 1o derivative Hnancial imstruments {47 5} 1475 %y 264 Kecogrised on adoption of IFRS 16 - - - - 16:24 18.2)
Duwidend income and profit on dispasal of inancwol ussets eyuily denveive 148 5 [an %) 77 77 Charge for the penod @198 125 7o 1404 2} [t1IN]
anc struments -
P fit an disposal of proparties v 1571 15421 15421 Elminated on drposuls o 190 Cakl Loid
tmpoitment of geodwill - 91 91 11 131 Exchonge differences oY o5 o1 o8 24 ar
frcfit on disposal of Intangitle assers {5 &) {5 4] B . AT I8 APRIL 2020 Hen {185.3) e (1139} (3619) {1,070.5)
IFRS 16 adjustments 768 %8 569 569 Charge for the pariod a2 [7a 5} el ms| [118.8} [290.5)
UNDERLYING {£O3S)/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD , 8.3 {8s.3) "y "y \mparment eaa P e on 15281 ea)
Number [n theusands Mumiser in thewusands
Shares in issue at the period snd 501,955 501955 505,827 507066 Efminoted on disposols 478 e o &7 B4 tad
Pants put shate Pance parihors Reclassifications / Remaasuren 181 {179 - L1 14.8]
Forings par shate . o ) 162 ) Exchanga diterences 2 037 01 01 23 4
AT 2% APRIL 2021 : a19.4) 22 anh maz 698.4) itzes.
MNET BOOK VALUE
: AT 25 APRIL 200V ETLRS 117 wis iy ez 1H49
AT 26 APRIL 2020 1087 58 539 mr 043 13478
AT I¥ APRIL 101% - AU 554 pL2-] 1189 ;ma
) Tha E330m was reclussifeed due to Shirebrook warehouse plont and equipment ot forming port of the bnol sale and leaseback complutud dunag
the prior year
2 I the priof penad there 15 na seporate of imp irom In respuct of the proparty, plant and aguipment Total
impoirment in FY 210 was E1226m ot which ES7 Bm related ta lhe Hr of-use ussats
m tn the cutrent periad o number ol propartres wera idantified thet were previously clossified within Fraghold Land ond Buildings but managamant

eve il 1o ba more eppropriala ta clossify within Long-temm Leosehold These have therafara besn adjusted s the perad us raclussifications

Mote 2 provides turther detail on the property refated impairments {relating to ROU assets, freehald
land and buildings and onerous lease provisions).
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Leases 18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The .m.._.o_.._u cawvﬂma __u.mm 16 o:‘wc. April 2019. The Group only has property leases én:m: the scope of Gosdwil u:.mﬂ:ni. Mrandh retal
IFRS 16, including retail stores, offices and warehouses. Leases are largely for a period between 1 - 15 S
yeors typicafly with break clauses. It is management's intention to continue to enter inta turnover tem L ol fem)
tinked leases in the future. £O8T
AT 20 APRIL 2019 1384 s A Iy
The Group presents right-of-use ossets that do not meet the definition of investment property in Acauritions °7 0 : tar
‘property, plant and equipment’, the same line item as it presents underlying assets of the same Disposa's : - wal - (04}
nature that it owns. The carrying amount and movements in the period can be seen in the table Echange adjustments 4 6 0 I
above. AT 26 APRIL 2020 ma4 "o a4 e
Lease lichilities are presented separately within the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The maturity Arquaitions (see nate 3 50 . . b
analysis of lease liabilities is show in note 29e. Interest expense on the lease liability is presented as e Adeituns 10 - 10
companent of finance costs as per note 13. Cash payments for the principal portion and the interest isposals - EE] an
pottion of the lease liability are presented in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement with further Exchange otustmients 187 1ol L] "5
details given in note 26, AT 285 APRIL2021 wor sa1 e uz0
The Group is party to o number of leases that are classed as short term Yeases and with variable AMGRTISATIGN AND IMPAIRKENT
lease payments. These are typically property leases an tumover based rents. Note 8 discloses AT 38 APRIL 2019 ey (a18) - k]
variable lease payments and short term and low value lease expenses incurred in the period. Cash Amortisation chorge K] U 16.0) 1145
flows in the period relating to variable lease payments, short term lease payments, and leases for low e — 190} . . .0
value assets were approx. £24m {FY20: approx. £72mi. ltis expected that future cash flows will not be rapsat ‘ 02 ] 04
materially different to the FY20 cash flows. Leases to which the Group is committed but have not yet b aerastrents o 0 " R
commenced at period end are not considered to be material, -
AT 38 AFRIL 2020 ey .0} i114.4)
Armortisalion chatge LE) 155 %
17.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES -
Freaheld kand ond “Dispasat ! - 33 - 1
uildings
m Exr hange adjustments 47 04 or 53
CoST AT 25 APRIL 2021 {124.0) 186.7) ol 12215
AT 28 APRIL 3019 AND 26 APRIL 2010 e FrEEpR—— - e w PR o5
Ehmngted an dispasuls i
AT 16 APRIL 2020 E- R 49 A 1434
AT 2% APRIL 2011 n.2
AT I8 AFRIL 2019 L] ] w4 1m0
ACCUMULATED CEPRICIATION AND IMPAIRMENT . -
AT 28 APRIL 2019 (1.6 Amortisation is charged to selling, distribution and administrative expenses in the consolidated
Charge for the perod EE Income Statement.
AT 248 ABRIL 2020 1269} The majonty of the net book value of intangible assets relates to the £86.5m purchase of Everlast in
Charge for the penod ) 4 2007
impaiement a8
Ebrinated on disposals - 83
AT 25 APRIL 2021 (9
MET BODK VALUE
AT 25 APRIL 1021 .t
AT 34 APRIL 2020 %y
AT I8 APRIL 2019 mn2

The Fair values of the Group's investment praperties as at 25 April 2021 were estimated 0s baing
materially in line with carrying values, The valuations were caleulated by the Group's internal
property team who are appropriately qualified chortered surveyors and follow the applicable
valuation methodology of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors. Note 2 provides further detail
on the property related impairments.
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The carrying value of goodwill and brands that o-e considared to have an indefinite life are allocated
to the Group’s operating segments before aggregation. With the exception of Everlast, none of

the individucl cash-generating units [CGUs) are considered material to goedwill or indefinite life
intangibles. The carrying value of guodwill and brands allocated to the Group’s CGUs (as aggregated

except in the case of Everlast) is shown below:

25 Apell 2021 26 Apeil 2020
Gandwill Brands Qoadwil Srands
[em) {Em) lEm) {Em)
Eurapean Retail 14
whlesale & Licensing fexcl Everastt 143 143
Everlagt 24 698 362 Baa
453 L2} " HA

Tha Group tests the carrying amount of
goodwill and assets with an indefinite life
annually for impairment or more frequently if
there are indications that their carrying value
might be impaired, The <arrying amounts

of other intangible assets are reviewed

for impairment if there is an indication of
impairment.

impairment is calculated by comparing the
carrying amounts to the value in use derived
from discounted cash flow projections for
each CGU to which the intangible assets are
allccated. A CGU is deemed to be an individual
fascia or brand and these have been grouped
together inté similar classes for the purpose of
formulating operating segments as reported
in note 4, The total recovercble amount of

all CGUs in relation to the cbove intdngible
assets was £262.3m of which £136.8m related
to Everlast. Due to the ongelng impact of
Covid-19, the European Retail goodwill was
impaired to £nil with an impairment charge of
£3.1m [FY2(: £nil) being recognised where the
discounted present value of future cash flows
did not support the full value of the asset.

Value in use calculations are based on five-year

management forecasts with a terminal
growth rate applied thereafter, representing
management’s estimate of the long-term
growth rate of the sector served by the CGUs.

Tetal impairments of £9.1m [FY20: £19.0m)
e e TeLogried in TEAulion 1o gootwilh
on loss making companies and are individually
immaterial to each CGU that has been

written down. These impairments include the
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European Retail goodwill and the goodwilt from
acquisitions in the period.

The Everlast brand is amortised over a 15
year period within the selling, distribution and
administrative expenses category within the
income statement. The amount charged to
the income statement in the period is £5.5m
{FY20- £6.0m), the future amortisation charge
is expected to be approximately £6.0m per
annum for the remaining 13 year amortisation
periad (FY20: 14 year).

The key assumptions, which are equally applicable to each CGU, in the cash flow projections used to
support the carrying amount of goodwilt were as follows:

As b 23 Aprd 2021 Eurepann Rutall !...r.-....h..:hﬂ..h.. vrlast
Tarmnal salus growtt 20% 70% 0%
S year forecast growth - {3 5% (5.3%1 {1 6%}
Grass mgrgin 30%-40% . -
Distount rate 6 3% 6 3% 121%
As ot 26 Aprid 3020 Cunapran Ratad i_s_-ﬂ_u-h__.“.op.“u.-_ Svertort
Tarmingl sales growth 20% 20% 0%
5 year forecast growth:' 20% 20% 09%
Grass margin 3% 40%

Drscount rote 2% . 63% 12 1%

1l The3 yeor growth rates are bused on the averoge growth aver § years.

The same pre-tax discount rate is used in European Retail ond Wholesale & Licensing {excl. Everlast}
as these CGU's are considered to have similar risk profiles. A specific discount rate is used for Everlast
as this business operates in o different market and has different charocteristics.

The key assumptions are based on market data and ?o:nmmBm:ﬂ_m historical experience and future
plans for each CGU.

Sensitivity Analysis

A reasonably possible change in any key assumption would not cause the carrying value of the
Everlast or Wholesale & Licensing {excluding Everlast) CGU to exceed its recoverable amount,
the table below shows the amount of headroom and the revised assumption required in order to
eliminate the headroom in full.

The European Retail goodwill has been impaired in the period os @ result of the ongoing impact of
Covid-19,

i_.._-.-ﬁ_-.hpr“u..__.h.-_ Rverlat
Recaverable gmount of CGU [Lmb 1358 1368
Cusrent hendrogm {Em} mz 6
Rennsed S-year forecast growth rote % 1774} 12 5%]
Rewised Lerminal growth rate % < [1000%:} 5%
Rawised discount rats % 526% 0%

facross the UK
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

The Group uses the equity method of accounting for associates and joint ventures in accordonce
with IAS 28. The following table shows the aggregate movement in the Groug's investment in
associates and joint ventures:

{Em}
AT 28 APRIL 2019 1ne
Additions sh

share of lass for the period

Faur valus adustrment

Disposals

AT 26 APRN, 3020 AND 25 APRIL 2021 -

The share of loss in the prior period relates to Game Digital plc prior to obtaining a controlling
interest in July 2019

The fair volue adjustment in the prior year relates to the increase in the fair value of the previously
hield 38 1% equity interest in Game Digitad plc at the acquisition date on 8 July 2019

The disposals in the prior period mainly relates to the de-recognition of Game Digital plc as an
associate due to obtaining a controiling interest.

The Group currently holds a 49.0% share of Four {Holdings} Limited [F¥20: 49.0%), the carrying
amount of this investment is £nil. Detailed disckesures have not been presented as the results are
immaterial. The Group is owed £64.9m from the group of companies headed by Four {Holdings}
Limited [£26.5m net of amounts recognised in respect of loss allowance} (FY20: £67.5m, £33.8m net
of loss aflowance), see note 22 for further details. The group of companies headed by Four (Holdings}
Limited made a profit of £8.1m in the period (FY20: loss of £19.8m).
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20. LONG-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group is hot looking to make gains through increases in market prices of its long-term financial
assets, therefore on initial application of IFRS 9 the Group made the irrevocabie election to account
for long term financial assets at foir value through cther comprehensive income (FVOCI). The
election has been made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, only qualifying dividend income is
recognised in profit and loss, changes in fair value are recognised within OCl and never reclassified
to profit and loss, even if the asset is impaired, sold or otherwise derecognised. The majority of
long-term financial assets are recognised in the UK Sports segment.

The fair value of the long-term financial assets is based on bid quoted market prices ot the balance
sheet date or where market prices are not available, ot manogement's estimate of fair value.

The following table shows the aggregate movement in the Group's financial aszets during the period:

25 April 2021 26 Apri 2029

i {Ear)
At beginming ot penioel 818 B4 &
Additions 133 FL L]
Disposals 7o) 15 9}
Amaunts recogrsed through olher comprahensive icoms 713 197
Exchange diffarences 1411

638 3.8

Included within long-term financial assets at the period ended 25 April 2021 are the following direct
interests held by the group:

o 36.8% (FY20:12.5%) interest in Mulberry *
Group plc

+ 35.6% (FY20: 36.9%) interest in Studio Retail
Group plc

5.1% (FY20: 0.2%] interest in Hugo Boss AG

» Variaus other interests, none of which
represent more than 5.0% of the voting
power of the investee

During the period the Group sold its 26.19% interest in French Connection Group ple due to it no
longer being considered part of the Group's long-term strategy. The fair value gt the dote of
derecognition was £2.6m with the £1.7m gain on disposal being recognised in investment income,

The following table shows the faif value of 2uch of the Group's long-term financial assets {all listed}:

26 Apsll 2030

28.apn) 2031

1Em) {Em)
Mulbietry Graup pic %0 e
Stud i Reral Graup ple 897 12
Hugo 8036 4G 187 34
& rench Conmmctian Group ple . 16
Other ) 18 a0
AT END OF PERISD 2612 4

These holdings have been assessed under
IFRS 9 Financial Instrumants and categarised
as long-term financial assets, as the Group
does not consider them to be associates and
therefore, they are not occounted for on an
equity basis, see note 2.

assist in building refationships with key suppliers
and brands.

Qur strotegic investments cre intended to allow
us to develop relationships and commercial
partnerships with the relevant retaiters and
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21, INVENTORIES

25 April 2021 16 April 2020
(Em) eml
Goods for resale ) 109 6 1983

As at 25 April 2021, goods for resale include a right of return asset totalling £4.5m :.h,‘mo £2.4m).
Arounts written off in the period relating to stoc« was £24.3m [FY20 £39.0m).

The following inventory costs huve been recognised in cost of sales:

25 April 1029 24 April 2020
iml Em)
Cait of Inventories recagnised s un expense 10945 27948

The Directors have reviewed the cpening and closing provisions against inventory and have
coneluded that these are fairly stated. The Group hos reviewed its estimates and assumptions for
calculating inventory provisions at 25 April 2021, Overall provisions have decreased from £223.0m in
FY20 to £219.Bm as at 25 April 2023, changes in the provision are recognised in cost of sales.

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

15 Aprii2021 18 Aprll 2020

' (Em) {tm)

Tinde recervables 572 © 575
Deposits in respect of darvative Inonciol instruments N0 73
Amounts owed by raluted parties (gee note 34) 268 2
Othar recevobles 4R Y 196/
Prapuyments 846 545
3453 a2

The Directors consider that the carrying amount ¢f trade and other receivables approximates to
their fair value, The maximum exposure to credit r sk at the reporting date is the carrying value of
each class of asset above, plus ony cash balances. Other receivables also include unremitted sales
recaipts.

Deposits in respect of derivative financial instruments are collateral to cover margin requirements for
der vative transactions held with counterparties. The collateral requirement changes with the market
{which is dependent on share price, interest rates and volatility} and further purchases / sales of
underlying investments held.

Included within other receivables is the reimbursement asset totalling £118.3m (FY20: £118.3m} in
relation to the Group's ongoing non-UK tax enquir es, for further information see note 28.

The majority of the Group’s trade receivables are Feld within the Wholesale & Licensing businesses,
each customer's creditworthiness is ossessed before payment terms are agreed.

Uncer IFRS 9, the Group has applied the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses
for trade receivables, using the lifetime expected loss provision for all traode receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivabies have seen grouped based on a very low credit risk
cha-acteristic, representing management’s view of the risk, and the days past due. The credit quality
of assets neither past due nor impaired is considerzd to be good. The Group considers a debt to be
defaulted at the point when no further amounts arz expected to be recovered. Financial assets are
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. If recoveries are subsequently made
dfter receivables have been written off, they are recognised in profit or loss.
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The amounts owed by related parties mostly relates to the group headed by Four {Holdings) Limited,
for further details see note 34.

Expaosure to credit risk of trade receivabies:

28 april 2031 16 April 2020

IEm) Em)

Current ng No
0-30 days past dug 120 130
30-60 days pust due 40 42
60-50 duys post due 24 0
Over 50 days past due 10 73
572 LA

The credit quality of assets neither past due nor impaired is considered to be good.

The movement in loss allowance reloting to trade receivables and amounts owed to related parties
can be analysed as follows: :

52 weakis apdud

23 April 2021

(e}

Opening positien 463
Amounts charged to the income stotemant 223 B 196

Armounts witten off as uncollec tobie ) 156}
) i)

CLOSING POMITION 583 44.2

Amounts recovered during the penod

Included in the below table is the loss allowance movement in amounts due from related parties as
follows:

$2 woaks andad 52 wenky wndnd

25 aprll 2021 26 ApHl 2020

tEml em)

Opening posihon 38 ng
Amaunts charged 1o the Income statemant 46 130
CLOSING POSITION A "

The gross carrying amount of the balance due is £65.2m {FY20. £67.5m). The charge in the period has
been recorded in Selling, distribution and administrative expenses. £12.4m of the gress amounts due
from related perties balance is due in less than one year with the remcining being due in more than
a one year [FY20: £7.9m due less than one year).

The Group has ne significant cencentration of cradit risk, with exposure spread over a Jarge number
of customers. The loss allowance / charges have been determined by reference to past default
experience, current / forecasted trading performance and future economic conditions.

Deposits in tespect of derivative financial instruments and prepayments are not considered to be
impaired.

ng to croate new Bntsh woadiand across the UK
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

18 aprib 2021 26 Apeil 2010
1£m) {Em)
Cush in bonk and 1n hand - Sterling 1441 2578
Cash n bunk and it hand - US Dallars G974 7%
Cash in bonk and m hand - Euros 192 5 552
Cash in bank ond in hond - Other 230 85
437.0 53d.0
24. SHARE CAPITAL
15 Aprik 2021 16 April 2020
sml {em)
459,500,010 arinary shares of 10p eoch 100 G Mo
ALLOTTED, CALLED UP AND FULLY PAIR
640,602,369 [2010' 64(.602,363] omhnory shares of 0p sach 641 Al
SHARE CAPITAL
AL 25 Apnl 2021 and 28 Apri| 2020 641 641
The Group holds 121,260,175 shares in Treasury as Contingent Share Awards

at period end (FY20: 121260,175).

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per ordinary share
at general meetings of the Company. ’

We are aware of unsponsored Arnerican
Depository Receipt (ADR} programmes
established from time to time in respect of our
shares, We have not sponsored or authorised
their creation and any questions should be
directed to the relevant depositary.

Frasers has not and does not intend to offer or
sell its Ordinary Shares or other securities (in
the farm of ADR or otherwise) to the general
pubtic in the United States nor hos it listed

or intends to list its Ordinary Shares or other
securities on any national securities exchonge
in the United States or to encourage the trading
of its Ordinary Shares on any over the counter
market located in the United States. Frasers does
not make arrangements to permit the voting of
Ordinary Shares held in the form of ADRs and
its publication of periodic financicl and other
information is not intended to facilitate the
operation of any unsponsored ADR programme
under Rule 12g3-2(b) of U.5. Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended or otherwise.
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The Executive Share Scheme

Under the terms of the Executive Share Schemne,
which was approved by Shareholders on 10
September 2010 and is a HMRC approved
scherne, the Board mey make share owards in
respect of the ardinary shares in the Company.
Awards may be made to Executives and Persons
Discharging Managerial Resgonsibilities over a
fixed number of shares subject to performance
conditions. Further details are set out in the
Directors' Remuneration Report.

An award of 8,073,036 shares wos granted on
10 September 2010 at a share price of 125.5
pence. Between 27 Apni} 2020 and 25 April 2021,
1,000,000 shares sold by participants following
exarcise of awards were acquired by Estera
Trust {Jersey) Limited, as Trustee of the Sports
Direct Employee Benefit Trust (Trustee), with
the acquisition funded by a loan advanced

by the Company. The shares were acquired at
374.8 pence per share. At the period end 6m
of the shares in the scheme have since vested
{FY20: 5m) and 2m have since lopsed meaning
all shares granted by the scheme have now
exercised or lapsed.

fraeer

Share Schemes

The 2011 Share Scheme was & four year scheme
based upen achieving undetlying EBITDA
{before the costs of the scheme) of £215m

in FY12, £250m in FY13, £260m in FY14 and
£300m in FY15 coupled with the individuol
participating employee’s satisfactory personal
petformance and continued employment.

Ali of the above targets have now been met
meaning that approx. 14.6m shares vested in
September 2017 and approx. 4m shares vested
in September 2015,

Between 27 April 2020 and 25 April 2021,
150,470 shares sold by porticipants following
exercise of awards under the Group 2011
Share Scheme were acquired by Estera Trust
{Jersey) Limited, as Trustee of the Sports Direct
Employee Benefit Trust (Trustee), with the
acquisition being funded by a loan advanced
by the Company. The shares were acquired at
prices of between 251.8 and 460.8 pence per
share in off-market transactions. The weighted
average purchase price was 365 pence per
share (FY20: 257 pence per share].

A share-based payment chorge of £nil [FY2C:
nil) was recognised in respect of this equity
settled award for the 52 weeks ended 25 April
2021, based on the Director’s best estimate of
the number of awards that will be made. The
charge is calculated based on the fair value on
the grant dote, which is deemed to be the date
an which the entity and courterparty reached o
shared understanding of the scheme.

The Group holds 17,386,513 shares in the
Own Share Reserve as at period end (FY20:
17,386,913).

Feorless 1000 Bonus Schame

At the annual general meeting in October
2020, our shareholders gave approval for

the Fearless 1000 bonus scheme. Under this
scheme shares may be issued by the Group to
employees for no cash consideration. All Group
employees (excluding executive directors, their
family assaciates, and the Chief Commercial
Officer) are efigible to participate in the
scheme. Under the scheme, 10 million shares
are awarded to eligible employees if certain
market conditions are achieved. This would
equate to £100m worth of fully paid ordinary
shares in Frasers Group ple that could be paid
to eligible employees if our share price reaches
£10 any time over the next four years. The share
price must stay above £10 for 30 consecutive
trading days to trigger the vesting of shares at
the end of the four year vesting peried. 50%
of the shares are granted after 4 years and the
remaining 50% after 5 years. One thousand
eligible employees will receive the shares with
a potential value ranging from £50k te £1m if
the share price is at £10 of the vesting dates. In
all other respects the shares rank equally with
other fully paid ordinary shares on issue.

The share element of the scheme is deemed

to be an equity-settled scheme as defined by
{FRS 2 Share-based payment. [n line with the
accounting policy in note 1, the fair value at the
date of grant is expensed to the Consclidated
tncome Statement on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with the corresponding
credit going to equity.

The assessed falr value ot grant date of the
shares granted during the period ended 25
April 2021 was 165.69p per share for the 4 year
vesting period ond 165.95p per share for the 5
year vesting period. The fair value gt grant daote
is independently determined using an adjusted
form of the Black-Scholes model which includes
a Mente Carlo simutation model that takes

into cccount the exercise price, the term of the
option, the impact of dilution {where material),
the share price at grant date and expected
price volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend yield, and the risk-free
interest rate for the term of the scherne,
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The model inputs for shares granted during the period ended 25 April 2021 included: 25. OTHER RESERVES
- exercise price: Enil Permanent  Capital MRy dging  Totutother
- grant date: 10 February 2021, being the date the Deed of Grant wos executed to capital LU reserva resarvn Resarves
) ) tm tEm Eml iZm} i}
- expiry date; 7 October 2024 and 7 October 225 AT I AP T o1 o Py . Py
- share price at grant date: 450p Cash flow hedges
- expected price volatility of the company's sheres: 38.8% recognised 1 the panod y i . 4 ki
- recognised in the penod - naffectvaness 02
- expected dividend yield 0%
- reclassilied in the penod ond report he sales [1%¢]
- risk-free interest rate: 0.1% reclossifiad ond reported in cast of sales - . - 13741 {374)
The expected price volatility is based on the histeric volatility (based on the remaining fife of the - tasation - - - a8
schemel, adiusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly aveilable information. AT 20 APRIL 2020 o1 a0 #4130
A charge in the Consolidated Income Statement of £0.8m has been recognised in the period in conh flow bedges
relation to the equity-settled element of the scheme resulting in £0.8m now being held in equity. _recognsed in the pened . . ‘ oa o4
- reclasufiachin the penod and reported n soles - - - {281 {2.8)
The scheme also has a cash-settled bonus for al! sther eligible employees who do not qualify for  raclasshad and reparted m cost of sales T ‘ ‘ o a
the Fearless 1000 share scheme. The cash bonus ot the end of the 4 year period is based on the roxation " N N o T
emplayee tenure and has been accounted as an other long-term employee benefit as defined by prr— - e o e promen

IAS 19 Employee Benefits. A charge in the Consalidation income Statement of £0.5m has been
recognised in the period along with a corresponding liability.
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The permanent contribution to capital relates to a cash payment of E50,000 to the Company on 8
February 2007 under a deed of capitol contribution.

The capital redemption reserve arose on the redemption of the Company’s redeemable preference
shares of 10p each ot par on 2 March 2007,

The reverse acquisition reserve exists as a result of the adoption of the principles of reverse .
acquisition accounting in accounting for the Group restructuring which cecurred on 2 March

2007 and 29 March 2007 between the Company and Sports World International Limited, Brands
Holdings Limited, International Brand Management Limited and CDS Holdings SA with Sports World
International Limited as the acquirer.

The hedging reserve represents the cumulative amount of gains and iosses on hedging instruments
deemed effective in cash flow hedges. The cumulative deferred gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised in the income statement only when the hedged transaction impacts the
income statement. '

Carbon Capturad through The Woodiand Trust. helping o create new Botish woodland across the UK
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Other Bulance Sheet Reserves

The foreign cufrency translation reserve 1s used to record exchange differences arising from the
transiation of the Financial Statements of foreign subsidiaries and associates.

The own shares and treasury shares reserve represent the cost of shares in Frasers Group ple
purchased in the market and held by Frasers Group Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy options under
the Group's share options scheme.

The Group holds 17.386,913 shares in the Employee Benefit Trust as ot period end (FY20: 17,388,755},

The non-controlling interests of the Group mostly relates to Sportland International Group AS and
its substdiaries. This company is incarporated in Estonia with the principal places of business being o
number of Baltic countries in Eurape, The non-controlling interests hold 40% of the shore copitel of
Sportland International Group AS. During the period £3.0m profit (FY20: £2.8m) has been allocated
to the non-controlling interests of Sportland International Group AS, resulting in an accumulated
non-controlling interests at the end of the period of £12.4m (FY20: £9.4m). A dividend of £0.9m was
poid to the non-controlling interest in the periad [FY20: Enil). The group of componies headed by

Sportland International Group AS has total assets of £67.8m and total liakilities of £14.6m.
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26. BORROWINGS

15 April 2031 16 Apeil 2020
(o) (Ema}
CURRENT
Lwse habilities 1885 1479
NON-CURRENT:
Bunk nnd ether foans Wsg S00 0
Lease habthties 5342 Ay
TOTAL 14285 18341

An analysis of the Group's total borrowings cther than bank overdrafts is os follows

5 April 2011 14 April 2020
{Em) 1Em)
Borrawings -+ st ol 1059 400 0

As at period end, loans are at a rate of interest of 1.3% (FY20: 1.3%) over the interbank rate of the
country within which the borrowing entity resides.

Reconciliction OF Liabilities Arising From Financing Activities

The chonges in the Group's ligbilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

Noemeviets borawions Torel

lemi mi (£m)

AT 20 AFRIL 2018 25 - w0 s
CASH-FLOWS:

Borowings drawn down 5100 - - 3160

Borrpwinys reprd {436 5) - (a38.5)

Share huy back - 1435} 23]
LEASE LIABELITY:

1£RS 16 Lease Liohilites 4598 136.3 - (LS

IEHS 16 Lease Liobilities - Acquusitions 154 nE - - 1m0
NON-CASH HOVEMENTS:

Shore buy back . - . 139 7%}
AT 26 APRIL 2030 13162 uiy - 15241
CASH-FLOWS:

- Goreowings cdrown down 11281 - - 11281

Barmowsngt reped (133221 - - [R5
LEASELIABUTY:

- IFRS 16 Lease Liabiltes - cosh-flows - am ¢ ]

IFAS 16 Lease Luabilities - med fications/emeosurenents, transters ftom non-current to currant,
and toraign erchunge odjustments 1o w1 ) .

IFRS 16 Lease Liabitids - naw leases 983 205 - s
AT 25 APRIL 2021 12401 s - 14208

The acquired borrowings {note 31) of £1.4m were repaid in full during the pericd.

The Group's Working Copitol Facility s ot £913.5m [FY20: £913.5m) avaitable until November 2021
and is not secured against any of the Group's assets. During FY19 the Group enacted an extension
option for a further year to Novemnber 2022 for £847.5m.

daacross e L




FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GRoOUP

The Group centinues to operate comfortably within its banking fac
amounts and fair value of the borrowings are not materially different.

Reconciliation of Net Dabt:

es and covenants. The carrying

28. PROVISIONS

Prnled on Stembers 100°0 Recycled and

25 Apdi 2011 24 Apri 2030

{Lm) {Cm}

Borrowngs (1426 6] 15741

ADD BACK:

- Leuse hubiities 27 6241

Cash and cash equivalents 4570 5340

NE“DEST {248.9) (150.0]
27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Accounts
RS 16 .Hh-h.ﬂ."n” .-HH._HH“ -........__.-—.!-..: a-..-::u..l“ -.ﬂ:..u.. .o!hu.-d Torat
depeachotian contrachs ditferencun

lem; {om) {Em} Itml lem) im) Em) Em)

AT 8 APRIL 2019 - e s h2) {80) 120.0) 1.0} 33

Crediedfichargedt to tha income statament 213 10 EL:] M3l 1380 24 28 ..

Cherged te rasarves 72 - - - - - 7.2

Credited to hedging rasarve - B - - EL] - - 38

A¥ 36 APRIL 2020 s " . - [8.8] L] 1. 1.3

Credited/Icharged) to the income statement e a1 . - 2o 10 1744 0.1

Charged to reserves - - 03 - 28 - 23

Credited ta hedging rasarves - . - - El+ . 20

AY 25 APRIL 1021 FEx] nr - 0.3 1.0 ) (5.6) Ei ]

15 Aptid 2031 2¢ Apedl 2020

[&m] Em)

Deferred tax ossets . 468 499

Defarred tax habikiies 12701 1254

NEY DEFERRED TAX KALANCE w u3

The tax rates used to measure the deferred tax assets ond liabilities was 19%, on the basis that this
was the tax rate that was substantively enccted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent th at realisation of the related tax benefit is probable
on the basis of the Group's current expectations of future taxable profits. The Group has approx.
E13dm of taxable losses not recognised as a deferred tax asset lapprox. £25m deferred tax asset).

Included within other temporary differences is a deferred tax asset in relation to the Share Scheme
and a deferred tax liability recognised on other intangible assets upon acquisition.

The deferred tox affects of the acquisitions voode i the year werke congidered and & was determined
that there was ne material impact on the Group, ¢ the fair value of net assets acquired.
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1ed thrauah the Woodkind Trust. helping Lo create new Brtish wood

..._.-N..__r.-..h Propety Othar Total

(Eem) 1Eml {Em) i)

AT 2% APRIL 201% 4.0 nm L] [ on]
Amounts pravided 130 758 - EHB
Alnot wdd [ taversed 21l {ro st 1531 377
Acquisitions. - 106 - wne
AT 26 APRIL 2020 54 1019 1 nas
Amounts provided 73 s - 438
Amounts ublised / revarsed 116 9) 153) 14 12364
AT 13 APRIL 2021 s LE] 13 w1

Legal and regulatory provisicns relate to management's best estimate of the potential impact of
claims including legal, commercial, regulatory and ongoing non-UK tax enquiries. The timing of

the outcome of non-UK tax inquiries and legal claims made against the Group is dependent on
factors outside the Group's control and therefore the timing of settlement is uncertain. After taking
appropriate legal advice, the outcomes of these claims are not expected to give rise to material loss
in excess of the amounts provided.

A reimbursement asset of £118.3m {FY20: £118.3m) has been recognised seporotely within debtors
relating to ongoing non-UK tox enquiries.

Included within property reloted provisions are provisions for dilapidations in respect of the Group's
retail stores and warehouses. Further details of managements estimates are included in note 2.

QOther provisions relate to provisions for restructuring and employment (non-retirement related).

During the period, onerous fease provisions {pre-IFRS 16) were recognised due to an ongoing
management review of the Group's store profile and strategy including current and anticipated
freehold acquisitions, resulting in overall increased provisions of £71.9m (FY20; £26.9m), with reference
to the Group's alternative performance measures. See Glossary for more details,

W across the UK
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"29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

o. Financiol Assets And Liabilities By Category And Fair Value Hierarchy
The fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liakilities, which are principally denominated in

Sterling or £JS Dollars, were as follows:

FINANCIAL ASSETS - 25 APREL 2021 Lavel 1 Leval2 Lavel3 Othes Total
iLmy IEm} Eml iem) em
AMORTISED COST:
Teade ond other receivables® - - 4351 FLiz]
Cagh and cash eguvolents 4570 570
Amounts ower by related parbes - - 66 0.8
VoL
Long Term financiol Assets {Equity Instruments] - designated 26311 - - - 263.)
DERFVATIVE FIRANCIAL ASSETS (FY):
Fareign forward putehdse and sules Contracts - 35.3 - 153
Devevatren hrwancial witals - contructs for difference B eguity oelivns 20 - 1
- - [ - 54
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - 23 APRIL Thx1
AMORTISED COST:
Nan-curent borrowings - - 17205 31 sy
Trade and other poyables** - - 6201 1820.1)
IFRS 16 Lease o tan
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES {FV):
Fareign ferward and writtsn optians purchase and soles contracts - Unhadged s 175 178
Dervative hnapciol itles « contructs for <ifferance & equity sptions - nan
- [4L0 ] )

*Prapayrnants af £84 §rmave not mcluded os o heonrio) osset

“*Orher raxes Including social secunty rosts of £26.2m are not wcluded as o finanaal hobinty
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FINANCIAL ASSETS - 26 APRIL 2020 Lovel1 Level 2 Lavsld Other Total

) {tay m 1Em) (]
AMORTISED COST: .
“rcicte 7 Gther rec giuables® - - 3255 s
Cush and sash gaw wrlents - 5340 1.0
Amaunt uwers by reloted parties - 342 ua
FYOCk:
Long Term Financial Assets [Equity Instruments) - designoted 638 - - n:
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS [FV):
Fareian forward purchose und sales eonteacts - 704 - 704
Dervative Fhanoial assees - cantracts ke difference it - -

- 71 - -
FINANCIAL LHARILITIES - 26 APRIL 2028
AMORTISED COST:
Non-Current Bamrowings - (000} (900.0]
fragw and other payabless - - 15447) (5847
IFRS 16 Leasa habilities - - 16240 $24.1
L VL
Foreign lorward and walten eption purchase and sdles cantract - Unhedged 98
Dervative Finoncaal lipbilities - contracts for cifference & aquity optigns 1344 -
- s

*Prapoyrents of £54 51 are not included as o inancol ossat

“*Other taes wncluding socral secunty costs of £17 Bn

Financiol Assets And Lia

The Group's principal foreign currency exposures are to US Dollars and Euros. The table below
illustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Group's reported profit ond equity to a 5% increase

not snchuded as @ bnanc ol hobity

and decrease in the US Dollar / Sterling and Eure / Sterling exchange rates at the year-end date,
assuming all other variables remain unchanged. The figures have been colculated by comparing the

fair values of outstanding foreign currency contracts, assets and lia

es at the current exchange

rote to those if exchonge rates moved as tllustrated. The income statement figures include the profit
effect of any relevant derivatives which are not in & designated cash flow hedge, The impact on US

Dollar and Eura related hedging instruments is included in equity.

The analysis has been prepared using the following assumptions:

1. Existing assets ond liabilities are heid as at the period endg;

2. No additional hedge contracts are taken out.
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SENSITIVITY
uip TR

GBP &

Other usip EUR Tatal % 5% £ 5%
FYa:
Trode and Other Recewables . w0l 52 vk 4384 32 11 {2.0) 30
Cash and cosh equivalents 3534 494 547 510 a5 - 23 @ 11
Tresde antf Other Puyables 14590} (2451 (106 6} {s20.) 11 1.3 3 15.3)
FYa:
Tresde und Other Receivables 2517 66 02 3253 14 {201 22
Cash and cash squivalents 4613 75 552 Mo o (24 1
Trade and Other Payables (4516} 12591 {1072} 15! 13 14 51 .48

There is no difference between fair value and carrving value of the above financial instruments

(FY20: £nil).
Fair Value Hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for
determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial instruments by valuation technique:

*  Level 1: quoted {unadjusted) prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

*  Level 2: other techniques for which all
inputs which have @ significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either
directly or indirectly; and

»  Level 3; techniques which use inputs which
have ¢ significant effect on the recorded
fair value that are not based on cbservable
market data.

Contracts for difference are classified as Level
2 as the fair value is calculated using quoted
prices for listed shares and commodities at
contract inception and the pericd end.

Foreign forward purchase and sales contracts
and options are classified as Level 2, the

Group enters into these derivative financial
instruments with various counterparties,
principally financial institutions with investment
grade credit ratings. Foreign exchange

forward contracts and options are vafued

using valuction techniques, which employ the
use of market observable inputs. The most
frequently applied valuation techniques include
forward pricing and swap models using present
value calculations. The models incorporate
various inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and
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forward rotes, and yield curves of the respective
currencies.

Long-term financial ossets such as equity
instruments are clossified os Level 1as the fair
value is calculated using quoted prices.

The fair value of equity derivative agreements
are included within the derivative financial
assets balence of £20.1m and derivative

ies bolonce of £17m. The

ies as at 25 April 2021 relate to
strategic investrments held of between 0.04%
and 8.41% of investes share copital.

Sold options are classified as Level 2 as the
fair value is calculated using other techniques,
where inputs are observable,

Trade receivables / payables, amounts owed
from reloted parties, other receivables /
payables, cash and cash equivalents, current /
non-current borrowings, and lease liabilities are
held at amortised cost.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 25
April 2021 is the carrying value of each class of
asset in the Balance Sheet, except for amounts
owed from related parties which is the gross
carrying amount of £65.2m.

"e. Derivatives: Foreign Currency Forward

Contracts
(i) HEDGING

The most significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations relates to purchases
made in foraign currencies, principally the US
Dollar and online sales in Euros. The Group's
policy is to reduce substanticlly the risk
associated with foreign currency spot rates

by using forward fixed rate currency purchase
contracts, kaking into account any foreign
currency cash flows. The Group does not

held er issue derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes, however if derivatives,
including both ferwards and written options,
do not qualify for hedge accounting they are
daccounted for as such and accordingly any gain
or loss is recognised immediately in the income
statement. Management are of the view thot
there is a substantive distinct business purpose
for entering inta.the options and a strategy for
managing the options independently of the
forward contracts. The forward and options
contracts are therefore not viewed as one
contract and hedge accounting for the forwards
is permitted.

Hedge effectiveness is determined at inception
of the hedge relationship and at every reporting
pericd end through the assessment of the
hedged items and hedging instrument to
determine whether there is still an economic
relationship between the two.

The critical terms of the foreign cusrency
forwards entered into exactly match the terms

of the hedged #tem. As such the economic
relationship and hedge effectiveness are based
on the qualitative factors and the use of a
hypothetical derivative where appropriate,
Hedye ineffectveness muy orse where the
critical terms of the forecast transaction no
longer meet those of the hedging instrument, for
example if there was a change in the timing of
the forecast sales transactions from what was
initially estimated or if the volume of currency

in the hedged item was below expectations
leading to over-hedging. Differences can arise
when the initial value on the Hedging instrument
is not zero

Priitad on Stenbeis 100°% Recycled and Cabon Caplaied through the Woadlkind Trust, helpmg to create new Botsh woodland across 1he UK

The hedged items and the hedging instrument
are denominated in the same currency and as a
result the hedging ratio is always one to one.

All derivative financial instruments used for
hedge accounting are recognised initially at fair
value and reported subsequently at fair vaiue

in the staternent of finencial position. To the
extent that the hedge is effective, changes in the
fair value of derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedges are recognised
in other comprehensive income and included
within the cash flow hedge reserve in equity.
Any ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

At the time the hedged item offects profit or
loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and presented

as a reclassification adjustment within other
comprehensive income. If a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, any related

gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive
income is transferred immediakely to profit

or loss. If the hedging relationship ceases to
meet the effectiveness conditions then hedge
accounting is discontinued and the related gain
or loss is held in the equity reserve until the
forecast transaction occurs.
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The fair value of hedged contracts as at 25 April 2021 was:

23 Aprii 207 16 April 3020
- (&m) Em)

ASHETS
US Dol purchases - GBP 34
US Dollar purchases - CUR 21 7
Eurc sales 307 a5
TOTAL 54 B8
LIARILITIES
US Bollar purchoses ~ GBF 73
W4 Dollar purchases - EUR a
TOTAL T4 -

The details of hedged forward foreign currency purchase contracts and contracted forwerd rates
were as follows:

8 april 201 76 April 1030
1Em) {Emj
turrancy [ Currenty cap

15 Dollgy purchases 7200 5234
Conlracted rates USD / GRP 136141 -
s Oobar purchases 1200 819 2o 20y
Contracted rutes USD ¢ EUR - 132
Euro salas ) 1z200) 1242 2 1540 6 1515 &1
Contracted rates EUR / GRP ayy o4y 10y

The tirming of the contracts is as follows:

Curreney Hedging against Currency valus Ratus
LSD/GEP entory purchuses vsD 7200m Fy22- FY23 116-181
USCYEUR USD invettory purchases USD 120 Bm FYil Fria rei-tar
EUR/GERP Eurp sales EUR 240 0m . Fyz3 099

Hedge ineffectiveness may arise where the critical terms of the forecast transaction no longer meet
those of the hedging instrument, for example if there was a ehange in the timing of the forecast sales
transactions from what was initiafly estimated or if the volume of currency in the hedged item was
below expectations leading to over-hedging.

23 ApAl 2011 26 April 1020

{Lm} |Em)

Changa iy spot value of hedging since ncephion of the hedge (14 5] 135 &
Change in value of hedged item used to determine hedge ineflactiveness (28 559
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25 apeil 2031 26.April 1020
tem) lem)
Changs

Changs Chonge
Inthatae  nthefalr TS inthe
Talr velue of

value of the walun ot e urren.
curraney  the hadged Y the hatlyed

formard e ferward
U$ Doiiars purchases - GAF 14 8] 73]
US Dallats purchasas - EUR 21 21 &7 &7
kAl at XY 75

Ewrg sales

At 25 April 2021 £242.4m of forward sales contracts and £607.0m of purchase contracts qualified
for hedge accounting and the gain on fair valuation of these contracts of £0.4m has therefore been
recegnised in other comprehensive income.

At 25 April 202% £210.5m hedged purchase contracts had a maturity of greater than 12 menths {FY20:
Eril of purchase contracts) and £242.4m of hedged soles had a maturity of greater than 12 months
(FY20: £242.4m of sales cantracts}. .

The movements through the Hedging reserve are:

Tatal

USD/GBP  KUR/GBF  AUD/GBE  usp/euy TorHedse  Defermd

- mavamest

AS AT 18 APRIL 2079 Hy 6.3 131 363 467

Recogrised - 98 - Ef 164 . WA

Ineflectiveness . a2 - 0y - 0.z

Raclnssitiud i soles - ©n . ik} - hn

Reclugsihed in invenkory / cost of sales 1349) - - (2 5 137 4) . 1.4}

Deterred Tax - - 18 14

A5 AT 16 APRIL 2020 - %8 - 3 pix) [T .0

Recognsed 149) 32 - 21 04 - 04
assied in sabes - (2.8 - (28 -

Reclossified i inventory / cost of sales - - - 17 uiy

Deterred Tax - - B - - 30

AS AT 23 ARRIL 2021 4.9] e - 2.2 143 (29 s

i} The sterling principal amounts of unhedged forward contracts and written currency option
contracts ond contracted rates were as follows:

13 Aprll 2001 16 Aprll Xa20
Em itm}
US Dollar putchases 403
Contrarted rotes USD / EUR A1
- Lura soles 13838} 1630 01
Contracted ratas EUR / GBP . 099 059109
- Eure purchases 720
Controcted ratas EUR / GBP - Ve

The loss on fair volue of the written options ond swaps of £4.6m has been included within finance
income (FY20: gain £21.3m).

wiuns the YK
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At 25 April 2021, £nil of unhedged purchase contracts had a maturity at inception of greater than 12
months [FY20: Enil purchase contracts) and £335.4n of unhedged sales had @ maturity at inception
of greater than 12 months {(FY20: £240.0m of sales -ontracts).

These contracts form part of the Treasury mancage nent activities, which incorporates the risk
maragement strategy for areas that are not reliab e enough in timing and amount to qualify for
hedge accounting, This includes acquisitions, dispesals of overseas subsidiaries, related working
capital requirements, dividends and loan repayments from overseas subsidiaries and purchase and
sdle of overseas property. Written options carry additional risk as the exercise of the option lies with
the purchaser. The options involve the Group receiving a premium on incegption in exchange for
occepting that risk and the outcome is that the bank may require the Group to sell Euros. However,
the Group is satisfied that the use of options as a T-easury mandgement toal is appropriate.

In FY21 there are nil short term swaps at period enc, FY2D value excludes short term swaps of USD/
GBP of USD 190.0m and EUR/GBP of EUR 75.0 and EUR/JSD of EUR 80.0m which were required for
cash management purposes only.

d. Sensitivity Analysis

The froup's principal foreign currency exposures are te US Dollars and Euros. The table below
illustrates the hypotheticai sensitivity of the Group's reported profit and equity to a 10% increase
and decrease in the US Dollar / Sterling and Euro / Sterling exchange rates at the year-end date,
assuming all other variables remain unchanged. Thz figures have been calculoted by comparing
the fair values of outstanding foreign currency cont-acts at the current exchange rate to those if
exchange rates moved as illustrated. The income statement figures include the profit effect of any
relevant derivatives which are not in a designated cash flow hedge. The impact on US Dollar and
Euro related hedging instruments is included in equ ty,

Pasitive figures represent an increase in profit or equity:

Incema Stubaminnt Cquity
MAerl  TeApH ISApl 26 Apet

pre 020 031 2020

{Em] {Em) {Em) (Lm}
Sterling strangthens by 10%
US Dolar a1 145 741 174
Eura 234 151 oe kAl
Sterling weakens by 10%
US Dallar (o1 (3404 n3 16 4)
Euro (s08) 1134t 341 (454

Interast Rate Sensitivity Anclysi

The following table iliustrates the sensitivity of the Group's reported profit and equity to o 0.5%
increase or decreqse in interest rates, assuming all o:her variables were unchanged.

The analysis hos been prepared using the following assumptions:

* Fer floating rate assets and liabilities, the amount of asset or liability outstanding at the balonce
sheet date is assumed te have been outstanding for the whole year. )

«  Fixed rate financial instruments that are carried ot amortised cost are not subject to interest rate
risk for the purpose of this onalysis.
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13 ho crend

Positive figures represent an increcse in profit or equity:

Incaime Stotemank Nquity
a5 April 4 April LY 26 April
W01t o wn plr ]
tem) Em) [Em) (cm)
Infurest role mncrease of £.5% {30} 1300 [an
Interast rate Jacrease of 05% . 30 30 a1

Long-term Investments Sensitivity Analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of price risk in relation to long term investments held by
the Group:

25 Apt 2039

Taulty

{Em)

Shute pres e recwa of 10% 258
Share price dacrease of 10% 25.8]

«. Liquidity Risk

The table below shows the maturity analysis of the undiscounted remaining controctual cash flows of
the Group's non derivative liabilities and foreign currency derivative financial instrumenits:

Lemsthonlyear ltolyson  2toSyeors OverSyeon Tetal
(emy L} (] {Em} {tm)
00
NON DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Bank loons and overdiafts - 59 . - 059
Bank koons and overdrofts nterest - (X - - (2]
frade and othet poyables £46.3 - - - (Y% ]
1FRS 1 Lease liobikies 1966 n7 968 6109 11170
Cash nllows. (396 5) 1766 9% (B0 &) . 2440}
Cash autliows 389.1 7989 815 - 13¢9.5
5.5 260.5 "y 0.9 25645
2019
NON DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Bank toans and overdioits - 00 O - - $00.0
Bank loom nnd overdralts nterest B a2 R 731
Trude and ather poyubles 6025 - - 6023
IFRS 16 Laase ha 1467 1021 1962 25N 1044
Cash 11166 5) 1462 B} - - (1,649.3)
Cash outflows 12251 4848 - - 1Jasy

T4 1,031.3 1982 w1 2,204

*Extludes contingent cash flows

British woodiand acioss the UK
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Capital Monugement

The capital structure of the Group consists of
equity attributable to the equity holders of the
parent company, comprising issued share capital
{less treasury shares), share premium, retained
earnings and cash and borrowings.

It is the Group's policy to maintain a strong
capitef base so as to maintain investor, creditor
ond market confidence and to sustain the
development of the business.

In respect of equity, the Board has decided that,
in order to maximise fexibility in the near term
with regards to o number of inorganic growth
apportunities under review, not 1o return any
cash by way of a final dividend at this time.

The Board is committed to keeping this policy
under review and te looking to evaluote
methods of returning cash to shareholders when

encourage employee share ownership and to link
employee's remuneration to the performance of
the Company. It is not designed as a means of
managing capital.

In respect of cash and borrowings, the Board
regularly monitors the ratio of net debt to
Reported EBITDA (Pre-IFRS 16), the working
capital requirements and forecasted cash flows,
however no minimum or maximum ratios are set.
The ratio for net debt to Reported EBITDA {pre
IFRS 16} is Q.5 {(FY20: 0.7). The objective is to keep
this figure below 3.0 (FY20: 3.0),

Based on this analysis, the Board determines
the appropriate return te equity holders whilst
ensuring sufficient capital is retoined within the
Group to rmeet its strategic objectives, including
but not limited to, acquisition oppertdnities.

These capital managemant policies have
remained unchanged from the prior year.

31. ACQUISITIONS

i.  On 22 August 2020, the Group acquired
the trade and assets of DW Sports for cash
consideration of £37.0m which is deemed
to be the foir volue of the cansideration.
The acquisition complements the Group's
existing gym ond fitness club partfolio and is
consistent with the Group's elevation strotegy.
Goodwill represents the premium associated
with advantageous site locations, potential
growth opportunities offered by economies
of scale, and the assembled workforce. The
foir velue adjustment to property, plant
and equipment rejctes to management's
assessment of the price that would be
paid for the acquired assets in an orderly

The asset and lia
the ossets ond liab
consideration paid:

FRASERS GROUP

transaction between market participants
at the acquisition date. The leases were
acquired under short-term licences and
therefore no right-of-use asset or lease
liabitity has been recognised on acquisition.

During the year the Group acquired the entire
share capital of Psyche Holdings Limited, the
entire share capital of GRMNT Limited, and
the trade and assets of 18 Montrose (51%
awned) for consideration of £2.7m. These
ocquisitions will provide increased product
offerings in the ‘Premiurn Lifestyle' division.
The foir value adjustment to property, plant
and equipment reiates to the recognition of
right-of-use assets and lease Jiab

ty values ot ocquisition are detailed below. We hove reviewed the fair value of
es acquired. The following table summarises the fair values of

appropriate. oW Sperts Othar
I . ) Em}
The objective of the Share Scheme is to o, o
30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES oW spens Other
52 vrals onded 2 weoks smded Bouk Valus huu.ﬂﬂ FalrValus  Buok Value >un. Vohie  poivVelue
1% April 2021 16 Apri 2020
i s it i ) {eml (Em) )
Trade poyables ira3 T2 Property, plant ond egupriant m 1421 .0 i 15 e
Amounts owed to related undertakings. 26 44 Intangible assets 29 129] - - - -
Oilter tawes inchuding secrol setunty ;osts 67 178 Inventor|s n 09 40 52 o7 Ay
Othat payatles Ll 1053 Cash and cosh equvaiants - . a1 B 03
Accruals 457 17274
Horrowings - - - el - Hay
odd.¥ 4913
Working copitel . 0% - 031 08 - 0.5y
Included within other payables are amounts outstanding in respect of gift cards and vouchers of ease Loty ‘ . B 17y o)
£28.8m [FY20: £40.6m) Gonschen a7 2 23 2
The Directors cansider that the carrying amount of trade and ather payables approximates to their Brrgmn purchase - - L5b) na
fair value. Nan-conrolimng interests - (10] {1.0)
Mes askels acgueed e (43 af 18 44 n 7
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The borgain purchase of £3.4m from the Other acquisitions has been recognised within cost of sales
within the period. The Goodwill arising on all acquisitions of £6.0m hos been impaired to £ni} as ot
period end with the impairment being recognised in Exceptional lterns, see note 6.

fiatnid across the U
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Since the date of control, the following amounts have been included within the Group's Financicl 33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Statements for the period:
The Group had capital commitments of £87.9m os at 25 April 2021 (26 April 2020: £31.8m} relating to

Acquishlens OW Sperts Other Total warehouse development.
tem (7] itm
Revanue 29 3 Ll 34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Operabng {Lass)/proft 1152 032 1149]
ILOSI1/PROFIT WEFORE TAX 5.2 [ s Tha Group has taken advantage of the exempticons contained within 1AS 24 - *Related Party

Disclosures” from the requirement to disclose transactions between Group companies as these have
q P P

Had the acquisitions been included from the start of the period the following amounts would have bean eliminated on consolidation

been included within the Group's Financial Staternents for the period:
The Group entered into the following material transactions with related parties:

Aeq Hshtion DV Sparts Other Tetal
&m) tEm} 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
Revanuu 160 83
Opsrating loss e 102} alationshl et o ._.i...r
Ralationship ! Pursheses  andother  andsther
LO$S BEFORKE TAX (. 03 recalvables  payablas
. . . . £ € )
There were no contingent liabilities acquired as a -esult of the above transaction, femt m fml fem)
NELATED PARTY
32.  CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES “ Four tHoldings) Limited & subsschanies Associale 22 an w5 o
- Mash Holdings Limited Parent - - 02
ampany
52 weas wadud 52 wmekn snled
25 Apeil 2021 26 April 2020 Mike Ashiey" Plc Diructor 13 - -
L it
temy lem) N M Design London Limited Connected - 01 - -
Prahi before toxation 85 la3s persans
Nat finance £t income) 277 17 MM Prop Consultuncy Lirmited Connected ) 25 R 28
Nat investrment (Inconel/cast ' {96 01 346 persons
Shar: of fosses of ussockated undertah 155 Newcastla Unitad Football Club Limed & St Jaries Hobdurgs L Connected vz 9 01 -
Farr value gain on stap acquisitien - (2041
NG LOSSHPROFIT - o Rangers Retod Limied Associote - - - o2
n of praperty, plont and equpment 1985 3810
n on ihwestment properties 19 33 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020:
Gain an disposal and medicalian/remensurement of legse liabilitias 271 o1 '
Amortisation of intangible assets 71 145 Trada Trada
- [
tmpa rment of tangibls and intangibls Gysets and investment propertios 3261 190 Ralatianship hatd Furchases .._“.“._.r_“.q and Sr.““
Prolit on dispasal of properly, plant and eguipment 197} 154.2) m tem) 1em) 1£ml
Prolit on dlspasal at e assets 75t NELATED PARTY
Goin a1 borgein puichase iy Four (Holdngs) Limied & subsidianes * Associate n 425 318 24
OPERATING CASH INFLOW BEFORE N APITAL 5253 550 .
. arent
[increasel / decrease in recavobles 1136 6} 735 Mash Halungs Limited . company . 02 -
Decraase / {increase] in inventanes 933 {126 81 ke Ashley - Ple Diractor 20 B B B
rcreuss In poyabiles 645 518
ravee / [dectanse] in provisians 254 ey Newcastls Unitad Fontball Club Lavuted & St James Holdngs Litted nc_h“”““_ 07 20 o 20
CASH INELOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES B 483
Hangers Retm! Limited Assouiate - - - o4
M The oustanding balance with Four [Holdings) Linitad reflacts the funding related to Ageat Pravacateur Management consuder that the underlying
resuits of Four tHoldings) Lmied supports the recovaratility of the recerables belarce Fhe results of Faur [Holdmgs) Limited ore not matenal on
. the basis of net gssets end praft before tax, subsequently datalled disclosures hava not been prassntad undar RS 12.

21 Use of the Company jal ung hehcopter as chorgad ot commarcial rates

{1 The sales relate o sventory and purchases include tha revarsal of the £Y20 advertising chorge
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An ogreement hos been entered into with
Double Take Limited, o company owned by
Mash Holdings Limited in which Matilda Ashley,
Mike Ashiey's daughter, is a director. Under

the agreement, Double Take Limited licenses
the Group the exclusive rights to the cosmetic
brand 5PCRT FX. During the period & review
has been undertaken ond no royolties or other
fees are expected to be payable to Double Take
Limited for these rights until ot least September
2021, the fee arrangerment will continue to be
reviewed on an ongeing basis, no provision is
required in the financial statements. It shoutd
be noted that the Groug (rather than Double
Take Limited) owns the rights to SPORT FX for
clothing, footwear and sports equipment.

N M Design London Limited a company in
which Nicala Murray, Michael Murray's mother,
is a director, perform design work for the Group
in relation to some of the Group's sites.

A provision was made in FY20 for £2.0m
payabie to Newcastle United Footbal] Club, this
was reversed in FY21.

The trade and other receivables balance with
Four {Holdings] Limited includes an unsecured
lean balance of £60.0m (gross of amounts

recognised in respect of loss allowance]
which attracts interest at a rate of 3% within
current assets. This has been accounted for

at amortised cost in accordance with IFRS 9,
The carrying volue has been determined by
assessing the recoverability of the recewvable
balance, discounted ot an appropriate market
rate of interest. £4.7m was recognised in the
year in respect of doubtful debts, Further
disclosure can be found in note 22.

The sales amount in relation to Four {Holdings}
Limited relates to the interest charge on the
loan and the purchcses relate to the purchase
of clothing products.

At the period end the Group does not have
significant influence over but holds greater than
20% ef the voting rights of Studio Retail Group
ple and Mulberry Group plc. Studio Retail Group
pic have disclosed transactions with the Group
as a related party within their most recent
Financiol Statements. Transactions between
Studio Retail Group plc and the Group related
te normal commercial trading arrangements
and are not considered material to the results
of the Group. The latest equity amounts and
resylts are shown below:

Ml barry Greup ple Studio Rutoil Group ple

Periad ahded 27 Morch Period 4nded 26 Morch

20N on
Shaue Capitol 30 287
Share Pramwm 121
Other Reserves a2 03
Refaihed B0Mings 70 393
Yatal aquity 4 s
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD (] 1.0

The Group does not consider it has the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the entities and so management do not consider the Group to be able to exert

sigl
and I1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures.
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cant influence over these entities as per IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

FRASERS GROQUP

Key Management, Executive And Non ti or Comp ti
15 Aprii 2009 26 April 2020
tem m
saranes and short-term benef s 13 15
Snare <chemy payments
OEher piyrments 43
TOTAL 13 L1

Key management persormel are considered to
be the directors and members of monagement
who play a key part in the long term strategy
and operations of the Group.

MM Prap Consultancy Limited, o company
owned and controlled by Michael Murray, whe
is o member of key management personine!

as per IAS 24, continues to provide property
consultoney services to the Group. MM Prop
Consultancy Limited is primarily tasked with
finding and negotiating the acquisition of new
sites in the UK, Europe and Rest of the World for
both our larger format stores and our combined
retail and gym units but it also provides advice
to the Company's in-house property team in
relation to existing sites in the UK, Europe and
Rest of the World.

In the year all praperties are ossessed and
those that are considered by the Group's
independent non-executive directors to have
completed development and be eligible for
review at the year-end are assessed ond if
required valued by an independent valuer
wha confirms the value created by MM Prop
Consultoncy Limited, The Group's independent
non-executive directors then review and agree
the volue created ond have full discretion to
approve a payment to MM Prop Censultancy
Limited of up to 25% of the value created.
There is a current pipeline of properties that
may he eligible to be assessad both positively

and negatively by the Group’s Non-executive
directors in future years.

In the current year £2.5m has been accrued
hased on 25% of the value created on two
properties where the gain has crystallised
through contract exchange or completion

af sale (FY20 - £nil provided and £nil paid,
MM Prop Consultancy Limited was tast paid
in relation to FY19}. This is payable to MM
Prap Consuitancy Limited and agreed by the
independent Non-Executive Directors.

During tha period the Group entered into an
agreement with M.F.M Elevation Limited, a
company owned and controlled by Michoel
Murray in relation to elevation strategy services.
M.PM Elevation Limited will be paid an annual
fee of £0.1m in relation to the provision of the
elevation strategy services (FY20: £nil).
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35. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

The Group is controlled by Mike Ashley through
his 100% shareholding in Mash Beta Limited and
Mash Holdings Limited, which own 303,507,460
(58.44% of the issued ordinary share capital

of the Company) and 26,492,540 (5.10% of the
issued ordinary share capital of the Company}
ordinary shares respectively at the period

end. MASH Holdings Limited is the smallest

and largest company to consolidate these
accounts. MASH Holdings Limited is registered in
England and Wales and a copy of their financial
statements can be obtained from Companies
House, Crown Way, Cardiff, CF14 3UZ.

36. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 4 May 2021 the Group commenced a share
buyback programme with the aggregate
purchase price of all shares acquired under the
programme to be no greater than £60m and the
mazirmum number of shares to be purchased

of 10m ordinary shares with a nominal value of
10p each, The purpose of the programme was
to reduce the share capital of the Company.

. 3,895,835 ordinary shares of 10p each for

consideration of £22,42%,985 were acquired

" through this programme. .

On 21 June 2021 the Group commenced an:
irrevocable non-discretionary share buyback
programme to purchase the Group's shares
during the closed period which commenced 21
June 2021 and ends on the day of reporting full
year FY21 results, The aggregate purchase price
of all shares acquired under the programme
were no greater than £60m and the maximum
number of shares e be purchosed were 10m
ordinary shares with a neminal volue of 106p
eact. The purpose of the programme wes to
reducze the share capital of the Compeny. In total
to date 2,024,127 ordinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £11,937,385 hoave been acquired
through this programme.

m

The Board is now in discussions with regards

to transitioning the CEG rale from Mike Ashley
to Michael Murray over the course of FY22.

It is currently proposed that Michael Murray

will assume the role of CEQ on 1 May 2022.

A reward and remuneration package is now
under consideration on the assumption Michael
Murray will assume the CEC role. Any reward
and remuneration package be subject to any
requisite shareholder approval.

The Group's elevation strategy is transforming
the business and receiving positive feedback
from consumers and our brand partners,
especially on projects such as the new Oxford
Street Sports Direct which opened in June 2021.

The Board consider it oppropriate that Michael
leads us forward on this increosingly successful
elevation journey.

Should Michael Murray assume the CEQ role,
Mike Ashley would step down from the CEO role
at the same time but would remain on the Board
as an executive director.

t, helping to creats new B
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37. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Parc Industriel, Avenue Ernast,

FRASERS GROUP

NAI REGISTERED OFFICE COMPANY  PERCENTAGE OF I3SUED SHARE
ADDRESS NUMBER CAPITAL HELD
Montrose Retor Limuted Sturebrook * 1577836 13
Fourth Flaor Toronlo Square
5 Powntz Lunitad (in bquidation] Taronto Strast Leads L$t JH) on 6950212 00
23 Apr1 2020
Actiater Brands Lrmted Shirelirook ' 5344458 100
Artwotor Products Limited Shirehrook 220461 0o
Cogency Glohol Inc. BSG New
Artive Apporel New Coup Burtan Road Suke 201 Daver 370168 06
Delaware 15304, LISA
Alpha Devalopments Stackport Lid Shirebrook' 12657564 108
12th Flogr, Menara $ynphony
Ha 5, Jolgn Semangat [Jolan
Prafesser Khoo Kay Kiml,
AP Brands Holdwngs Lt Sekeyen 13, 46200 26200 49014 0
Petaling Jaya, Szlangar Darul
Ehsan, Maloysia
Clineivs House, Lord Street,
Bellotrix Associates Limited Douglas, sle of Man, 1M391R2. me7Ic 1040
e of Man
s House. Lord Street,
Bellatnx Overseas Limited Douglas, sle of Man, IM9¥ 1RZ, 128827C 104
tele of Man B
Clinch's House, Lord Street,
SBellatrix Unlmiter Dauglos, Isie of Man, IM59 1RZ, THEFOC 0t
Isle of Man
Blue Square Sales Limited Shirabrook 1802892 00
" The Corporation Trust Company.
Corporation Trust Center, 1209
Bob's Stares USALLC Oranga Street, Wilmingtan, New 639085 w0h
Castle County DE 19801,
Unibed Stotas
Hronds & Fastion NV Leopaldstraat, o 75, 1800 0477-595-412 T
Mechelen, Balgwm
Brands 001 Luwted Shrabeook! 5347540 10t
Brands Afnca Limitud Shirehrook GRIOTHS 0
Brands Motekngs Limited” Shirebroak 40R7435 ne
Brands Holdings Spgnsorshy Limi Shirebrogk 1037541 05
Brands inc Lamvted Shugbroak’ 2585719 0y
Broshar Lesure Lmted Shirabrook " 053471 100
BSL Intarnabianal Limuted Shiehrack 2800425 0
Wia Centrol de Mdfewos no. 121,
; 4475-234, Frguesn de Milherios,
Cafica - Camercio de Attigos de Despartas § A Concelbo da Mo, Forto, 503751804 100
Portugal
Compn Limted Shirebraak: 5398677 0t
CC Pusrto Veneew, local B4,
Cardringt investmens 5 | Trav Jardines Renles, 7 50021 RBASETEG ne
Foragogo, Spain
Corlton Shwttlecacks Limited Shirghraok’ 480582 00
Carlton Spores Company Limited Shirebrook' 457686 00
" CCPusme Veneon, lacal 84,
Cotrinona lavestments 5.1 Trov Jocdines Reales, 7, 50021 B8B512683 00
Zoragaza, Spon
1z

2 Stembers 100 Becycled and Garbot Capnied

€D P Sh Selvoy 79 1480 Saintes, Belgium 0BT oo
£irp Cattene Brands Liritud Shirebrook NBG0ETE 00
Cormmumty Bug Limited Shirebrook ! 260240 00
Crininol Ciothing Lrmited Shwebrock ' 4184750 100
- Martin House. 184 ingram Street.
Crus Clothng Limited Shengirt, Scot G 10N SCIB2Y9 woe
€C Puerto Yeneuin. ocal 8,
Curling Investments 5.1 Traw Jurdsaes Reales. T, SO0N BBEA1526% 100
Zaragozo, Spam
Devad Geofliey & Associates (UK Urmited Shurabrook ! 470530 100
Dewgn Source Supply Limitad Shiebroo’ 9636588 100
Ik Dogitodl Holdings Limited Shirsbrook! MaI0TG 100
©ink Dugito! Lirnikad Shwetreck 072685 90
Direct Fishing Limited Shirabrock’ 8203469 160
Dhrect Galt 1P Limited Shirubroak 91086 wo
Curect Golf Retail Limtted . Shrebrook " 9825889 100
Dunnay iterhotanal NV Leonalidstraat r 79, 2600 435392070 W00
Mechelen, Balgmm
Unit 19038 & 1905, Exchange
Tawer, 33 Wang Chr Raad,
Eastchnnce Limited % oy, Kot 174348 100
: Hong Kong
. Frrst Figer Le Chasse Chombers
Epoch Propertes Limited o Fer T 4UE Turay 74753 00
Eto Servces Lirnted Shirebrogk! 5144597 e
Feans Cycles Brands Limited Shiabroak’ 11634915 100
Evans Cycles Limited Shurabrook 577850 0o
Evans Cycles Property Limited Shirebrook ! 1634935 e
Everlast Awstraka Limited Shwabirook' 2100812 100
- Everlost 42 West 39th St drd
vanast Suorts migmotianal inr Corp Floar Maw York, New York, 11018, 13- 2411380 100
United Siutes
Corportien Service Company
N A State Street, Albany, ’
Fuatiost Spons mig Comp New Youk, 122707-2641, 131904372 0o
Unnted Seates
Coarporobon Service Comparky
Everlast World Boxing readyuorers Corparation B Stnte Sticet, Albany. New 131804573 100
Yark, 1222072543, Urted States
The Corporatien Trust Company,
Corporatien Trust Center, 1209
Evertast Werldwede nc Drange Sireet, whlnmington, New 13-267271K 100
. Custle County DE 19801,
United States
Exsports Linded Shwelirock’ 2479040 W0
Feaiger And Blackbum Limted Sturebrook' 639594 100
155 (AF Holdings) Limi abrock 13381083 100
FG USA Trade Group Limier! Shwelrook 1116350 W00
/D Dyl & Pheles Lid
the Chancery 58 Spring
Feid & Teek (UK) Lot her hequndiaticn] Gaurdans, Marnchester, Granter 5620577 100
Manchester. M2 1EW,
United Kingdom
Frretrap Limited Shirsbrook’ HHI66R4 100

actosy i L
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Forever Madia Limited Shitebrook 49185 00 international Brand Menagamant Limited* Shirebrook” S1213 160
Forever Sports Limited Shirebrook 9489811 00 Inwesting Busmess Limited Shiralraok” 1780314 100
Froseds Group {European Holdings] Lurited Shirehirook” 17903845 00 Juck Wlls IP] Limited Shrabrack’ 175495 100
Frosers Group Financial Sarvicas Linuted Shiralsrook " QEIEIELT] 0o Juck Wlls Property Limted Shirabirook’ 1775643 100
Frasers Graup Loyalty Services Lemnted Shirehr ook 13340837 00 Heutan Hause, IDA Business
Juck Wlls Retai {Irelond | Lirmited Park, Whitestawn, Tallaght, £55208 100
Freeshiald Limtad - Shirebsrook - £320786 wo Dubhn, ietond, DIAEF3Z,
Game AR Limded Basingstoke 10142852 oo Shwebrook' TE3481 100
Game Balong Limited Shiiebrook' 12794477 1o Jamas Uliywhites Limitad Shirahrack 1) 00
Garne Digital Holdings Limited Rasngstoke - 7893627 e Kangod Holdmgs Limited Shiretiraok” ¥138 100
Game Digital Limited Baungstake' 5040213 00 Kangal Lirmitad Shirebraok” 243731 100
Gome Digital Solubions Linted Bosingstoke' 9476109 100 Kongol Trustees Lirmitad Shirebrook” 3505512 100
Goma Espoits and Events Linred Busingstoke'* 9454710 00 Armnaka Kudan Building 6/F,
" 1 " -0t
Sarme Retor] Lmtad Basngstake - 837206 o0 Korrimar intermational Limited 141617 Kuslankita, Chiyoda-ku, 0100-01-012128 95
Tokyo, 102-0073, Japan
Game Spain Heldings Limited Basingstoke- 10846702 00 Commer Lumtedt [ sa15974 100
Geme Spain Investments Limited Bosingstoke* 10863881 100 Kensimgtan Health Chulss Limited " Shwrebrooks 4021285 00
o /-9, Porcelas 12 - 13, ]
Game Staras bero SLU Pozuslo de Alarcon, Madrd, 681209751 100 KooGa 1P Limited Shirebeaok 1240087 100
Spamn La Joilu {UK] Limited Sturabrecok” 5737550 100
Galart IP Limitad Shirebrook * 8576145 o Laneshitt Limited Shirebrook 6146743 Wo
Galert Lirmted Shirebrook: 8576204 W Lillywlutes Liruted - Shirebrool” 290939 w0
c”.. GEW w: _acpmm:ﬂ:é% Litesoma Sportsweor Limited Shirebrook ! 207867 oo
awer, 33 Wang Chiu Read,
Global Appare! (HK) Limitad Kewlaan Bay, Kowloon, Haatez 100 Lansdale Austrola Limited r— 665885 100
Hang Kang
Lansdole Baxing Limiterd Shirebreok ' 3932303 100
Goleddigga Brords Limited Shirabrook " 6636173 100
= Lensdale Sports Lunited Sturabrook” 4430781 100
CC Puerto Veneuo, local 84,
Gotay nvestmants S L Trav Jardines Reales, 7, 50021 RABSAITCY 100 Lovall Sports [Holdings] Limved Shirebrook ! 5608395 00
Zaragora, Span Lovell Sports Limited Shirabrook’ 4184358 w00
Graduate Clathing Limited Shitabirook 2511038 gt Lovals P Limited R 07509 o
GRMNT ttd Shi ] 1
t hiebrook TasGss ki Mastars Holders Luruted $hrrebrook S787118 00
Bart Hoanstrokade 7, 108I0N,
GT-Lines BY Amtardonn, Metherands 171820 100 Muctown Ltd Shirebrook 3467997 wo
. The Carporation Trust Campary,
Gul IP Linited Shuehrag 86124768 _ 100 Conpotation Trust Gentes, 1209
Gul Wotersports Lited Shirabrook” 7589716 100 Mrssssippi Manulactuning LLE Qrange Streat, Wilmingtan, New 3470413 00
Castle County DE 19801,
PG Box BT5EX, 5th Floar Lasley United States
Heatons IN 11 Linvted Buildings. 61-65 Fountar Streat NI135559 100 =
Belfgs, Noithern Ireland The Carporation Trust Campany,
Carporation Trust Canter, 1205
Heatan Hause, DA Buswess Mouniein Sports LLC Orange Street, Wilmington, New 6386324 0o
Hentons Stares Limiled Park, Whitestown, Tallaght, 509535 100 Castle County DE 15801,
Dublin, Irstand, D24E932, United States
Heatan House, (D4 Businass The Corporation Trust Company,
Healans Unlmited Company Park, Whitestawn, Talinght, 229 100 Caeporation Trust Canter. 1209
Dublin, Irzlond, D24£932, Mountan Sports USA LLC Oremye Street, Wilmingtan, New n24259 100
Costle County GE 15801,
Heaven ar Hell Limited Shretucaic 5899262 100 United Stgtes
HK Sports & Gult Aktisbotag Eskiolstorpsvagen 7, 265 56, 556510-B189 100 Muddylox 1P Limired Shursbrock” 0246764 100
Bastud, Sweden
Muddytox Lirmited Shirebrook™ 487350 100
Huulon House, IDA Business
HOF Trelgnd Stares ted Pank, Wihitestown, Talloght, 626384 100 Newica IP Limited Shirebroak'" 6836778 100
Dubhn, irelond, D24E932
No Fear Brand Limded Shirebrook” 5568043 100
Hot Tuna IP Linited Shirebrosh 6836792 100
No Fear Interchional Lamided Shirgprouk! 5832482 100
Hause of Fraser Brands Ln Shirabiraok 10687367 100
No Fear USA Lirmited Shirebrook™" 2470 e
House of Fraser Limited - Shirabrock 1068AE 100
OKI-NI Limired Shirebrook'! Ne35034 100
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Olyrmpys Ventures Limited Shirebrogk!* 1945752 mo Sth Floar, Lasley Buldings,
W P Sport o Limited [ p— . 5D [Baltymenal Linnited 2‘mwmwn.“”_._..w_”n“‘,,%h.m.mw NI&53825 o
Paddle Sport Limited Shirebroak™ 5836690 R i {Bangar Limiced Shirebraok ' 5579705 100
Academy House, 36 Poland 501 [Barraw i Furnass] Limited Shirebrook 7851574 00
POD Collection Services Limited Streat. London, WIF 7t 9918455 00
. Umted Kingdom SOt {Builast) Limed Shirebrook' 2872471 0o
Propeller (UK} imited Shirebrook” 27707 0o 501 {Barwici] Lumigd Shirabrook 2739457 160
Psyche Haldwgs Limited Shweliock 03438565 04g S0 [Betws-y-Coed) Liwuitsd Shirebrogk * £8I6673 100
Piyche Limited Shirebraok 0284404 e SO0 (Birkenhead} Limitad Shirebrook" 7849158 50
Putle 1o Lirmted Shrebrgok 10910124 no 501 |Bishop Aucklond) Lirited Shirebraok 3004246 0o
Gueensherry Boxng 1 Limvted Shiebrook' 7929363 00 SO1 {Brands 1 Lovited Shrebrook 1395958 00
Queensborry Rules Limited Shirebrask! 6723660 100 SOl 18ronds 2) Limited Shicebraok 17299584 1o
€ C.Puerto Vanacwo, logal B4, 5D Hrands 31 Cimded Shirebrook " 17299567 00
Quenkn investrerts 5 | Trav Jurdines Reales, }, 50021 884542733 ne
T Taragora, Spamn 501 {Brands &) Limited Shirebrook" 12294515 100
Guiekrepiy Limited Shieehroak 5904737 00 5D [Brdgwate Limied Shirebrook 52061 100
Republic 1P Limited Shurabrok’ 5636015 100 D1 ¢Brghtonl Limiten Shirebraok 12575760 g
Hepuphe.com Reled Limitnd Shirebiook’ 748657 00 SO [Bristan] Limited Shirebrack 9127300 100
Rhapsody Investments {Europe) SA 1Cote afm,..m”;rhwwu 21 60K oo D (Brock EW) Liimted Shirebrook 53630 6
S0 {Brook ROWI Limited Shrebrack’ 9336606 160
Robinsons Country Leisure Limited i Shwehiaok' 1204722 190 DI (8o LIK] Lemted St etk - o 0o
558 Brands Limted Shirabrook! 5635585 00 St {arten] Lmvtes Sh rebrogk e oy
5 Sports (SG) PTE LFD xmv%m_m”mnm”wwnrmﬂmnwwﬁm_ 19B203046N o Elanne st Lmited Shirabrook tozasy o
o4pe1s SO (Cardit OS) Limitest Shirebronk * 1257045 100
S0 {Rarenl € 10} Liited Stursonook 11685119 e 01 Carlste] Lartee Sh relirook’ 751959 100
. SO [Retel Ce 1Y) Limited Shirebrook 12258852 ‘oo D1 ICAatharat L ted shirebronk 5836679 00
S50 {Raiad Co 13y Limited Shiretrook 12298757 00 SOV Cheshunt 71 Lauted - Shirebrook nrsiy 100
50 (Reterl Co 131 Limited Shirebrook" 12298767 0o £51 [Cheshuntt Limited Sinrabrask - 16a
5D iRetail Co 4j imited Sharebrook Meason 00 501 (Chinal Online Limited Shirebrook * 10248762 00
D [Ratail Co7) Limitedt shirsbrook'! ME8TIIE w0 [ — Shrabraok 2953078 100
S0 IRatail Co Bl Limited 4 Shirebrock 1687176 o &th Floar, Lasley Auildings,
5D IRetcil Co 9 Limited Shuabrook Wegs077 tog SO Clommel) Limited 162 Fountan Strear Bellost NI6$3359 o
5D Exuestr oh Limied Shrebrookt 88280 ue b1 Celehestar Umited Shyabrook 5612190 100
3D Qutdoor P imted . Stuevroak #0057 0 S0 (Carby) Limitecd Shirebraok 10885612 100
5D Outdosr Linired Shirebrock" 85601260 0o o i a] Lovated PA— e o0
SDB2SA o Ny s 0849984 388 no 501 [Caventry] Linwed Shirebrook 4680170 0
501 [{Propro 135} Lurured Shirebrook! Wazren? 0o SO (Darlingtan Lnierd Shirubrogk” AU ERHILE] 00
S01 (50 Hotdings) Limired Shirebrook” 10882050 oo 501 {Derby) Limitea Shirebrook” 9310031 100
SO (aberdoen 3 Lirnted Shebrook 12576371 b SDi (Dery) Limited m_‘M.:nh_ﬂH. ﬂsw,"m._.mm.zmm,mww Mif53340 a0
5D tAberdeen] Limired Shirehrook' 8512692 ne Narthern ireland, BT1 5EX
SDI{Aberwystwyth Li Shirebrook 2789996 100 SDI |Dancostar) Limitad Shiebrock 88K 100
SDHAcqco 5 Limtes Shichraok 10362504 o0 SDI (Dundus] Limited Sluebroak 9702004 100
SOl{Antraa) Lundted Shirebreok! 3152462 0o (Dunlermhing) Limited Shrvetgok 8483673 00
SDHAshtord] Limited n Shirahrook’ 7848460 10 SO [tast Hom) Lireited Srerebioon S80I 100
5Dl Ashingtan) Lmited Shirebraok 7829291 o0 SO (East Htbede) L uored Shirebig e #656368 w0
SDI{Ayr] Lirruted : Sturetraok 5528267 0o SO Edmburghl Limted Shirebinoe EOGLET 100
DI [FrRaldl Limied Shurebroak 084209 100
114
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501 tFuhami Limited Shirebrook - 7852017 0o 5DI (Newton Abbot) Limited shirebrook * ERIEHE6 100
SDI [Gansbarough] Limitad Shirebrook" 6115907 100 SDI{NFSK) Linited Shirsbrooki© 10HP2 100
SDI [Golshielst Limited Shirebrook ) 785205 100 ' S0 {NGrthompton) Limuted Shirebroak'' 1852272 100
SO [Glnsgow Fortt Liumited hirebrook YBE1504 100 $DNarthwich} Limited Shirebroak * 5656295 100
SD! [Glasgow Fiosers) Limitad Shirelrook " 11531596 100 $DIINettinghom} Limited Shirebrogk! ' 10100609 100
5DL[Glasgow Ingrom Streeti Limited Shirekrook: 9925519 100 S0 (Nunenton) Lirmted Shuebraok' 7R52249 100
SDI [Glauvestar Limitad Shirekrook' 76852067 100 SO (Oswastry) Linited Shirebrogk'* 7852363 100
SDi {Graat Yarmauth) Limited Shirehrook’ N7A2667 100 SDUOxtord Streat HOF) Limited Shirebrook Fo7aIB4 0o
501 [Hrley} Limited Shireleaok " 1228017 100 SDI{Qxtord Straat) Limitad Shirebraak! 10046080 . 100
504 {(Hestings) Limiled Shirebrook' 8525693 100 SDItPanzance) Linitad Shuebroak 7852297 a0
501 tHeraford) Lirmitad Shirebrook * 4BBBGAZ 100 SDI{Peterdee] Limited Shisbraok' 7852401 100
. SDI {Hefcal Limited Shirebaok " BI19960 100 SD1{Plymouth Flannels) Lirmited shirebrook - 9127387 100
SDI {HoH Holdings) Limited Shireb vok” 0181592 100 SDI {Plymouth| Livened shirebraa 9470468 100
501 tHounslow) Limied Shirels ook " 00HENY 100 SDU{Pextermouth) Lirmted Shirebrook* 12529294 100
SDY (Hu i Limited Shirsbraok” 9638564 100 501 (Preston) Limited Shirabroak” 10915159 100
D1 lips wich 2] Limuted Shirebiook’ 1257894R 100 SDIPropro 100) brmited Shuebrogk' 1732700 100
501 {Ips wich) Limited " shiebraok 916841 100 501tPropca 10T Limited Shirebrook 1772466 100
501 {isle of Man) Limited . shirehrook 9901745 100 SO1Propco 102) Limited ) Shirabraok 1775625 100
5DI jler.ey Holdng] Limited Shirebrock * 70 100 SDI (Prapca 105] Lumited shirebruok' 778597 100
501K Lynnj Lioted ) Shirebrook” 10073076 100 SDI {Propeo 107] Limad Shiebrock: 7506 100
SO1 IKeighiay) Limitad Shirebraok 6260239 100 SDI{Propen 111 Limied Shuebroak! ns7z7 100
S0 |Kerdal) Luvitad Shirebraok ! 6338918 100 501{Propeo 12) Limited Shirebrook' 9127160 w00
SOl {Ker tish Town) Limited Shirebr sok* 901702 100 SDI(Propco 114] Limited Shirebrogk! 12296708 1a0
SO {¥rd derminster) Limited - Shirebr 3ok ! 9703731 100 S0 {Frapco 18] Limited Shirabroak! ! 12100052 100
SO {Kilmarnock) Limited Shirelr3ok 7853433 100 S0 {Propeo 116} Limited shirabroak! 12332464 w00
5D {Kingston) Lirmted i Shirebrack ' 10915209 100 SDIPrapeo 17 Luwtad Shirgbrogk! 12332456 1006
SDH [Kirkealdy) Linitud Shirebrook’ 7852097 100 S01{Propco 116} Limited Shurebrook" 12332859 100
SO {Lands} Luntad Siurebrock 9293518 100, SDI{Propeo 119) Limited Shirebroak! 12332862 100
SDI {Leicestert Limited Shirebroald” 92140 100 SDItPropeo 125) Limitud Shirgbrock'* 12577328 00
SBI {uverpool) Limibed shirebrook 988734 100 SO {Propen 131] Lirmtad Shirabrock: 127266 100
SO {Lowestolt) Limited Shirebrook™ VB5226% ’ 106G SDI(Prapea 133) Lirmited Shitebroak' 8572455 100
SCI{LSL Heldings) Limited Shirgbrook ' 10161824 1o ' SDHPropee 134] Limited Shirabrook” 9525631 100
SBI {Mar chester Chaetharn Hil} Lirmied Shirabrcok® 010096 100 D) [Prapea 137} Lunited Shirebrock' pLFr3cril 100
S0I {Marchester Denton] Limrtad Shirebrcok " ouns ) 100 SDi {Prapea 35) Limited Shirebrogk’ 11500287 0e
SO {Marset Rood) Limited Sturebrook’ 10795247 106 SDI{Propea 36] Limited Shirebrook! 1523336 100
SDI {Micldlestraugh] Limited rebreok ! 1001509 100 DI {Propee 37) Limited Shirebrook 11523343 00
SO {Nossou Street) Limited Shirebrook 327964 100 5Dt (Prapea 38) Liritad Shirabrock! 11523424 100
S [Neath) Limited Shirsbrook 7853548 100 SDI[Propca 39] Lirntac Shaglirack' 11523440 ’ 100
SDI [Nawark} Lited Shirebrook ' 7553410 w0e 5D (Prapea 40) Limited shirebrock" 1523489 100
SO [New:astle) Limited ) Shirebrook 912786 o 5D} (Prapea 41 Limited Shirebrook' 11523821 100
SO [Nawort 1OW) Ltd Shirebrook 12578944 100 SDI [Propen 43) Limted Shirebrook 11521953 160
SO {Nawport) Linited Shirebrodk " 86191 00 501 (Prapea 43) Limited Shirabrook' 11523608 100
DI {Nawquay) Linvtad Shirabrook - 10089800 100 SDi (Propen 44] Lmited Shuebrock " 1523608 100
Sth Floor, Lestay Buildirigs, . SDMPropco &5] Limitad Shirebrook* 11523654 100
SOl {Nawryt Lunined £1-65 Fountain Strast, Bulfast, NIES335E 100
Morthesis ¥aland, BT1SEX 508 (Propeo 46) Lunited Shirebrnak ' 1523148 100
15
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SDi [Propea 47] Limited Shirebrook! M50 100
D! {Propeo 48) Limited b Lguidetion) . MMMMMHMM e 1523759 00
501 [Propca 49] Limied Shirabrook nh2alls L]
SOi{Propea $0) Lumited Shebrack - 1526183 00
SD1{Propeo 1] Limited Shirabrook: 1527237 09
SDI [Propea 52} Limited Sinrebrook 1526972

DI {Propeo 54 Limitad Shirehrgale 11577tag O
$DH1Propeo S5) Lumikad Shiebraok' n527303 . 160
SDI[Propea S Limited Shirsbrook " 0527382 il
SOIiPrapeo 57 Limked Shirebroahk” 1527500 wo
5D /Propeo 5B Limited shirebrook! 19275956 100
SO Propea 59) Limted ;6“”” Mwﬂmﬁum ww_:w_m_ 1527584 o
SD!iPropra 601 umited Shirabrook 11531384 00
DI {Propeo 61 Limited Shregrook 1531382 au
SO Propoa 62 Limied Shirghraok 531484 100
SDI {Propeo 63 Limiked Shirebrook! WsA503 ey
$DI [Propeo 6d) Limited Shirehiook! 151506 0o
501 (Propeo b5} Uimited Shurebrook 11531537 o
SDI{Propeo 67) Linited Shirebrock " 1572676 00
5D1[Propeo 66] Limiked Shirgbrook " 1572831 0o
$DI{Propro 69 Limited Shirebraok: 1572830 a0
SDi [Propeo 70 Lumiked Sturebwook 11572533 100
501tPrepco M Linded Shirebook 574887 na
501 [Bropeo 73) Limied Shirabroak * Ma75050

SOIPrepca 14} Limited Shirebrook * 1875051 b1
SDI{Propeo 75f Limited Shirghraak: 1527756 00
SDi [Propea 76] Linnited Shirshrook! 11877817 0w
DI {Propea 77) Limited Shirebroak” 1576164 00
SD1{Propce B0} Limited Shirabeaoh NSTIEIO oo
SDi [Propea 813 Lirited Shirebrook: n84iL13 2]
S0ItPropea 83) Limited Shirebroak' 1646307 0o
$DI {Propco B5) Limited Sturatirek 1549637 “an
SO [Prapco 86] Limited Shirebrook' 1649235 ou
SOt tFropeo 87) Limited - Shireprook 11649226 k5]
SDV[Propea £B1 Limited Shwebrapk 1574753 00
SDI{Propco 89} Limited Shicebrook® 1849247 an
SO {Propco 90+ Limited Sturebrook 1EATATY w0G
5Dl [Prapeo 91) Limitad Shirebrogk’ N687077 00
SDI {Propeo 97) Limited Shrebrook! 1730004 100
SDP{Propco 93| Limited Shirebraok” M730253 oo
SOt (Prope 9¢) Limied Shiralsook 1730440 100
SD1 (Propco 96) Limited Shwabrook 17305073 00
S| {Propeo 98) Limited Shirebraok ' 1730868 an
5DI [Propce 99} Limiters Shrrebrock " 1732772 00
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SD1{Romsgntal Limited Shirghraak ! 2852250 00
SU1 [Readng) Lend Shirsbroak' 104321064 100
SO (Redorf Limed Sinrebrook’ 2711482 wo
S0 iRolla St timeted Shirebrack" 7B5266% 180
SO Ramtord) Limited Shirshrogk 1067847 . 100
SO [Sahisburyl Lid Shirabrook * W07572 100
01 {Scarhareugh] Limted Shirebraak" 6328463 100
501 IScuntharpe Panshes Centre] Limiter Shirebrook” 1730447 100
SO [Sewnthorpe) Limited Shirebraok’ 185055 100
SONSDI [Propca 136) Lamited Shirebrook 9868635 100
DI ISouthompton 2) Limitad . Shirebronk * 9665889 100
S [Southampton) Limited Shirehronk Bs12480 i
SD1 {Sauthport] Limitag ! Shiretirook” IBRAROG 1060
501 {5t Austell Limited Shirabrook! 1852284 100
DI (St Halensl Limiteet Shirsbrook! 7352281 0o
$Oi {Statiord] Limted Shratrook Bseasel [15]
50 I8tmnes] Limited Shirebrook' ! 1645482 a0
SDA (Stackport] bimited Shrebrook " 6372181 100
S {Stoke Longton) Lirited Shirabrook' 7853877 09
D (Stoke Newingtor] Limited S rebrook’ 7852207 wo
SDH {Strabane) Limited Shyetrook’ 9830243 100
Sl [Stretham] Lumtud Shirgbrook ' 10066335 100
D (Strood) Limited Shirebrook* 7857251 00
Si31 {Sunceriand) imined Shivabrook 4755347 100
DI [Suttont Limited Shirabrook 1122800 190
S0 (Swindien} Limitaa Shrehiaok 9BBAGE2 0o
SDI{Taliaghts Limitedt Shrebmook’ 10515203 )
SO [Tauntoni | 1imited Shirebrank * 7852191 00
S01 (Thanat) Limsted Shirabeock 17579034 wp
$O1{The House Yarm| Limted Shirebrook’ 1233287 100
DI [Fhe Lion Hatelt Cimited Shirebrook' 6836880 100
SO (Taurock) Lmited Shiretrook 0085743 0o
w31 4 Trowhrage) Limited Shreprook 12335661 100
A0 uwunoge 25 Liniten Shirebrook 4121916 g
SO Muxbrag el Lirmiteyg Shirsbrnok halirELY 100
SOI Wunkehel) Limiteg Shwetnnas 84831 R}
DI [Walsalfl Lirmitad Shurebsrouk 857785 10
SO (Wotford) Limited Shiateook £128505 160
SDI {whdnes) Linnted Shuebrook 8526412 0o
501 [Whgan} 1P Limited Shirabrook ' 6835407 00
SO (Wigan) Linmted Shrranrook " 12576287 g
SO1{Wishaw) Liwted Shrebrook’ EA5A365 o
DI [ Wrexham] Limited Shirebrook’ 0RIS200 o
SO [Wythenshnwel Lumized . Ehirelirnok PEINSH 100
SOH (Yeovi] Limigd Shutnoen 12527947 100
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S04 {rarkt Linited Shirebrock * 1331391 06
The Corperation Trust Canpany,
Cotporation Trust Centzr, 1209
SDI 2200 Cellins LLC OrangeStrest, Whlrmnglen, New £5/003t 100
Costle County DE 19801, Unitedt
Stotes
The Carporatan Trust Conpany,
Corparatian Trust Cenler, 1209 .
$D1735 Colins LLC Orange Street, Wilmingtcn, New 68700178 100
Castl: County DE 19801, Unitad
Statas.
SDF Aviction Limited® Shiearook 9633152 100
SD1 Fitnuss [Biringham) Limited Shice ook 9048987 W
SDb Fikivass [Bury St Edmunds) Limited Shure ronk” 9038749 w0
SO Fitness [Cheltanham) Limited Shire ook 5039840 100
DN Fikness [Colchester] Linitad Shirabrook™ 5035011 100
4D Fitness [Croydon) Limited Shirebrook’ 0392 100
SDI Fitness (W) Limited Shirabroo) 12258754 100
D1 Fit vess fEpsam) Limited Shirgkirook™ 9039043 00
Fourth Floor Toronto Sxuure,
SOIFit ress {Facehain} Limited [in lquidation] Tovonto Strost, Lawds, L513H 1 SOI90ST 100
SDI Fitness {Formby} Limited Shereet ook 5039895 100
SDI Fitness (Glasgow] Limited Shureiook 9038811 w00
DI Fitness {Guildfand] Lmtad Shirekrogk 9039283 w0
SDI Fitness [Hove) Limitad Shiretsael 9039030 100
5D Fitness [Huntingdan) Limited Shwebrack! 49039881 W00
SDi Fitness (K Haath] Lmiled ! Shiretragk ' 9039717 00
SD1 Fltress [ Lynn] Limited Shirebrook' 9039847 00
SDI Fitr a5 [Kettanng) Limitad Shwab ook 5039852 00
S0 Fitress [LIncoin City} Limitad Shireb ook 9039331 100
SDI Fitress [Lncoln Sauth Westh Limited Shireb ok’ 039319 W00
5D Fitness {Livarpaal] Limited Shireb ogke” 5035347 100
5§51 Fitness (Monchester) Lirmited Shireb-ook! 9039335 00
SDH Fitness [Milngavie] Limited - Shirehrack: P03IPH0 00
SD1 Fltn2gs [Mewark) Limited Shirebsock: 9035640 plee)
/o Keanudys, 10th Floar, River
3 House, 45-60 High Sreet, :
SBI Fitn 2ss (N1 Lirmted Seltast. Northam reone. BT NIGF2034 00,
2BE, United Kincdomn
/o Kemnedys, 10th Floor, Jwer
Haouse, 4B-60 High S reet,
SO Fitnass (N1 3} Limited Balfast, Northam Irlonc, BT1 NIS72033 wo
2BE. United Kingzlom
t/c Kannedys, 10U Floar, lver
i N Hause, 48-60 High Skreet, )
SOI Fitness (Kl 3 Limited Belfost, Northarn Irelend 813 Nie72038 oG
28E, United ¥ngarn
/o Kennedys, 10th Floot, River
House, 48-60 High Steet,
S, Fot s, AL 4 Lt " IR Y
S Etenen 8 et Bulfsst, Noathern lrelanct BTY e "
28E, United King dom
c/o Kennedys, 10th Floar, Piver
SO Fitnass [N1 3) Limited House, 48-60 pugh St vt Nib/2684 o

Batfast, Northei Ireland, 871
2AE, United Kingdom

"7

504 Fiinass [Northhield) Limated Shietyaak’ F039412 100
SDf Fitnass [Rugky) Limited Shirehrook” 9039408 120
ness (Sale) Limited Shirehrack’ 9039405 0o
ness [Soalisburyl Limited Shirehrack’ 9039429
50 Fitness t | imited Shirebrook’ 1231923
DI Fitness 10 Limited Shirebrock 2372363
SO Fitness 11 Limnted Slurebirock’ 12820381
SDI Fitness 12 Lunited Shirebirgok’ " 12821058 100
DI Fitness 13 Limited Shirebroch ' 12820589 1na
S0 Fitness 14 Limiked Shirebrask' 12820516 100
501 Fitnuss 15 Limited Sivrebrock’ 12824245 0o
50! Fitness 16 Limited Sturebrank' 12627564 wo
DI Fitness 17 Lirmitedd Shirebrook' 12822652 100
SI Finess 18 Limitud Snirenrook™ V2EZIISL Wi
SO Fitness 19 Limited Shirelsrook 126822856 100
501 Fitness 2 Limited Shirebrook! 12372165 00
SDI Fitnuss 20 Linitad Shirebrook " 12823728 100
SBI Fitness 21 Limited Shirsbrook™ 12823572 190
ess 72 Limded Shirebrack” 12823510 00
ness 23 Limited Shitebrook 12623786 100
SDI Fitiess 24 Larited Shirehraok * 12823966 100
SDI Fitness 25 Limited Shirebroak 12613926 100
SDI Fitniess 26 Limited Shirebroak 12625245 100
SDI Fitness 27 Limited Shirebrook * 12830411 100
SOI Fitiuss 2B Lunitad shirebrook! 148256356 100
501 Fitness 29 Limiad Shirehroak! ! 12825568 100
SDI Fitness 3 Limited Shirebrook* 12372169 100
SO Fiknass 30 Limited Shirebrook! 282570 100
501 Fitness 3% Limitedt Shirebrook® 12930743 100
SDI Fitness 32 Limited Shirebroak 12930838 100
SDI Fitnuss 33 Limited . Shiretsroak 12930426 100
SDI Filness 34 Limited Shisbrook * 12930479 100
SDI Fitness 35 Limited Shirebrook * 12930936 100
SD! Fitness 36 Limited Shirbrook 12430954 106
SDI Fitness 37 Limited Shirebrook' 12930444 100
SD1 Fitness 38 Limited Shirebrook 09038724 0o
SDI Fitness 3% Lunited Shirabrook” 05038768 we
SDI Fitnags 4 Linited Shirabrook' w3 W0o
SO Fitnzss 40 Limited Shaebrogk” 02036861 100
SO Fitnass 41 Limited Shirghrook! 05018835 100
vV S ] Srireurach A hlse)
501 Fitnass 43 Limited Shirehrook” 09035023 100
505 Fitness A4 Limited Shuehrook 05039343 100
SIH Fitnass 45 Lomited Shirebrock” DYVIFAHT 100
4Dt Fitness 4f Limuted Shirabrook 13030436 100

Stembeis 100 Rocycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust, helping to create new Bntish woodiand aoross the UK
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SDI Fitress 47 Limited Shireraok 13030364 00
SD1 Fitness 48 Linwted Shirabronk: 13030107 00
SDIL Fitness 49 Linuted . Shirabrook”! 13030173 W00
SDIFitness & Limted Shirabieooh 12372199 00
SO Fitness 50 Lirted Shurebrook 13630175 Qg
SDIFikness 6 Limitadt Shirabraek” 12372224 100
SDI Frtress ¥ Limited Shirebraok 12372216 100
sDIFiEness B Limited Shirabragk" 12772305 oo
SDI Fitness 9 Limited Shirebrack " 12372303 100
5Di Four Lirmited Sturebrook” #219775 e
Tiwe Corparation Trust Company,
Corporation Trust Center. 120%
SDIGHt Cord LLT Drange Straet, Wilmingtan, New 67713715 00
Castle County DE 19807
United States
SO Golf Lrmited Shirebrook " 9083517 100
The Carparction Trust Company,
Corporation Trust Center, 1209
SDI Holdings USA inc Crongs Street, Wimington New £651201 00
Castle County DE 19801
Unied Stales
SO Litestyle Limited Shasbrook #293614 e
Corporation Servcy Compony,
SDI Properties {USA} e 1 Office Park Courl, Suit 103 535672 o0
Columbia
Von Komjnenburgwe 45
SDI Property [Euope] By 46728 Bergen op Zoom 69022594 106
Retherlonds
SDI Property {Evons Cyclas] Limited Shirebrook” 646219 0o
SDI Prparty Limited” Stirabrook 2262493 wo
The Corporalion Trust Company,
Corporation Trst Cencer, 1209
5D Propesty US Inc O1ange Street, Witmington, New £8700024 g
Castle County DE 13601,
United States
S Property US Limited Shirebraok 11323420 a1
SO Retail Serwices Limited Strebrack! 8143303 00
SDI Sport London Linited Shwebrack 9848767 00
5DV Sports [SC 2016] Lid Shirebrook' 429750 W0
SD1 Sports [5take} Limited Sturelrook’” 10163722 100
The Corparation Trust Company,
Corporation Tryst Center, 1209
SDISports Group Amengos (L Oronge Street, Winington, New 2047393 0
Castle Caunty DE 19801,
United Stataes .
The Cerporation Trust Campany,
Carporation Trust Center, 1209
Oronge Streat, Wilmington, New 1240332 a0
Castle County DE 19807,
Uruted Stetes
The Cerperation Trust Caimpany,
Carporation Trust Center, 1209
SDIUSA LLC Orange Street, Wikengrar, New 6285155 no
Goslle County DF 15801,
ted States
ne

Printed on Stoinbears 100 Recyded ane
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The Cerporation frust Compory,
Carporation Fust Center, 120¢

551 Yentures LLC Change Street, Wilmington, New ©E70024 100
Castle County DE 19801,
United States
SDI Property [Brburg) BY Netharlands 82495807 100
Si3l com Fitness Parent Limited” Shirebrook* 40A1454 0o
Pare Industriel, Avenua Ernest "
SOILSA Sclvay 29 1480 Samtes, Belgum Bignels 100
Seven Steong Limiterd Shurebrook! 7756386 e
Sheltco A3 Limiad Shirmbiraok” 10687408 100
& Daglava ste 50 LV-1-35 Rigo
SIA SIG Lugistits e 202031076 60
SIA Spartiond A Deglava str 50 LV-35 Rigo 4D0GIEIDIEN £0
Lotvio
SIA Sportsdirectcom # Drglava st 50 _.<‘.,.wmnﬂm“ 40163932072 s
Ski ond Dutdoor Worehouse Limited Shirebrock 2917223 100
Swans £ Lamiged Shirgbrosk 12168568 0
Statenger Carllon (Holdingsh Limted Shwrabraok - 10463051 00
Sluzengsrs Austrolia Lumired Shirwbraok’ 9217319 100
S azengens Linited Sturbrook: 115000 100
Seruth & Brooks Lenited Shirebrook 2073720 100
Sanith And Brocks Group Limiterd Shitsbrook 407930 100
Smith And Srooks Holdings Lmred Sturebrook 4983573 0o
. £lugplatzst a6
SN Spart Vartaens GrbH Al 30,4600 o e m 00
The Block Chyrch , St Marys
2 | 1 wn
Sofo Manufecture Ineland Limited e, Duinin D7 pANK Wit 69923 0
Sofa Lom Bicea Limied Shirebrookil] 9341955
Flaas 4 ¥ 6, Den Dungen,
Sara cam BV Pt 1196766 100
Soficorn Shirbrook 5222498 199
Sanp 184 ity raheook: ssa621 00
Spinsct Limired Shure ook 4029008 100
Spart Eyol & Sports Expants Logstkbatrebs gmpn | ugRltzstrof 30 ._Ern.._“ﬂm - FNosOMm 100
sport Eybt Helding GmgH Flugplatzkiafie 30, 4600 Weks 180095 » 1a
Austin
€328, 3rdl Floor, ASEAN Bulding
90 szt Averia, Yo
Spartdiuct com China Ple Linited Community. Minzh Street Y£0I00579987503D 00
Langhws Distnict, Shenzhen,
Chuna
. Parnu mak 139 Kesklnna,
Soortiond Eestis AS Tathne tstoma 11317 0677712 o0
Farmu mnt 139c Keskhinna.
*
sportland Intematignal Growp AL Tallian Estorig 1317 0593195 1]
N & Eu Tong Sen Streat, #1109,
Spofts Direct{Singapore] Pte Lt T Centrsl, G381 Smaapor 2020045422 5
Lovel 15-2, Bangunon Faber
Impenal Cour, Jalan Sultan
Sports Direct Asia ketnil Sdn Bhy s, 30750 Kot Lo WF 2019G1040821 5
Malaysia
$porte fuect Holdings Lvmited® Shurebrook sasan? 160

rom s the
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Sportscract cam Viennn Nosth GmbsH Wels, Flugplatastrabu 30 FHIOAB6G 100
S5G Spart GmbH [550) Vornholrsh 48 Esmm.uﬂ.”__ﬁ“ HRB 134 100
Sterhing Resources {Holdings) Limited Shirebrook™ 4651701 100
Stathing Resourcas Limitad Shirabrook™ 1413254 100
Stirlings {Argyle Straet) Limitecl In:_.w ._.“_.H_.n.v smnh.w::..ﬂ._w_:_.mﬁ 5Co8RIGH w0
Straub Corparation Limiud Sturslirook” 1003584 100
Strke Suceuss Ltd + Slhirshrok® 1820519 100
C.CPuarto Venucis, locel 84,
Suplay Investments S Teaw Junlinus Racles, 4, S0071 88542691 100
arngoZa, Spoin
Swimma Eupun SPAL mhﬂ.ﬂ ,U_M_.ﬁwﬂbuﬂ__ﬁm_.m__ﬂﬂ. B78673906 100
Tolila Tunris Pra Eurape Led Shirabrogk” 063851 100
-« 3713 Howard Hugas Phway, STE N
The Antigua Groug Inc 500% Los vegns, Newcer, USA 0734679-4 100
a91Es- 601 .
The Flgnneh Group Limited Shirabrook® 2318510 100
The Trodarmark Licanting Company Limited Shitabronke™ w7819 100
Total Estatss Linutad Shisabrook™ 4558314 100
Trt Yoowil UK Lirnited Shissbrogir” 10880560 100
UAH DI (Gucieinal LT Sewmymisy g. 2 Miniva, 115030836 5
LAB Spartiond LT Selmytisklug, 3 ke, 135035836 st
UAB Spertsduract com Selmymisi 0. 3 Ve, 0055613 5
Univarsnl Cycla Limited Shirabrook" 1339667 100
USA Pro IP LimRad Shirabrook" 849704 100
USC IP Limuted Shirabrook't 6BIGB0H 100
Usad Tackle Limited Shirahiraak* 7989154 100
Von Mildert [Listyle} Lunitad Shiiebroh® - 8319059 0o
Vinecomb ivvastmunts Holdings Limited Shurmbraghtt 10161616 100
Vinecomh invastments Limited 108611 100
Noodoo Dolls Brand Limited Shicabrook™ 5323305 100
‘Wureshop? Lim|ted Shirubraok SH70B20 100
Haaton Howse , {04 Burinass.
Warmamboo) * Park, Whitestawn, Tallaght, 87014 100
Dublin 74, lraland .
Wolerkn Angling Product Lirmvted Shirehrookn 26631 100
Woest Coast Gopital IHOFCO) Limited 15 Athell Crescant, mnmm_wgmﬂw SC4I76M 100
Westatunster Manulactunng LLS ? o__mnmhﬂ.ﬂ.nﬂm ..,wn,__,.___u- ..ﬁw 44358 100
Whidiaw Limited Shirahack” snEm wo
Wilkom Sykas Limited Shirabraak™ 123229 0o
World of Sarvice Intarnatiann Limited Shirehrook 1202485 100
World of Service Limited Shirbrogk" 6020729 100
Yeamans Quttloots Limited - Shimbrock™ 054714 100
Zapareh SPzao ul. Zemkcka 37, Rabiakowo, WHE DODDASHTS W00

£1-023 Gqdkl, Polond

Sports Direct Internationul Holdings 1 Shinbrook™ HOTIN 106
Sports Diregt intarnctlonal Limitad Shirebrook™ nIEISy 0o
Luval 15-2. Bangunan Fabier
Imgerial Court Jalon Suftan ' 116 @
Sports Direct MST Scln 8hd sl 57200 Kuala | e 9zEEM
~aloyilu
Sports World Internotionnl Limnied Shirabrook 6521586 00
. Ver Konjjanburgwag 45, 4612 PL,
Sgorts Watll Tha Nothertonds V. gt ops 2o, Muthbrlands 3405679 100
. $kognrlind 2, 201, Kopuvagur,
Sportsairact {lcalond) shf scelond. &3I0M21260 10a
Unil 19038 & 1905, Exchange
Tererss, 33 Womg Thiv Roud,
mu!.:"_.:.nrna-_.. {Asla} Lid Kawloan Bay, Kowlaor, Hoig 1218339 100
Hong
’ Room 315, Ird Flans Building 2,
No 239 Gong'ot Read, Chino
Sportadirect.com [Shanghall Limited IShangba] Pilot Frun: 7ome, F1IONSMAKAGIALE 90
Shanghal, Ching
6F ~86-¢, Mo, NI, Chactu Rd.,
Sporsdinect. con Clatwan) Limited Kitun DIst., Taichung Ciy 407, aznoeey 95
Taiwon
Sportsdiruct com Austria GrnbH Flugplutzstrafle 10, 460C, Wels o9y 100
Pevc Indstrlel Avenus Lmast,
Sportsdiract coin Belgum S.A. Solvay 79 1480 Saintss, Belgium 41826841 10
. ' Mittiodns Stylianoy 2B, S w0p 2,
Sportsdiract com Cyprus Limirsd B577 Tolo, Paphas, Cypros HE 210340 100
Pragun 1 - Nove Mesty, No Poric
Sportsdirect.com Czach Rapublic tro 1078430, 108 00, Cruch fepublic 24788933 100
Sportsdiract.com Fitpegs Linhad Shirebrogk™ Y08522 100
' Zu des Brateaux, Rus des
Sportsdiroct.com France Bratecus, $100, Villaby, Feanca FRI23P062E13 100
H-1053 Budopast, Karelyl Mihaly .
Spoetsdirect.com Hungary KIt uica 12, Hungory 01-09-984824 100
Spartsdiect com mmotillan Gmbk Flugpiatastrafis 30, .maw.zﬂ.._” 0415 150
Brawary Stradt, Zane 3 Cantral
Sportsdirect zom Molta Limired Businass Distnct Birkirkora CBD 99278 ]
04U Maa
Parnu fnt 1392, Keskbnaa,
Sportsdicuct tom OL Teihinn, 1116, Estonia 1285837 100
5 Skindowa Strent, 81-888
Sportsdiract com Poland 5,22 .00 Pagsah, Poland , 00-872, ASIH0 100
Wa saw
/> Nerton Rose Fulbright, LT,
Sportsdiraticom Fry Lid 485 Hourks Strast, Malbe ymu 403 187 319 100
! VIC 3000, Aust olia
. Parc indusirial, Avanue Ernest,
Sportadiract.com Ratoll [Europn) S.A Salvoy 24 1460 Saintas, Belgium 458881046 0o
Sportydicsct com Rafoll Limitad® Shirsbcake 405347 100
. Centro Comurcial Pusite
Vuneri), Locol B8, Travesia de
Spartsdlract.com 5.L.U. Spain N Jos Jurdines Rualas o° 7, 50021, B-B4567840 00
Zaragora, Spaln
Vyscka 2/0. 81106, Brotislava,
Sportsdirect.com Skvakla s.10, Slovekn 47 240 456 100
Sportsdirect.cam SLYN do a. Planjavo 4, 1236 Trzin, Slovanky N9PI157000 100
com tond AG. Swi i Zaugh 77, 301 Bamn,
CHE- Switzarlond SN e
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1} Unit A Brook Park East, Shirebrool, NG20 BRY
*Dicact shareholdings held hy Frasers Group pic.
2] Unity Houss, Telford Road, Basingsioke, Humpslire, RGIZ &Y)
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Frasers Group plc intends to provide a perental guarantee for the following United Kingdom SDI (Gawnsioraugh) Limited 06338507 S {Strectharm| Limited + 10066335
incorporoted subsidiories thus entitling them to exemption from statutory audit under saction 4794 DI (Golashiels] Lumtec 7852091 SOH{Strooc Limited 07857251
of the Companies Act 2006, i <DI {GInsgow Fart) Limnited 09861504 T sDI {Sundevland Migh Street] Limitex 1GIa777S
COMPANY MAME COMPANY NUMBER COMPANY NAME COMPANY NUMBER 501 {Glasgow Frosers) Limitect nsNEeH SO {Sundarlond) Limited : 0R755347
hrect Flshing Limited 08202489 SDI (Market Roadi Limited 10795247 30! {Glasgow ingram Streett Linited 09925519 SD1 (Suttan) Limidad h2z0n
Hot Tuna IP Limited 05836792 501 (Myctllesbraughl Limited 10081909 - 50 {Blaucester) Lurted 07852067 SP1 {Suandtan Litutad D9BBAe6?
b Exquastrion Limited J—— SO (Nosson Street) Lurdted p— SDI (Great Yarmeuthl Lrmited 11732667 DI {Talloght) Linvted 10915203
5 urdoor Lmited 0BSEU360 01 (eath! Eedl 7E53548 SDI (Hanlest Lirited. . 22800 $DI (Tounten] Limited 07852191
0 (hberdoern Livitad P 301 New Crrvandish StreeD) Limitet o - SO) {Hastings} Limited 08625853 51 Thareack] Limited 10089743 )
SDI [Aberwystwyth) Limtad 02189996 SDI (Newark) Limited - 07853470 S0 [Herefori] Limitad 09588542 AP {uxbrldge 21 Limted 092746
DI (Antreg) Linvited 03352462 SI (Neweastla) Limited 0917286 SDi (Holca) Limited 0H319360 301 Wxbridge) Limited m71276
DI tAshiordy Limited 07848460 5DI (Newport) Limited casTing 50! {Hoh Holdings) Limiter 10161592 DI iviakefleld) Luruterd on4na7n
5D (ashingtan) Limited orBd231 SDI (Newaquay) Limited 1009800 DI fHounslow] Lunted looaee SDI (fleath Lirted 07852289
401 tigr] Lt . 05576767 SO iNewton abivat) Limited 06836666 SO (Hulll Limited 05636564 SO iWatlord) Limited 6320508
01 {Bangor) Limited 05529705 501 [Northamptor) Limited oresn SDt fipswich) Limited Q978841 SD! {Weymouthl Lirmite:! UKF18652
501 Barrow In Furmess) Lumited . B7asISH 5D) (Northwich) Limitort 05656795 S0 fsle Gf Man) Limited iddodliald SOI (Widnes] Lired OBS76472
= 5Dl (Beddgalert] Limited 48577551 501 {Nattingherm} Limited 10100609 S0t K Lyan) Linited : Toor3078 0L (wigan) Limited . 12579767
301 Belfest) Urrated oarzan 301 (Nurreatory Limted 85T SDI iKeighley) Limited 6260239 SDI Whhaw) Litaited 06656365
SDI {Barwick) Limited O2rI9esT SOt (Oswastey) Limned Euuam..., SDI (Kanclall Limited DAIIBI B 5D {Wolverhampton) Limkad 09798373
$DI (Batws-Y-Coad) Limited 06836673 501 (Oxfoed Straet} Limitad 10066080 SDI [Kentish Town) Limitad 09501702 501 {Wythenshowe) Limiterl 096555
0 [Bexleyheath] Limitad P SOt Palsley) Luratad 02933408 501 Kidderminsten) Limited 09203731 S [York} Limited MIHIN
D (Bkenhead) Limited P S0 {Panzance) Larited EP— 5021 Kilmarrock) Limitad 0785343 SO} Four Limited 05719772
DI {Bishop Auckland] Limited 03004746 $DI {Peterlog) Limuted or8524m S04 (Kingston} Linited lows209 501 Golf Limited 0908351
50! (Brldgwater] Lirmitad OTR5206+ SDI [Plymouth Flannels] timited o9129287 SO (Kirkealdy) Lunited 7852057 SDI Prapertias (Wigan) Linvted 06836577
£p1 {Brixton) Lunited o9127300 50! {Plymauth} Limited 094704808 S0 fLeeds} Lirited 09253515 S0 Property Limtted - 02767493
[ oBanhaz 51 {Prestont Limted < ovisten 4D Leicoster) Linnted oonrire SDI Spart London Linited 09848767
3D (Carchff Flannels) Linited 0177359 501 (Ramsgute) Limited 7852250 $DI Livarpoolf Cinded 09866714 SD! Bports [East Hami L imited 10259103
401 (Goriete; Limited 7857053 <0 iReading) Lemed [y SDI (Lowestoft] Linfted 07852265 S0I Sports {Stoke) Limited 10163722
D1 (Chatham) Limited 06876679 501 (Redear) Lumed [ 01U sl Holdingst Lurvted) 10161624 Slirlings fArayle Street) Lunfted SCOBBI0B
4D {Cheshunt 7 Limited N $O1 (Ralle St Limited 07852669 SO fLuton] Lirmited 09680625 Vinecomb Investmenls Haldings Limlled 10151316
0% {Cheshunt) Limted Hrrssgs S thamtard) Larured 00M84T 5D fManchester Cheetham Hilly Luaited 10100969 Woreshop! Limitard 09870649
, $D1 (Clacton) Limited or852078 DI {Saksbury) Lunited 10107572 501 fManchaster Genton) Limited adrilisd . - Wareshiop3 Limited 09870898
SO {Colchester) Limited - 05633790 501 [Scorbarawgh) Urmites P Alphu Developments Stockport Lurited | mseaset SDI {Feopea 75) Linuted 1577256
DU (Cork Limited 75763 501 (Scunthoma] Limited 07852055 S0 {Seuckport Lanitect 0322181 SO1{Propco N5) Liinited 12332862
SDI (Doriington} Limited 10915153 5DI {Sloughl Limited o7es2T 501 {The Howse Yarml Limited . __12aw6n
SO [Derby) Limited 09310031 ' SO (Sefhull Limvted DREDEAD
$DI (Derry) Limited 653340 501 (Seutharmpton 2) Limited . 09665889
S0i {Dencaster} Limited 9888670 5DI (Southampton) Lumited 08S12e80
501 {Pundes) Linited 09702004 501 (Southport) Limited 09688805
SDI Purfermiine) Limitec] 08483679 5DI (5t Austell) Limitec! 07852284
SD1 (East Ham) Limitad QgE1G378 S0} {St Helens) Limited! oreszar
- SDI (East Kikbwide) Limited 06656366 501 {5tnifor) Limited 08568681
A0 Echnbuigh) Limitad ANC0T90 $D1 {Stake Longton) Limited 07853677 !
5D (Enfield) Lieted 10086205 . SDI {Stoke Newington) Limited 07RE2207
D1 [Fulhamny Limied 07852037 501 [Stiabane) Linited 09890243

Conyotod awnd T hoss Captie g B
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FRASERS GROUP PLC COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES
COMPANY BALANCE SHEET IN EQUITY |

at 235 April 2021 For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
Nete »u»!.wuu % ..-.._u...h shars
Called Share  Tremury Pam o caphel L baitad Profit
(L] |£m] upshare  premium thare  contato mdsmplien &Lem Tetal
FINED ASSETS j captal  seeount  ressree  copitel  mewme TR PIROM oy
invest nants 7 14949 123158 (Em) (Emd [Lm} [Em) JEm) {Em) {Em] ) {Em)
CURRENT ASSETS . AL AT 20 APRIL 2013 641 aTY (3813} [X] (e7.3) - 2413 LX)
Dablore A w19 A& 8 (Loss) for the hnanciat penad - . . - - . - 1477 “an

Cash at bank and i hand 161 336 Fau value odjustinent in reipect of lang- . . . . . .
. varrm linancial assets - recogmsad @7 (2n

bk 4104 Share purchase . . faa0] - - oz . . o
Creditars amounts falling dus within are yaur 5 %2501 19015} Ravarsal of prror year fa valughon of oo ] - - on
WET CURRENT LLABILITIES [P o chora Luyback cantractual ohiigation
NET ASSETS Le648 ™y AS AT 24 APRIL 3010 [T &] 743 2n 21 30 {8r.0} - ma.s neT

ciol penod . - - ~ - - - me ma

CAPITAL AND RESERVES et rovpct of o " ) - " ™
Called up share capital 7 L) 641 assets - racognisad
Share prerm 8743 8743 Shura scherne as - 1"
Traasuy shars ressrvs 129571 1258 ) A AT 25 APRIL 2021 L] a3 (2917 01 20 0.8 4000 10649
Perimanent contribution to capial o 0 The shore vaa.z.:_.:, account is used to record the excess proceeds over nominal value on the issue of
Capita rademphion rasarve 80 8o shares. The permanent contribution to copital relates to o cash payment of £50,000 to the Company
Own share resarve 165 1) le7ay on B February 2007 under a deed of copital contribution. The capital redemption reserve arose on
Shata Easad payment reserve . 08 - the redemption of the Company's redeermable preference shares of 10p each at par en 2 March 2007.
Praft a1d Loss sccount 1800 e The own shares and treasury reserves represent the cost of shares in Frasers Group ple purchased in
SHAREMOLOERE FUNDS e T the market and held by Frasers Group plc Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy options under the Group's

Share Scheme. For further information see note 25 in the Group Notes to the financial staternents.
Frasers Group plc reported o profit after taxation for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021 of £231.8m P

{FY20: c loss of £47.7).

The accempanying accounting policies and notes ferm part of these Financial Statements.

The Financial Statermnents were approved by the Board on 5 August 2021 and were signed on its
behalf by:

Chris Wootton
Chief Financiol Officer
Company number; 06035106
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Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences o residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting ali of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company,
with the exception of those accounted for via
merger relief available under Section 612 of

the Companies Act 2006, are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of any direct issue costs.

Income From Group Undertokings

Income from Group undertakings is recognised
when qualifying consideration is received from
the Group undertaking.

Related Party Transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the
exemption contained in FRS 102 and has
therefore not disclosed transoctions or balances
with whelly-owned subsidiaries which form part
of the Group. See note 34 of the Group Financial
Statements for further details of related party
transactions.

Shure-Based Paymants

The Company issues from time to time
equity-settled share-based payments to certain
Direztors and employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries. These are medsured at fair value
at the date of grant, which is expensed to profit
and loss on a straight-line basis over the vesting
periad, with the corresponding credit going to
equity. .

Non-market vesting conditions are not taken
into account in determining grant date fair
value. Instead, they cre taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments to
vest. At the end of each reporting period the
Company revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non market vesting ond service conditions. Any
revis ons, if any, are recegnised in profit and loss
W odjustiment Lo eguity.

Fair value is calculated using an adjusted form of
the Elack-Scholes modet which includes a Monte
Carle simulation model that takes into account
the exercise price, the term of the option, the
impact of dilution {where materiall, the share
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price at grant date and the expected price
volatility of the underlying shore, the expected
dividend vield, and the risk-free interest rate

for the term of the scheme. The expected staff
numbers used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions,
and behavioural considerations.

For cash-settled share-based payment
transactions, the Company measures the services
received and the liability incurred at the fair
value of the liabitity. Until the licbility is settled,
the Company remeasures the fair value of the
ligbility ot the end of soch reporting period and
ot the date of settlement, with any changes in
fair value recognised in the Income Statement
for the period.

The credit for the share based peyment charge
does not equal the charge per the profit and loss
as it excludes amounts recognised in the balance
sheet in relation to the expected national
insurance centributions for the shares.

Critical Accounting Estimetes And Judgements

In the application of the Company's accounting
policies, the directors are required to make
judgemnents, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amount of assets and liobilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on histerical experience and other factors that
are considered to be refevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions

are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions

to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised, if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods.

The estimates and assumptions which have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets and lighilities
are outlined below.

Control und Significant Influence Over Certain
Entities

The Company holds greater than 20% of the
voting rights of Studio Retait Group pic and
Mulberry Group plc. The Company exercises the
some judgements as per Note 2 of the Group
financial statements on assessing whether it has
control and significant influence over associates
and joint ventures.

Impairment of Investments

At ecch pericd end monagement assess the
future performance of entities with which the ,
Company holds an investment in te ascertain
the future economic value of its investments.
Judgement is involved in the assessment of
future performance and this involves an elemant
of estimation uncertainty. As at the period end
the directors have reviewed the carrying value
of its investments and has made impairments
as disclosed in Note 2 of the Company financial
statements.

sl woudinnd acress the LUK
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2. INVESTMENTS

Investmentin  Emywstmants

subsidiaries {8 caseciater Total
1Em) itml (Em)
A% AT 20 APRIL 201% 11243 1Ha 184
Additions s 48 247 4.5
Truns B4 115 &
Impairment charge 220 - . {120
Dispiagls - - [eR] an
Amounts thraugh ot her cormpr ncome - 1229 Bnn
AL AT 26 APRI, 2020 11555 . 80.3 12358
Additians 789 - JEE] mi
mpaicmenat chorge " . - n
Dispasals 1564 15.8)
Amaunts recagrisd through other comprehensive e ome - - 773 b2
Exchange differences - - (371 (3.7
AS$ AT 25 APRIL 1031 1103 - 1614 14548

The fair value of the long-term financial assets
is based on bid quoted market prices at the

balance sheet date or where market prices are
not available, at management's best estimate.

Long-term financicl assets include various
holdings including a 35.6% stake in Studio
Retail Group plc and a 36.9% stake in Mulberry
Group ple for further details refer to Note 20 of
the Group Financiol Statements.

Fer further disclosures in relation to investments
in ossociates and long term financicl assets

see note 19, 20 and 34 of the Group Finencial
Statements.

The Directors assess the value of the
investments in subsidiaries at each period

end for indicators of impairment. For the

period ended 25 April 2021 an impairment

less of £11m has been recognised within the
income statement for loss making companies
where the recoverable amount is less than the
carrying value [FY20: £22 0m}. The additions to
investments in subsidiaries in the period are due
to a reorganisation of the US subsidiaries.
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The Company is the princieal helding company
of the Group. The principal subsidiary
undertakings of the Company are set out in
note 37 of the Group Financial Statements

The Groug's policies for financial risk
management are sat out in Note 3 and Note 29
of the Group Financial Statements.

FRASERS GROWUP

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Finuncial Assets And Liabilities By Category

The fair volue hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities, which are principally denominoted in

Sterling or US Dollars, were as follows:

25 Apsil 20110 16 April 1020
(Emi {Em)
FINANCIAL ASSETS
cosT:
Tratle ond othar recervables® ) 1381 13
Fvock:
Long Tern Finoneial Assets [Equty instrumentst 2616 803
V)
Dervative financint assets - Lonlracts tor 201 ?7
A 1923
LIABILITIES
AMORTISED LOST:
Trade and other puyables £07 3 BET1
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL IABLITIES {FV):
(3urwotive innneal Liabvities ~ contracts for ditfarence 17 44
O 015 .
. Prepayments of £3 Fm (FY20 £01m), carporation tax ob £10m (FY20 [10wi] und deferred tax assets of {wl {F¥20 £3 7 are no
hnancml usset
4. DEBTORS .
5 April 2021 26 April 2030
(Em) 1£m)
Amaunts cwm by Graus unge ix:] -
Dervumer hnancial atsats 201 7
Other debtars EiE] K]
Lerporatan tax 19 Ta
Srapayments 37 a1
Deferrea tax nssets inote 6) N 37
w2y 53

Other debtors includes £131.0m {FY20: £71.3m) of deposits in respect of derivative financial
instruments which are collateral to cover margin requirernents for derivative transactions held with
caunterparties. The collateral requirement changes with the market [which is dependent an share
price, interest rates and volatility) and further purchases / sales of underlying investments held.

Further information on derivative finencial assets can be found in the Group consolidated gccounts
in the financial instruments note 29 and the financicl risk manogement disclosure note 3.
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FRASERS GROUP

5. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

25 Apeil 2021 26 Aprid 1020

Em) (L}

Trade creditors 13 05
Amounts swed 10 Group undertakings 6075 865 8
Dervative kinonhciol ahilities 17 344
Gther craditars 15 08
60%.0 013

The amounted owed to Group undertakings mainly relates to an unsecured interest free loan with
Sportsdirect.com Retail Limited which is repayable on demand.

Further information on derivative financial liabilities cen be found in the Group consolidated
accounts in the financial instruments note 2¢ and tae financial risk management disclosure note 2.

Other creditors at 25 April 2021 mostly relate to the accrual for costs payable to MM Prop
Consultancy Limited, see note 34 of the Group financial statements.

6. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

8. POSTBALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 4 May 2021 the Group commeénced a share
buyback programme with the aggregate
purchase price of all shares acquired under the

programme to be no greater than £60m and the

maximum number of shares to be purchased
of 10m ordinary shares with a nominal volue of
10p each. The purposes of the programme was
to reduce the share capital of the Compeny!
3,895,835 ordinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £22,429,985 were acquired
through this progreamme.

On 21 June 2021 the Group commenced an
irrevocable non-discretionary share buyback
programme to purchase the Group's shares
during the closed period which commenced 21
June 2021 and ends on the day of reporting full
year FY21 results. The aggregate purchase price
of all shares acquired under the programme

Should Michael Murray assume the CEO rote,
Mike Ashley would step down from the CEO role
at the same time but would remain on the Board
as an executive director.

9.  PAYROLL COSTS

Frasers Group plc has no direct employees, the
Diractors are remunerated through Sportsdirect.
com Retail Limited. Details of the Directors’
remuneration can be found in the Directors'
Remuneration Report.

10. RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS
Related party transactions with the Company

are disclosed within note 34 in the Group
Financial Statements.

Othar tomparary were no greater than £60m and the maximum
differances number of shares to be purchased were 10m
AT I8 APRIL 3019 . Lo ordinary shares with a nominal value of 10p
Credited ta the profit and loss account 0% each. The purpose of the programme wos to
AT 26 APRHL. 2020 i 2] reduce the share capital of the Company. In total
Charged to the prolit and loss accaunt un to date 2,024,127 ordinary shores of 10p each for

consideration of £11,937,385 have been acquired
through this programme.

AT 25 APRIL 2021 -

The tax rate used to measure the deferred tax assets ond liabilities was 19% {FY20: 199%) on the
basis that these were the tax rates thaot were substastively enacted at the balance sheet date for the
periods when the assets and liabilities are expected to reverse,

The Board is now in discussions with regards
to transitioning the CEQ rale from Mike Ashley
to Michael Murray over the course of FY22.
Itis currently proposed that Michael Murray

7. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL will assume the role of CEQ on 1May 2022,

25 Apeil 2021 26 April 1020 A reward and remuneration package is now
1tm o under consideration on the assumption Michael
Murray will assume the CEO role. Any reward

939,500,010 oritinary sharas of Wp zoch 1000 1000 and _,.m._.s::man_os package will be subject to any
£99,990 redmemabla pratarence shares of Wp eoch requisite shareholder approval.

0.0 100.0 The Group's slevation strategy is transforming
CALLED 147 AN FULLY PRID the business and receiving positive feedback
40,602,369 (F¥20. 640,502,369] ardinary share of W0p euch 641 . A1 from consumers and our brand partners,
SHARE CAMTAL w1 sit especially on projects such as the new Oxford

Street Sports Direct which opened in June 2021,
The company Noids 121,260,175 ordinary shares in treasury as at the period end date
(FY20: 121.260,175). The Board consider it appropriote that Michael
leads us forward on this increasingly successful

elevation journey.
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Reconciliation of excluding acquisitions and currency neutral perfermance measures:
CONSOLIDATED FIVE YEAR RECORD . Ukiports  Premiom  Rupean  RustOl
. Rutall  Lideatyle ) Werld Rutail Group Total
Unaudited Income statement AEVENUE
FY2t Reported 19685 56 6152 1527 1533 T E]
Stmeks Siwess  Sdwesks  CENN gy,
andad 25 ended 28 onded 20 anded 1% andvd 30 Adpustrens for aoquistions ond rurrency neutral 1307 Ap 839 1202 51 - - 15%3.85
p April 101 p
April 2321 Apcll 2020 Apri201% ﬁ.ﬂ“ aed) | APANIHT FYI1EXCLUDING ACQUISITIONS AND CURREHCY NEUTRAL 16811 [t "7 1522 ma 1,008
e tem) feml tem) lEre) Y0 Reported 21033 20 4977 1742 1602 19574
CONTINUING OPIRATIONS:
Avjustrments tor sequithions @ currensy neutral 2577 78 178 5t M2 731 {s24.1)
HEVENVE . 38253 39574 3TN G 13595 EFZLK]
FY20 EXCLUDING ACGUISITIONS AND CURREHE Y NEUTRAL 19454 [Tt sbs 1519 W 1418
Cost of sales 12.084.5) 122948 (2 4 12,024 4) {1318 7
GROSS PROFIT 1530.0 16624 15835 13351 13306 % VARIAKCE (e8%0 b e o feawh 0% M.
Salling, distriburtien and administratve expenses {1438.0) nsbaly 13,9 {5172 6) {1355 61 UNDEALYING EBITDA
Other opednting income 368 28 265 725 Tt Reported 192 sas a 256 80 o
Exceptiongl tems (18 31 2101 (agi N7 Adpstients fo qrguisitians and eurrency neutrol 04 M3y 174 - - 0.5
Praht on dispesal bl preperty 57 547 B4 163 FY21 EXCLUDING ACOUISITIOHS AND CURTENCY NEUTHAL e 404 {13 X FTT) 700
Profit on dispasal af wheid ey - - - Tuw Y20 Reported 24 15 "o ) 57 2021
CPERATING (LOSE)/PROFIT (68,3} mny 1805 005 o1 Adpustments lor atquishons and <urency newtral &1 3y 50 oz [4k/] 3
Investment incomericosts! 150 1348) o 937 ma FY20 EXCLUDING ACOUSTIONS AND CURRENCY NEUTRAL ms 14 s t6:6) us swe
Fnanca incame b no 400 34 88 % VARIANCE 19.7% aTan C(103a%) (A819%] A% "%
Finance rast (283} 233 09 4] 1409} 341
Shere of {loss] / prefit of assoeated undertakings and joint ventures - 159 1851 ok oe . Y.
Movement in provisions pre-IFRS 16:
Foir valuz gain on sten acquistion - 204 - -
f
PROFIT REFCRE TAXATION a5 1435 1732 a1 PR
r.-_h..z_ -iﬂ.ﬂ Sther Total
Taxotien {86.5) 1425 1632 375t 14551 redlatary ™
LOISRROFIT FOR THE PERIGD .01 1010 V160 72 7 L] d {Em) L&}
AT 28 ARRIL 2Dy 1340 1945 .0 FTLAY
Equity holders of the Group 183.0} 938 120 201 P
Amauns provdeit 10 .2 - ma
Non-contralling wterasts $0 7 40 EA 1\ -
Arnourts ultised f reversed 141 170 8} 53 wn
ILOSSYPROFIT FOR THE PERIOD o} | 100 180 232 7
Addur s 108 196
Notes to the consolidated Income Statement five year record: . - AT 16 APRIL 2910 4 P o P
1 Allinformotion is presented under IFRS. Amoints provided 74 187 - ussé
. . . . Armounts utlsed £ reverser o {45 8) nay 843
2. The five year record has been prepared on the same basis as the Financial Statements for the 52 e a .
AT 35 APRIL 2021 1S s .y 13 %o

weeks ended 25 April 2021, as set out in note 1, bosis of preporation, of the Consolidated Finoncic!

Statements. ) During the period, onerous lease provisions [Pre-IFRS 16} were recognised due to an ongoing
management review of the Group's store profile and strategy including current and cnticipated
freehold acquisitions, resuiting in overall additional cnerous provisions of £71.9m (FY20: £26.9m) in
the period, with reference to the Groups alternative performance measures.
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Reconciliation of underlying performonce measures [EBITDA and PBT): Reconciliotion of Adjusted Profit/{loss) before Tax performance measure:
S2weska snded 52 weaks ended 52 washs and 52 wesks andud
. 2% April 2011 18 Apl 2020 25 April 2021 26 Apall 2020
ERITDA PaT pRT [, 03
(Lo IEm) {Em) {Em]
CPERATING {LOSS) / PROFIT 160.3) - - REPORTED 1 s
Depreciatian of praperty, plant and equipment and nvestment diopartics 183 _ 08 ) Exceptigngl items ' 1% 131
fexclucng right-ol-use asset]
paw nent ot propesty, plont ond equipment and mvestmant propertes e R 248 . Fuar volue gun on step orquiton - 1204
texclucing right-of-use assat] Feur value adjustmant to foreign cutiency contracts 46 1213
Amertiation of intangible ossets . 7 - 145 - Net investment {income] / costs 19608 148
Impan nent of intangibly assets {non-exceptianal}p N - - 5.9 Reaksed FX loss / lgoin] %3 (348)
1FRS 1€ nght-al-use asset depreciation 821 uh - Shara scheme -
{FRS 1€ nght-ol-use asset impoirment 1682 - 1061 ABJUSTED Mt
IFRS 16 disposat and modiicotnn/remeaswrement of lzase habilities [F2h . 97 - B
5165 - e -
Shara of flosst/ proht ond impairments of aysociates - - 155
ORT 5363 a3 5510 u1s ’
Excuptional itums 14 i m 131
1] 18 w1 131 ’
IFRS 16 Revarsal of rant expensa . (12731 mia) 137%) 1373
IFRS 16 Revarsal of unerous leate provisian BEE 46 (355) 135 51
IFR5 16 right-ol-use asset depraviotion - 821 - 1226 :
IFRS 16 night-cl-use asset iImpairment - 168 7 - 061
IFRS. 16 dsposal and modification/remeusurement of lense kabilites - 12rn - )
interest Payoble - IFRS 16 ne - 109 N
(L L] J08 M) 559
Praiit on sale of properties
Profit on sole of proparties - pre-1IFRS 16 hasis. 97 {97 noy.3) 09 3t ~
- iFRS 16 sale und leuseback - adjustment to post-tFRS 15 buwis. - - 551 551
un 1542) 13431 ‘
{Prafit] / loss on dispasal of inancial instrumants 14859 - 77
Reohsed FX loss / [goin] FLE] 263 (328 134 8}
Farr valus adjustment on equty darvaties - (475 - 269
Far value adjustment on [araign currency contracts - 46 - [£2E]
Fair valus gain on step ccquisitian - - . a0 4 :
UNDERLYTING 1%50.8 LA} 103y 174
.
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COMPANY DIRECTORY SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE PRINCIPAL BANKERS ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING WEBSITE
Computershare Investor Services plc Barciays Bank ple The date, time and format of the Annual The Group website ot www frasers.group
The Pavilions 5 The North Colonnade General Meeting to be announced in line with provides news and detcils of the Company's )
Bridgwater Rood Canary Wharf Covid-19 quidance. Each shareholder is entitled activities plus information for shareholders and |
Bristol London ' to attend (subject to Covid-19 guidance} and contains real time share price doto os well as . _
B59% 6ZZ E14 4BB vote at the meeting, the arrangements for the |atest results and announcements.

which are described in a separate notice. 7
Telephone: HSBC Bank ple

8 Canada Square UNSOLICITED MAIL ,ﬁ
0 7 03
0370 707 403G London RESULTS The Compuany is obliged by law to maoke its
£14 5HQ For the year to 24 Aptil 2022 share register publicly available and cs @
COMPANY SECRETARY AND y consequence some shareholders may receive
REGISTERED OFFICE AUDITORS * Holf year results announced: unsolicited mail, including from unauthorised
tbe December 2021 investment firms
Frasers Group pic R5M UK Audit LLP . ’
Unit A, Brook Park East 25 Farringdon Street ”H__ﬂﬁmu announcement of full year For more information on unauthorised
Shirebrook London ' . investement firms targeting UK investors, visit the
NG20 8RY , EC4A 4AB «  Annuol Report circulated: the website of the Finencial Conduct Autharity at
Telephane: www.fca.orguk
elephone: . SHAREHOLDER HELPLINE ) . .
If you wish to limit the amount of unsolicited
0344 245 9200 The Tomm_M M_S:n m:narﬂumq ﬂm_._mmﬂ.m- is mail you receive contact:
. . . maintained by Computershare who are
 Frasers Group plc is registered in England and responsible for making dividend payments The Mailing Preference Service

Wales (No. 06035106) - " ! .

and upddating the register, including details DMA House

of changes to shareholders’ addresses, If you 70 Margaret Street
SOLICITORS i have a query about your shareholding in Sports Londen
Reynolds Porter Chamberlain LLP Direct, you should contact Computershare’s W1IW BSS
Tower Bridge House Frasers Group Sharehalder Helpline or: Yelephone:
St Katharine's Way 0370 707 4030, Calls are charged at standard P - -
London geographic rates, dlthough network chorgas 020 7291 3310
£1W 1AA may vary. :

Emaif:

Dentons UK and Middle East LLP Address: .
One Fleet Place L mps@cma.org.uk
London i.,.m Pavilions or reqister online at
EC4AM 7W5S mqn_méowﬁ Road q )

Bristo! www.mpsonline.org.u
BROKERS BS99 627 Frasers Group plc

Website: Unit A, Brook Park East
Liberum Capital Limited - Shirebrack
Ropemaker Place, Level 12 www.computershare.com NG20 8RY
25 Ropemaker Street .
London i 0344 245 9200
EC2Y LY -

www frasers.group
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